

RFI Work Plan for Operable Unit 1082

Environmental Restoration Project

Addendum 2

July 1995

A Department of Energy Environmental Cleanup Program





<u>A-UR-95-1038</u>





EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Purpose

The primary purposes of this Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) facility investigation (RFI) work plan are to determine if a release has occurred, and/or the nature and extent of releases of hazardous waste or hazardous constituents from solid waste management units (SWMUs) in Operable Unit (OU) 1082, and to determine the need for corrective measures studies (CMSs). Secondly, this document satisfies part of the regulatory requirements contained in Los Alamos National Laboratory's (the Laboratory's) permit to operate under RCRA.

OU 1082 includes active Technical Areas (TAs) 11, 16, 28, and 37. These TAs are located in Los Alamos County. There are 425 potential release sites (PRSs) in OU 1082, which are located on land owned by the Department of Energy (DOE).

Because of the large number of PRSs in OU 1082, this work plan is written in three parts. The first part is the complete work plan delivered in 1993. The second part is Addendum 1 delivered in 1994 and the third part is Addendum 2 delivered in 1995. Addendum 1 consists of updated versions of the Executive Summary, Chapters 1, 2, 3, 4, and Appendix E.

Addendum 2 consists of selected updated sections and tables of the Executive Summary, Chapter 1 and Chapter 4. Chapters 5 and 6 contain the additional PRSs to the 1993 and 1994 editions of these chapters. Chapter 6 has Attachment A that contains cleanup documentation for some SWMUs. Attachment A is available at the Records Processing Facility and The Environmental Restoration Project Public Reading Room. Appendix E, Maps, contains only new maps produced for Addendum 2. The table of contents and list of figures and tables pertain only to Addendum 2.

Section 5.0 of Chapter 5 and the notes at the beginning of Chapter 6 show new text marked with an underline. Changed or deleted text is marked with a strike through. New tables or figures are distinguished by the addition of the letter "B" to the table or figure number. Chapter 5

Table of Contents

•

		IARY	
1	ulhose	E0-1	1
TABLE O	F CONTE	NTS	
Т	ables	V	i
F	igures	vii	i
Chapter	1 INTRO	DUCTION	
Chapter	4 TECH	NICAL APPROACH	
Chapter	5 EVAL	UATION OF POTENTIAL RELEASE SITE AGGREGATES	
5	5.0	Evaluation of Potential Release Site Aggregates 5-0-1	l
5	5.0.1	Index to PRSs Described in Chapter 55-0-1	l
5	5.0.2	DQOs for Reconnaissance Sampling - Generic Logic 5-0-10)
5	5.0.2.1	Problem Statement (DQO Step 1) 5-0-15	5
5	5.0.2.2	Decision Process (DQO Step 2)5-0-15	5
5	5.0.2.3	Decision Inputs (DQO Step 3) 5-0-16	3
5	5.0.2.4	Investigation Boundary (DQO Step 4) 5-0-16	5
5	.0.2.5	Decision Logic (DQO Step 5)	5
5	5.0.2.6	Design Criteria (DQO Step 6) 5-0-17	7
5	6.26	Surface Contamination Aggregate5-26-1	I
5	5.26.1	Background	
. 5	5.26.1.1	Description and History	l
5	0.26.2	Decision and Investigation Objectives	3
5	0.26.2.1	Problem Statement	3
5	.26.2.2	Design Criteria	5
5	0.26.3	Sampling and Analysis Plan5-26-17	7
5	.26.3.1	Sampling)
5	0.27	Underground Storage Tanks Aggregate	1
5	0744	Background	1
5	0710	Description and History	
5	0.27.1.2	Demodiation Desiries and Investigation	3
5	07.01	Remediation Decision and Investigation Objectives 5-27-5	> -
) 5	0.21.2.1	Problem Statement	>
5 E	.21.2.2	Decian Oritoria	2
5 E	27.2.3	Sempling and Applyria Dian	5
5	1.27.3 1.29	Outfalls Aggregate	5
5	20	Packaround	1
5	2811	Description and History	1
5	28111	Chemical Storage Building Outfalls 5-28-	2
5	28112	Oil Overflow Drain Outfalls	-
. J 5	28.1.1.3	TA-16-202 Machine Shon Outfall	, a
5	28.1 1 4	Badiography Building Outfalls 5-28-0	ر د
5	.28.1.1.5	TA-16-370 Outfall 5-28-17	ź
5	.28.1.1.6	Cooling Tower Outfalls and Associated Debris 5-28-19	5
5	.28.1.1.7	TA-16-260 Outfalls	7
5	.28.1.2	Nature and Extent of Contamination	Э

1

,

ł

	5.28.2	Remediation Decision and Investigation Objectives 5-28-22
	5.28.2.1	Problem Statement5-28-22
	5.28.2.2	Design Criteria 5-28-23
	5.28.3	Sampling and Analysis Plan5-28-25
	5.28.3.1	Sampling 5-28-26
	5.29	TA-16-478 Aggregate 5-29-1
	5.29.1	Background 5-29-1
	5.29.1.1	Description and History 5-29-1
	5.29.1.2	Conceptual Exposure Model 5-29-4
	5.29.1.2.1	Nature And Extent Of Contamination 5-29-4
	5.29.1.2.2	Potential Pathways And Exposure Routes
	5.29.2	Remediation Decisions and Investigation Objectives 5-29-6
	5.29.2.1	Problem Statement5-29-6
	5.29.2.2	Decision Process 5-29-6
	5.29.2.3	Inputs 5-29-7
	5.29.2.4	Boundaries 5-29-7
	5.29.2.5	Decision Logic
	5.29.2.6	Design Criteria 5-29-9
	5.29.3	Sampling and Analysis Plan 5-29-9
	5.29.3.1	Surface Scraping and Trenching Surveys
	5.29.3.2	Sampling
Chapte	r6 EVAL	UATION OF POTENTIAL RELEASE SITE AGGREGATES
•	6.6	Solid Waste Management Units Listed in the Hazardous
		and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) Module VIII
		Recommended for No Further Action
	6.6.1	Solid Waste Management Units Recommended for No
		Further Action Under Step One of the Four-Step Criteria6-2
	6.6.1.1	Outfall, SWMU 16-028(e); Active Sump, SWMU 16-029(i) 6-3
	6.6.1.1.1	Background
	6.6.1.1.2	Recommendation
	6.6.1.1.3	Rationale for Recommendation
	6.6.1.2	Surface Disposal, SWMUs 16-016(d,e,g)6-4
	6.6.1.2.1	Background 6-4
	6.6.1.2.2	Recommendation
	6.6.1.2.3	Rationale for Recommendation
	6.6.1.3	Outfalls, SWMUs 16-026(a,i,t,z) and 16-030(c)
	6.6.1.3.1	Background
	6.6.1.3.2	Recommendation
	6.6.1.3.3	Rationale for Recommendation
	6.6.1.4	Outfall, SWMU 16-026(a2) 6-9
	6.6.1.4.1	Background 6-9
	6.6.1.4.2	Recommendation
	6.6.1.4.3	Rationale for Recommendation
	6.6.1.5	Outfall, SWMU 16-026(y)
	6.6.1.5.1	Background 6-9
	6.6.1.5.2	Recommendation 6-10
	6.6.1.5.3	Rationale for Recommendation6-10
	6.6.1.6	Outfall, SWMU 16-031(h) 6-10
	6.6.1.6.1	Background 6-10
	6.6.1.6.2	Recommendation 6-11
	6.6.1.6.3	Rationale for Recommendation 6-11
	6.6.1.7	Active Outfall Cooling Tower, SWMU 16-031(e); Inactive
		Outfall Cooling Tower, SWMU 16-031(f) 6-11

ï

6.6.1.7.1	Background 6-11
6.6.1.7.2	Recommendation 6-12
6.6.1.7.3	Rationale for Recommendation
6.6.2	SWMUs Recommended for No Further Action Under Step
	Two of the Four-Step Criteria
6.6.2.1	Outfalls, SWMUs 16-026(d2 e2 f2 g2 h k x) and
	16-0.30 (b e f) 6-13
66211	Background 6-13
66212	Recommendation 6-14
66213	Bationale for Becommendation 6-14
6622	Outfall SWMU 16-026/f) 6-14
66221	Backaround 614
66222	Becommondation 6 15
0.0.2.2.2	Detionale for Decommendation
0.0.2.2.3	Cuttell CMMM 40.000(a)
0.0.2.3	Outrail, SWMU 16-026(g)
6.6.2.3.1	Background
6.6.2.3.2	Recommendation 6-16
6.6.2.3.3	Rationale for Recommendation
6.6.2.4	Soil Contamination at Decommissioned Buildings, SWMUs
	16-034(i,k) 6-16
6.6.2.4.1	Background 6-16
6.6.2.4.2	Recommendation 6-17
6.6.2.4.3	Rationale for Recommendation
6.6.3	SWMUs Recommended for No Further Action Under Step
	Four of the Four-Step Criteria 6-17
6.6.3.1	Soil Contamination at Decommissioned Storage Buildings,
	SWMUs 16-025(e2,f2,h2)
6.6.3.1.1	Background 6-18
6.6.3.1.2	Recommendation 6-18
6.6.3.1.3	Rationale for Recommendation6-18
6.7	SWMUs and AOCs Not Listed in the HSWA Module
	That Are Recommended for No Further Action
6.7.1	SWMUs Recommended for No Further Action Under Step
	One of the Four-Step Criteria
6.7.1.1	Fuel Tank, C-16-072
6.7.1.1.1	Background
6.7.1.1.2	Becommendation 6-19
67113	Bationale for Recommendation 6-19
67.1.2	Active HE Sump SWMU 16-003(g): Hydraulic Oil Spill
0	C-16-071 6-20
67121	Background 6-20
67122	Becommendation 6-20
67123	Bationale for Bocommendation 6-20
6713	Decommissioned Office and Shop, C-16-049
67121	Beckground 6.21
0.7.1.3.1	Backyround
67122	Recommendation 6.21
0.7.1.3.3	Rationale for Recommendation
0.7.1.4	Decommissioned Electrical Mannoles, C-16-062 and
07444	0-10-003
6.7.1.4.1	Background
6.7.1.4.2	Hecommendation
6.7.1.4.3	Rationale for Recommendation
6.7.1.5	Decommissioned water Storage Tank, C-16-018
6.7.1.5.1	Background 6-22

iii

5

6.7.1.5.2	Recommendation 6-22
6.7.1.5.3	Rationale for Recommendation 6-22
6.7.1.6	Decommissioned Office Building, C-16-020
6.7.1 <i>.</i> 6.1	Background 6-23
6.7.1.6.2	Recommendation 6-23
6.7.1.6.3	Rationale for Recommendation6-23
6.7.1.7	Decommissioned Water Tanks, C-16-034 and C-16-035 6-23
6.7.1.7.1	Background 6-23
6.7.1.7.2	Recommendation 6-23
6.7.1.7.3	Rationale for Recommendation6-24
6.7.1.8	Decommissioned Latrine, C-16-061
6.7.1.8.1	Background 6-24
6.7.1.8.2	Recommendation 6-24
6.7.1.8.3	Rationale for Recommendation
6.7.1.9	Decommissioned Hose House, C-16-0416-24
6.7.1.9.1	Background 6-24
6.7.1.9.2	Recommendation 6-25
6.7.1.9.3	Rationale for Recommendation 6-25
6.7.1.10	Decommissioned Steam Manholes, C-16-044 and
	C-16-046
6.7.1.10.1	Background 6-25
6.7.1.10.2	Recommendation 6-26
6.7.1.10.3	Rationale for Recommendation 6-26
6.7.1.11	Decommissioned Storage Building, C-16-050
6.7.1.11.1	Background 6-26
6.7.1.11.2	Recommendation 6-26
6.7.1.11.3	Rationale for Recommendation 6-26
6.7.1.12	Industrial Waste Tank, SWMU 16-037 6-26
6.7.1.12.1	Background
6.7.1.12.2	Recommendation 6-27
6.7.1.12.3	Rationale for Recommendation
6.7.1.13	Crossover Platform
6.7.1.13.1	Background 6-27
6.7.1.13.2	Recommendation 6-28
6.7.1.13.3	Rationale for Recommendation
6.7.2	SWMUs and AOCs Recommended for No Further Action
017.12	Under Step Two of the Four-Step Criteria
6721	Decommissioned Aboveground Fuel Tanks, SWMUs
011.2.1	16-033(c d)
67211	Background 6-28
67212	Becommendation 6-29
67213	Bationale for Becommendation 6-29
6722	Implement Shed. C-16-008; Mess Hall. C-16-009; Storage
0.7.2.2	Building, C-16-010: Decommissioned Blacksmith Shon
	C-16-012: Decommissioned Lumber Storage Area
	C-16-013: Decommissioned Equipment Boom C-16-014:
	Decommissioned Hose House C-16-015: Decommissioned
	Fire House C-16-016: Decommissioned Latrine
	C-16-036 6-29
67221	Background 6-29
6.7.2.2.2	Becommendation 6-30

.

iv

6.7.2.2.3	Rationale for Recommendation	1
6.7.2.3	Decommissioned Oil Switches, C-16-047, C-16-051, and	
	C-16-058	1
6.7.2.3.1	Background 6-3	1
6.7.2.3.2	Recommendation 6-3	1
6.7.2.3.3	Rationale for Recommendation6-3	2
6.7.2.4	Transformer 6-3	2
6.7.2.4.1	Background 6-3	2
6.7.2.4.2	Recommendation 6-3	2
6.7.2.4.3	Rationale for Recommendation 6-3	3
6.7.2 <i>.</i> 5	Decommissioned Pump House, C-16-019	3
6.7.2.5.1	Background 6-3	3
6.7.2.5.2	Recommendation 6-3	3
6.7.2.5.3	Rationale for Recommendation 6-3	3
6.7.2.6	Underground Fuel Tank, C-16-0706-3	4
6.7.2.6.1	Background 6-3	4
6.7.2.6.2	Recommendation 6-3	5
6.7. 2.6 .3	Rationale for Recommendation 6-3	5
6.7.3	SWMUs Recommended for No Further Action Under Step	
	Three of the Four-Step Criteria 6-3	5
6.7. 3.1	Soil Contamination, SWMU 16-022(a)6-3	5
6.7.3.1.1	Background 6-3	5
6.7.3.1.2	Recommendation 6-3	7
6.7.3.1.3	Rationale for Recommendation	7
6.7.3.2	Underground Storage Tanks, SWMUs 16-033(a,b,f-j), and	
07004	16-022(b)	7
0.7.3.2.1	Background	7
0.7.3.2.2	Recommendation	3
674	Rationale for Recommendation	3
0.7.4	Swivius and AOUS Recommended for No Further Action	
6711	Transformore SMMULe 10.007(a a)	4
67411	Packaround	4
67410	Background	4
67412	Recommendation	6
6749	Rationale for Recommendation	6
67421	Derational Release, SWMU 16-021(D)	6
67420	Becommondation	6
67422	Pationalo for Recommendation	0
6.8	SWMLL Recommended for Voluntary Corrective Action 6.4	ю 7
6.8.1	SWMU Recommended for No Europer Action due to	1
0.0.1	Voluntary Corrective Action Under Step Four of the Four	
	Step Criteria	-
6811	Surface Disposal SWML16-016/f)	7
6.8.1.1.1	Background	7
68112	Becommendation	7
68113	Bationale for Becommendation	7
Reference	S c A	0
1010101000	0*4	0

Appendix E OU 1082 PLATES



v

July 1995

Tables

* * *

Table 1-3B	Addendum 2 SWMU Cross Reference List 1-1
Table 1-4B	PRSs, PRS Aggregates, and Location in Chapter 5 1-5
Table 1-5B	PRSs Recommended for No Current RCRA Facility Investigation in Addendum2
Table 1-6B	SWMUs Proposed for Deletion from Table C of the HSWA Module
Table 4-1B	Chemicals of Potential Concern at OU 1082 for Aggregates 5.26 Through 5.30
Table 4-6B	Potential Response Actions for Each PRS Aggregate4-8
Table 5-0-1	Index to PRSs
Table 5-0-2	Field Screening Sampling Numbers5-0-19
Table 5-0-3	Laboratory Sampling Numbers5-0-21
Table 5-26-1	Surface Soil Contamination PRSs at S-Site5-26-2
Table 5-26-2	Potential Release Sites and Chemicals of Potential Concern Contained in OU 1082, Surface Aggregate
Table 5-26-3	Grouping of Surface PRSs into Severity and Heterogeneity Categories
Table 5-26-4	Standard Operating Procedures for Field Activities5-26-17
Table 5-26-5	Summary of Site Surveys, Sampling, and Analysis for Surface Aggregate
Table 5-27-1	Underground Storage Tanks at TA-165-27-1
Table 5-27-2	Summary of Remediation or Screening Action Levels for USTs During Removal or Upgrading5-27-3
Table 5-28-1	Outfall and Drainage Aggregate PRSs5-28-1
Table 5-28-2	Potential Release Sites and Chemicals of Potential Concern Contained in OU 1082, Outfalls Aggregate
Table 5-28-3	Analysis of Soil Samples for Barium Content5-28-21
Table 5-28-4	Barium Concentration in Soil Samples Measured With XRF
Table 5-28-5	Grouping of Outfall PRSs Into Severity and Heterogeneity Categories
Table 5-28-6	Standard Operating Procedures for Field Activities5-28-26
Table 5-28-7	Summary of Site Surveys, Sampling, and Analysis for Surface Aggregate
Table 5-29-1	High Explosives in Drainage Ditches at Sump Effluent Outlet Baytos' Studies of 1970 - 1986 at TA-16-4785-29-5
Table 5-29-2	Standard Operating Procedures for Field Activities
Table 5-29-3	Summary of Site Surveys, Sampling, and Analysis for Surface Aggregate

vi

.

Table 6-11	PRSs Recommended for No Current RCRA Facility Investigation in Addendum 2
Table 6-12	XRF and Background Values for Soil Near TA-16-3706-5
Table 6-13	Rest Houses and Rest House Utility Room Drains6-13
Table 6-14	Decommisioned Zia Maintenance Facility Structures6-30
Table 6-15	Oil Switches 6-31
Table 6-16	Analytical Results from Borehole Samples at TA-16-205 6-36
Table 6-17	Underground Storage Tanks Removed from TA-166-38
Table 6-18	Headspace Teat Results6-42
Table 6-19	Results of Laboratory Analyses 6-42

.

1

1

I

Figures

Fig. 5-0-1(a).	Index to PRS location and sampling maps for OU 1082 (1993 RFI Work Plan) 5-0-11
Fig. 5-0-1(b).	Index to PRS location and sampling maps for OU 1082 (1993 RFI Work Plan)
Fig. 5-0-2.	Index to detailed sampling and PRS location figures for Subsec- tions 5.18 through 5.25 (Addendum 1)
Fig. 5-0-3.	Index map to PRS locations and sampling maps for Subsections 5.26 through 5.29 (Addendum 2).
Fig. 5-0-4.	Schematic diagram showing typical groups of SWMUs covered in Subsections 5.18 through 5.25.
Fig. 5-26-1.	Locations of SWMUs 16-024(i and j) in the administration area 5-26-3
Fig. 5-26-2.	Location of SWMU 16-024(v) near TA-16-540 5-26-4
Fig. 5-26-3.	Location of SWMU 16-024(s) near TA-16-4305-26-5
Fig. 5-26-4.	Locations of SWMUs 16-024(a and u) at P-Site5-26-7
Fig. 5-26-5.	Locations of PRSs 16-025(d2) and C-16-060 near TA-16-3405-26-8
Fig. 5-26-6,	Location of SWMU 16-024(t) near TA-16-460
Fig. 5-26-7.	Locations of PRSs 16-034(j), C-16-034(h), and C-16-011 in the Zia maintenance area
Fig. 5-26-8.	Sampling locations for SWMU 16-034(j), 16-034(h), and 16-011 in the Zia maintenance area.
Fig. 5-26-9.	Sampling locations for SWMUs 16-024(a and u), decommissioned magazines at P-Site
Fig. 5-26-10.	Sampling locations for SWMU 16-024(t), decommissioned maga- zine near TA-16-460
Fig. 5-26-11.	Sampling locations for PRSs 16-025(d2) and C-16-060, decom- missioned buildings near TA-16-340.
Fig. 5-26-12.	Sampling locations for SWMUs 16-024(i and j), decommissioned magazines in the administration area.
Fig. 5-26-13.	Sampling locations for SWMU 16-024(s) near TA-16-430. 5-26-27
Fig. 5-26-14.	Sampling locations for SWMU 16-024(v) near TA-16-540. 5-26-28
Fig. 5-27-1.	Possible location of decommissioned fuel tanks, SWMU 16-033(e) 5-27-2
Fig. 5-27-2.	Possible location of C-16-073, a decommissioned fuel tank associated with building TA-16-200.
Fig. 5-27-3.	UST decision logic flow chart5-27-6
Fig. 5-27-4.	Geophysical survey location southwest of building TA-16-200

viii

Fig. 5-27-5.	Geophysical survey location northwest of building TA-16-10
Fig. 5-28-1.	Location of SWMU 16-026(c2) near TA-16-4625-28-3
Fig. 5-28-2.	Location of SWMU 16-030(a) at TA-16-344
Fig. 5-28-3.	Location of SWMU 16-026(r) at TA-16-180 5-28-6
Fig. 5-28-4.	Locations of SWMUs 16-026(u and b2) and 16-028(d) in the administration area 5-28-7
Fig. 5-28-5.	Location of SWMU 16-026(i) at TA-16-224 in the radiography area
Fig. 5-28-6.	Location of SWMU 16-026(j) at TA-16-226 in the radiography area
Fig. 5-28-7.	Location of SWMU 16-028(c) at TA-16-220 in the radiography area
Fig. 5-28-8.	Locations of SWMUs 16-028(b) and 16-031(a) near TA-16-370
Fig. 5-28-9.	Locations of PRSs 16-031(b) and C-16-002 associated with TA-16-262
Fig. 5-28-10.	Locations of SWMUs 16-026(k2) and 16-029(j) at TA-16-260
Fig. 5-28-11.	Sampling locations for SWMU 16-028(c), outfall at TA-16-220 in the radiography area. 5-28-29
Fig. 5-28-12.	Sampling locations for SWMU 16-026(i), outfall at TA-16-224 in the radiography area
Fig. 5-28-13.	Sampling locations for SWMU 16-026(j), outfall at TA-16-226 in the radiography area
Fig. 5-28-14.	Sampling locations for SWMUs 16-028(b) and 16-031(a), outfalls near TA-16-370, the barium nitrate grinding facility
Fig. 5-28-15.	Sampling locations for PRSs 16-031(b) and C-16-002, outfalls associated with TA-16-262, a decommissioned cooling
Fig. 5-28-16.	Sampling locations for SWMUs 16-026(k2) and 16-029(j), outfalls at TA-16-260, an HE machining building 5-28-36
Fig. 5-28-17.	Sampling location for SWMU 16-026(r), outfall at TA-16-180, a fire station.
Fig. 5-28-18.	Sampling locations for SWMUs 16-026(u and b2) and 16-028(d), outfalls in the administration area.
Fig. 5-28-19.	Sampling locations for SWMU 16-026(c2), outfall near chemical storage building TA-16-462
Fig. 5-28-20.	Sampling locations for SWMU 16-030(a) outfall at TA-16-344
Fig. 5-29-1.	SWMUs 16-003(p) and 16-029(h) at TA-16-478
Fig. 5-29-2.	Likely trench pattern for SWMU 16-029(h)5-29-12
Fig. 5-29-3.	TA-16-478 outfall aggregate sampling decision flow 5-29-15

.

ł

ł

÷

Fig. 5-29-4.	Sampling plan scenario one5	5-29-17
Fig. 5-29-5.	Sampling plan scenario two5	5-29-18
Fig. 6-1.	Borehole locations for sampling near TA-16-1465	6-41



OLD NUMBER (1988)	NEW NUMBER (1990)	CURRENT SWMU 1990 SWMU REPORT	INCLUDED IN THE PENDING PERMIT MODIFICATION
	16-003(p)	16-003(p)	no
	16-003(q)	16-003(q)	no
	16-016(d)	16-016(d)	yes
	16-016(e)	16-016(e)	yes
	16-016(f)	16-016(f)	по
	16-016(g)	16-016(g)	yes
16-022	16-022(a)	16-022(a)	no
<u> </u>	16-022(b)	16-022(b)	no
	16-024(a)	16-024(a)	no
	16-024(i)	16-024(i)	no
	16-024(j)	16-024(j)	no
	16-024(s)	16-024(s)	no
	16-024(t)	16-024(t)	no
	16-024(u)	16-024(u)	no
	16-024(v)	16-024(v)	no
	16-025(d2)	16-025(d2)	yes
	16-025(e)	16-025(e)	no
	16-025(e2)	16-025(e2)	yes
	16-025(f2)	16-025(f2)	yes
	16-025(h2)	16-025(h2)	yes
·····	16-026(a)	16-026(a)	yes
	16-026(a2)	16-026(a2)	yes
·	16-026(b2)	16-026(b2)	yes
	16-026(c2)	16-026(c2)	yes
	16-026(d2)	16-026(d2)	yes
	16-026(e2)	16-026(e2)	yes
	16-026(f)	16-026(f)	yes
	16-026(f2)	16-026(f2)	yes
······	16-026(g)	16-026(g)	yes
	16-026(g2)	16-026(g2)	yes
	16-026(h)	16-026(h)	yes

TABLE 1-3B ADDENDUM 2 SWMU CROSS-REFERENCE LIST



-

T

OLD NUMBER (1988)	NEW NUMBER (1990)	CURRENT SWMU 1990 SWMU REPORT	INCLUDED IN THE PENDING PERMIT MODIFICATION
	16-026(i)	16-026(i)	yes
	16-026(j)	16-026(j)	yes
	16-026(k)	16-026(k)	yes
	16-026(k2)	16-026(k2)	yes
	16-026(I)	16-026(l)	yes
	16-026(r)	16-026(r)	yes
	16-026(t)	16-026(t)	yes
	16-026(u)	16-026(u)	yes
	16-026(x)	16-026(x)	yes
	16-026(y)	16-026(y)	yes
	16-026(z)	16-026(z)	yes
	16-027(a)	16-027(a)	no
	16-027(b)	16-027(b)	по
	16-027(c)	16-027(c)	no
	16-027(d)	16-027(d)	no
	16-028(b)	16-028(b)	yes
	16-028(c)	16-028(c)	yes
	16-028(d)	16-028(d)	yes
	16-028(e)	16-028(e)	yes
	16-029(h)	16-029(h)	yes
	16-029(i)	16-029(i)	yes
	16-029(j)	16-029(j)	yes
	16-030(a)	16-030(a)	yes
	16-030(b)	16-030(b)	yes
	16-030(c)	16-030(c)	yes
	16-030(e)	16-030(e)	yes
	16-030(f)	16-030(f)	yes
	16-031(a)	16-031(a)	yes
	16-031(b)	16-031(b)	yes
	16-031(e)	16-031(e)	yes
	16-031(f)	16-031(f)	yes

TABLE 1-3B (continued) ADDENDUM 2 SWMU CROSS-REFERENCE LIST

July 1995

OLD NUMBER (1988)	NEW NUMBER (1990)	CURRENT SWMU 1990 SWMU REPORT	INCLUDED IN THE PENDING PERMIT MODIFICATION
·	16-031(h)	16-031(h)	yes
	16-033(a)	16-033(a)	yes
	16-033(b)	16-033(b)	yes
	16-033(c)	16-033(c)	no
	16-033(d)	16-033(d)	по
	16-033(e)	16-033(e)	no
	16-033(f)	16-033(f)	no
	16-033(g)	16-033(g)	no
	16-033(h)	16-033(h)	no
	16-033(i)	16-033(i)	no
	16-033(j)	16-033(j)	no
	16-034(h)	16-034(h)	yes
	16-034(i)	16-034(i)	yes
	16-034(j)	16-034(j)	yes
	16-034(k)	16-034(k)	yes
	16-037	16-037	по
	C-16-001	C-16-001	yes
	C-16-002	C-16-002	по
	C-16-008	C-16-008	no
	C-16-009,	C-16-009,	no
	C-16-010	C-16-010	no
	C-16-011	C-16-011	no
	C-16-012	C-16-012	no
	C-16-013	C-16-013	no
	C-16-014	C-16-014	no
	C-16-015	C-16-015	no
	C-16-016	C-16-016	no
	C-16-018	C-16-018	no
	C-16-019	C-16-019	по
	C-16-020	C-16-020	no

TABLE 1-3B (continued) ADDENDUM 2 SWMU CROSS-REFERENCE LIST

Chapter]

OLD NUMBER (1988)	NEW NUMBER (1990)	CURRENT SWMU 1990 SWMU REPORT	INCLUDED IN THE PENDING PERMIT MODIFICATION
	C-16-034	C-16-034	no
	C-16-035	C-16-035	no
	C-16-036	C-16-036	no
	C-16-041	C-16-041	no
	C-16-044	C-16-044	no
	C-16-046	C-16-046	no
[C-16-047	C-16-047	no
	C-16-049	C-16-049	no
	C-16-050	C-16-050	no
	C-16-051	C-16-051	no
	C-16-058	C-16-058	no
	C-16-060	C-16-060	no
	C-16-061	C-16-061	no
	C-16-062	C-16-062	no
	C-16-063	C-16-063	no
	C-16-070	C-16-070	no
·	C-16-072	C-16-072	no
	C-16-073	C-16-073	no

TABLE 1-3B (continued)								
ADDENDUM 2 SWMU CROSS-REFERENCE	LIST							

TABLE 1-4B

PRSs, PRS AGGREGATES, AND LOCATION IN CHAPTER 5

PRS, DESCRIPTION	PRS AGGREGATE	SUB- SECTION
16-024(a,i,j,s,t,u,v), soil contamination from decommissioned magazines 16-025(d2), soil contamination at decommissioned HE facilities 16-034(h,j), soil contamination at miscellaneous buildings C-16-011, decommissioned paint shop C-16-060, decommissioned storage	Surface contamination	5.26
16-033(e), decommissioned fuel tanks C-16-073, underground fuel tank	Underground storage tanks	5.27
16-026(i,j,r,u,b2,c2,k2), inactive outfalls from building drains 16-028(b,c,d), active outfalls from cooling towers and tanks 16-029(j), inactive HE sumps 16-030(a), active outfalls from building drains 16-031(a,b), inactive outfalls: cooling towers/industrial lines C-16-002, cooling tower rubble	Outfalls	5.28
16-029(h), inactive HE sump 16-003(p), active HE sump	TA-16-478	5.29

ł

÷

PRS AGGREGATE(S), DESCRIPTION(S)	SUBSECTION
16-028(e), outfall	6.6.1.1
16-029(i), active sump	6.6.1.1
16-016(d), surface disposal	6.6.1.2
16-016(e), surface disposal	6.6.1.2
16-016(g), surface disposal	6.6.1.2
16-026(a), outfalls	6.6.1.3
16-026(I), outfalls	6.6.1.3
16-026(t), outfali	6.6.1.3
16-026(z), outfall	6.6.1.3
16-030(c), outfall	6.6.1.3
16-026(a2), outfall	6.6.1.4
16-026(y), outfall	6.6.1.5
16-031(h), outfall	6.6.1.6
16-031(e), active outfall cooling tower	6.6.1.7
16-031(f), inactive outfall cooling tower	6.6.1.7
16-026(d2), outfall	6.6.2.1
16-026(e2), outfall	6.6.2.1
16-026(f2), outfall	6.6.2.1
16-026(g2), outfall	6.6.2.1
16-026(h), outfall	6.6.2.1
16-026(k), outfall	6.6.2.1
16-026(x), outfall	6.6.2.1
16-030(b), outfall	6.6.2.1
16-030(e), outfall	6.6.2.1
16-030(f), outfall	6.6.2.1
16-026(f), outfalls	6.6.2.2
16-026(g), outfall	6.6.2.3
16-034(i), soil contamination at decommissioned HE facility	6.6.2.4
16-034(k), soil contamination at decommissioned HE facility	6.6.2.4
16-025(e2), soil contamination at decommissioned storage building	6.6.3.1
16-025(f2), soil contamination at decommissioned storage building	6.6.3.1

TABLE 1-5B PRSs RECOMMENDED FOR NO CURRENT RCRA FACILITY INVESTIGATION IN ADDENDUM 2

:

TABLE 1-5B (continued) PRSs RECOMMENDED FOR NO CURRENT RCRA FACILITY INVESTIGATION IN ADDENDUM 2

PRS AGGREGATE(S), DESCRIPTION(S)	SUBSECTION
16-025(h2), soil contamination at decommissioned storage building	6.6.3.1
C-16-072, fuel tank	6.7.1.1
16-003(q), active HE sump	6.7.1.2
C-16-071, hydraulic oil spill	6.7.1.2
C-16-049, decommissioned office and shop	6.7.1.3
C-16-062, decommissioned electrical manhole	6.7.1.4
C-16-063, decommissioned electrical manhole	6.7.1.4
C-16-018, decommissioned water storage tank	6.7.1.5
C-16-020, decommissioned office building	6.7.1.6
C-16-034, decommissioned water tank	6.7.1.7
C-16-035, decommissioned water tank	6.7.1.7
C-16-061, decommissioned latrine	6.7.1.8
C-16-041, decommissioned hose house	6.7.1.9
C-16-044, decommissioned steam manhole	6.7.1.10
C-16-046, decommissioned steam manhole	6.7.1.10
C-16-050, decommissioned storage building	6.7.1.11
16-037, industrial waste tank	6.7.1.12
C-16-001, crossover platform	6.7.1.13
16-033(c), decommissioned aboveground fuel tank	6.7.2.1
16-033(d), decommissioned aboveground fuel tank	6.7.2.1
C-16-008, implement shed	6.7.2.2
C-16-009, mess hall	6.7.2.2
C-16-010, storage building	6.7.2.2
C-16-012, decommissioned blacksmith shop	6.7.2.2
C-16-013, decommissioned lumber storage area	6.7.2.2
C-16-014, decommissioned equipment room	6.7.2.2
C-16-015, decommissioned hose house	6.7.2.2
C-16-016, decommissioned fire house	6.7.2.2
C-16-036, decommissioned latrine	6.7.2.2
C-16-047, decommissioned oil switch	6.7.2.3
C-16-051, decommissioned oil switch	6.7.2.3

Ï

TABLE 1-5B (continued) PRSs RECOMMENDED FOR NO CURRENT RCRA FACILITY INVESTIGATION IN ADDENDUM 2

ł.

PRS AGGREGATE(S), DESCRIPTION(S)	SUBSECTION
C-16-058, decommissioned oil switch	6.7.2.3
16-027(d), transformer	6.7.2.4
C-16-019, decommissioned pump house	6.7.2.5
C-16-070, underground fuel tank	6.7.2.6
16-022(a), soil contamination	6.7.3.1
16-022(b), underground storage tank	6.7.3.2
16-033(a), underground storage tank	6.7.3.2
16-033(b), underground storage tank	6.7.3.2
16-033(f), underground storage tank	6.7.3.2
16-033(g), underground storage tank	6.7.3.2
16-033(h), underground storage tank	6.7.3.2
16-033(i), underground storage tank	6.7.3.2
16-033(j), underground storage tank	6.7.3.2
16-027(a), transformer	6.7.4.1
16-027(b), transformer	6.7.4.1
16-027(c), transformer	6.7.4.1
16-021(b), operational release	6.7.4.2
16-016(f), surface disposal area	6.8.1.1

SWMU, DESCRIPTION	SUBSECTION
16-028(e), outfall; and 16-029(i), active sump	6.6.1.1
16-016(d,e,g), surface disposal	6.6.1.2
16-026(a,l,t,z) and 16-030(c), outfalls	6.6.1.3
16-026(a2), outfall	6.6.1.4
16-026(y), outfall	6.6.1.5
16-031(h), outfall	6.6.1.6
16-031(e,f), cooling tower outfalls	6.6.1.7
16-026(d2,e2,f2,g2,h,k,x) and 16-030(b,e,f), outfalls	6.6.2.1
16-026(f), outfall	6.6.2.2
16-026(g), outfall	6.6.2.3
16-034(i,k), soil contamination at decommissioned HE facilities	6.6.2.4
16-025(e2,f2,h2), soil contamination at decommissioned storage buildings	6.6.3.1

TABLE 1-6B SWMUS PROPOSED FOR DELETION FROM TABLE C OF THE HSWA MODULE



Chapter 4 (1993 and 1994)

- Aggregation of PRSs
- Approaches to Site Characterization
- **Conceptual Exposure Models**
- **Potential Response Actions**
- Sampling Strategies and **Sampling Methods**
- **Analytical Methods**
- **Quality Assessment**
- **Record Keeping**

Addendum 2 (1995)

TABLE 4-1B

CHEMICALS OF POTENTIAL CONCERN AT OU 1082 FOR AGGREGATES 5.26 THROUGH 5.30*

CHEMICALS OF POTENTIAL CONCERN (1)	PRS AGGREGATE (2)	LAB METH. (3)	LAB PQL (WATER/ SOIL) (ug/L/ppm) (4)	MOBILE LAB METH.	MOBILE LAB PQL IN SOIL (5)	FIELD SCREEN METH.	FIELD SCREEN PQL IN SOIL (ppm) (6)	LANL BACK- GROUND IN SOIL (ppm) (7)	SAL IN WATER (ug/L) (8)	SAL IN SOIL (ppm) (8)
Acetone	5.28	8240	100/100 ppb	GC/PID	50 ppb	PID	0.2	0	3 500	8 000
1-Acetylhexahydro-3,5- dinitro-1,3,5-triazine (e)										
1-Acetyloctahydro- 3,5,7-trinitro-1,3,5,7 tetra-zocine (e)										
ADNT (g)								0		
Amines (a)								0		
2-Amino-4,6-DNT (a)								0		
4-Amino-2,6-DNT (a)								0		
Ammonium nitrate (d)						-		0		
Anthranils (i.e., 2,6 dinitroanthranil) (e)								0		
Barium	5.26, 5.28, 5.29, 5.30	6010	2.0/0.2	XRF	10 ppm	LIBS	<100	125-829	2 000	5 600
BDNPA (d)								0		
BDNPF (d)								0		
Benzene	5.27, 5.28	8240	5/5 ppb	GC/PID	10 ppb	PID	0.2	0	5	0.67
Beryllium	5.29	6010	0.3/0.03			LIBS	0.1	1.0-4.4	4	0.16

4 - 1

July 1995

.

TABLE 4-1B (continued)

CHEMICALS OF POTENTIAL CONCERN AT OU 1082 FOR AGGREGATES 5.26 THROUGH 5.30

CHEMICALS OF POTENTIAL CONCERN	PRS AGGREGATE	LAB METH.	LAB PQL (WATER/ SOIL) (ug/L/ppm)	MOBILE LAB METH.	MOBILE LAB PQL IN SOIL	FIELD Screen Meth.	FIELD SCREEN PQL IN SOIL	LANL BACK- GROUND IN SOIL	SAL IN WATER (ug/L)	SAL IN SOIL (ppm)
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)		(5)]	(ppm) (6)	(ppm) (7)	(8)	(8)
BTX (f)								0		
Butyl acetate	5.28							0		
Cadmium	5.28	6010	4.0/0.4	XRF	2 ppm			1.2-1.7	5	80
Carbon tetrachloride	5.28	8240	5/5 ppb	GC/PID	10 ppb	PID	0.2	0	5	0.21
Chlorobenzene	5.28	8240	5/5 ppb	GC/PID	10 ppb	PID	0.2	0	100	67
Chloroform	5.28	8240	5/5 ppb	GC/PID	10 ppb	PID	0.2	0	100	0.21
Chromium	5.28	6010	7.0/0.7	XRF	8 ppm	LIBS	2	2.03- 71.07	100	400 (VI)
Copper	5.28	6010	6.0/0.6	XRF	3 ppm			2-18	1 300	3 000
Cyanuric acid (c)		1						0		
DATB (c)								0		
Decyclgallophenone (f)								0		
1,2-Dichloroethane	5.28	8240	5/5 ppb	GC/PID	10 ppb	PID	0.2	0	5	0.2
Di(2-ethyl) sebacate (f)								0		
Di-n-butyl phthalate	5.28	8330							3 500	8 000
Dimethylformamide	5.28	8330			-			0	3 500	8 000
3,5-Dinitrocresol (e,f)									 	
Dinitroethylbenzene (f)								0		
Dinitroglycoluril (e)								0	L	
3,5-Dinitrophenol (d)								0	<u> </u>	
Dipentaerythritol hexanitrate (e)								0		
1.3-DNB (a)	5.26, 5.28, 5.29, 5.30	8330	4.0/0.25				Ì	0	3.5	8

July 1995

RFI Work Plan for OU 1082, Addendum 2

4 - 2

Chapter 4

Technical Approach

TABLE 4-1B (continued)

CHEMICALS OF POTENTIAL CONCERN AT OU 1082 FOR AGGREGATES 5.26 THROUGH 5.30

CHEMICALS OF POTENTIAL CONCERN (1)	PRS AGGREGATE (2)	LAB METH. (3)	LAB PQL (WATER/ SOIL) (ug/L/ppm) (4)	MOBILE LAB METH.	MOBILE LAB PQL IN SOIL (5)	FIELD SCREEN METH.	FIELD SCREEN PQL IN SOIL (ppm) (6)	LANL BACK- GROUND IN SOIL (ppm) (7)	SAL IN WATER (ug/L) (8)	SAL IN SOIL (ppm) (8)
2,4-DNT (e,f)	5.26, 5.28, 5.29, 5.30	8330	5.7/0.25	GC/FID	1 ppm			0	0.5	1
2,6-DNT (a)	5.26, 5.28, 5.29, 5.30	8330	9.4/0.26	GC/FID	1 ppm			0	0.05	1
EDD (d)								0		
Ethyl acetate	5.28	8330						0	32 000	72 000
Ethylbenzene	5.27, 5.28	8240	5/5ppb					0	700	3 100
Formaldehyde (a)								0		
Hexane	5.28	8240						0	2 100	4 800
HMX	5.28, 5.29, 5.30	8330	13.0/2.2			HE spot	100	0	1 800	4 000
Hydrazines (e)								0		
Lead	5.27, 5.28	6010	42.0/4.2	XRF	10 ppm	LIBS	2	18-56	50	500
MAN (e)		8270				i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i		0		
Mercury	5.26	7470		XRF	30 ppm			0.007- 0.029	2	24
Methanol (a)	5.28	8240						0	18 000	40 000
2-Methylaniline (e)								0		
Methyl ethyl ketone	5.28	8240	100/ 100 ppb	GC/PID	50 ppb	PID	0.2	0	1 700	4 000
Methylene chloride	5.28	8240	5/5 ppb	GC/PID	10 ppb	PID	0.2	0	5	5.6

Chapter 4

TABLE 4-1B (continued)

CHEMICALS OF POTENTIAL CONCERN AT OU 1082 FOR AGGREGATES 5.26 THROUGH 5.30

CHEMICALS OF POTENTIAL CONCERN (1)	PRS AGGREGATE (2)	LAB METH. (3)	LAB PQL (WATER/ SOIL) (ug/L/ppm) (4)	MOBILE LAB METH.	MOBILE LAB PQL IN SOIL (5)	FIELD SCREEN METH.	FIELD SCREEN PQL IN SOIL (ppm) (6)	LANL BACK- GROUND IN SOIL (ppm) (7)	SAL IN WATER (ug/L) (8)	SAL IN SOIL (ppm) (8)
Methylnitramine (a)						[[0		
N-methylpicramide (a)		7					[0		
Naphthalene	5.28	8330						0	1 400	3 200
Nickel	5.28	6010	15.0/1.5	XRF	4 ppm			1.6-19	<u>10</u> 0	1 600
Nitrate (a,f)	5.28	9200	1 mg/L / 1 ppm					0	10 000	130 000
Nitriles (i.e., 2,4,6 trinitrobenzonitrile) (a)								0		
Nitrite (a)			0.02 mg/L/NA					0	1 000	8 000
2-Nitro-4-amino toluene (e,f)								0		
3-Nitroaniline (e)								0		
Nitrobenzene (d)	5.28	8330	NA/0.26					0	18	5.3
Nitrocellulose (c)						HE spot	100	0		
2 Nitro-m-cresol (e,f)								0		
Nitroguanadine (c)								0		
Nitromethane (c)		1						0		

4

CHEMICALS OF POTENTIAL CONCERN (1)	PRS AGGREGATE (2)	LAB METH. (3)	LAB PQL (WATER/ SOIL) (ug/L/ppm) (4)	MOBILE LAB METH.	MOBILE LAB PQL IN SOIL (5)	FIELD SCREEN METH.	FIELD SCREEN PQL IN SOIL (ppm) (6)	LANL BACK- GROUND IN SOIL (ppm) (7)	SAL IN WATER (ug/L) (8)
2-NT (a)		8330	12.0/0.25					0	350
3-NT (a)		8330	7.9/0.25			_		0	350
4-NT (a)		8330	8.5/0.25					0	350
NTO (e)								0	
PAHs (h)	5.28, 5.30							0	
Pentaerythritol	5.28							0	
PETN (c)						HE spot	100	0	700
Picric acid (e)								0	
Polonium-210	5.29							_	
PYX (e)								0	
RDX (a)	5.26, 5.28, 5.29, 5.30	8330	14.0/1.0			HE spot	100	0	3.2
TAGN (f)								0	
TATB (c)	5.29					HE spot	100	0	
TCP (f)								0	
1,1,2,2- Tetrachloroethane	5.28	8240	5/5ppb	GC/PID		PID		0	1.8
	5.28	8240		GC/PID		PID		0	5

TABLE 4-1B (continued)

CHEMICALS OF POTENTIAL CONCERN AT OU 1082 FOR AGGREGATES 5.26 THROUGH 5.30

SAL IN Soil

(ppm) (8)

800 800 800

1 600

64

3.9

5.9

Technical Approach

Chapter 4

TABLE 4-1B (continued)

CHEMICALS OF POTENTIAL CONCERN AT OU 1082 FOR AGGREGATES 5.26 THROUGH 5.30

CHEMICALS OF POTENTIAL CONCERN (1)	PRS AGGREGATE (2)	LAB METH. (3)	LAB PQL (WATER/ SOIL) (ug/L/ppm) (4)	MOBILE LAB METH.	MOBILE LAB PQL IN SOIL (5)	FIELD SCREEN METH.	FIELD SCREEN PQL IN SOIL (ppm) (6)	LANL BACK- GROUND IN SOIL (ppm) (7)	SAL IN WATER (ug/L) (8)	SAL IN SOIL (ppm) (8)
Tetryl (d)		8330	44.0/0.65					0	350	800
1,3,5-TNB (a)	5.26, 5.28, 5.29, 5.30	8330	7.3/0.25					0	1.8	4
2,4,6-TNT	5.26, 5.28, 5.29, 5.30	8330	6.9/0.25			HE spot	100	0	12	40
Toluene	5.27, 5.28	8240	5/5 ppb	GC/PID	10 ppb	PID	0.2	0	1 000	890
Toluene diisocyanate	5.28						_	0		
Total petroleum hydrocarbons (TPH)	5.27, 5.28					immuno- assay		0		100
1,1,1-Trichloroethane	5.28	8240	5/5 ppb	GC/PID	10 ppm	PID	0.2	0	200	1 000
Trichloroethene	5.28	8240	5/5 ppb					0	5	3.2
Trinitroethylbenzene (f)								0		
Trinitrostilbene (f)								0		
Tripentaerythritol acetonitrate (a)								0		
Tripicrylmelamine (e)								0		
Uranium (natural)	5.29			XRF	10 ppm			1.54-6.73	NA	66 pCi/g
Uranium-238	5.26, 5.29	a spec	0.2 pCi/L / 0.05 pCi/g	Gross a/b	25 pCi/g	Phoswich	35 pCi/g		6.7 pCi/L	59 pCi/g
Xylene	5.27, 5.28	8240	5/5 ppb	GC/PID		PiD		0	10 000	160 000
Zinc	5.28	6010	2.0/0.2	XRF	34 ppm			38-71	10 000	24 000

July 1995

RFI Work Plan for OU 1082, Addendum 2

4 - 6

TABLE 4-1B (continued)

CHEMICALS OF POTENTIAL CONCERN AT OU 1082 FOR AGGREGATES 5.26 THROUGH 5.30

* Aggregate 5.30 is PRSs deleted from Chapter 6 of the 1993 Work Plan based on EPA Review, submitted to EPA October 16, 1994.

Additional entries will be made in this table as they become available.

Note: All MDLs are extremely case-specific because of varving sample matrices and geometries and count times.

NA Not available

- Potential contaminants of concern (PCOCs) or chemicals of potential concern (COPCs) in Addendum 2 include all chemicals specifically listed in Chapter 5, potentially hazardous HE (1)components (see Appendix D), and HE co-contaminants (see Appendix D).
- Potential release sites in which the PCOC is of concern based on archival research.
- 13 SW-846 method unless otherwise indicated.
- 745 Method detection limits for EPA methods are taken directly from those listed in the appropriate SW-846 method or from the QAPiP. ICP metals detection limits in soils estimated as 100x water MDLs.
- Estimated by CST-9.
- 161 Bervilium, lead, and chromium from Han and Cremers 1990 (15-16-470). PID from manufacturers' specifications. Uranium and plutonium equal ESH-4 estimate. TNT from Baytos 1991. 0741. HMX, RDX, TATB, and PETN estimated by ESA-12.
- Copper, mercury, nickel, and zinc are from Ferenbaugh et al. 1990, 0099; radionuclides from Purtymun et al. 1987, 0211; and other metals from Duffy and Longmire 1993, 15-16-480,
- SALs are based on methodology presented in Subsection 4.2.2 and Appendix J of the IWP (LANL 1993, 1017). (8)
- HE component used at TA-16 (est. > 500 000 lbs.; all estimated for 50-year time frame 1944-1993 by L. Hatler of WX-3). ła
- HE component used at TA-16 (est. 10 000 to 100 000 lbs). ίhì HE component used at TA-16 (est. 1 000 to 10 000 lbs).

λđ HE burn product.

- ίe HE impurity or environmental breakdown product. These are COPCs at all PRSs in which HE is a COPC.
- For these compounds other isomers are also COPCs. ťħ

Abbreviatio	08
ADNT - 3.	5-dinitiro-1.2.4-triazole
BDNPA -	Bis(dinitroproponyl) acetal
BONPE - F	Bis(dinitronroponyl) formal
BTX 57	Dinitro-1-Dicrybenzotriazol

- DNB Dintrobenzene DNPA 2,2-Dinitropropyl acrylate polymer **DNT - Dinitrotoluene** EDD - Ethylenediamine dinitrate
- HMX Cyclotetramethylenetetranitramine

NT - Nitrotoluene NTO - 1,2,4-Nitro-triazole-5-one PCB - polychlorinated biphenyl PETN - Pentaerythritol tetranitrate PYX - 2,6-Bis(picytamino)-3,5-dinitropyridine TAGN - Triaminoguanidine nitrate TATB - Triaminoguanidine nitrate TCP - Tricresylphosphate TNB - Trinitropenzene TNT - Trinitrotoluene

TABLE 4-6B

POTENTIAL RESPONSE ACTIONS FOR EACH PRS AGGREGATE^a

SUB- SECTION	DESCRIPTION	NO FURTHER ACTION OR DEFERRED ACTION	REMO TREAT HAZ- ARDOUS ONLY	VAL/ MENT RADIO- ACTIVE ONLY	MIXED	INCIN- ERATION/ REMOVAL	DECON/ REMOVAL	CONDI- TIONAL CAP/ MONITOR	IN- STREAM BARRIERS	ACCESS RESTRIC- TION	IN SITU BIOREME -DIATION
5.26	Surface contamination	×	x		x	······································	×				
5.27	Underground storage tanks	×	×			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	x				
5.28	Outfalls	x	×	ļ	[×				
5.29	TA-16-478	×	×		×	×	×				
5.30 ^b	PRSs deleted from Chapter 6		x			x	x				

^a Note that this table is not meant to be all-inclusive.

 ^b Subsection 5.30 is PRSs deleted from Chapter 6 of the 1993 Work Plan based on EPA Review, submitted to EPA October 16, 1994.

60

Chapter 4



5.0 EVALUATION OF POTENTIAL RELEASE SITE AGGREGATES

Chapter 5 describes the history, data quality objectives, and sampling plans for the Operable Unit (OU) 1082 potential release sites (PRSs) for which sampling is deemed appropriate at this time. The solid waste management units (SWMUs) that are covered here in aggregates 5.1 through 5.17 are from Tables A and B of the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) Module and other PRSs that fit systematically into this work plan activity. The remaining OU 1082 PRSs will be are addressed in subsequent Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) facility investigation (RFI) work plan addenda. Subsections 5.18 through 5.25 are in Chapter 5 of Addendum 1 (LANL 1994, 1160). <u>Subsections 5.26 through 5.29 are in</u> <u>Chapter 5 of Addendum 2</u>. <u>Subsection 5.30 is part of a response to the</u> <u>Notice of Deficiency on the RFI Work Plan for OU 1082 (LANL 1993, 1094)</u>.

The framework for sample collection strategies and use of data as applied in Chapter 5 is found in Chapter 4, Subsections 4.5.1.1 and 4.5.1.2. Annex II, Quality Assurance Project Plan, describes the quality control issues pertinent to this work plan. Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) requirements for current site workers are the responsibility of the operating groups and are not addressed in this work plan. Site-specific information on potential release sources, chemicals of concern, migration pathways, and potential receptors is included in each aggregate. Current human receptors are limited to on-site workers, Future receptors could include recreational users. Chapter 4 of the RFI Work Plan for OU 1082 and Addendum 1 contain a detailed discussion of the migration pathways, conversion mechanisms, human receptors, and exposure routes.

5.0.1 Index to PRSs Described in Chapter 5

The OU 1082 RFI work plan describes potential release site (PRS) histories, potential contaminants of concern (PCOCs), chemicals of potential concern (COPCs), data quality objectives (DQOs), and sampling plans for a large number of PRSs (87 in 1993, and 164 in 1994, and 31 in 1995). In order to locate information for individual PRSs, an index table (Table 5-0-1) and index maps [Figs. 5-0-1(a), 5-0-1(b), and 5-0-2, and 5-0-3] for all PRSs and PRS sampling maps in the work plan, and Addendum 1, and Addendum 2 are provided below. PRSs not listed in this table either will be described in ī

Chapter 5

TABLE 5-0-1

INDEX	то	PRSs
-------	----	------

PRS	AGGRE- GATE	HISTORY SUBSECTION	(PAGE)	PCOC OR COPC TABLE NO.	(PAGE)	SAMPLING TABLE NUMBER	(PAGE)	SAMPLING SUBSECTION	(PAGE)
11-001(a)	14/DA	5.14.1.1	5-245	5-67	5-244	5-69	5-257	5.14.4.2	5-258
11-001(b)	14/DA	5.14.1.1	5-245	5-67	5-244	5-69	5-257	5.14.4.2	5-258
11-001(c)	16	5.16.1.1	5-274	5-73	5-272	5-75	5-279	5.16.4.2	5-280
11-002	14/DA	5.14.1.1	5-248	5-67	5-244	5-69	5-257	5.14.4.2	5-258
11-003(a)	NFA	6.2.3.1	6-24	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
11-003(b)	14/DA	5.14.1.1	5-246	5-67	5-244	5-69	5-257	5.14.4.2	5-258
11-004(a)	14/DA	5.14.1.1	5-247	5-67	5-244	5-69	5-257	5.14.4.2	5-258
11-004(b)	14/DA	5.14.1.1	5-247	5-67	5-244	5-69	5-257	5.14.4.2	5-258
11-004(c)	14/DA	5.14.1.1	5-247	5-67	5-244	5-69	5-257	5.14.4.2	5-258
11-004(d)	14/DA	5.14.1.1	5-247	5-67	5-244	5-69	5-257	5.14.4.2	5-258
11-004(e)	14/DA	5.14.1.1	5-247	5-67	5-244	5-69	5-257	5.14.4.2	5-258
11-004(f)	14/DA	5.14.1.1	5-247	5-67	5-244	5-69	5-257	5.14.4.2	5-258
11-005(a)	4	5.4.1.1	5-97	5-28	5-102	5-30	5-108	5.4.4.3	5-110
11-005(b)	4	5.4.1.1	5-98	5-28	5-102	5-30	5-108	5.4.4.3	5-110
11-005(c)	15	5.15.1.1	5-260	5-70	5-261	5-72	5-267	5.15.4.2	5-268
11-006(a)	14/DA	5.14.1.1	5-248	5-67	5-244	5-69	5-257	5.14.4.2	5-258
11-006(b)	14/DA	5.14.1.1	5-248	5-67	5-244	5-69	5-257	5.14.4.2	5-258
11-006(c)	14/DA	5.14.1.1	5-248	5-67	5-244	5-69	5-257	5.14.4.2	5-258
11-006(d)	14/DA	5.14.1.1	5-248	5-67	5-244	5-69	5-257	5.14.4.2	5-258
11-007	NFA	6.1.5.1	6-13	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
11-008	NFA	6.2.3.2	6-25	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
11-009	NFA	6.1.5.2	6-14	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
11-010(a)	NFA	6.1.5.7	6-22	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
11-010(b)	DA	6.2.1.1	6-22	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
11-011(a)	15	5.15.1.1	5-260	5-70	5-261	5-72	5-267	5.15.4.2	5-268
11-011(b)	15	5.15,1.1	5-263	5-70	5-261	5-72	5-267	5.15.4.2	5-268
11-011(c)	DA	6.2.1.2	6-23	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
11-011(d)	15	5.15.1.1	5-263	5-70	5-261	5-72	5-267	5.15.4.2	5-268
11-012(a)	16	5.16.1.1	5-271	5-73	5-272	5-75	5-279	5.16.4.2	5-280
11-012(b)	16	5.16.1.1	5-271	5-73	5-272	5-75	5-279	5.16.4.2	5-280
11-012(c)	16	5.16,1.1	5-271	5-73	5-272	5-75	5-279	5.16.4.2	5-280
11-012(d)	16	5.16.1.1	5-271	5-73	5-272	5-75	5-279	5.16.4.2	5-280
13-001	13	5.13.1.1	5-226	5-64	5-227	5-66	5-236	5.13.4.3	5-239
13-002	13	5.13.1.1	5-226	5-64	5-227	5-66	5-236	5.13.4.3	5-239
13-003(a)	4	5.4.1.1	5-98	5-28	5-102	5-30	5-108	5.4.4.3	5-109
13-003(b)	4	5.4.1.1	5-98	5-28	5-102	5-30	5-1 <u>0</u> 8	5.4.4.3	5-109
13-004	13	5.13.1.1	5-226	5-64	5-227	5-66	5-236	5.13.4.3	5-240
16-001(a)	1	5.1.1.1	5-4	5-1	5-2	5-3	5-12	5.1.4.3	5-13
16-001(b)	1	5.1.1.1	5-4	5-1	5-2	5-3	5-12	5.1.4.3	5-13
16-001(c)	1	5.1.1.1	5-4	5-1	5-2	5-3	5-12	5.1.4.3	5-13
16 <u>-0</u> 01(d)	1	5.1.1.1	5-4	5-1	5-2	5-3	5-12	5.1.4.3	5-13
16-001(e)	2	5.2.1.1	5-26	5-7	5-40	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-80
16-003(a)	2	5.2.1.1	5-19	5-7	5-40	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-80
16-003(b)	2	5.2.1.1	5-20	5-7	5-40	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-79
16-003(c)	2	5.2.1.1	5-32	5-7	5-40	5-20	5-66	5.2.4.2	5-79
16-003(d)	2	5.2.1.1	5-24	5-7	5-40	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-79
16-003(e)	2	5.2.1.1	5-25	5-7	5-40	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-79
16-003(f)	2	5.2.1.1	5-25	5-7	5-40	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-79
16-003(g)	2	5.2.1.1	5-26	5-7	5-40	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-79

Chapter 5

TABLE 5-0-1 (continued)

INDEX TO PRSs

PRS	AGGRE- GATE	HISTORY SUBSECTION	(PAGE)	PCOC OR COPC TABLE NO.	(PAGE)	SAMPLING TABLE NUMBER	(PAGE)	SAMPLING SUBSECTION	(PAGE)
16-003(h)	2	5.2.1.1	5-28	5-7	5-40	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-79
16-003(i)	2	5.2.1.1	5-31	5-7	5-40	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-79
16-003(j)	2	5.2.1.1	5-31	5-7	5-40	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-79
16-003(k)	3	5.3.1.1	5-81	5-21	5-82	5-27	5-93	5.3.4.2	5-94
16-003(I)	2	5.2.1.1	5-31	5-7	5-40	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-72
16-003(m)	2	5.2.1.1	5-32	5-7	5-40	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-73
16-003(n)	2	5.2.1.1	5-35	5-7	5-40	5-20	5-66	5.2.4.2	5-79
16-003(o)	2	5.2.1.1	5-37	5-7	5-40	5-20	5-66	5.2.4.2	5-79
16-003(p)	29	5.29.1.1	5-29-1	NA	NA	5-29-3	5-29-11	5.29.3.2	5-29-13
16-003(q)	NFA	6.7.1.2	6-20	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-004(a)	7	5.7.1.1	5-133	5-38	5-136	5-42	5-144	5.7.4.2	5-145
16-004(b)	7	5.7.1.1	5-133	5-38	5-136	5-42	5-144	5.7.4.2	5-145
16-004(c)	7	5.7.1.1	5-133	5-38	5-136	5-42	5-144	5.7.4.2	5-145
16-004(d)	7	5.7.1.1	5-133	5-38	5-136	5-42	5-144	5.7.4.2	5-145
16-004(e)	7	5.7.1.1	5-133	5-38	5-136	5-42	5-144	5.7.4.2	5-145
16-004(f)	7	5.7.1.1	5-133	5-38	5-136	5-42	5-144	5.7.4.2	5-145
16-005(a)	22	5.22.1.1	5-139	5-110	5-445	5-114	5-451	5.22.4.2	5-452
16-005(b)	NFA	6.4.3.1	6-36	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-005(c)	18	5.18.1.1	5-313	5-80	5-325	5-87	5-339	5.18.4.2	5-346
16-005(d)	18	5.18.1.1	5-313	5-80	5-325	5-87	5-339	5.18.4.2	5-346
16-005(e)	20	5.20.1.1	5-387	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-418
16-005(f)	NFA	6.4.3.4	6-39	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-005(g)	30	5.30.1.1	5-30-1	5-30-2	5-30-6	5-30-4	5-30-8	5.30.4.2	5-30-7
16-005(h)	22	5.22.1.1	5-442	5-110	5-445	5-114	5-451	5.22.4.2	5-456
16-005(i)	NFA	6.4.2.5	6-35	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-005(j)	24	5.24.1.1	5-481	5-124	5-486	5-128	5-493	5.24.4.2	5-497
16-005(k)	22	5.22.1.1	5-442	5-110	5-445	5-114	5-451	5.22.4.2	5-456
16-005(l)	22	5.22.1.1	5-444	5-110	5-445	5-114	5-451	5.22.4.2	5-456
16-005(m)	24	5.24.1.1	5-481	5-124	5-486	5-128	5-493	5.24.4.2	5-498
16-005(n)	30	5.30.1.1	5-30-3	5-30-2	5-30-6	5-30-4	5-30-8	5.30.4.2	5-30-11
16-005(o)	NFA	6.1.5.4	6-17	NÂ	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-006(a)	4	5. <u>4.1.1</u>	5-99	<u>5-</u> 28	5-102	5-30	5-108	5.4.4.3	5-109
16-006(b)	NFA	6.1.5.5	6-18	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-006(c)	4	5.4.1.1	5-99	5-28	5-102	5-30	5-108	5.4.4.3	<u>5-1</u> 10
16-006(d)	4	5.4.1.1	5-100	5-28	5-102	5-30	5-108	5.4.4.3	5-110
16-006(e)	4	5.4.1.1	5-100	5-28	5-102	5-30	5-108	5.4.4.3	5-110
16-006(f)	NFA	6.1.5.6	6-18	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-006(g)	25	5.25.1.1	5-503	5-131	5-512	5-134	5-515	5.25.4.2	5-519
16-006(h)	DA	6.4.1.1	6-31	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-006(i)	NFA	6.4.2.1	6-33	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-007(a)	12	5.12.1.1	5-214	5-59	5-215	5-63	5-223	5.12.4.2	5-222
16-007(b)	NFA	6.2.2.1	6-23	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-008(a)	12	5.12.1.1	5-214	5-59	5-217	5-63	5-223	5.12.4.2	5-224
16-008(b)	NFA	6.1.2.1	6-6	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-009	11	5.11.1.1	5-200	5-56	5-203	5-58	5-209	5.11.4.3	5-210
16-010(a)	8	5.8.1.1	5-152	5-44	5-155	5-46	5-166	5.8.4.2	5-167
16-010(b)	DA	6.1.1.1	6-4	NA	NA		NA	NA	NA
116-010(c)	I DA	16.1.1.1	6-4	I NA	I NA	{ NA	I NA	I NA	I NA


I

Chapter 5

TABLE 5-0-1 (continued)

PRS	AGGRE- GATE	HISTORY	(PAGE)	PCOC OR COPC TABLE NO.	(PAGE)	SAMPLING TABLE NUMBER	(PAGE)	SAMPLING SUBSECTION	(PAGE)
16-010(d)	DA	6.1.1.1	6-4	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-010(e)	DA	6.1.1.1	6-4	NA	ŇA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-010(f)	DA	6.1.1.1	6-5	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-010(g)	DA	6.1.3.1	6-7	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-010(h)	8	5.8.1.1	5-152	5-44	5-155	5-46	5- <u>16</u> 6	5.8.4.2	5-168
16-010(i)	8	5.8.1.1	<u>5-1</u> 52	5-44	5-155	5-46	5-166	5.8.4.2	5-168
16-010(j)	DA	6.1.1.1	6-5	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-010(k)	8	5.6.1.1	5-152	5-44	5-155	5-46	5-166	5.8.4.2	5-170
1 <u>6-010(l)</u>	8	5.8.1.1	<u>5-1</u> 53	5-44	5-155	5-46	5-166	5.8.4.2	5-170
16-010(m)	8	5.8.1.1	5-153	5-44	5-155	<u>5</u> -46	5-166	5.8.4.2	5-170
16-010(n)	8	5.8.1.1	5-153	5-44	5-155	5-46	5-166	5.8.4.2	5-170
16-011	19	5.19.1.1	5-354	.5-89	5-365	5-93	<u>5-37</u> 1	5.19.4.2	5-373
16-012(a)	NFA	6.1.5.7	<u>6-1</u> 9	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-012(a2)	NFA	6.1.3.2	6-8	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-012(b)	NFA	6.1.5.7	6-19	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-012(c)	NFA	6.1.5.7	6-19	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-012(d)	NFA	6.1.3.2	6-8	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-012(e)	NFA	6.1.5.7	<u>6-1</u> 9	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-012(f)	NFA	6.1.5.7	6-19	NA	NA	<u>NA</u>	NA	NA	NA
16-012(g)	NFA	6.1.5.7	6-19	<u>NA</u>	NA	<u>NA</u>	NA	NA	NA
16-012(h)	NFA	6.1.5.7	6-19	NA	NA	NA.	NA	NA	NA
16-012(i)	NFA	6.1.3.2	6-8	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-012(j)	NFA	<u>6.1.3.2</u>	6-8	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-012(k)	NFA	6.1.5.7	6-19	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-012(l)	NFA	6.1.3.2	6-8	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-012(m)	NFA	6.1.3.2	6-8	NA	NA		NA	NA	NA
16-012(n)	NFA	6.1.3.2	6-8	NA	NA		NA	NA	NA
16-012(0)	NFA	6.1.5.7	6-19	NA	NA		NA		NA
16-012(p)	NFA	6.1.3.2	6-8	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
<u>16-012(q)</u>	NFA	6.1.5.7	6-19	NA	NA	NA		NA	NA
16-012(r)	NFA	6.1.5.7	6-19	NA	NA		NA	NA	NA
16-012(s)	NFA	6.1.5.7	6-19	NA	NA	NA		NA	NA
16-012(t)	NFA NFA	6.1.3.2	6-8		NA				NA
16-012(U)		0.1.3.2	8-8						INA
16-012(V)		6.1.5.7	6-19		NA		NA		NA
16-012(W)		0.1.5./	0-19						
16-012(X)		6.1.3.2	6-8	NA	NA				
16-012(V)		0.1.5.7	6-19						
16-012(Z)	NFA	5.1.5.7	6-19		NA F. OOF				INA 5.000
16-013	1/	5.17.1.1	5-283	5-76	5-285	5-78	5-290	5.17.4.2	5-289
10-015(a)	21	5.21.1.1	5-423	5-104	5-420	5-108	5 400	5.21.4.2	5-434
10-015(0)	21	5.21.1.1	5-424	5-104	5-420	15-108	5-432	5.21.4.2	5 410
16-015(C)	20	5.20.1.1	5-366	5-95	0-090	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5 412
16-015(0)	11	5.20.1.1	5 200	5-95	5 202	5.59	5-200	5.20.4.2	5 010
16-016(b)	11	51111	5-200	5-56	5-203	5-58	5-209	5 11 / 2	5-213
16-016(0)		5811	5-152	5-44	5-155	5-46	5-166	5842	5-167
16-016(d)		6612	6-4		NA		NA	NA	NA
10-010(u)		0.0.1.2	V T	- 11/1				ראיון	

TABLE 5-0-1 (continued)

PRS	AGGRE- GATE	HISTORY SUBSECTION	(PAGE)	PCOC OR COPC TABLE NO.	(PAGE)	SAMPLING TABLE NUMBER	(PAGE)	SAMPLING SUBSECTION	(PAGE)
 16-016(e)	NFA	6.6.1.2	6-4	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-016(f)	NFA	6.8.1.1	6-47	NA	NA	NĂ	NĂ	NA	NA
16-016(g)	NFA	6.6.1.2	6-4	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-017	DA	6.4.1.1	6-31	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-018	DA	6.1.4.1	6-9	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-019	10	5.10.1.1	5-186	5-53	5-188	5-55	5- <u>195</u>	5.10.4.2	5-197
16-020	6	5.6.1.1	5-119	5-34	5-121	5-36	5-129	5.6.4.2	5-130
16-0 <u>21(a)</u>	5	5.5.1.1	5-111	5-31	5-113	5-33	5-116	5.5.4.2	5-117
16-021(b)	NFA	6.7.4.2	6-46	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-021(c)	3	5.3.1.1	5-81	5-21	5-82	5-27	5-93	5.3.4.2	5-94
16-022(a)	NFA	6.7.3.1	6-35	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-022(b)	NFA	6.7 <u>.3</u> .2	6-39	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-023(a)	NFA	6.5.1.1	6-42	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-023(b)	19	5.19.1.1	5-354	5-89	5-365	5-93	5-371	5.19.4.2	5-377
16-024(a)	26	5.26.1.1	5-26-6	5-26-2	5-26-14	5-26-5	5-26-18	5.26.3.1	5-26-20
16-024(b)	19	5.19.1.1	5-356	5-89	5-365	5-93	<u>5-37</u> 1	5.19.4.2	5-377
16-024(c)	19	5.19.1.1	5-356	5-89	5-365	5-93	5-371	5.19.4.2	5-377
16-024(d)	19	5.19.1.1	5-356	5-89	5-365	5-93	5-371	5.19.4.2	5-377
16-024(e)	18	5.18.1.1	5-318	5-80	5-325	5-87	5-339	5.18.4.2	5-348
16-024(f)	24	5.24.1.1	5-481	5-124	5-486	5-128	5-493	5.24.4.2	5-496
16-024(g)	24	5.24.1.1	5-481	5-124	5-486	5-128	5-493	5.24.4.2	5-496
16-024(h)	24	5.24.1.1	5-482	5-124	5-486	5-128	5-493	5.24.4.2	5-496
16-024(i)	26	5.26.1.1	5-26-1	5-26-2	5-26-14	5-26-5	5-26-18	5.26.3.1	5-26-23
16-024(j)	26	5.26.1.1	5-26-1	5-26-2	5-26-14	5-26-5	5-26-18	5.26.3.1	5-26-23
16-024(k)	20	5.2 <u>0.</u> 1.1	5-388	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-416
16-024(l)	20	5.20.1.1	5-388	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-416
16-024(m)	20	5.20.1.1	5-388	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-416
16-024(n)	20	5.20.1.1	5-388	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-416
16-024(0)	20	5.2 <u>0.1.1</u>	5-388	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-416
16-024(p)	20	5.20.1.1	5-388	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-416
16-024(q)	20	5.20.1.1	5-388	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-416
16-024(r)	20	5.20.1.1	5-388	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-416
16-024(s)	26	5.26.1.1	5-26-1	5-26-2	5-26-14	5-26-5	5-26-18	5.26.3.1	5-26-23
16-024(t)	26	5.26.1.1	5-26-9	5-26-2	5-26-14	5-26-5	5-26-18	5.26.3.1	<u>5-26-23</u>
16-024(u)	26	5.26.1.1	5-26-6	5-26-2	5-26-14	5-26-5	5-26-18	5.26.3.1	5-26-20
16-024(v)	26	5.26.1.1	5-26-1	5-26-2	5-26-14	5-26-5	5-26-18	5.26.3.1	5-26-23
16-025(a)	19	<u>5.19.1.1</u>	5-358	5-89	5-365	5-93	5-371	5.19.4.2	5-373
16-025(a2)	20	5.20.1.1	5-392	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-412
16-025(b)	19	<u>5.19.1.1</u>	5-358	5-89	5-365	5-93	5-371	5.19.4.2	5-373
16-025(b2)	20	5.20.1.1	5-393	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-412
16-025(c)	NFA	6.4.3.2	6-37	NA		NA	I NA	NA	NA
16-025(c2)	20	5.20.1.1	5-394	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-416
16-025(d)	19	5.19.1.1	5-360	5-89	5-365	5-93	5-371	5.19.4.2	5-377
16-025(d2)	26	5.26.1.1	5-26-6	5-26-2	5-26-14	5-26-5	5-26-18	5.26.3.1	5-26-23
16-025(e)	18	5.18.1.1	5-318	5-80	5-325	15-8/	15-339	5.18.4.2	15-348
16-025(e2)		6.6.3.1	6-18						
16-025(1)	18	5.18.1.1	5-318	15-80	5-325	5-8/	15-339	15.18.4.2	15-348
16-025(12)	INFA	16.6.3.1	10-18	i NA	INA	1 INA	1 NA	INA	1 INA

TABLE 5-0-1 (continued)

PRS	AGGRE- GATE	HISTORY SUBSECTION	(PAGE)	PCOC OR COPC TABLE NO.	(PAGE)	SAMPLING TABLE NUMBER	(PAGE)	SAMPLING SUBSECTION	(PAGE)
16-025(g)	18	5.18.1.1	5-322	5-80	5-325	5-87	5-339	5.18.4.2	5-341
16-025(g2)	NFA	6.4.3.5	6-40	NA	NA	NA	NA	<u>NA</u>	NA
16-025(h)	18	5.18.1.1	5-322	5-80	5-325	5-87	5-339	5,18.4.2	5-341
16-025(h2)	NFA	6.6.3.1	6-18	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-025(i)	18	5.18.1.1	5-322	5-80	5-325	5-87	5-339	5.18.4.2	5-341
16-025(j)	18	5.18.1.1	5-322	5-80	5-325	5-87	5-339	5.18.4.2	5-341
16-025(k)	18	5.18.1.1	5-314	5-80	5-325	5-87	5-339	5.18.4.2	5-341
16-025(l)	18	5,18.1.1	5-314	5-80	5-325	5-87	5-339	5.18.4.2	5-345
16-025(m)	24	5.24.1.1	5-482	5-124	5-486	5-128	5-493	5.24.4.2	5-496
<u>16-025(n)</u>	24	5.24.1.1	5-482	5-124	5-486	5-128	5-493	5.24.4.2	5-496
16-025(o)	24	5.24.1.1	5-482	5-124	5-486	5-128	5-493	5.24.4.2	5-496
16-025(p)	18	5.18.1.1	5-320	5-80	5-325	5-87	5-339	5.18.4.2	5-341
16-025(q)	18	<u>5.18.1.1</u>	5-320	5-80	5-325	5-87	5-339	5.18.4.2	5-341
16-025(r)	18	<u>5.18.1.1</u>	5-320	5-80	5-325	5-87	5-339	5.18.4.2	5-346
16-025(s)	19	5.19.1.1	5-358	5-89	5-365	5-93	5-371	5.19.4.2	5-373
16-025(t)	20	5.20.1.1	5-389	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-412
<u>16-025(u)</u>	18	5.18.1.1	5-320	5-80	5-325	5-87	5-339	5.18.4.2	5-345
16-025(v)	18	5.18.1.1	5-320	5-80	5-325	5-87	5-339	5.18.4.2	5-345
16-025(w)	20	5.20.1.1	5-390	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-419
<u>16-025(x)</u>	25	5.25.1.1	5-504	5-131	5-512	5-134	5-515	5.25.4.2	5-516
16-025(y)	20	5.20.1.1	5-390	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-416
16-025(z)	20	5.20.1.1	5-391	5-95	<u>5-398</u>	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-412
<u>16-026(a)</u>	NFA	6.6.1.3	6-6	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-026(a2)	NFA	6.6.1.4	6-9	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
<u>16-026(b)</u>	2	5.2.1.1	5-27	5-7	5-40	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-75
16-026(b2)	28	5.28.1.1.2	5-28-5	5-28-2	5-28-20	5-28-7	5-28-27	5.28.3.1	5-28-37
16-026(c)	2	5.2.1.1	5-27	5-7	5-41	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-75
16-026(c2)	28	5.28.1.1.1	5-28-2	5-28-2	5-28-20	5-28-7	5-28-27	5.28.3.1	5-28-40
16-026(d)	2	5.2.1.1	5-28	5-7	5-41	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-75
16-026(d2)	NFA	6.6.2.1	6-13			NA		NA	NA
16-026(e)	2	5.2.1.1	5-28	5-7	5-41	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-75
16-026(e2)		6.6.2.1	6-13	I NA		NA		NA	
16-026(f)	[NFA	6.6.2.2	6-14	NA	NA		NA	NA	NA
16-026(f2)		6.6.2.1	6-13		NA	NA			
16-026(g)		6.6.2.3	6-15			NA		NA	
16-026(g2)		6.6.2.1	6-13	NA		NA		I NA	
16-026(h)		6.6.2.1	6-13						
16-026(n2)	2	5.2.1.1	5-32	5-7	5-41	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-76
16-026(1)	28	5.28.1.1.4	5-28-9	5-28-2	5-28-20	5-28-7	5-28-27	5.28.3.1	5-28-30
16-026(12)		6.4.2.3	6-34				NA C 00 07		
16-026(J)	28	5.28.1.1.4	5-28-9	5-28-2	5-28-20	5-28-7	5-28-27	15.28.3.1	5-28-30
10-026(2)		5.2.1.1	5-38	15-7	15-41	5-20	1 2-02	15.2.4.2	15-77
10-026(K)		0.0.2.1	0-13						
16-026(K2)	28	5.28.1.1./	5-28-17	5-28-2	5-28-20	5-28-7	5-28-27	5.28.3.1	5-28-34
10-026(1)		0.6.1.3	0-/						
16-026(m)	23	5.23.1.1	5-462	15-117	5-464	5-122	5-4/2	5.23.4.2	15-4/5
10-026(n)	23	5.23.1.1	5-462	5-11/	5-464	5-122	0-4/2	5.23.4.2	0-4/5
16-026(0)	23	5.23.1.1	5-462	5-11/	5-464	5-122	<u>15-4/2</u>	<u>5.23.4.2</u>	5-4/5

TABLE 5-0-1 (continued)

	PRS	AGGRE- GATE	HISTORY SUBSECTION	(PAGE)	PCOC OR COPC TABLE NO.	(PAGE)	SAMPLING TABLE NUMBER	(PAGE)	SAMPLING SUBSECTION	(PAGE)
ļ	16-026(p)	23	5.23.1.1	5-462	5-117	5-464	5-122	5-472	5.23.4.2	5-475
	16-026(q)	18	5.18.1.1	5-314	5-80	5-325	5-87	5-339	5.18.4.2	5-350
	16-026(r)	28	5.28.1.1.2	5-28-5	5-28-2	5-28-20	5-28-7	5-28-27	5.28.3.1	5-28-37
	16-026(s)	21	5.21.1.1	5-424	5-104	5-426	5-108	5-432	5.21.4.2	5-436
	16-026(t)	NFA	6.6.1.3	6-7	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
	16-026(u)	28	5.28.1.1.2	5-28-5	5-28-2	5-28-20	5-28-7	5-28-27	5.28.3.1	5-28-37
	16-026(v)	2	5.2.1.1	5-32	5-7	5-40	5-20	5-66	5.2.4.2	5-69
	16-026(w)	18	5.18.1.1	5-320	5-80	5-325	5-87	5-339	5.18.4.2	347
	16-026(x)	NFA	6.6.2.1	6-13	ŃA	NA	NÁ	NA	NA	NA
	16-026(y)	NFA	6.6.1.5	6-9	NA	NA	NA.	NA	NA	NA
	16-026(z)	NFA	6.6.1.3	6-7	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
	16-027(a)	NFA	6.7.4.1	6-44	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
	16-027(b)	NFA	6.7.4.1	6-45	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
	16-027(c)	NFA_	6.7.4.1	6-45	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
	16-027(d)	NFA	6.7.2.4	6-32	NA	NA	NĂ	NA	NA	NA
	16-028(a)	NFA	6.4.2.6	6-36	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
	16-028(b)	28	5.28.1.1.5	5-28-13	5-28-2	5-28-20	5-2 <u>8-</u> 7	5-28-27	5.28.3.1	5-28-30
	16-028(c)	28	5.28.1.1.4	5-28-9	5-28-2	5-28-20	5-28-7	5-28-27	5.28.3.1	5-28-28
	16-028(d)	28	5.28.1.1.3	5-28-8	5-28-2	5-28-20	5-28-7	5-28-27	5.28.3.1	5-28-37
	16-028(e)	NFA	6.6.1.1	6-3	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
	16-029(a)	2	5.2.1.1	5-29	5-7	5-40	5-20	5-66	5.2.4.2	5-69
	16-029(a2)	20	5.20.1.1	5-390	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-418
	16-029(b)	2	5.2.1.1	5-27	5-7	5-41	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-75
	16-029(b2)	20	5.20.1.1	5-395	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-417
	16-029(c)	2	5.2.1.1	5-28	5-7	5-41	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-75
	<u>16-029(c2)</u>	20	5.20.1.1	5-391	5-95	<u>5-398</u>	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-417
	<u>16-029(d)</u>	2	5.2.1.1	5-28	5-7	5-41	5.20	5-65	5.2.4.2	<u>5</u> -75
	16-029(d2)	20	5.20.1.1	5-392	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.2.4.2	5-417
	16-029(e)	2	5.2.1.1	5-32	5-7	5-41	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-76
	16-029(e2)	20	5.20.1.1	5-393	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-417
	16-029(f)	2	5.2.1.1	5-38	5-7	5-41	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-77
	16-029(f2)	18	5.18.1.1	5-314	5-80	5-325	5-87	5-339	5.18.4.2	5-347
	16-029(g)	2	5.2.1.1	5-38	5-7	5-41	5-20	5-66	5.2.4.2	5-78
	16-029(92)		6.4.1.1	6-31					NA	I NA
	16-029(h)	29	5.29.1.1	5-29-1			5-29-3	5-29-11	5.29.3.2	5-29-13
	16-029(h2)	18	5.18.1.1	5-322	5-80	5-325	5-8/	5-339	5.18.4.2	5-348
	16-029(1)		6.6.1.1	6-3	NA					
	16-029(J)	28	5.28.1.1.7	5-28-17	5-28-2	5-28-20	5-28-7	5-28-27	5.28.3.1	5-28-34
	16-029(K)	23	5.23.1.1	5-462	5-117	5-464	5-122	5-472	5.23.4.2	5-475
	16-029(1)	23	5.23.1.1	5-462	5-11/	0-464	5-122	5-4/2	5.23.4.2	15-4/5
	16-029(m)	18	5.18.1.1	5-322	5-80	5-325	5-87	5-339	5.18.4.2	5-34/
	16-029(0)	18	5.18.1.1	5-322	5-80	5-325	5-8/	15-339	5.18.4.2	15-34/
	10-029(0)	18	0.10.1.1	5-322	05-80	5.005	5-8/	10-009	15.10.4.2	15-34/
	16-029(p)	18	5.10.1.1	5-322	0-80	0-325	5-8/	5-339	5.10.4.2	10-34/
	10-029(q)	10	5.23.1.1	5 21 4	10-11/	5 905	5-122	5 200	5.23.4.2	15-4/5
	16-029(1)	10	5,10,1,1	5-314	5 117	5 464	5 100	5 470	5.10.4.2	10-04/
	16.029(5)	23	5 23 1 1	5.462	5-117	5-404	5-122	5-4/2	5 23 / 2	5-475
	1 10*0とずい	120			13-11/	107704	1 J ⁻ 1 <u>6 6</u>	107716	1 0.40.7.4	10 770



TABLE 5-0-1 (continued)

PRS	AGGRE- GATE	HISTORY SUBSECTION	(PAGE)	PCOC OR COPC TABLE NO.	(PAGE)	SAMPLING TABLE NUMBER	(PAGE)	SAMPLING SUBSECTION	(PAGE)
16-029(iii)	23	5.23.1.1	5-462	5-117	5-464	5-122	5-472	5.23.4.2	5-475
16-029(v)	20	5.20.1.1	5-394	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-417
16-029(w)	25	5.25.1.1	5-504	5-131	5-512	5-134	5-515	5.25.4.2	5-519
16-029(x)	25	5.25.1.1	5-504	5-131	5-512	5-134	5-515	5.25.4.2	5-518
16.029(v)	20	5.20.1.1	5-389	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-417
16-029(z)	18	5.18.1.1	5-320	5-80	5-325	5-87	5-339	5.18.4.2	5-349
16-030(a)	28	5.28.1.1.1	5-28-2	5-28-2	5-28-20	5-28-7	5-28-27	5.28.3.1	5-28-40
16-030(b)	NFA	6.6.2.1	6-13	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-030(c)	NFA	6.6.1.3	6-7	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-030(d)	2	5.2.1.1	5-28	5-7	5-40	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-79
16-030(e)	NFA	6.6.2.1	6-13	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-030(f)	NFA	6.6.2.1	6-13	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-030(g)	2	5.2.1.1	5-32	5-7	5-40	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-73
16-030(h)	2	5.2.1.1	5-31	5-7	5-40	5-20	5-65	5.2.4.2	5-79
16-031(a)	28	5.28.1.1.6	5-28-15	5- 28-2	5-28-20	5-28-7	5-28-27	5.28.3.1	5-28-30
16-031(b)	28	5.28.1.1.6	5-28-15	5-28-2	5-28-20	5-28-7	5-28-27	5.28.3.1	5-28-34
16-031(c)	25	5.25.1.1	5-505	5-131	5-512	5-134	5-515	5.25.4.2	5-518
16-031(d)	19	5,19.1.1	5-359	5-89	5-365	5-93	5-371	5.19.4.2	5-378
16-031(e)	NFA	6.6.1.7	6-11	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-031(f)	NFA	6.6.1.7	6-12	NA	NA	NA	NA	<u>NA</u>	NA
16-031(g)	NFA	6.4.3.3	6-38	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
16-031(h)	NFA	6.6.1.6	6-10	<u>NA</u>	NA	<u>NA</u>	NA	<u>NA</u>	NA
16-032(a)	18	5.18.1.1	5-320	5-80	5-325	5-87	5-339	5.18.4.2	5-350
16-032(b)		6.5.1.3	6-43	NA	NA	NA	NA		NA
16-032(c)	18	5,18.1.1	5-314	5-80	5-325	5-87	5-339	5,18.4.2	5-349
16-032(d)		6.4.2.4	6-35		NA	NA			NA
16-032(e)		6.4.3.6	6-41			<u>NA</u>	NA		NA
<u>16-033(a)</u>		6.7.3.2	6-38						
16-033(b)		6.7.3.2	6-39						
16-033(c)		0.7.2.1	6-28						
16-033(d)	INFA	6.7.2.1	6-29						
16-033(0)		5.27.1.1	0-27-1					0.27.0 MA	0-27-0
16-033(1)		6722	6 20						
16-033(g)		6732	6.20						
16-032(i)		6732	6.30						
16-033(i)		6732	6.20						
16-035()		<u>6 18 1 1</u>	5-31/	5-80	5-925	5-87	5.330	5 18 4 2	5-341
16-034(b)	24	5 24 1 1	5-483	5-124	5.486	5-128	5-493	5 24 4 2	5-496
16-034(c)	24	5 24 1 1	5-483	5-124	5-486	5-128	5-493	52442	5-496
16-034(d)	24	5.24.1.1	5-484	5-124	5-486	5-128	5-493	5.24.4.2	5-496
16-034(e)	24	5.24.1.1	5-484	5-124	5-486	5-128	5-493	5.24.4.2	5-496
16-034(f)	24	5.24.1.1	5-484	5-124	5-486	5-128	5-493	5.24.4.2	5-497
16-034(a)		6.4.2.2	6-34	T NA	I NA	INA	NA	I NA	INA
16-034(h)	26	5.26.1.1	5-26-11	5-26-2	5-26-14	5-26-5	5-26-18	5.26.3.1	5-26-20
16-034(i)	NFA	6.6.2.4	6-16	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA .	NA
16-034(i)	26	5.26.1.1	5-26-11	5-26-2	5-26-14	5-26-5	5-26-18	5.26.3.1	5-26-19
16-034(k)	NFA	6.6.2.4	6-16	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA

TABLE 5-0-1 (continued)

INDEX TO PRSs

PRS	AGGRE- GATE	HISTORY SUBSECTION	(PAGE)	PCOC OR COPC TABLE NO.	(PAGE)	SAMPLING TABLE NUMBER	(PAGE)	SAMPLING SUBSECTION	(PAGE)
16-034(l)	19	5.19.1.1	5-362	5-89	5-365	5-93	5-371	5.19.4.2	5-377
16-034(m)	20	5.20.1.1	5-396	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-416
16-034(n)	20	5.20.1.1	5-396	<u>5</u> -95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-416
16-034(o)	20	5.20.1.1	5-394	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-416
16-034(p)	19	5.19.1.1	5-354	5-89	5-365	5-93	5-371	5.19.4.2	5-373
16-035	13	5.13.1.1	5-226	5-64	5-227	5-66	5-236	5.13.4.3	5-241
16-036	13	5.13.1.1	5-226	5-64	5-227	5-66	5-236	5.13.4.3	5-241
16-037	NFA	6.7.1.12	6-26	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
25-001	NFA	6.5.1.2	6-42	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
37-001	NFA	6.2.3.3	6-26	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-11-001	14/DA	5.14.1.1	5-246	5-67	5-244	5-69	5-257	5.14.4.2	5-258
C-11-002	16	5.16.1.1	5-271	5-73	5-272	5-75	5-279	5.16.4.2	5-280
C-11-003	NFA	6.2.3.4	6-27	NĂ	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-001	NFA	6.7.1.13	6-27	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-002	28	5.28.1.1.6	5-28-15	5-28-2	5-28-20	5-28-7	5-28-27	5.28.3.1	5-28-34
C-16-003	NFA	6.5.2.5	6-48	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-004	NFA	6.5.2.1	6-44	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-005	20	5.20.1.1	5-395	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-412
C-16-006	19	5.19.1.1	5-360	5-89	5-365	5-93	5-371	5.19.4.2	5-378
C-16-007	NFA	6.5.2.6	6-49	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-008	NFA	6.7.2.2	6-29	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-009	NFA	6.7.2.2	6-29	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-010	NFA	6.7.2.2	6-29	NA	NA	NA	NĂ	NA	NA
C-16-011	26	5.26.1.1	5-26-11	5-26-2	5-26-14	5-26-5	5-26-18	5.26.3.1	5-26-20
C-16-012	NFA	6.7.2.2	6-29	NÄ	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-013	NFA	6.7.2.2	6-29	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-014	NFA	6.7.2.2	6-29	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-015	NFA	6.7.2.2	6-29	NA	NA	NA	NÂ	NA	NA
C-16-016	NFA	6.7.2.2	6-29	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-017	24	5.24.1.1	5-484	5-124	5-486	5-128	5-493	5.24.4.2	5-497
C-16-018	NFA	6.7.1.5	6-22	NÁ	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-019	NFA	6.7.2.5	6-33	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-020	NFA	6.7.1.6	6-23	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-021	NFA	6.5.2.2	6-45	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-022	NFA	6.5.2.2	6-45	NA	NA	NĀ	NA	NA	NA
C-16-023	NFA	6.5.2.4	6-47	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-024	NFA	6.5.2.2	6-45	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-025	21	5.21.1.1	5-425	5-104	5-427	5-108	5-433	5.21.4.2	5-437
C-16-026	21	5.21.1.1	5-425	5-104	5-427	5-108	5-433	5.21.4.2	5-437
C-16-027	NFA	6.5.2.3	6-45	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-028	21	5.21.1.1	5-425	5-104	5-426	5-108	5-432	5.21.4.2	5-436
C-16-029	NFA	6.5.2.3	6-45	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-030	21	5.21.1.1	5-425	5-104	5-426	5-108	5-432	5.21.4.2	5-436
C-16-031	21	5.21.1.1	5-425	5-104	5-426	5-108	5-432	5.21.4.2	5-436
C-16-032	NFA	6.5.2.1	6-44	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-033	NFA	6.5.2.4	6-47	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-034	NFA	6.7.1.7	6-23	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-035	NFA	6.7.1.7	6-23	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA T	NA

-

ł

TABLE 5-0-1 (continued)

				I		PRSs			
PRS	AGGRE- GATE	HISTORY SUBSECTION	(PAGE)	PCOC OR COPC TABLE NO.	(PAGE)	SAMPLING TABLE NUMBER	(PAGE)	SAMPLING SUBSECTION	(PAGE)
C-16-036	NFA	6.7.2.2	6-29	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-037	NFA	6.5.2.4	6-47	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-038	NFA	6.5.2.4	6-47	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-039	NFA	6.5.2.1	6-44	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-040	NFA	6.5.2.1	6-44	NA	[NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-041	NFA	6.7.1.9	6-24	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-042	NFA	6.5.2.8	6-50	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-043	NFA	6.5.2.8	6-50	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-044	NFA	6.7.1.10	6-25	[NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-045	NFA	6.5.2.8	6-50	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-046	NFA	6.7.1.10	6-25	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-047	NFA	6.7.2.3	6-31	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-048	NFA	6.5.2.8	6-50	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-049	NFA	6.7.1.3	6-21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-050	NFA	6.7.1.11	6-26	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-051	NFA	6.7.2.3	6-31	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-052	NFA	6.5.2.8	6-50	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-053	NFA	6.5.2.8	6-50	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-054	NFA	6.5.2.8	6-50	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-055	NFA	6.5.2.6	6-49	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-056	NFA	6.5.2.8	6-50	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-057	NFA	6.5.2.8	6-50	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-058	NFA	6.7.2.3	6-31	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-059	NFA	6.5.2.7	6-50	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-060	26	5.26.1.1	5-26-6	5-26-2	5-26-14	5-26-5	5-26-18	5.20.3.1	5-26-23
C-16-061	NFA	6.7.1.8	6-24	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-062	NFA_	6.7.1.4	6-22	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-063	NFA	6.7.1.4	6-22	INA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-064	19	5.19.1.1	5-362	5-89	5-365	5-93	5-371	5.19.4.2	5-378
C-16-065	19	5.19.1.1	5-362	5-89	5-365	5-93	5-371	5.19.4.2	5-378
C-16-066	NFA	6.5.2.4	6-47	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NĂ
C-16-067	19	5.19.1.1	5-362	5-89	5-365	5-93	5-371	5.19.4.2	5-378
C-16-068	25	5.25.1.1	5-506	5-131	5-512	5-134	5-515	5.25.4.2	5-518
C-16-069	20	5.20.1.1	5-389	5-95	5-398	5-102	5-409	5.20.4.2	5-417
C-16-070	NFA	6.7.2.6	6-34	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-072	NFA	6.7.1.1	6-19	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
C-16-073	27	5.27.1.1	5-27-3] NA	NA	NA	NA	5.27.3	5-27-8
C-16-074	25	5.25.1.1	5-506	5-131	5-512	5-134	5-515	5.25.4.2	5-518
C-25-001	NFA	6.5.1.2	6-42	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
Cañon de Valle	9	5.9.1.1	5-172	5-47	5-175	5-52	5-183	5.9.4.2	5-184

5-0-10





Evaluation of Potential Release Site Aggregates

Chapter 5



Fig. 5-0-1(b). Index to PRS location and sampling maps for OU 1082 (1993 RFI Work Plan).



Fig. 5-0-2. Index to detailed sampling and PRS location figures for Subsections 5.18 through 5.25 (Addendum 1).



Fig. 5-0-3. Index map to PRS locations and sampling maps for Subsections 5.26 through 5.29 (Addendum 2).

the 1995 addendum to the OU-1082 RFI work plan or are proposed for no further action (NFA) or deferred action (DA) in Chapter 6.

5.0.2 DQOs for Reconnaissance Sampling - Generic Logic

Sampling designs in the RFI <u>Work Plan</u> for OU 1082 follow the general guidelines described in the <u>Installation Work Plan (IWP)</u>. In particular, the streamlined approach and DQO process for sample design, as described in Subsections 4.1.2 and Appendix H of the IWP, were used to guide the development of sampling (LANL 1993, 1017). The aggregates described in Subsections 5.1 through 5.17 are a diverse group of PRS aggregates, with correspondingly diverse DQOs.

In contrast, because all of the aggregates in the 1994 work plan addendum address potential contamination associated with decommissioned World War II era S-Site structures, Subsections 5.18 through 5.25 are all reconnaissance sampling with similar DQOs (Throughout this document the term "World War II era" is used to refer to the period from roughly 1944 to 1950). In particular, portions of DQO Steps 1, Problem Statement; 2, Decision Process; 3, Decision Inputs; 4, Investigation Boundary; 5, Decision Logic; and 6, Design Criteria, are virtually identical for these aggregates. DQO Steps 1, 4, and 6 typically also include aggregate-specific information that is included in Subsections 5.X.2 and 5.X.3 where X extends from 18 to 25. Because of the similarities of the DQOs across aggregates 5.18 through 5.25, generic DQOs appropriate for reconnaissance sampling of the World War II era buildings are presented below. These generic DQOs are then cited in Subsections 5.18 through 5.25 in the interest of minimizing the repetitiveness of the aggregate descriptions. Similarly, generic DQOs are cited in Subsections 5.26 through 5.29 in the interest of minimizing repetitiveness.

5.0.2.1 Problem Statement (DQO Step 1)

For aggregates 5.18 through <u>5.29</u> the primary Phase I problem is typically to determine if contaminants are at levels of concern in any PRS in each aggregate and estimate nature and extent of contamination. Virtually every aggregate contains both surface contamination due to combustion of World War II era buildings and subsurface contamination due to leakage from sumps and drain lines. Typically, the indicator PCOC COPC of concern is <u>high explosives (HE)</u>. The term HE refers to a broad range of compounds (see Appendix D) of varying toxicity. The two principal HE of concern in the World War II S-Site area are TNT (soil SAL = 40 ppm) and RDX (soil SAL = 64 ppm). The probability of contamination in PRSs within each aggregate varies, depending on the specific activities that occurred in the individual PRS in the aggregate.

5.0.2.2 Decision Process (DQO Step 2)

The objective of the Phase I investigations for aggregates 5.18 through 5.29 is reconnaissance sampling to determine if PGOG COPC concentrations are above screening action levels (SALs) in surface and subsurface soils. For each PRS if PCOG COPC concentrations are below SALs and there are no multiple constituent concerns, then a no further action (NFA) decision will be proposed for that PRS. If PCOG COPC concentrations are greater than SALs and background values, then a Phase II study will be initiated to determine the spatial extent and concentrations of contaminants of concern relative to an acceptable risk level.

For each aggregate, potential remediation options for PRSs that pose an unacceptable health and environmental risk include removal of contaminated surface or subsurface soils with treatment and disposal. <u>The need for remedial action will be supported by data on contaminant levels gathered in a Phase II sampling plan.</u>

5.0.2.3 Decision Inputs (DQO Step 3)

For PRSs in each of aggregates 5.18 through <u>5.29</u> the primary data needs are the confirmation of likely PCOGs <u>COPCs</u>, identification of additional PCOGs <u>COPCs</u>, and determination of the concentrations of all PCOGs <u>COPCs</u> in surface and subsurface soils and an estimate of the nature and extent of contamination. If SALs are not available for one or more PCOCs <u>COPCs</u> detected in a PRS, then these must be determined. Further, in order to locate the potentially contaminated areas of these PRSs for efficient and effective laboratory sampling, site information on facilities from visual indications, engineering drawings, field screening, and particularly

*Orthocorrected aerial photographs are corrected for local topography and the height and position of the airplane from which the photographs were taken.



orthocorrected aerial photographs* are needed to determine the location of former structures, subsurface plumbing, and drainages.

5.0.2.4 Investigation Boundary (DQO Step 4)

Boundaries are defined in each aggregate; 5.18 through <u>5.29</u>. However, the PRS boundaries are typically used as investigation boundaries.

The depth boundary for undisturbed surface samples is 0 to 6 in. For HE process building footprints, The depth boundary is extended to 0 to 24 in. for disturbed soil surfaces where bulldozing of soil has occurred and HE is contaminants are likely to have infiltrated into the subsurface. The depth boundary for subsurface samples, such as sumps, drain lines, and septic tanks is typically 0 in. to the soil-tuff interface.

5.0.2.5 Decision Logic (DQO Step 5)

For aggregates 5.18 through <u>5.29</u>, if the maximum observed PCOC <u>COPC</u> concentrations in surface or subsurface soils for a PRS are above their SALs and well above any constituent background level, then a Phase II study will be performed. A baseline risk assessment will be completed at any time that adequate data exist for an exposure unit of interest. If SALs or background levels are not exceeded, then an NFA decision will be proposed for the PRS.

Some adjustments are made to this decision rule to account for PGOGs <u>COPCs</u> for which SALs are less than the normal range of background (e.g., beryllium), or if several PGOGs <u>COPCs</u> exhibit concentrations that are close to SALs without actually exceeding them. Chapter 4, Subsection 4.1.4 and Appendix J of the IWP (LANL 1993, 1017) provide details of the effect of these adjustments on the decision rule.

5.0.2.6 Design Criteria (DQO Step 6)

For aggregates 5.18 through <u>5.29</u> a reconnaissance sampling approach (IWP, Appendix H) is proposed for all PRSs in each aggregate (LANL 1992, 0768). Reconnaissance sampling is based on the assumption that biased samples can be taken at the likely points of highest <u>PCOC COPC</u> concentration. Biased laboratory sampling locations are chosen based on knowledge of process, geomorphologic mapping, and field screening. The

term laboratory sample refers to samples selected for analysis in a fixed-base laboratory.

Each sampling design contains both field screening samples and laboratory samples. The field screening samples are used to increase the likelihood that laboratory samples are collected in regions of potential contamination. Positive field screening results will also be used to focus any Phase II investigations to exposure units known to contain contamination. The laboratory samples are designed to investigate the nature of PCOCs COPCs and to determine if the PCOCs COPCs are present at concentrations above SALs.

In order to design both the number and location of field screening and laboratory samples, each PRS was categorized into its likely heterogeneity and seriousness. These determinations were based on process knowledge, archival information, engineering drawings, and field visits. Rough definitions of the seriousness categories are: a very serious PRS is considered to have a 50% or better chance of containing PCOCs COPCs at a level an order of magnitude greater than SALs and background; a serious PRS is considered to have a greater than 10% chance of containing PCOCs COPCs at a level an order of magnitude greater than SALs and background; a not very serious PRS is considered to have a greater than 10% chance of containing PCOCs COPCs at a level an order of magnitude greater than 11% chance of containing PCOCs COPCs at a level an order of magnitude greater than 10% chance of containing PCOCs COPCs at a level an order of magnitude greater than 11% chance of containing PCOCs Series at a level an order of magnitude greater than 11% chance of containing PCOCs COPCs at a level an order of magnitude greater than 11% chance of containing PCOCs Series above SALs and background; and, a negligible PRS is considered to have much less than a 1% chance of containing PCOCs Series above SALs and background.

An indicator constituent or class of constituents was also designated for each PRS. Indicator constituents are PGOCs <u>COPCs</u> that: 1) are deemed to be likely to present the most serious health risks at a PRS, and 2) can easily be measured using field screening methods. It is important that the indicator constituents not have radically different initial dispersal mechanisms or environmental transport parameters from other potential constituents of serious concern. HE (TNT and RDX) are the indicator constituents for most PRSs considered in Subsections 5.18 through 5.25. HE and HE byproducts, including barium, are by far the most serious PCOCs <u>COPCs</u> based on both amounts used and toxicity at most PRSs in these aggregates. Large amounts (> 100 000 lb) of TNT and RDX were processed through the World

War II era S-Site complex, and both TNT and RDX have low SALs in soil (40 ppm for the former and 64 ppm for the latter). The HE spot test, which is described in Chapter 4, has 100 ppm detection limits for TNT, RDX, HMX, tetryl, and nitrocellulose. HE and HE byproducts are differentially mobilized in arid soil environments (for example, DNT is typically mobilized deeper into the subsurface than TNT and RDX). However, modeling of the relative transport of TNT, RDX, HMX, DNT, TNB, and DNB suggests that screening for TNT, RDX, and HMX would also identify regions in which DNB, DNT or TNB were PGOCs (Layton et al. 1987, 15-16-447). In World War II era S-Site, barium was discharged to the environment mixed with TNT (baratol), so screening for TNT should generally indicate the location of barium contamination. In addition, because of the high SAL for barium (5 600 ppm) it is of significantly lower concern than HE and organic HE byproducts.

The number of field screening samples for each PRS is determined using the binary-presence-absence diagram (Table 4-9) in concert with the designations in the seriousness/heterogeneity tables. Knowledge of processes occurring in the facilities associated with the PRSs allowed identification of those PRSs most likely to contain hazardous constituents. Table 5-0-2 shows the ranges of field screening samples for PRSs in each of these categories. Heterogeneity categories are based on the relative area within a PRS that is likely to be contaminated. If it is assumed that a homogeneous PRS is affected over 50% of its area if it is affected at all, a

TABLE 5-0-2

AMOUNT OF CONTAMINATION	VERY HETEROGENEOUS	NOT VERY HETEROGENEOUS	HOMOGENEOUS
Very serious	12 - 25	6 - 16	4-8
Serious	8 - 24	4 - 8	3 - 5
Not very serious	5 - 10	3 - 7	2 - 5
Negligible	3-6	1 - 5	1 - 4

FIELD SCREENING SAMPLING NUMBERS*

* Note that the wide ranges in these categories reflect the significant differences within categories. For example, very heterogeneous sumps and drain lines can include up to nine decommissioned sumps.

not very heterogeneous PRS is affected over 30% of its area if it is affected at all, and a very heterogeneous PRS is affected over 15% of its area if it is affected at all<u>then these sample numbers provide greater than an 84%</u> chance of detecting the indicator constituents for very serious PRSs, greater than a 72% chance of detecting the indicator constituents for the serious PRSs, and greater than a 54% chance of detecting the indicator constituents in the not very serious PRSs. It is important to note that although the HE spot test has detection limits for TNT (100 ppm) and RDX (100 ppm) that are larger than the SALs for these constituents, the likely mode of dispersal of HE in the World War II era S-Site (primarily through sump and drain line leaks and through cracks in building floors and doors) would lead to small, highly concentrated zones of HE contamination. These hot spots are unlikely to be missed by the HE spot test.

The number of laboratory samples for each PRS is designated based on professional judgment using guidance provided by a preliminary application of a Bayesian approach to sampling design (IWP, Appendix H) (LANL 1993, 1017). Based on knowledge of process, engineering drawings, and understanding of the 1960s World War II era S-Site cleanup, a Bayesian prior probability that a single sample taken in a stratified location would be below SALs for each PRS was estimated. This information is summarized for each PRS in Subsections 5.x.3.4. It also is estimated that the cost of a false negative result (IE chunk explosion) is two times greater than the cost of a false positive result (unneeded initiation of a Phase II study) for an HE-contaminated PRS:

Laboratory sample numbers derived using this approach are superimposed on Table 5-0-3, a seriousness/heterogeneity table. Typically within any category in this table, sump and drain line PRSs received more samples than building footprint PRSs. The PRSs deemed to be heterogeneous and seriously contaminated received the most samples (up to seven) because they had the largest degree of uncertainty concerning their likelihood of contamination and, thus, there was a large value in collecting additional data. Those PRSs deemed likely to be very seriously contaminated received up to four samples, because fewer samples are needed to locate samples with PCOCs <u>COPCs</u> above SALs in these PRSs than in PRSs with a larger degree of uncertainty. Other less serious and more homogeneous PRSs are assigned fewer samples (Table 5-0-3).

TABLE 5-0-3

AMOUNT OF CONTAMINATION	VERY HETEROGENEOUS	NOT VERY HETEROGENEOUS	HOMOGENEOUS
Very serious	3 - 4	3 - 4	1-2
Serious	3-7	2 - 4	2 - 4
Not very serious	2 - 4	2 - 3	1 - 2
Negligible	0-3	0 - 2	0 - 1

LABORATORY SAMPLING NUMBERS

Hypothetical Example of Application of Design Criteria to Typical PRSs

A simple example illustrates the application of these methods to typical World War II era S-Site PRSs.

Figure 5-0-4 shows PRSs associated with the site of a decommissioned HE processing building and its decommissioned sump and drain line. The soil beneath the decommissioned process building is estimated to be potentially heterogeneously contaminated because any HE within its footprint is likely to be derived from localized wastewater discharge through cracks in the building's floor and door. The building footprint is estimated to have serious potential for contamination because thousands of pounds of HE were processed in the building and the building was steam cleaned daily for ten years. The soil associated with the sump and drain line is likely to be heterogeneously contaminated because HE waste is likely to have leaked from drain line joints, particularly the joint between the sump and drain line (Martin and Hickmott 1993, 15-16-497). Any contamination of the sump and drain line is likely to be serious, because the 1960s World War II era S-Site cleanup only remediated HE in soils above a level of 3 wt %, which is nearly three orders of magnitude larger than the SALs for TNT and RDX.

Based on consideration of the seriousness/heterogeneity table (Table 5-0-2), ten field screening samples were designated in the process building PRS and twelve are designated in the sump/drain line PRS. Eight of those ten samples for the process building PRS are distributed randomly within the building footprint because the location of any floor leaks is unknown; hence, any soil contamination is likely to be heterogeneous and at a fairly





cARTography by A. Kron 6/3/94

Fig. 5-0-4. Schematic diagram showing typical groups of SWMUs covered in Subsections 5.18 through 5.25.

high level (perhaps 1 wt %). Two samples are biased to the doorway area because steam washing likely would wash HE-rich wastewater through the doorway. For the sump/drain line PRS four biased screening samples will be taken in the sump area, as determined from orthocorrected 1965 aerial photographs; site workers report that the majority of HE found in soils during the 1960s cleanup was located within twenty feet of the sumps. The remaining eight samples are distributed at irregular intervals along the former location of the drain line; any leaks from the drain lines are likely to have been located near pipe joints and hence, heterogeneous and at a moderate level (perhaps 1 wt %).

For this hypothetical example, the OU 1082 Team estimates a 90% chance that a single stratified sample in either the footprint or sump/drain line would be below SALs for TNT or RDX. After consideration of a Bayesian statistical design based on this 90% prior probability, professional judgment is used to select five laboratory samples for the sump and drain line and three laboratory samples within the building footprint.

This simple example illustrates the processes used to arrive at the number of field and laboratory samples for each PRS considered in Subsections 5.18 through <u>5.29</u>.

5.26 Surface Contamination Aggregate

5.26.1 Background

This aggregate contains PRSs related to small decommissioned structures. All of the structures have been decommissioned and removed. Their former locations were determined using aerial photographs, archival information, and site visits. With a few exceptions, the functions of these buildings have been confirmed by former employees. Seven of the ten structures in this aggregate were magazines used for HE storage; therefore, HE is a common CPOC. Although no PRS in this aggregate is known to be contaminated, all have a possibility of contamination due to possible spills or poor housekeeping practices.

Generally, HE-contaminated buildings were destroyed by burning. No building in this aggregate was regarded as sufficiently HE-contaminated to be burned. The method of decommissioning these structures is not known. This is probably because the HE stored in the magazines was tightly packaged and well contained, unlike HE in inspection and process facilities. No structure had a sump or outfall that would require sampling to extend significantly beyond the building footprint. The PRSs in this aggregate are listed in Table 5-26-1.

5.26.1.1 Description and History

The PRSs of this aggregate are distributed around the periphery of the decommissioned World War II era area that most of them once served. They are grouped by location and function.

SWMUs 16-024(j), 16-024(s), 16-024(i), and 16-024(v) contain potentially contaminated surface soil associated with HE magazines TA-16-65, TA-16-60, TA-16-64, and TA-16-62 (Figs. 5-26-1, 5-26-2, 5-26-3). All four magazines had concrete floors and each had soil piled against three sides of the building but not over the top.

TA-16-62 [SWMU 16-024(v)], TA-16-64 [SWMU 16-024(i)], and TA-16-65 [SWMU 16-024(j)] were built in 1944 outside the HE exclusion zone. S-Site was expanded between 1944 and 1946 to handle larger volumes of HE, which led to construction of larger receiving magazines inside the exclusion zone. As a result of the expansion, TA-16-62, TA-16-64, and TA-16-65 were retired as HE magazines after 12 to 18 months of service (Martin and Hickmott 1994, 15-16-549). The structures

TABLE 5-26-1

PRS	HSWA STATUS		FORMER STRUCTURE	DESCRIPTION	DIMENSIONS (FT)
		NUMBER	NUMBER		
16-024(a)	Non- HSWA	TA-16-488	P-14	Decommissioned HE magazine	Unknown
16-024(i)	Non- HSWA	TA-16-64	S-68	Decommissioned HE magazine	10 x 20
16-024(j)	Non- HSWA	TA-16-65	S-69	Decommissioned HE magazine	10 x 20 x 8.5
16-024(s)	Non- HSWA	TA-16-60	S-59	Decommissioned HE magazine	20 x 60 x 8.5
16-024(t)	Non- HSWA	TA-16-464	Unknown	Decommissioned HE magazine	Unknown
16-024(u)	Non- HSWA	TA-16-481	P-7	Decommissioned HE magazine	7x7x8
16-024(v)	Non- HSWA	TA-16-62	S-66	Decommissioned HE magazine	6x6x7
16-025(d2)	HSWA	TA-16-480	P-6	Decommissioned mockup chamber	16 - octagonal
16-034(h)	HSWA	TA-16-137	S-142	Decommissioned plumbing and electrical shop	L-shaped, 29 x 32 and 30 x 46
16-034(j)	HSWA	TA-16-190	S-144	Decommissioned drum storage rack	9 x 33 x 3
C-16-011	Non- HSWA	TA-16-132	S-137	Decommissioned paint shop	17 x 40 x 9 with a 9 x 40 x 7 porch
C-16-060	Non- HSWA	TA-16-479	P-5	Storage building for TA-16-480	16 x 16 x 8

SURFACE SOIL CONTAMINATION PRSs AT S-SITE

were removed in 1968, 1961, and 1951 respectively. Because they were not considered seriously contaminated, plumbers and carpenters were allowed to use them for storage (Martin and Hickmott 1994, 15-16-549).

The area these three magazines once occupied is outside the current HE exclusion zone. Administration building TA-16-204 currently covers a portion of the site of TA-16-65 [SWMU 16-024(j)], removed in 1951 (Fig. 5-26-1). There is public access to the regions once occupied by TA-16-62 [SWMU 16-024(v)], which is about 100 ft east of TA-16-540 in a grassy field that slopes east (Fig. 5-26-2), and TA-16-64 [SWMU 16-024(i)], which is about 80 ft north of the S-Site main gate and under the asphalt driveway that serves the gate and the parking lot (Fig. 5-26-1).



Fig. 5-26-1. Locations of SWMUs 16-024(i and j) in the administration area.





Fig. 5-26-2. Location of SWMU 16-024(v) near TA-16-540.



Fig. 5-26-3. Location of SWMU 16-024(s) near TA-16-430.

TA-16-60 [SWMU 16-024(s)] was a receiving magazine built in 1945 that was used for storage of finished HE product and packaged, raw HE. It is located inside the HE exclusion zone in a grass- and tree-covered field that slopes southeast. This magazine (Fig. 5-26-3) was removed in late 1950 due to its proximity to the TA-16-435 construction site.

SWMUs 16-024(a) and 16-024(u) contain potentially contaminated surface soil associated with HE magazines TA-16-488 and TA-16-481 (Fig. 5-26-4). These PRSs are located on the eastern edge of S-Site in a region originally called P-Site, TA-13. A detailed description of operations at P-Site is provided in Subsection 5.13. Both magazines were built in 1944 to store HE in support of x-ray diagnostics work on HE lenses (Bradbury 1947, 15-16-320). TA-16-481 [SWMU 16-024(u)] was retired from use in November 1950 (LASL no date, 15-13-016). The magazines were decommissioned and removed in 1951. The former locations of these magazines are approximately known (within 10 to 20 ft) and some evidence of the gravel driveways to the buildings are visible in the level, wooded sites. The construction material used for these magazines is not known. The dimensions of TA-16-488 [SWMU 16-024(a)] are not documented, but the structure appears in a 1947 aerial photograph to be similar in size to TA-16-481.

After mid-1945 P-Site was used for initiator testing. Initiators contained beryllium and polonium, the latter of which has decayed away due to its short (138 days) half-life. Toward the end of 1945, TA-13 was "...used for a variety of miscellaneous experiments for which no other site was quickly available" (Bradbury 1947, 15-16-320). These activities may have involved uranium, many forms of HE, beryllium, and other metals. TA-16-488 [SWMU 16-024(a)] and TA-16-481 [SWMU 16-024(u)] could have been exposed to those materials; however, a former site worker who worked at LANL from 1946 to 1982 listed HE as the sole contaminant of these structures (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076; Paige 1995, 15-16-600). HE contamination of these magazines from all of these activities might have occurred, but it is likely to be at a low level because HE is not disrupted in magazines.

SWMU 16-025(d2) and C-16-060 contain potentially contaminated surface soil associated with structures TA-16-480 and TA-16-479. These structures were located southwest of the entrance to TA-16-340 (Fig. 5-26-5) in a sloped, grassy area between walkway TA-16-352 and the western access road to TA-16-340. This area is higher in elevation than the present roadbed. Drainage is generally east but local construction of berms, roads, and walkways directs drainage north and south as well.



Fig. 5-26-4. Locations of SWMUs 16-024(a and u) at P-Site.



Fig. 5-26-5. Locations of PRSs 16-025(d2) and C-16-060 near TA-16-340.

TA-16-480 and TA-16-479 were originally within P-Site and can be located on a 1947 aerial photograph. The regions associated with SMWU 16-025(d2) and C-16-060 may have been disturbed by construction of TA-16-340 and its associated structures.

TA-16-480 [SWMU 16-025(d2)] was a temporary mockup chamber (ENG-7 drawing A5-C82) built in 1947 and removed in 1951. It was octagonal, approximately 16 ft across, built of logs on a concrete slab, and similar in size to concrete underground chambers used for initiator experiments at other sites. Based on its construction, detonation never occurred in this structure. Prior to 1947 three such chambers had been used at Trinity Site and similar, deeper structures were later built at TA-33 for the same purpose (ENG-C 426 and ENG-C 427). There is no direct documentation of the use of TA-16-480, but it probably was the building referred to in a 1947 memo as "...a hutment to be used for certain mockup arrangements of the experimental equipment required for experiments with highly radioactive sources which are actually to be performed at other locations" (Bradbury 1947, 15-16-320). In addition to radioactive components, the equipment used in these chambers probably contained mercury as well (Morgan 1994, 15-16-603). A former site worker lists TA-16-480 as a place where HE and uranium-238 may have been used (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076; Paige 1995, 15-16-600). However, given that detonation did not occur in this structure, it seems unlikely that pieces of uranium and HE would be present at the site.

The second structure, TA-16-479 (C-16-060), was a small storage building with a wooden floor, used at P-Site from 1944 to 1949. TA-16-479 was about 50 ft south of TA-16-480 and may have been used to store materials used in the mockup chamber. A former site worker listed TA-16-479 as possibly having uranium-238 present (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076; Paige 1995, 15-16-600). However, this building was considered clean enough to be moved to TA-33 for further use in August 1949 (ENG-7 structure list).

SWMU 16-024(t) contains potentially contaminated soil associated with decommissioned HE magazine TA-16-464, which was used to store HE brought to TA-16-460 for analysis. TA-16-464 was built in late 1952 and was heavily used until it was removed in 1966 to allow an access road to a replacement magazine, TA-16-463 (Fig. 5-26-6). There are no Engineering drawings of this magazine, so its size, shape, and composition are not known. Examination of an aerial photograph (USAF 1958, S-Site flyover negative ER ID# 0015915) suggests that TA-16-464

Chapter 5



Fig. 5-26-6. Location of SWMU 16-024(t) near TA-16-460.

[SWMU 16-024(t)] was covered by an earthen mound with a half-domed shape. By comparing this with other earthen-covered magazines with known dimensions, building dimensions are estimated to be greater than 10 ft and less than 20 ft. It is located in an industrial, asphalt-covered area. Drainage is generally toward the southeast through culverts. The method of removal and subsequent cleanup of TA-16-464 is not known.

SWMUs 16-034(h,j) and C-16-011 contain potentially contaminated soil associated with a cluster of buildings that was part of a Zia satellite maintenance area used for the upkeep of S-Site buildings (Fig. 5-26-7). Information on other buildings in this cluster is located in Subsection 6.7.2.2. The maintenance area was built in 1944 and 1945 and was removed by 1955. The maintenance area included the decommissioned S-Site fire station; its foundation still exists. The area is west of West Road, the only entry to S-Site prior to 1951. This road was fenced on the east side and beyond this point no HE was allowed. That is, the road formed the boundary of the HE exclusion zone. The most likely source of contamination to any of these structures would have occurred as a result of personnel and equipment inadvertently introducing HE particles or chunks into the area. A site worker, who was familiar with the Zia maintenance area throughout its lifetime, believes that policies and practices of the time ensured that no HE contamination would be present in the Zia maintenance area (Miller 1994, 15-16-552). The maintenance area is located on a grassy area that slopes gradually east.

SWMU 16-034(j) is associated with a drum storage rack, TA-16-190, which was located north of TA-16-139, a small (16 ft long x 16 ft wide x 8 ft high) wooden storage building. The SWMU Report states that TA-16-139 was the structure associated with SWMU 16-034(j) (LANL 1990, 0145). TA-16-139 was determined not to pose a threat to health or the environment. It was a small building, involved in nondisruptive activities (storage), and administratively restricted from HE contamination. However, TA-16-190, which was located adjacent to TA-16-139, was deemed hazardous to the environment and will be addressed as SWMU 16-034(j).

TA-16-190 [SWMU 16-034(j)] was a storage rack for fifteen 55-gal. drums; drums that probably provided lubricants and solvents by gravity feed. This structure is cited in a memo as having stored "various chemicals" (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076). The ENG-7 structure list claims TA-16-190 was built in 1945; however, the structure cannot be identified in a 1947 aerial photograph. In a 1950 aerial photograph (IS-9,

Chapter 5



Fig. 5-26-7. Locations of PRSs 16-034(j), C-16-034(h), and C-16-011 in the Zia maintenance area.

September 12, 1950, negative 16339), the drum storage rack appears to rest on a concrete slab with no roof or walls to prevent contaminants from being washed downhill.

SWMU 16-034(h) was TA-16-137, a plumbing and electrical shop. A former site worker specifically states that TA-16-139 through TA-16-146 were not HE contaminated, supporting the argument that administrative controls limited HE contamination in this area (Martin and Hickmott 1994, 15-16-549).

C-16-011 was TA-16-132, a paint shop. A 1950 aerial photograph indicates that the 7 ft high porch is located along the west wall of the structure (IS-9, September 12, 1950, negative 16339).

There are no Engineering drawings of TA-16-132 or TA-16-137; therefore, their structural composition is not known. These structures are listed as having no association with hazardous materials (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076).

5.26.2 Decision and Investigation Objectives

Generic decision criteria, decision logic, exposure pathways, and conceptual exposure models are located in Sections 4.3 and 5.0 of this document. Site-specific decision information is included in the following subsections.

5.26.2.1 Problem Statement

The Phase I problem is to determine if contaminants are at levels of concern in any PRS in this aggregate. This aggregate consists of miscellaneous potential surface soil contamination at S-Site. The structures include decommissioned magazines and building footprints. There is potential for near-surface (upper 6 in. of soil) and deep-surface contamination (upper 24 in. of soil) at most PRSs in this aggregate. COPCs include HE, radionuclides, metals, and semivolatile and volatile organics (Table 5-26-2). One decommissioned HE facility may have been used for experimental work on radioactive materials including uranium. The probability of contamination is moderate to low for most PRSs because the original source term is likely to be small.

For three PRSs the primary problem is not based on potential HE contamination. COPCs for the decommissioned P-Site building [SWMU 16-025(d2)] include HE, uranium, and other metals. Uranium is the most likely COPC for the decommissioned P-Site storage building (C-16-060). Semivolatile organic compounds are the principal COPCs for the electrical and plumbing shop [SWMU 16-034(h)], drum storage area [SWMU 16-034(j)], and the paint shop (C -16-011).

					HE		RAD	N	IETAL	.s		
	ACTIVE	UNDETONATED HE	HE DEGRADATION PRODUCTS	HE BURN PRODUCTS	URANIUM	METALS SUITE	BARIUM	MERCURY	VOLATITES	SEMIVOLATILES		
PRS	DESCRIPTION	PRIMARY ACTIVITY LEADING TO A POTENTIAL PROBLEM	1								·	
16-024(a)	TA-16-488	HE magazine	N	Х	Х			X	Х			Х
16-024(i)	TA-16-64	HE magazine	N	X	X			X	X			Х
16-024(j)	TA-16-65	HE magazine	N	X	X			X	Х			Х
16-024(s)	TA-16-60	HE magazine	N	X	X			X	Х			X
16-024(t)	TA-16-464	HE magazine	N	X	Χ_			X	X			X
16-024(u)	TA-16-481	HE magazine	N	X	X			X	X			X
16-024(v)	TA-16-62	HE magazine	N	X	X			X	X			X
16-025(d2)	TA-16-480	Mockup chamber	N	X	X		X	X	X	X		X
16-034(h)	TA-16-137	Plumbing/electrical shop	N					X			X	X
16-034(j)	TA-16-190	Drum storage rack	N					X			X	X
C-16-011	TA-16-132	Paint shop	N					X			X	Х
C-16-060	TA-16-479	Storage		X	X		X	X	X	X		X

.

.

Chapter 5

-

L

5.26.2.2 Design Criteria

The design criteria for the screening assessment include the perceived severity and heterogeneity of the primary COPC at each PRS. The severity of potential contamination was used to select the number of laboratory samples, and the heterogeneity of the constituents influenced the selection of field screening samples (see Section 5.0 for additional discussion of this approach). Heterogeneity is used here to describe variation in contaminant concentration.

Table 5-26-3 shows the severity and heterogeneity ranks for these PRSs. All of these PRSs were judged to either present a not very serious or negligible probability that contamination is above SALs. The drum storage area [SWMU 16-034(j)], the electrical and plumbing shop [SWMU 16-034(h)], and the paint shop [C-16-011] were judged to pose a not very serious threat of contamination due to a 10-year operational history (1945 to 1955) and, in the case of SWMU 16-034(j), a small potential source (15 drums). It is expected that minor spills would have been common during operations, but the decommissioning activities and subsequent weathering of the site would have reduced the possibility for contamination above SALs.

The P-Site magazines [SWMUs 16-024(a) and 16-024(u)] were judged to present a negligible probability of contamination, but contamination was judged more likely to be heterogeneous due to the uncertain location of these magazines. The mockup chamber [SWMU 16-025(d2)] and associated storage building [C-16-060] at P-Site were similarly judged to present a negligible probability of contamination, but with heterogeneous contamination due to the uncertain location of these structures. The inactive magazine [SWMU 16-024(t)] that was used as a rest house for HE samples to be analyzed was judged to be heterogeneous due to unknown decommissioning activities at that site. The PRSs with potential radioactive contamination were judged to have a negligible probability of contamination, but any potential contamination is expected to be heterogeneous due to the particulate nature of radioactive contamination. Thus, additional field screening samples are warranted for these PRSs. Decommissioned magazines with cement floors (SWMUs 16-024(i), 16-024(j), 16-024(s), 16-024(v)] that received unopened, packaged HE are expected to have a negligible probability of contamination. Decommissioning activities are expected to have mixed potential contamination. Therefore, these SWMUs are judged to be not very heterogeneous.

TABLE 5-26-3

GROUPING OF SURFACE PRSs INTO SEVERITY AND HETEROGENEITY CATEGORIES

.

AMOUNT	HETEROGENEITY O	F POTENTIAL CONTA	MINATION WITHI	N PRS BOUNDARIES					
OF	VERY HETEROGEN	EOUS	NOT VERY HET	TEROGENEOUS	HOMOGENEOUS				
CONTAMINATION	PRS	DESCRIPTION	PRS	DESCRIPTION	PRS	DESCRIPTION			
Very Serious									
Serious									
Not Very Serious			16-034(j) 16-034(h) C -16-011	Drum storage rack Plumbing and electrical shop Paint shop					
Negligible	16-024(t) 16-024(a) 16-024(u)	TA-16-464 magazine P-Site magazines	16-024(i) 16-024(j) 16-024(s) 16-024(v)	Magazines with cement floors					
	16-025(d2) C-16-060	Mockup chamber P-Site storage building							

Chapter 5

Evaluation of Potential Release Site Aggregates

.
5.26.3 Sampling and Analysis Plan

Standard operating procedures (SOPs) that control field activities in this sampling plan are listed in Table 5-26-4. Appropriate health and safety precautions will be undertaken according to the ER Project SOPs (LANL 1993, 0875) and the sitespecific health and safety plan. Sampling numbers and required analyses are shown in Table 5-26-5. Field quality assurance samples (QA) will be collected according to the guidance provided in the latest revision of the IWP (LANL 1995, 1164). Any QA/ QC (quality control) duplicate samples planned to be collected during the course of the field investigations are included in Table 5-26-5.

Fixed-base laboratory analysis of samples will be at Level III for radionuclides (LANL or DOE method), metals (SW-846 Method 6010), semivolatile organic compounds(SVOCs) (SW-846 Method 8270), volatile organic compounds (VOCs)(SW-846 Method 8240), and HE and its byproducts (SW-846 Method 8330).

TABLE 5-26-4

LANL-ER-SOP	TITLE	NOTES						
01.02, R0	Sample Containers and Preservation	Applied to all laboratory samples						
01.03, R1	Handling, Packaging, and Shipping of Samples	Applied to all laboratory samples						
01.04, R2	Sample Control and Field Documentation	Applied to all laboratory samples						
03.01, R1	Land Surveying Procedures	Applied to all engineering surveys						
06.09, R0	Spade and Scoop Method for Collection of Soil Samples	Applied to all surface samples						
06.10, R0	Hand Auger and Thin-Wall Tube Sampler	Applied to all augered samples						
12.01, R1	Field Logging, Handling and Documentation of Borehole Materials	Applied to all cored samples						

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES FOR FIELD ACTIVITIES

A later version of any SOP will be used if the cited version is superseded.

The principal radionuclide of concern is uranium. TNT and RDX were the types of HE most frequently used at these sites, and the principal HE byproducts of concern are DNT, TNB, and DNB.

July 1995

,		LABORATORY #						FI	FIELD SCREENING # FIELD												LABORATORY ANALYSES #												
	•]												Α					В				С	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		D	E	F	G	H	
TABLE 5-26-5 SUMMARY OF SITE SURVEYS, SAMPLING, AND ANALYSIS FOR SUBFACE AGGREGATE		TABLE 5-26-5 HUD SOURCE SUMMARY OF SITE SUMMARY OF SITE VEYS, SAMPLING, AND HUD SOURCE AND ANALYSIS FOR HUD SOURCE AND					ETA			FACE				ETA	0	ICS			зсорү	SCOPY	СОРУ		NUM	M		SW 8270)			(SW 8330)				
SURFAC		SAMPLED MEDIA		IELD DUP		IELD DUP		IELD DUP	3TEX TEST KIT	GROSS GAMMA/BI	ORGANIC VAPOR	HE SPOT TEST	GEOPHYSICS SUF	BARIUM - LIBS	GEOLOGICAL CHI	GROSS ALPHA	GROSS GAMMA/BI	HIGH EXPLOSIVE	VOLATILE ORGAN	(RF	SOIL MOISTURE	ALPHA SPECTROS	GAMMA SPECTRO	BETA SPECTROS(FOTAL URANIUM	SOTOPIC PLUTOR	SOTOPIC URANIU	VOCs (SW 8240)	SEMIVOLATILES (METALS (SW 6010)	ASBESTOS	HIGH EXPLOSIVES	MERCURY
16 004(a)	Magazino	Soil		屵	-	ц.	_	Ա		6	_	-	_	6	_	-	-	*	-	$\widehat{}$	_		_	_	-	_	_	_	4		_		-
16-024(a)	Magazine	Soil	<u> </u>	┝─┤	4					5		0 5		5				*	_					_					-			⊢╣	
16-024(i)	Magazine	Soil	<u> </u>	┝──┡	╶┼					5		5		5				*	_		_											┍┽┨	
16-024(s)	Magazine	Soil		┝─┨	1					5		5	-	5				*	_									-	1	1	_	$\overline{1}$	_
16-024(t)	Magazine	Soil		┢─┨	1	-				6		6		6				*	_										1	-			
16-024(u)	Magazine	Soil		╞╴┼	1					6		6		6			-	*			-			_	_				1		-		
16-024(v)	Magazine	Soil			1	1				5		5		5				*											1	1		(i)	
16-025(d2)	Magazine	Soil			1					8		8		8				*			_				1				1	1			1
16-034(h)	Shop	Soil			÷		2		6	6	6	6						*		_	-				-			2	2	2		Ť	<u> </u>
16-034(j)	Drum storage	Soil					4	1	6	6	6	6		_				*			-							4	4	4	\neg	\neg	
C-16-011	Paint shop	Soil	1				2		4	4	4	4						*		Ì				_				2	2	2	1		
C-16-060	Storage	Soil	<u> </u>		1					8		8	-	8				*							1				1	1	1	1	1
# - The act	ual number of samples	will do	nor	nd or	th	0 r0	er ift	e 01	the	fio	ld e	croc	nin	<u>n a</u>	nd t	ho	lool	lh o	f the	0.00	roc	T	1000	a nu	imh	ore	are	2 17	ninir	21110			

= The actual number of samples will depend on the results of the field screening and the depth of the cores. These numbers are a minimum.

A, B, C, D = not applicable; E = full suite; F = 1082 suite; H = full suite.

* All samples with positive HE spot test results will be analyzed in the field for HE content in order to permit transportation of samples.

Chapter 5

5.26.3.1 Sampling

All samples will be field screened for HE by spot test and radionuclides by gross betagamma. Each sample will be field screened at the midpoint of 12-in. intervals. The detection limits of the HE spot test are at a level such that a positive reading for TNT or RDX indicates a sample with contamination at a level above its SAL. All samples greater than a 6 in. depth will be field screened for volatile organic compounds with a photoionization detector (PID). SOPs for these procedures are currently in place. All samples that yield positive readings defined as a positive HE or PID reading or a metals or radiation reading (twice background or more) or are positive for other field screening tests will be sent for laboratory analysis. If multiple positive screenings are obtained on a core, the shallowest positive interval, the deepest positive interval, and the interval below the deepest interval will be submitted for laboratory analysis in order to bound the extent of contamination. If the deepest interval of a core section field screens positive, that interval and a sample collected two feet below that interval will be sent for laboratory analysis. In the absence of positive field screening readings, a hierarchy for selecting laboratory samples is included with each sampling plan.

All near-surface samples will be augered to six-inch depth. All deep-surface samples will be augered to a 24-in. maximum depth. Each subsurface core will be augered to a depth of three feet or the soil-tuff interface. The field team leader has the option to focus screening and select laboratory samples at a given depth for deep surface cores taken in a PRS.

The spatial boundaries of potential contamination for the surface aggregate include the PRS boundaries for the magazines or decommissioned buildings. Although the original location of COPCs at the building footprint was the soil surface (less than 6 in.), decommissioning activities likely redistributed or covered the COPCs. For each PRS, sampling points will be biased to areas believed most likely to contain the highest concentrations of COPCs based on field screening, orthocorrected aerial photographs, archival data, and the results of geomorphological surveys. Sample parameters, including complete lists of COPCs to be analyzed in the laboratory, are summarized in Table 5-26-5. Field-screening locations are shown in individual figures referenced in the sampling plans below.

SWMU 16-034(j) Sampling the drum storage rack footprint in the Zia maintenance area is designed to detect residual volatile and semivolatile organic compounds on

the disturbed surface of this SWMU. Six subsurface cores will be field screened with an immunoassay test kit to detect BTEX (benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene, and xylene). Two cores will be taken within the structure footprint and four will be taken downgradient, for a total of six cores (Fig. 5-26-8). Sampling locations will be biased to stained locations; no such locations were observed during preliminary reconnaissance surveying of the site. At least four samples will be chosen for laboratory analysis from these six cores. In the event that no positive samples are identified with field screening, then the shallowest interval and the interval containing the soil-tuff interface will be selected from the two cores within the structure footprint.

SWMU 16-034(h) Sampling the plumbing and electrical shop footprint in the Zia maintenance area is designed to detect residual volatile and semivolatile organic compounds on the disturbed surface of SWMU 16-034(h). Six subsurface cores will be field screened with an immunoassay test kit to detect BTEX. The field screening locations will be near all six corners of the L-shaped structure, TA-16-137, which constitutes SWMU 16-034(h) (Fig. 5-26-8). Sampling locations will be biased to stained locations; no such locations were observed during preliminary reconnaissance surveying of the site. At least two laboratory samples will be chosen from these six cores. In the event that there are no positive field screening samples, the two samples will be collected from the shallowest increment and the increment containing the soil-tuff interface of a single core selected at random.

C-16-011 Sampling the paint shop footprint in the Zia maintenance area is designed to detect residual volatiles, semivolatiles, and lead on the disturbed surface of this PRS. Four subsurface cores will be field screened with an immunoassay test kit to detect BTEX. The field screening locations will be located in the four quadrants of the structure (Fig. 5-26-8). At least two laboratory samples will be chosen from these four cores. In the event that there are no positive field screening samples, the two samples will be collected from the shallowest increment and the increment containing the soil-tuff interface of the core from the west side of the structure, where the porch formerly stood.

SWMUs 16-024(a and u) Sampling the footprint of these two decommissioned magazines is designed to detect residual HE on the disturbed surfaces of these SWMUs. For each SWMU, six 0 to 24-in. depth samples will be field screened as described above in order to select at least one 12-in. core segment of the six cores for laboratory analysis. The six field screening points will be located in each quadrant of the building's footprint, in the center of the footprint, and one foot downgradient from the door (Fig. 5-26-9). In the absence of positive field screening readings, soil

5 - 26 - 20 RFI Work Plan for OU 1082, Addendum 2



Fig. 5-26-8. Sampling locations for SWMU 16-034(j), 16-034(h), and 16-011 in the Zia maintenance area.

RFI Work Plan for OU 1082, Addendum 2 5 - 26 - 21

Chapter 5

÷





samples for laboratory analysis will be collected from the deepest segment of the core augered near the former location of the door.

SWMU 16-024(t) Sampling the footprint of this magazine is designed to detect residual HE on the surface of this SWMU. Six 0 to 24-in. core samples will be field screened in order to select at least one 12-in. sample for laboratory analysis. The six field screening points will be located in each quadrant of the building's footprint, in the center of the footprint, and one foot downgradient from the door (Fig. 5-26-10). In the absence of positive field-screening readings, the soil sample for laboratory analysis will be collected from the deepest segment of the core augered near the former location of the door.

SWMU 16-025(d2) and C-16-060 Sampling the footprint of the temporary mockup chamber and the footprint of a small P-Site storage building is designed to detect residual radionuclides on the disturbed surfaces of these SWMUs. Within each SWMU, eight 0 to 24-in. samples will be field screened for HE and radionuclides in order to select at least one 12-in. sample for laboratory analysis. These field-screening locations are shown on Fig. 5-26-11 with two samples located in each quadrant of each footprint. In the absence of positive field screening readings, the two soil samples for laboratory analysis will be selected randomly from the deepest interval of the screened samples.

SWMUs 16-024(i,j,s,v) Sampling the footprint of these four decommissioned magazines is designed to detect residual HE on the disturbed ground surfaces. For each SWMU, five 0 to 24-in. samples will be field screened in order to select at least one 12-in. segment of the five cores for laboratory analysis. The five field screening samples will be located in each quadrant of the building's footprint and one foot downgradient from the door of each structure (Figs. 5-26-12, 5-26-13, 5-26-14). Because TA-16-204 may partially cover the former location of the northwest corner of TA-16-65 [SWMU 16-024(j)], the sample that would have been collected from that quadrant will be collected from the former center of the structure. Samples from TA-16-64 [SWMU 16-024(i)] will need to be cored through the asphalt parking lot which is currently located on top of the SWMU. In the absence of positive field screening readings, the one soil sample for laboratory analysis will be selected randomly from the deepest intervals of the screened samples.

Evaluation of Potential Release Site Aggregates

Chapter 5



Fig. 5-26-10. Sampling locations for SWMU 16-024(t), decommissioned magazine near TA-16-460.



Fig. 5-26-11. Sampling locations for PRSs 16-025(d2) and C-16-060, decommissioned buildings near TA-16-340.



Fig. 5-26-12. Sampling locations for SWMUs 16-024(i and j), decommissioned magazines in the administration area.



Fig. 5-26-13. Sampling locations for SWMU 16-024(s) near TA-16-430.

Sources: FIMAD 8/17/94, G102448; LASL 1950, ENG-R 132, Sh. 1 Modified by: cARTography by A. Kron 11/28/94





Fig. 5-26-14. Sampling locations for SWMU 16-024(v) near TA-16-540.

5.27 Underground Storage Tanks Aggregate

5.27.1 Background

This aggregate consists of two PRSs (Table 5-27-1). SWMU 16-033(e) and C-16-073 are underground storage tanks (USTs) that present possible subsurface soil contamination. Most of the contamination is expected to be under the former locations of the tanks and their associated piping.

TABLE 5-27-1

STRUCTURE PRS **HSWA** DESCRIPTION COMMENTS STATUS NUMBER 16-033(e) Non-HSWA Unknown Two tanks located No structure northwest of TA-16-10 numbers; no information; no installation or removal dates C-16-073 Non-HSWA Unknown Tank served an emergency No structure generator in the basement number; no of TA-16-200 installation or removal dates

UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS AT TA-16

5.27.1.1 Description and History

The USTs located at TA-16 contained fuel. Their use was in no way related to building activities or processes. The fuel tanks listed below will be sampled due to insufficient information concerning their abandonment and subsequent removal. They have not been accurately located, despite preliminary magnetic surveys.

SWMU 16-033(e) consists of two underground fuel tanks, associated fuel lines, and pump base located northwest of TA-16-10 in a level, industrialized area which drains to the east (Fig. 5-27-1). Because the tanks have no structure numbers, there is no existing information as to their capacity, dimensions, or installation and removal dates.

A 1967 memo regarding a radioactive contamination survey mentions monitoring two underground gasoline tanks northwest of TA-16-10; no additional information is given (Buckland 1967, 15-16-131). These are believed to be the tanks associated with SWMU 16-033(e). A number of former site workers were contacted concerning the monitoring survey but none recalls these tanks.

Chapter 5



Fig. 5-27-1. Possible location of decommissioned fuel tanks, SWMU 16-033(e).

C-16-073 is an underground gasoline storage tank believed to be located six feet from the southwest wall of TA-16-200, an administrative building located outside the HE exclusion zone (Fig. 5-27-2). A 1967 memorandum indicates that the tank was located six feet south of TA-16-200 (Buckland 1967, 15-16-131). However, the tank had no structure number, making it difficult to document its installation or removal.

The gasoline storage tank served an emergency generator located inside the basement equipment room of TA-16-200 (Martin and Hickmott 1994, 15-16-549). It is assumed the tank was installed in 1952, the same year the main portion of TA-16-200 was built. The emergency generator is presently run by natural gas and it is likely the UST was decommissioned when this conversion took place or shortly after (date unknown). Given that it served the emergency generator in the equipment room and was located six feet south of the building, the tank is expected to be located near the basement entrance of TA-16-200, where the embankment starts with drainage to the south.

A memo documents monitoring the tank for radioactivity in 1967 with no detectable radioactive contamination found (Buckland 1967, 15-16-131).

5.27.1.2 Nature and Extent of Contamination

Constituents of fuels [benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene, xylene (BTEX), and possibly lead] are the primary COPCs for these underground storage tanks (Table 5-27-2). High explosives or radionuclides are not a concern because these USTs were not involved with building activities or processes.

TABLE 5-27-2

SUMMARY OF REMEDIATION OR SCREENING ACTION LEVELS FOR USTS DURING REMOVAL OR UPGRADING

UST CONSTITUENT	REMEDIATION OR SCREENING ACTION LEVELS (ppm)							
ТРН	100 ^a							
Total BTEX	50 ^a							
Benzeneb	10 ^a							
Lead	400 ^c							

^a Remediation level from State of New Mexico UST Regulations §1209

^C SAL from (EPA 1994, 15-16-587)

^bThe benzene component of BTEX



Fig. 5-27-2. Possible location of C-16-073, a decommissioned fuel tank associated with building TA-16-200.

5.27.2 Remediation Decision and Investigation Objectives

Generic decision criteria, decision logic, exposure pathways, and conceptual exposure models are located in Sections 4.3 and 5.0 of this document. Site-specific decision information is included in the following subsections.

5.27.2.1 Problem Statement

This aggregate consists of potential subsurface soil contamination from USTs. The problem is to determine if USTs in this aggregate have been removed (Fig. 5-27-3). If the USTs have not been removed, then removal will proceed according to New Mexico Environment Department (NMED) UST Regulations Part VIII §803.

November 15, 1990, the State of New Mexico was given authority to regulate USTs. The Code of Federal Regulations 40 CFR §281.11 provides general requirements for the state's UST program, specifically that "...the state must demonstrate that its requirements under each state program element for existing and new UST systems are no less stringent than the corresponding federal requirements." Code of Federal Regulations 40 CFR §280.73, which were adopted as NMED UST Regulations Part VIII §803, states that "...the owner and operator of an UST system closed before December 22, 1988 must assess the excavation zone and close the UST system in accordance with this Part VIII if releases from the UST may ... pose a current or potential threat to human health and the environment." This assessment of the decommissioned UST is based on the depth to groundwater of greater than 1 000 ft, absence of private wells within 1 000 ft or municipal water wells within 1 mile, and the absence of surface water courses within 500 ft of any of these PRSs (Environmental Protection Group 1990, 0497).

5.27.2.2 Investigation Boundaries

The spatial boundaries of potential contamination for the subsurface aggregate include the PRS boundaries for the UST and related fuel lines. It is expected that the USTs are excavated into the tuff, given the shallow soil at S-Site. Thus, the depth boundary for these PRSs is from the top of the tank or the fuel lines to the tuff.

For each UST geophysical survey points will be biased to areas believed to most likely contain the tank and fuel lines based on archival data and the results of land surveys. For C-16-073, the geophysical grid will center around a line 6 ft south of TA-16-200 and 3-ft grid intervals will be used for an area 9 ft wide and 21 ft long (Fig. 5-27-4). For SWMU 16-033(e), the grid spacing interval will be 5 ft.

ł





Fig. 5-27-3. UST decision logic flow chart.



The geophysical study will encompass a rectangle defined by the outside edge of the foundations for TA-16-12, TA-16-11, and TA-16-10 (Fig. 5-27-5).

5.27.2.3 Design Criteria

The design criteria for locating the USTs are based on engineering reports and judgmental information on the performance of the geophysical survey.

5.27.3 Sampling and Analysis Plan

Geophysical surveys using magnetometers and ground-penetrating radar (GPR) will be used to determine if the USTs at SWMU 16-033(e) and C-16-073 have been removed. If they have been removed, then they will be recommended for NFA. If they remain in place, then they will be removed under the Laboratory's UST program.





Fig. 5-27-5. Geophysical survey location northwest of building TA-16-10.

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

5.28 Outfalls Aggregate

5.28.1 Background

This aggregate consists of 14 outfalls and one debris area associated with buildings located throughout S-Site. These PRSs are aggregated because of their similar physical descriptions and sampling plans. The COPCs at most of these sites include HE, SVOCs, VOCs, and metals, particularly barium and chromium. Sampling plans will require a small number of surface samples (one to five) and some subsurface samples in cases of potential VOC contamination. Table 5-28-1 lists PRSs in this aggregate.

TABLE 5-28-1

PRS	HSWA Status	STRUCTURE NUMBER	DESCRIPTION	BUILDING DIMENSIONS (FT)
16-026(b2)	HSWA	TA-16-202	Machine shop oil overflow outfall	93 x 280 x 22
16-026(c2)	HSWA	TA-16-462	Chemical storage building outfall	22 x 18 x 10
16-026(i)	HSWA	TA-16-224	X-ray building outfall	58 x 44 x 10
16-026(j)	HSWA	TA-16-226	X-ray building outfall	58 x 44 x 10
16-026(k2)	HSWA	TA-16-260	HE machining building outfall	729 x 37 x 17.5
16-026(r)	HSWA	TA-16-180	Fire station oil overflow outfall	62 x 43 x 26.5
16-026(u)	HSWA	TA-16-195	Service station oil overflow outfall	30 x 112 x 18
16-028(b)	HSWA	TA-16-370	Barium nitrate grinding/metal shop outfall	131 x 86 x 37
16-028(c)	HSWA	TA-16-220	X-ray building outfall	41 x 68 x 20
16-028(d)	HSWA	TA-16-202	Machine shop outfail	93 x 280 x 22
16-029(j)	HSWA	TA-16-260	HE machining building sump and outfall	729 x 37 x 17.5
16-030(a)	HSWA	TA-16-344	Chemical storage building outfall	50 x 15 x 12
16-031(a)	HSWA	TA-16-372	Decommissioned cooling tower outfall	20 x 10 x 25
16-031(b)	HSWA	TA-16-262	Demolished cooling tower outfall	5 x 7.4 x 12.4
C-16-002	Non- HSWA	TA-16-262	Demolished cooling tower rubble	5 x 7.4 x 12.4

OUTFALL AND DRAINAGE AGGREGATE PRSs

5.28.1.1 Description and History

Almost all of the buildings and drains in this aggregate were built in the early 1950s. Although many of the buildings are still in use, most of the drains are inactive. Most of the outfalls received effluent from floor drains in their associated buildings. Two of the outfalls are associated with decommissioned cooling tower drainage and one outfall is from inactive HE sumps. Unless an outfall is indicated with an NPDES permit number, the outfall is unpermitted.

5.28.1.1.1 Chemical Storage Building Outfalls

SWMUs 16-026(c2) and 16-030(a). SWMU 16-026(c2) is the outfall from TA-16-462, a chemical storage building located in the southwest quadrant of TA-16 (Fig. 5-28-1). TA-16-462 was built in 1952 to provide storage for chemicals used nearby in TA-16-460, an analytical and process control laboratory. HE was not stored in TA-16-462. Magazines TA-16-464 (now removed) and TA-16-463, located northwest of TA-16-460, stored the HE compounds used in the laboratory.

TA-16-462 is a small, single-story building divided into two rooms. One room contains a small inventory of solvents and oil. The other room has a more extensive inventory of inorganic and organic compounds including benzene, nitric acid, propanol, acetone, mineral oil, and tetrachloroethane (LANL 1992, 15-16-527). Both rooms have troughs in the floor that drain to separate drain lines outside the building. The two drain lines that make up SWMU 16-026(c2) are constructed of 6-in. vitrified clay pipe. They exit from the southeast side of TA-16-462 and travel southeast approximately 32 ft before they daylight next to one another in a grassy area sloped to the southeast. There is evidence from Engineering drawing ENG-C 16272 that a square collection pit once existed where the pipes daylight. On a site visit it appeared that the pit exists but is completely filled with sediment. Effluent collects in the pit and then flows southeast into a drainage ditch. The ditch leads to a corrugated metal culvert, draining to the northeast. The housekeeping practices and historical spill record of this outfall are not known. Archival information from the 1970s states that effluent from TA-16-462 is "effectively negligible" (Panowski and Salgado 1971, 15-16-038). Although TA-16-462 is currently active, the drains were plugged in July 1991 and, therefore, will not contribute further contamination to the outfall.

SWMU 16-030(a) is the outfall from an active chemical storage building (TA-16-344) built in 1951 in the southeast corner of P-Site (Fig. 5-28-2). This building has three 5 ft long x 2 ft wide cement drain troughs projecting from the south wall into a grassy, semicircular, bermed area 45 ft in diameter. The bermed pit could contain drainage from the two westernmost troughs (draining the west room). The drainage from the easternmost trough (draining the east room) does not flow into the pit but drains into a grassy area to the south.

The building is divided into two rooms and the floors are slightly sloped toward the troughs to receive floor drainage. The room to the east contains barrel rack storage for solvents such as toluene and n-butyl acetate. The room to the west contains



Fig. 5-28-1. Location of SWMU 16-026(c2) near TA-16-462.



Fig. 5-28-2. Location of SWMU 16-030(a) at TA-16-344.

metals, plastics, and inert materials such as barium nitrate packed in containers. The building is still active, although secondary containment used since 1991 blocks the cement troughs and restricts chemical spills.

5.28.1.1.2 Oil Overflow Drain Outfalls

SWMUs 16-026(b2), 16-026(r), and 16-026(u) are soil contamination due to oil overflow lines from oil-water separators, which are also called oil interceptors on engineering drawings. These three SWMUs are associated with three different buildings, a decommissioned machine shop (TA-16-202), a fire station (TA-16-180), and a service station (TA-16-195) (Figs. 5-28-3 and 5-28-4). All are located in the current administration area at S-Site. The administration area is outside the fenced exclusion area where HE is handled.

All three buildings were built in 1952 during the expansion and construction of the administration area. The oil interceptors are still in place but are no longer used. It is not known when they were decommissioned. An oil interceptor is a 3 ft long x 3 ft wide x 3 ft deep below-floor-level cement pit placed in a wastewater line which receives oily water. The interceptor can receive up to 100 gal./minute of oily water (ENG-C 7161). Its purpose is to remove oil from the water to protect the sewer system from being overloaded with large volumes of oil. The oil interceptor takes advantage of the density difference between oil and water to separate oily wastewater into an oil layer and a water layer. The oil floats to the top of the pit, allowing water to sink to the bottom and flow out a drain at the bottom of the pit. Generally, the bottom drain carrying water connects directly to the sewer system. The oil layer flows into an oil overflow drain line located at the top of the pit that allows excess oil to flow away. These oil overflow lines are 2-in. cast iron pipes, which indicates that large volumes of oil were not expected from these interceptor drains. Ordinarily, the oil overflow lines drain directly onto the ground. Standard practices for cleaning these drains or regularly removing the oil are not known. However, there are no oil stains visible where the oil overflow drains daylight.

SWMU 16-026(b2) is associated with TA-16-202, a decommissioned machine shop (Fig. 5-28-4). Room 138, which contains the oil interceptor, is located in the east corner of the building. The room was used as a millwright shop. The oil interceptor was located near a welding table, a hood, and a steam cleaning pit. Although the exact decommissioning date of the oil interceptors is not known, by 1977 the room was no longer being used as a shop that required an oil overflow drain (Engineering



Fig. 5-28-3. Location of SWMU 16-026(r) at TA-16-180.



Fig. 5-28-4. Locations of SWMUs 16-026(u and b2) and 16-028(d) in the administration area.

drawing ENG-C 43025). A wooden plank now covers the oil interceptor and the room is an office. The oil overflow line runs southeast approximately 135 ft and daylights near the bottom of a drainage ditch running southwest along the road.

SWMU 16-026(r) is associated with TA-16-180, which is fire station Number 5 at TA-16 (Fig. 5-28-3). The oil interceptor is located in the middle of the south wall of the building and received floor washings from six floor drains. Presently, rags are used to mop up oil stains and the interceptor drain is inactive. On the basis of Engineering drawings (ENG-C 7158 and ENG-R 859) and a field investigation that used magnetic surveying, the oil overflow line is believed to daylight approximately 70 ft south of the building in an east-sloping grassy area near the road. However, the pipe is not visible. Engineering drawing ENG-C 7158 indicates that the water drain from the bottom of the interceptor did not connect to the sewer, as the others do, but instead drained into a field approximately 200 ft south of the building.

SWMU 16-026(u) is associated with TA-16-195, the TA-16 service station (Fig. 5-28-4). The oil interceptor is located in room 105, the tire and grease room on the north side of the building. It also receives floor washings from the wash area, the ambulance room, and the grease and repair room. According to Engineering drawing ENG-C 7158, the oil overflow drain runs approximately 90 ft southeast, near the asphalt surrounding TA-16-207. Although the pipe is not visible, a magnetic survey of the area confirmed this location. The general drainage of the area is to the east through culverts in the asphalt.

5.28.1.1.3 TA-16-202 Machine Shop Outfail

SWMU 16-028(d) is potentially contaminated soil from an NPDES permitted outfall from TA-16-202, which is located in the administration area (Fig. 5-28-4). From the time it was built in 1952 until June 1993, TA-16-202 was used as a secure machine shop, providing electrical, mechanical, pipefitting, milling, and other machining services. The machine shops are presently empty and the building is used for office space. Currently, the outfall only receives rainwater. Because it is located outside the exclusion area where HE is handled, only metals and plastics were machined in TA-16-202.

The outfall, NPDES permit 04A083, receives noncontact cooling water. The drain line is 8-in. vitrified clay pipe and daylights 80 ft southeast of the building in a swampy ditch filled with cattails. NPDES sampling results from 1979 to 1988 indicate that the

noncontact cooling water volumes averaged 3 gal./minute (no author, no year, 15-16-109). This outfall also receives floor washings from two floor drains, effluent from two non-HE sump drains (on the north and south sides of TA-16-202), and discharge from two sink drains, as well as rainwater from 16 roof drains (LANL 1992, 15-16-533). One floor drain and one sink drain are located in room 107, the largest machining room in the building. The floor drain could not be located during a site visit. One sink drain is located in room 120, previously a pipe shop. Oil residue visibly coated the surface of the sink, evidence of past poor housekeeping practices. The other floor drain flows through the sump system into the outfall. The sumps receive steam and vacuum condensate, not HE wastewater.

Historically, there is evidence that TA-16-202 used a variety of compounds during machining. Memos report that brazing alloy was used (1 lb per year) and chemicals such as trichloroethane (12 gal. per year), petroleum distillates (2.5 gal. per year), and hydrochloric acid (1 gal. per year) were used on cleaning rags and in other processes and, therefore, could be in the drains (Panowski and Salgado 1971, 15-16-038). Chemicals such as toluene diisocyanate were used in the plastics machined here and could have entered the drain absorbed on chips and dust (Campbell 1959, 15-16-254).

5.28.1.1.4 Radiography Building Outfalls

SWMUs 16-026(i,j) and 16-028(c) are soil contamination associated with outfalls from three x-ray buildings located on the north end of S-Site (Figs. 5-28-5, 5-28-6, 5-28-7). The radiography area at S-Site was built in 1952 and consists of seven buildings: three rest houses, three x-ray buildings, and a centrally located photoprocessing building. The buildings are connected by a series of enclosed walkways. The rest houses store finished, packaged HE components before and after they are radiographed. The components are transported between the rest houses and the x-ray buildings via the enclosed walkways. When components arrive at the x-ray buildings, they are removed from their packaging, x-rayed, and then repackaged. Site workers from 1945 to the present indicate that HE dust and small chips (up to 0.125 in. diameter) would break off during this process and could end up in the floor drains (Paige 1994,15-16-520; Paige 1994, 15-16-553). Because these SWMUs are associated with floor drains in the x-ray buildings, it is possible that HE contamination could be present at the outfall of the

July 1995





Fig. 5-28-6. Location of SWMU 16-026(j) at TA-16-226 in the radiography area.



Chapter 5



Fig. 5-28-7. Location of SWMU 16-028(c) at TA-16-220 in the radiography area.

drain lines. In the past, small chips of HE have been seen inside at least one of these drains (LANL 1992, 15-16-530).

The x-ray buildings use x-ray machines, rather than radioactive sources, to generate the x-rays used to photograph finished HE components (Paige 1994, 15-16-553). If radioactive sources had been used, the buildings would have had lead-lined pits similar to those in other radiography buildings at TA-16 that used sources. Therefore, radionuclides are not COPCs for these SWMUs. Although the buildings are still active, the floor drains were plugged in 1991.

SWMU 16-026(i) is an outfall associated with TA-16-224 (Fig. 5-28-5) and SWMU 16-026(j) is an outfall associated with TA-16-226 (Fig. 5-28-6). Both buildings house 1 000 KeV x-ray machines. The floor drains that discharge to these SWMUs are located in the northeast and northwest corners of room 101 in TA-16-224 and the southeast and southwest corners of room 101 in TA-16-226. The corner floor drains join and form one 6-in. vitrified clay pipe drain line out of each building, draining into grassy, gradually sloping areas. The drain from TA-16-224 daylights northeast of the building. Although the location of the drain outfall from TA-16-226 could not be located on several site visits, Engineering drawing ENG-C 15605 shows the drain flowing toward the southeast.

SWMU 16-028(c) is an outfall associated with TA-16-220 (Fig. 5-28-7). This building was the low energy x-ray building, housing a 250 KeV x-ray machine. This outfall, NPDES permit 04A070, receives effluent from eight floor drains in TA-16-220. This effluent includes 2 000 gal./month of noncontact cooling water, minimal volumes of chiller condensate, and periodic discharge from an HE vacuum pump and floor washings (LANL 1992, 15-16-530). The 6-in. vitrified clay pipe daylights in a rocky ditch near the building. The ditch flows into a relatively flat, grassy field.

5.28.1.1.5 TA-16-370 Outfall

SWMU 16-028(b) is potentially contaminated soil from a permitted outfall at TA-16-370. TA-16-370 is a three-story building located on K-Site Road built in 1953 as a barium nitrate grinding facility (Fig. 5-28-8). Barium nitrate is a stable component of some types of explosives. In the late 1950s TA-16-370 was converted to a metal forming shop for steel and aluminum and is still active in that capacity (Tidwell 1989, 15-16-097). HE was never used in the building due to the explosive hazard that grinding and machining posed. TA-16-370 was also a safe



Fig. 5-28-8. Locations of SWMUs 16-028(b) and 16-031(a) near TA-16-370.
house for nearby workers to retreat to during shots at K-Site (Brooks 1956, 15-11-014).

The SWMU is an outfall to Water Canyon from the west side of the building. The pipe is 6-in. vitrified clay pipe that daylights approximately 50 ft south of the building in a steep, rocky area near an oak tree. The outfall receives effluent from 29 floor drains in the building as well as from an eyewash, a drinking fountain, and a sink. Many of the floor drains are in the process of being plugged. Average effluent volumes from this outfall have been over 4 000 gal./day (Paige 1995, 15-16-601). This active outfall carries NPDES permit 04A092 for release of noncontact cooling water. Because it was a machine shop and grinding facility, it is very likely that metal chips, oils, solvents (up to 1 gal./month of kerosene on metal chips and 15 gal./month of trichloroethene in drain effluent) (Panowski and Salgado 1971, 15-16-038), and barium compounds were washed down the drains.

5.28.1.1.6 Cooling Tower Outfalls and Associated Debris

SWMUs 16-031(a,b) and C-16-002 are areas of potential soil contamination associated with outfalls from cooling towers used at TA-16. These cooling towers contained closed-cycle water lines that provide coolant for equipment. COPCs for these towers are chemicals commonly used in the water to inhibit algae growth, such as chromates, although there is no documentation that such chemicals were used.

SWMU 16-031(a) is associated with decommissioned cooling tower TA-16-372, which served TA-16-370, a barium nitrate grinding facility and metal forming shop. The cooling tower is a dilapidated wooden structure located approximately 125 ft west of TA-16-370 on K-Site Road (Fig. 5-28-8). The cooling tower was built in 1953 when TA-16-370 was built. It is not known when it was decommissioned. Chilled water from the cooling tower cycled through pumps and machinery located on the ground floor of TA-16-370. The 6-in. vitrified clay pipe originates from a drain inside the southeast corner of TA-16-372 and runs approximately 150 ft south to the edge of the canyon where it daylights. The effluent flows down a steep, rocky slope into Water Canyon.

SWMU 16-031(b) and C 16-002 are associated with decommissioned cooling tower, TA-16-262, which served TA-16-260, an HE machining building (Fig. 5-28-9). SWMU 16-031(b) is potential soil contamination associated with the drain from the tower; C-16-002 is potential soil contamination associated with the footprint of the

Chapter 5



Fig. 5-28-9. Locations of PRSs 16-031(b) and C-16-002 associated with TA-16-262.

tower structure. Cooling tower TA-16-262 was located 50 ft north of walkway TA-16-269 and 12 ft west of TA-16-260. The purpose of this cooling tower is not known. According to the structure list, the tower was of wooden construction and mounted on a 3-ft-high concrete base. It was originally built in August 1946 at TA-16-42, relocated to TA-16-260 in 1951, and removed in 1957 according to the Weston Task Report (LANL 1989, 15-16-362). It is not known if the industrial waste system was removed along with the structure at that time. A former site worker noted that no hazardous materials were associated with this structure (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076; Paige 1995, 15-16-600). All that presently remains of the tower is a pile of rubble and two 2-in. cast iron pipes that discharge southwest into a drainage ditch.

5.28.1.1.7 TA-16-260 Outfalls

SWMUs 16-026(k2) and 16-029(j) are areas of potential surface contamination associated with outfalls from TA-16-260, a major HE machining building at TA-16 located in the northeast quadrant of S-Site (Fig. 5-28-10). Both outfalls originate from bay 25, located on the south end of the building. TA-16-260 was built in 1951 and bay 25 was added immediately after completion of the building. bay 25 is taller than the other bays in TA-16-260. The square bay is divided into two triangular-shaped compartments by a hallway. A machining room is located on the east side of the hallway and a control cubicle is located on the west side of the hallway (Engineering drawing ENG-C 3282). There is a door isolating the machining room from the hallway. There is no doorway separating the control cubicle from the hallway.

SWMU 16-026(k2) is potentially contaminated soil associated with an outfall from TA-16-260. The SWMU Report notes that this SWMU originates on the north and south ends of TA-16-260 (LANL 1990, 0145). However, there are only storm drains that lead to culverts located on the north and south ends of TA-16-260. The Weston photos show an outfall which they list as from an unknown source (LANL photograph RN88-111-031). In fact, the drain shown in the Weston photo originates from a floor drain located inside the south end of TA-16-260. This floor drain will be addressed as SWMU 16-026(k2).

The drain line, made of 4-in. vitrified clay pipe, daylights in a drainage ditch approximately 15 ft south of TA-16-260. The drainage ditch is connected by two culverts to the drainage ditches on the north side of the walkway, TA-16-271, and the drainage ditch on the east side of the road. These ditches drain rainwater away from TA-16-260. However, the drainage ditch that the pipe drains into is so heavily silted

ī





Fig. 5-28-10. Locations of SWMUs 16-026(k2) and 16-029(j) at TA-16-260.

that the corrugated metal culvert can barely be seen. This indicates that the soil layer containing potential historical contamination from this outfall may exist well below the exposed layer of soil.

The outfall is associated with a floor drain in TA-16-260, located in the hallway between the machining room in bay 25 and the control cubicle for bay 25. It is located directly below a water hose, which is used to wash down the bays. There are no other drains located near bays in TA-16-260. According to past site workers, the drain was used to receive hallway sweepings (Martin and Hickmott 1994, 15-16-549). However it is possible that HE from the machining area could enter this floor drain. This floor drain has not been plugged.

SWMU 16-029(j) is potential soil contamination from an inactive sump and drain line on the south side of TA-16-260. The concrete sump is 4 ft long x 4 ft wide x 4 ft deep in size and contained a 1.5 ft long x 1.5 ft wide x 1.5 ft deep filter basket for collecting HE. The drain from the sump is a 2-in. cast iron pipe, indicating that low volumes were expected from the sump. The drain line extends approximately 10 ft south and daylights into the grassy drainage ditch 15 ft south of TA-16-260, that also receives effluent from SWMU 16-026(k2). The sump received floor wash down water from the control cubicle of bay 25. This sump was added to TA-16-260 in 1961 and its use was discontinued by 1970. Historically, the control cubicle was used for patching HE components using Composition B (Wilder 1970, 15-16-282; Thrap 1970, 15-16-001). Although the floor drain has not been plugged, the control cubicle is no longer used for patching operations and discharges no waste.

5.28.1.2 Nature and Extent of Contamination

Table 5-28-2 lists COPCs for PRSs in this aggregate. No quantitative analytical data are available for any of the PRSs located in this aggregate except for SWMU 16-028(b). Two studies have been conducted at this outfall. The SWMU Report indicates that in 1971 barium contamination was found 150 ft south of TA-16-370 (LANL 1990, 0145; Turner and Schwartz 1971, 15-16-284). This was determined from a study of barium and HE in water and soil at various outfalls throughout S-Site in August 1971. The study determined TNT content, barium content, and HMX/RDX content in water. Water extractions of soil samples were analyzed to obtain a relative concentration of soil contaminants.

					HE		RAD	MET	ALS		
	POTE AND CHEMICA CO OU	TABLE 5-28-2 INTIAL RELEASE SITES ILS OF POTENTIAL CONCERN NTAINED IN OU 1082, TFALLS AGGREGATE	VE	ETONATED HE	JEGRADATION PRODUCTS	URN PRODUCTS	MUIN	ALS SUITE	IUM	ATILES	IVOLATILES
PRS	DESCRIPTION	PRIMARY ACTIVITY LEADING TO A POTENTIAL PROBLEM	ACTI	OND -	HE C	HEB	URA	MET	BAR	NoL	SEM
16-026(b2)	TA-16-202	Metal machining	N					X		Х	X
16-026(c2)	TA-16-462	Chemical storage	N					Х		X	X
16-026(i)	TA-16-224	Radiography of HE components	N	X	X			X	X	X	X
16-026(j)	TA-16-226	Radiography of HE components	N	X	X			X	Х	X	X
16-026(k2)	TA-16-260	HE machining	Y	X	Х			X	X	X	X
16-026(r)	TA-16-180	Fire station	Ν					X		X	X
16-026(u)	TA-16-195	Service station	N					<u>X</u>		X	X
16-028(b)	TA-16-370	Barium nitrate grinding	Y					X	X	X	X
16-028(c)	TA-16-220	Radiography of HE components	Y	<u>X</u>	X			X	X	X	X
16-028(d)	TA-16-202	Metal machining	Y					X		X	X
16-029(j)	TA-16-260	HE machining	N	<u>X</u>	X			X	X	X	X
16-030(a)	TA-16-344	Chemical storage	<u>N</u>					X	X	X	X
16-031(a)	TA-16-372	Cooling tower	N			 		X			
16-031(b)	TA-16-262	Cooling tower	N					X			
C-16-002	Debris from TA-16-262	Cooling tower	N					Х			

.

L

A soil sample was taken from a point 150 yards south of TA-16-370. This point is located in the open drain for the building, according to a field description (Turner and Schwartz 1971, 15-16-284). Presumably this is the same drainage channel that is covered in SWMU 16-028(b). Results show no HE compounds, which is expected because no HE is handled in the building. The barium content of the Soxhlet extract of the soil showed 19 ppm barium (Table 5-28-3). This value is higher than the 14 ppm barium result obtained from soil samples in a drainage channel for the burning grounds, 30 ft west of TA-16-389. It is also higher than two measurements of soil samples taken 1 200 ft northeast of TA-16-260 and 300 ft further downstream. Soils at TA-16-260 and the burning grounds are expected to have high barium content. This study indicates that when the drainage from TA-16-370 was sampled in 1971, it was contaminated with barium from barium nitrate grinding in the building.

TABLE 5-28-3

LOCATIONBARIUM
CONCENTRATION
(ppm)b150 ft south of TA-16-370, in open drain for building1930 ft west of TA-16-389, open drainage for burning
grounds141 200 ft northeast of TA-16-260, collected at surface9300 ft downstream from above sample, collected at surface3

ANALYSIS OF SOIL SAMPLES FOR BARIUM CONTENT^a

^a From Turner and Schwartz 1971, 15-16-284

^b Relative barium concentration in soils obtained by atomic absorption spectrometry of Soxhlet extraction of soil samples with water.

A 1994 study of the soil around TA-16-370 used laser induced breakdown spectroscopy (LIBS) and x-ray fluorescence (XRF) to determine the barium content. This study was conducted to compare the field results obtained by LIBS to lab-based XRF results and determine the precision of field-based LIBS measurements. Soil samples were collected between the outfall for SWMU 16-028(b) and 168 ft down the drainage channel. The farthest sample point is probably near the sample point collected by Turner and Schwartz. The XRF results obtained for the soil samples are shown in Table 5-28-4. These results show that the barium concentration in the drainage channel from TA-16-370 is well below the SAL of 5 600 ppm but in some places

TABLE 5-28-4

SOIL SAMPLE	DISTANCE FROM OUTFALL (FT)	BARIUM (ppm)
Background	-1	458
Sample 1	0	553
Sample 2	26	603
Sample 3	57	1 478
Sample 4	66	1 476
Sample 5	90	389
Sample 6	111	850
Sample 7	168	445

BARIUM CONCENTRATION IN SOIL SAMPLES MEASURED WITH XRF

above LANL background levels for barium in soil (Longmire et al. 1993, 0958).

5.28.2 Remediation Decision and Investigation Objectives

Generic decision criteria, decision logic, exposure pathways, and conceptual exposure models are located in Sections 4.3 and 5.0 of this document. Site-specific decision information is included in the following subsections.

5.28.2.1 Problem Statement

The COPCs for this aggregate are: 1) semivolatile and volatile organic compounds, metals, and oil from the chemical storage outfalls; 2) oil and metals from the oil overflow outfalls; 3) semivolatile organic compounds and metals used in the machine shop; 4) HE, HE degradation products, and barium from the radiography buildings; 5) volatile and semivolatile organic compounds, metals (barium), and oil from the machine shop and grinding facility; 6) chromates potentially used in the cooling towers; and, 7) HE and HE degradation products from outfalls associated with an HE machining building (Table 5-28-2).

The Phase I problem is to determine if contaminants are at levels of concern in any PRS in this aggregate. The structures include active and inactive drain lines and outfails at S-Site. There is potential for near-surface (upper 6 in. of soil) and deep-surface (upper 24 in. of soil) contamination at many PRSs in this aggregate. There

is potential for subsurface (below 24 in. of soil) contamination from volatile organics at a number of PRSs in this aggregate. The probability of contamination is moderate to low for most PRSs because the original source term is likely to be small.

5.28.2.2 Design Criteria

The design criteria for the screening assessment include the perceived severity and heterogeneity, of the primary COPC at each PRS. The severity of potential contamination was used to select the number of laboratory samples, and the heterogeneity of the constituents influenced the selection of field screening samples (see Section 5.0 for additional discussion of this approach). Heterogeneity is used here to describe variation in contaminant concentration. Heterogeneity of COPCs for each outfall was judged by considering the steepness of the slope where the outfall discharges and the volume of water that is released through the pipeline in a month. A small discharge was judged to be less than 100 gal./month, the average volume used for floor washing.

Table 5-28-5 shows the severity and heterogeneity ranks for these PRSs.

All of these PRSs were judged to either present a not very serious or negligible probability of contamination. The outfall for 29 floor drains from the barium nitrate grinding facility [SWMU 16-028(b)] was judged to present a not very serious probability of having contamination greater than SAL due to a combination of large amounts of barium originally released and subsequent weathering of this original source term after barium nitrate operations stopped in the late 1950s. The relatively high SAL (5 600 ppm) for barium also influenced the classification of this PRS as having a not very serious probability of exceeding its SAL. The 1994 XRF/LIBS study of barium in this outfall (see Subsection 5.28.1.2 and Table 5-28-4 above) supports this assessment. Potential contamination at this PRS was judged likely to be heterogeneous due to the steepness of the discharge point and the potential release of large volumes of water. Three buildings where HE was inspected by x-rays [SWMUs 16-026(i), 16-026(j), 16-028(c)] were also judged to present a not very serious probability that potential contamination exceeds SALs. The x-ray inspection operations created HE dust and chips that would have been washed through the drain line to the outfall. One of these outfalls, SWMU 16-028(c), has NPDES permit 04A070 that allows the release of up to 24 000 gal./ month, and thus potential contamination was judged to be heterogeneous. The other outfalls, SWMUs 16-026(i) and 16-026(j), receive small volumes of water and discharge onto



TABLE 5-28-5

GROUPING OF OUTFALL PRSs INTO SEVERITY AND HETEROGENEITY CATEGORIES

AMOUNT OF CONTAMINATION	EXPECT HETERO DOWNSTREAM SLOPE AT OU THR	ETEROGENEOUS CONTAMINATION REAM OF OUTFALL; VERY STEEP AT OUTFALL OR HIGH VOLUME THROUGH OUTFALL								
	PRS	Description	PRS	Description						
Very Serious										
Serious										
Not Very Serious	16-028(b)	Former barium nitrate grinding facility outfall	16-026(i) 16-026(j)	Radiography building outfalls						
	16-028(c)	Radiography building outfalls								
Negligible	16-031(a)	Cooling tower outfall	16-026(k2)	TA-16-260 floor drains						
	16-028(d)	Metal shop drain outfall	16-029(j)	TA-16-260 sump outfall						
			16-026(b2)	Oil overflow drains						
			16-026(r)							
			16-026(u)							
			16-031(b) and C-16-002	Cooling tower outfall						
			16-026(c2)	Chemical storage building outfall						
			16-030(a)	Chemical storage building outfall						

Chapter 5

Evaluation of Potential Release Site Aggregates

gradual, grass-covered slopes. Potential contamination was judged to be homogeneous at these SWMUs.

The remainder of the PRSs in the outfall aggregate were judged to present a negligible probability that potential contamination exceeds SALs. The primary reason is that the potential source material for any of these PRSs is likely to be small. Two of these PRSs were judged to have heterogeneous potential contamination. One cooling tower outfall [SWMU 16-031(a)] discharges onto a steep and rocky slope, which indicates that potential contamination may be heterogeneously distributed. The metalshop drain [SWMU 16-028(d)] has NPDES permit 04A083 that allows release of up to 5 gal./minute and receives intermittent volumes of rainwater, which classifies potential contamination as heterogeneous.

The remainder of the PRSs in the outfall aggregate represent a negligible probability that potential contamination exceeds SALs and any contamination is expected to be relatively homogeneous within the PRS. This classification is due to outfalls discharging onto gently sloping terrain where a small volume of water was released from the pipe. In most cases, the only water routinely released through the pipeline was from floor washings. These PRSs include: oil overflow drains [SWMUs 16-026(b2), 16-026(r), and 16-026(u)], the cooling tower outfall [SWMU 16-031(b)] and the associated potential surface contamination area (C-16-002), the sump and floor drains for TA-16-260 [SWMU 16-029(j)], a metal shop outfall [SWMU 16-026(c2) and 16-026(k2)], and the chemical storage building outfalls [SWMUs 16-026(c2) and 16-030(a)].

5.28.3 Sampling and Analysis Plan

SOPs that control field activities in this sampling plan are listed in Table 5-28-6. Appropriate health and safety precautions will be undertaken according to the ER Programs SOPs (LANL 1993, 0875) and the site-specific health and safety plan. Sampling numbers and required analyses are shown in Table 5-28-7. Field quality assurance samples will be collected according to the guidance provided in the latest revision of the IWP (LANL 1995, 1164). Any QA/QC duplicate samples planned to be collected during the course of the field investigations are included in Table 5-28-7.

Fixed-base laboratory analysis of samples will be at Level III for metals (SW-846 Method 6010), SVOCs (SW-846 Method 8270), and VOCs (SW-846 Method 8240), HE and its byproducts (SW-846 Method 8330). TNT and RDX are the principal HE of concern and the principal HE byproducts of concern are DNT, TNB, and DNB.

RFI Work Plan for OU 1082, Addendum 2 5 - 28 - 25

TABLE 5	5-28-6
---------	--------

LANL-ER-SOP	TITLE	NOTES							
01.02, R0	Sample Containers and Preservation	Applied to all laboratory samples							
01.03, R1	Handling, Packaging, and Shipping of Samples	Applied to all laboratory samples							
01.04, R2	Sample Control and Field Documentation	Applied to all laboratory samples							
03.01, R1	Land Surveying Procedures	Applied to all engineering surveys							
06.09, R0	Spade and Scoop Method for Collection of Soil Samples	Applied to all surface samples							
06.10, R0	Hand Auger and Thin-Wall Tube Sampler	Applied to all augered samples							
10.06,R0	High Explosives Spot Test	Applied to all field-screened samples.							
10.07,R0	Field Monitoring for Surface and Volume Radioactivity Levels	Applied to all field-screened samples							
12.01, R1	Field Logging, Handling, and Documentation of Borehole Materials	Applied to all cored samples							

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES FOR FIELD ACTIVIES

A later version of any SOP will be used if the cited version is superseded.

5.28.3.1 Sampling

All samples will be field screened for HE by spot test and radionuclides by gross betagamma. Although radionuclides are not COPCs at any of these PRSs, any sampling interval exhibiting a positive rad screening will be submitted for total uranium analysis in the laboratory. Each sample will be field screened at its midpoint on 12-in. intervals. The detection limits of the HE spot test are at a level such that a positive reading for TNT or RDX indicates a sample with contamination at a level above its SAL. All samples greater than a 6-in. depth will be field screened for volatile organic compounds with a PID. SOPs for these procedures are currently in place. All samples which test positive for VOCs with the PID, for HE with the spot test, or have above-background metal or radiation readings (twice background or more), or are positive for other field screening tests will be sent for laboratory analysis. If a core section field screens positive, that interval and a sample collected two feet below that interval will be sent for laboratory analysis. If multiple positive screenings are obtained on a core, the shallowest positive interval, the deepest positive interval, and the interval below the deepest interval will be submitted for laboratory analysis in order to estimate the extent of contamination. In cases where no samples yield

		 	AĒ	BOR	ATC	DRY	# _		FI		S		ENI	NG	# <u>A</u>	 	F	ELC		B				LAE	BÓR			AN D	VÁL Ē	YSI <u>F</u>	ES : <u>G</u>	# H	
TABLE 5-28-7 SUMMARY OF SITE SURVEYS, SAMPLING, AND ANALYSIS FOR				NEAR-SURFACE		UEEP-SUHFACE		SUBSURFACE		leta			or XRF	XRF	ARACTERIZATION		ETA	S	VICS			SCOPY	DSCOPY	СОРҮ		NIUM	WN		(SW 8270)	()		S (SW 8330)	
PRS	PRS TYPE	SAMPLED MEDIA		FIELD DUP		FIELD DUP		FIELD DUP	BTEX TEST KIT	GROSS GAMMA/B	ORGANIC VAPOR	HE SPOT TEST	CHROMIUM - LIBS	BARIUM - LIBS or	GEOLOGICAL CH	GROSS ALPHA	GROSS GAMMA/B	HIGH EXPLOSIVE	VOLATILE ORGAI	XRF	SOIL MOISTURE	ALPHA SPECTRO	GAMMA SPECTR(BETA SPECTROS	TOTAL URANIUM	ISOTOPIC PLUTO	ISOTOPIC URANI	VOCs (SW 8240)	SEMIVOLATILES	METALS (SW 6010	ASBESTOS	HIGH EXPLOSIVE	CYANIDE
16-026/b2	Outfall TA-16-202	Soil	 		<u> </u>		1	\square	1	1	1	1		F				+								<u> </u>		1	1	1	})
16-026(c2)	Outfall TA-16-462	Soil	t –		†		1			3	3	3						+	_									1	1	1			
16-026(i)	Outfall TA-16-224	Soil	1				1			2	1	2		2				+										2	2	2		2	
16-026(j)	Outfall TA-16-226	Soil	1	1	1		1			2	1	2		2				+									\Box	2	2	2	Γ	2	\Box
16-026(k2)	Outfall TA-16-260	Soil			3		1			3	3	3		3				+										4	4	4		4	
16-026(r)	Outfall TA-16-180	Soil					1		-	1	1	1						+										1	1	1			
6-026(u)	Outfall TA-16-195	Soil					1		1	1	1	1						+										1	1	1			
i6-028(b)	Outfall TA-16-370	Soil			2					5	5	5		5				+										2	2	2			L
16-028(c)	Outfall TA-16-220	Soil			2		-			3	3	3		3				+										3	3	3		3	
6-028(d)	Outfall TA-16-202	Soil		{	2				4	4	4	4						+										2	2	2			
6-029(j)**	Outfull TA-16-260	Soil																															
6-030(a)	Outfall TA-16-344	Soil			2	1				6	6	6		6				+									\square	2	2	2	L	 	L
16-031(a)	Cooling tower	Soil	1							5		5	5				L	+								I	\square			1			┢
16-031(b)	Cooling tower	Soil	1							2		2	2					+										\square		$\lfloor 1 \rfloor$	Ļ	\square	┡
C-16-002*'	Debris	Soil															L .	<u> </u>								J				l	<u> </u> _	<u> </u>	I
# = The acti minimum. A, B, C = n *any coAam * *any coAar	ual number of samples ot applicable; $E = full$ nination associated with nination associated with	will de suite; 16-02 h C-16	per F 29(j 3-00	nd o = _=) wil)2 w	n th 108 Il be vill b	ne re B2 s e dei be dei	uite teci etec	ts of ; H ted i cted	the H = n sa in s	e fie ful amp sarr	ld su 1 su pling nplir	ite. g 16 ng 1	enir }-02 6-0	19 a :6(k: :31(l	nd (2). b).	the -	dep	nth c	of the	9 CC	ores	. 1	nes	e ni	umb	bers	are	а					

.

:

RFI Work Plan for OU 1082, Addendum 2 5-28-27

.

.

July 1995

L__

.

Chapter 5

positive readings, a hierarchy for selecting laboratory samples is included with each sampling plan. In general, those samples nearest the outfall of an individual PRS and the deepest increment in cases of volatile and semivolatile organics as indicator COPCs, will be selected and the shallowest increment in cases of HE and metals as indicator COPCs will be selected.

The spatial boundaries of potential contamination for the outfall aggregate include the PRS boundaries for the drain lines and outfalls. It is expected that drain lines are excavated into the tuff, since the soil is shallow at S-Site, usually less than three feet deep. Thus, the depth boundary for the drain lines is from the surface to the soil-tuff interface. All near-surface samples will be collected to a 6-in. maximum depth. All deep-surface samples will collected to a 24-in. depth unless specified otherwise. Each subsurface core will be augered to a depth of three feet or the soil-tuff interface. Core samples will be field screened on a 12-in. interval. The field team leader has the option to focus screening and select laboratory samples at a given depth for deep surface cores taken in a PRS.

For each PRS, sampling points will be biased to areas believed most likely to contain the highest concentrations of COPCs based on field screening, orthocorrected aerial photographs, archival data, and the results of geomorphological surveys. Sample parameters, including complete lists of COPCs to be analyzed in the laboratory, are summarized in Table 5-28-7. Field screening locations are shown on individual figures referenced in the subsections below.

SWMU 16-028(c). Sampling at the outfall of inactive radiography building TA-16-220 is primarily concerned with barium and HE. This outfall has high flow, which may distribute potential contamination further downstream than the outfalls described below [SWMUs 16-026(i), 16-026(j)]. One subsurface core will be collected in the sediment trap at the outfall (Fig. 5-28-11). Two 0 to 24 in. samples will be collected at the culvert directly below the first sampling location and at the outlet of the culvert (50 ft downgradient of the outfall). In the absence of positive field screening points, one near-surface increment from each sampling location will be submitted for laboratory analysis.



Fig. 5-28-11. Sampling locations for SWMU 16-028(c), outfall at TA-16-220 in the radiography area.

SWMU 16-026(i). Sampling at the outfall of inactive radiography building TA-16-224 is primarily concerned with barium and HE. The outfall is characterized by low flow onto a shallow, grassy slope, and sampling is limited to one augered subsurface location adjacent to the end of the pipe and one 0 to 6 in. sample location approximately 5 ft downgradient (Fig. 5-28-12). In the absence of positive field screening points, one 0 to 6 in. sample from each sampling location will be submitted for laboratory analysis.

SWMU 16-026(j). Sampling at the outfall of inactive radiography building TA-16-226 is primarily concerned with barium and HE. It is assumed that the outfall will be located by magnetic surveying during field surveys. The outfall is characterized by low flow onto a shallow, grassy slope, and sampling is limited to one subsurface core adjacent to the end of the pipe and one 0 to 6 in. sample located approximately 5 ft downgradient (Fig. 5-28-13). In the absence of positive field screening points, one 0 to 6 in. sample from each sampling location will be submitted for laboratory analysis.

SWMU 16-028(b). Sampling at the outfall of former barium nitrate grinding facility TA-16-370 is primarily concerned with volatile and semivolatile organics, and metals, including barium. These organics may be present due to the metal operations that succeeded the grinding facility operations. The drainage downgradient of the outfall is well defined for a distance of 60 ft downstream, at which point it joins a drainage from a steam pit drain in TA-16-370 [SWMU 16-026(a)]. Four screening locations for 0 to 24 in. samples will be selected in the sediment traps in this drainage (Fig. 5-28-14). One screening location will be selected approximately 110 ft downgradient from the outfall, near the marshy area of the drainage. In the absence of positive field screening points, two laboratory samples will be selected from screening locations by selecting the core increments through the following hierarchy: 1st) increments with greater than background barium readings (2 x background) as measured by LIBS or XRF; 2nd) the shallowest soil increment from the sediment trap furthest from the outfall; and, 3rd) the deepest increment from the sediment trap furthest from the outfall. At least one laboratory sample will be selected at or below the confluence of the drainage channels, where the marshy area acts as a sediment trap.

SWMU 16-031(a). Sampling of the outfall for inactive cooling tower TA-16-372 is primarily concerned with potential chromium contamination. Five 0 to 6 in. samples





Fig. 5-28-12. Sampling locations for SWMU 16-026(i), outfall at TA-16-224 in the radiography area.

Chapter 5



Fig. 5-28-13. Sampling locations for SWMU 16-026(j), outfall at TA-16-226 in the radiography area.



Fig. 5-28-14. Sampling locations for SWMUs 16-028(b) and 16-031(a), outfalls near TA-16-370, the barium nitrate grinding facility.

will be selected in sediment traps between the outfall and the steep canyon wall, which is approximately 200 ft downgradient (Fig. 5-28-14). The closest sediment traps will be sampled, regardless of distance. The five samples will be field screened by field XRF or LIBS for chromium, and one will be submitted for laboratory analysis based on the following biasing scheme: 1 st) the highest above-background chromium reading (2 x background), 2nd) the shallowest core increment from the sampling location nearest the outfall.

SWMU 16-031(b) and C-16-002. Sampling the outfall will be representative of both the SWMU and AOC related to decommissioned cooling tower TA-16-262. Sampling is primarily concerned with potential chromate contamination in the drainage downgradient of the outfalls (Fig. 5-28-15). One 0 to 6 in. sample will be collected in the drainage ditch at the end of each outfall pipe for a total of two surface sampling locations. Samples will be field screened by XRF or LIBS and one sample will be submitted for laboratory analysis based on the following biasing scheme: 1st) the highest above-background chromium reading (2 x background), and 2nd) the sampling location nearest the downgradient outfall.

SWMUs 16-026(k2) and 16-029(j). The drainage for the outfall will be sampled to detect potential HE contamination from the sump and drain line associated with TA-16-260, a building where HE machining occurred. Three augered subsurface samples will be collected downgradient of the outfalls to the soil-tuff interface (Fig. 5-28-16). The first two locations will be at the points where the 2-in. and 4-in. drain lines enter the drainage. The other sample location will be in the sediment trap located in the drainage before the culvert crosses under the roadway. In the absence of positive field screening points, three randomly selected core intervals from all of the sampling locations will be submitted for laboratory analysis along with the deepest interval from the core taken before the culvert.

If contamination above SALs or background is found by field testing the outfall for the sump, then additional Phase I sampling beneath the sump will be initiated. The sampling will consist of:

 Investigating the interior of the sump for signs of cracks or leaks. If leak points are observed, site a core hole sample to pass near the leak points.









Fig. 5-28-16. Sampling locations for SWMUs 16-026(k2) and 16-029(j), outfalls at TA-16-260, an HE machining building.

- Accurately surveying the location of at least two core holes. The preliminary locations are indicated on Fig. 5-28-16. Core hole siting is designed to pass near the sump/drain line joint (a high probability location of leakage for many sumps).
- 3) Drilling the core holes and collecting soil samples.
- 4) Field screening the core at 12-in. intervals for VOCs, HE, and radionuclides.
- 5) Submitting all above-background samples for laboratory analysis.
- In the absence of positive field screening results, submitting the deepest sample from the downgradient core hole for laboratory analysis.

SWMUs 16-026(b2,r,u). Sampling these outfalls from oil overflow drains is primarily concerned with potential volatile and semivolatile contamination. One augered sample will be collected at the end of each outfall pipe to the soil-tuff interface (Figs. 5-28-17 and 5-28-18). Samples will be field screened by immunoassay test kit for BTEX. One laboratory sample will be selected from the core at each outfall. If there are no samples that screen positive, the deepest core increment from each outfall will be submitted for laboratory analysis. The oil separators located inside each building will be visually inspected for cracks and leaks. If cracks or leaks are observed, a core hole will be sited to pass near the leak point. If needed, hand-cored vertical samples will be collected inside the building. The core sample will be collected to a depth of five feet or to the soil-tuff interface. Samples will be field screened by immunoassay test kit for BTEX. If there are no samples that screen positive, the deepest core hole will be field screened by immunoassay test kit for BTEX. If there are no samples will be field screened by immunoassay test kit for BTEX. If there are no samples that screen positive, the deepest core increment from each core hole will be submitted for laboratory analysis.

SWMU 16-028(d). Sampling this machine shop (TA-16-202) drain outfall is primarily concerned with potential semivolatile contamination. Four locations for 0 to 24 in. samples will be selected in the two sediment traps downgradient of the outfall (Fig. 5-28-18). Samples will be field screened by an immunoassay test kit for BTEX. If no sample tests positive during field screening, one sample interval from one of the deepest core increments of each of the two sediment traps sampled will be submitted for laboratory analysis.



Fig. 5-28-17. Sampling location for SWMU 16-026(r), outfall at TA-16-180, a fire station.



Fig. 5-28-18. Sampling locations for SWMUs 16-026(u and b2) and 16-028(d), outfalls in the administration area.

SWMU 16-026(c2). Sampling this outfall from chemical storage building TA-16-462 will be primarily concerned with potential volatile and semivolatile contamination. One hand-augered sample will be collected from the outfall's sedimentation pit down to the soil-tuff interface. Two 0 to 24 in. samples will be collected at each outfall (Fig. 5-28-19). In the absence of positive field screening points, one increment will be submitted for laboratory analysis from the deepest core sample of a randomly selected core.

SWMU 16-030(a). Sampling this outfall from chemical storage building TA-16-344 will be primarily concerned with potential volatile, semivolatile, and metals contamination. A total of six 0 to 24 in. samples will be selected in the following manner. Two samples will be collected from the deepest points of the semicircular outfall overflow impoundment, located along the southwest wall of TA-16-344 (Fig. 5-28-20). Three samples will be collected 20 ft downgradient from the trough that exits the southern end of TA-16-344. At least two increments will be submitted for laboratory analysis, one from the center of the pit and one directly in front of the southern trough in the absence of positive field screening results.





Fig. 5-28-19. Sampling locations for SWMU 16-026(c2), outfall near chemical storage building TA-16-462.



Fig. 5-28-20. Sampling locations for SWMU 16-030(a) outfall at TA-16-344.

5.29 TA-16-478 Aggregate

5.29.1 Background

This aggregate consists of SWMUs 16-003(p) and 16-029(h), the sump and drain lines from TA-16-478 (formerly TA-13-4). These SWMUs are aggregated because they are anticipated to be more seriously contaminated than the other SWMUs in Addendum 2 and may be recommended for expedited cleanup (EC) after initial sampling occurs.

5.29.1.1 Description and History

TA-16-478 is on the eastern end of the current TA-16 area in an area formerly known as P-Site (TA-13). The buildings at P-Site were built in 1944 and are some of the older buildings at LANL. The general history of P-Site is in Subsection 5.13.1.1 (LANL 1993, 1094). P-Site was originally built to study implosion using x-rays and later used to study initiators. Because of its remote location, it was also used to machine toxic or extremely dangerous explosives. After a 1959 accident machining HE at TA-16-260, TA-16-478 was used for remote HE machining tests, specifically high-speed machining tests on experimental HE compounds for characterization purposes. High-speed machining tests were done approximately fifteen times a year during the 1970s and 1980s (Paige 1994, 15-16-566).

TA-16-478 is rarely used now and the sump and outfall are plugged and inactive. The building is scheduled to be decommissioned and has been deactivated by turning off water and power to the structure. The sump is drained by vacuum when fluid is present (the source of the fluid is rainwater, as the structure is inactive). The sump measures 15 ft long x 5 ft wide x 4 ft deep. The building is U-shaped and consists of a 15 ft x 17 ft x 10 ft machining room, a 12 ft long x 16 ft wide x 8 ft high utility room, and a 34 ft long x 13 ft wide x 6.5 ft high control room.

TA-16-478 is one of two battleship bunkers oriented at right angles to each other (Fig. 5-29-1). The other bunker, TA-16-477 (SWMU 16-036), is addressed in Subsection 5.13 of the RFI Work Plan for OU 1082 (LANL 1993, 1094). These two bunkers are surrounded by a driveway to the north, west, and east, and an earthen berm to the south. The bunkers are located near the eastern edge of the mesa on which TA-16 is situated. The drainage in this level grass and asphalt-covered area is generally east into Cañon de Valle.



Fig. 5-29-1. SWMUs 16-003(p) and 16-029(h) at TA-16-478.

The bunkers were built in 1944; however, two rooms were added to TA-16-478 in August 1949. A utility room was added north of the bunker and a control room and a high-speed machining room were connected to the utility room by an enclosed hallway. The machining room walls are 20-in.-thick and made of steel-reinforced concrete with wooden panels that open to the outside along one wall, probably for blowout protection. The machining room also has a 6-in.-wide drain trough on the floor that drains to the sump located on the south end of the room. The floor is spark-proof and has a metal grounding plate for mounting machining equipment.

Engineering drawings of the building differ in their descriptions of the sump's orientation with respect to TA-16-478. Two of the drawings (ENG-C 14849 and 14850) show the sump oriented along the length of the south wall with the drain from the sump draining to the southeast. Engineering drawing ENG-C 17572 shows the sump positioned perpendicular to the south wall of TA-16-478 with the drain directed south. A later Engineering drawing (ENG-C 26678) shows the sump in its actual, current position, perpendicular to the south wall.

Two drain lines associated with the sump may be present. One drain pipe, exiting the southeast corner of the sump, was plugged in July 1987 (LANL 1990, 0145). This drain line runs 80 ft east of the sump, where the 6-in. vitrified clay pipe daylights on the rocky, tree-covered canyon rim. A recent HE spot test at this outlet indicated the presence of less than 100 ppm of HE in the pipe. Visual inspection of the interior of the sump shows that this is the only drain line currently attached to the sump. The other drain is the alleged French drain that at least one site worker, who worked at S-Site until 1979, reports may have existed at one time, possibly as late as the 1960s (Martin and Hickmott 1994, 15-16-549). A French drain is a permeable drainage system constructed to allow effluent to seep into a porous layer of rock located below the pipe.

In addition to site worker opinions, there is conflicting archival information concerning the sump drain. Engineering drawing ENG-C 17572 shows the sump in its present orientation (perpendicular to the south wall of TA-16-478) but with a drain line flowing south to open drainage instead of draining east as the sump currently does. ENG-C 17572 describes this drain

line as an 8-in. cast iron soil pipe connecting to an 8-in. vitrified clay pipe. It is possible that this is the French drain. This archival information and previous site worker opinion are the basis for showing the drain to the south of TA-16-478 (Fig. 5-29-1). The French drain is believed to extend approximately 125 ft to the south of TA-16-478 and intersect an off-site drainage channel. Because a French drain is a semiporous drainage system, it could cause contamination to spread. Both drains are expected to be contaminated with HE as a result of past and present activities in this area and will need to be located and removed.

HE compounds were not the only materials machined in TA-16-478. Because the structure is so small and isolated, dangerous experimental compounds were often remotely studied there. Some of the compounds machined at this site included tuballoy/niobium laminates with HE (Drake 1966, 15-16-129). Tuballoy was the code name used at Los Alamos for nonenriched uranium. Because of their toxicity, radioactivity, and pyrophoric nature, these laminates were machined in TA-16-478 to protect TA-16-260, the main HE machining facility. As a result, both HE and uranium chips could be present in the sump and drain.

5.29.1.2 Conceptual Exposure Model

The conceptual exposure model for SWMUs 16-003(p) and 16-029(h) is presented in Sections 5.0 and 4.3 of this document. Site-specific information on potential release sources, chemicals of concern, migration pathways, and potential receptors is presented below.

5.29.1.2.1 Nature And Extent Of Contamination

A limited sampling program conducted from 1970 to 1986 indicates potential HE contamination at this outfall (Baytos 1986, 15-16-267; Baytos 1985, 15-16-268; Baytos 1974, 15-16-273; Baytos 1970, 15-16-276; and Baytos 1970, 15-16-278). Table 5-29-1 lists the results from the soil samples collected at this outfall. Surface samples (less than 4-in. depth) were collected near TA-16-478 and HE compounds were chemically extracted from the soil. RDX and HMX were present in the greatest concentrations. These samples were reported to have been collected from near a culvert, from the sump effluent outlet, from 3.3 ft below the berm, and from 9.8 ft

below the berm. The exact location of the outlet is not known. It is also not known if these various locations are identical to one another. There is a berm located south of TA-16-478 (Fig. 5-29-1). The alleged French drain has not been located but is believed to be south of TA-16-478 based on Engineering drawing ENG-C 17572, which would place it near this berm.

TABLE 5-29-1

HIGH EXPLOSIVES IN DRAINAGE DITCHES AT SUMP EFFLUENT OUTLET BAYTOS' STUDIES OF 1970 - 1986 AT TA-16-478 ^{a,b}

SAMPLE DATE	SAMPLE LOCATION	HMX/RDX wt %	TNT wt %	TOTAL HE wt %
4/29/70	Effluent outlet	3.8	0.02	3.8
11/18/70	Effluent outlet	0.2	0.0	0.2
11/14/74	Culvert	0.1	0.0	0.1
7/18/84	3 ft below berm	0.1	0.0	0.1
7/18/84	10 ft below berm	4.6	0.1	4.7
9/12/85	10 ft below berm	4.3	0.0	4.3

^a The sampling techniques and analytical methods are described in Baytos 1985, 15-16-268 and Baytos 1970, 15-16-278.

^b SALs in soil are: TNT = 40 ppm (0.004 wt %); HMX = 4 000 ppm (0.4 wt %); and, RDX = 64 ppm (0.0064 wt %).

The COPCs for this SWMU include HE (RDX, HMX, and TNT), semivolatile HE degradation products (DNT, TNB, DNB), VOCs, SVOCs, barium, uranium, and metals. Concentrations of RDX and HMX in the soil at this outfall ranged up to 4.6 wt % from 1970 to 1986. Concentrations of TNT never exceeded 0.1 wt % (Baytos 1986, 15-16-267; Baytos 1985, 15-16-268; Baytos 1974, 15-16-273; Baytos 1970, 15-16-276; and Baytos 1970, 15-16-278). Based on Baytos' data, the TA-16-478 outfall was the second most highly contaminated sump outfall at TA-16; the TA-16-260 outfall was the most highly contaminated.

5.29.1.2.2 Potential Pathways And Exposure Routes

SWMUs 16-003(p) and 16-029(h) consist of a sump and two possible drain line outfalls. Discharge from the outfalls could have transported potential contaminants down the drainage and accumulated in sedimentation areas. Contamination of surface soils could have occurred through overflow and spillage from the sump. Leaks from joints and cracks in the sump and drain lines and discharge from the French drain could have resulted in release of COPCs into subsurface soils. Potential subsurface contamination does not pose a human health risk until excavation or erosion has exposed subsurface soils to the surface.

Current human receptors are limited to on-site workers. Future receptors could include on-site workers, recreational users, and trespassers. Chapter 4 of Addendum 1 contains a detailed discussion of the migration pathways, conversion mechanisms, human receptors, and exposure routes for contaminants (LANL 1994, 1160).

5.29.2 Remediation Decisions and Investigation Objectives

5.29.2.1 Problem Statement

The drainage systems associated with TA-16-478 are believed to be contaminated with HE, HE residues, metals, barium, VOCs, and possibly depleted or natural uranium. At present, it is unclear how many drain lines constitute the drainage system for this SWMU, but anecdotal evidence suggests that there are two separate drain lines. One of these drain lines may be a French drain or a semiporous drainage system. The sump [SWMU 16-003(p)] associated with TA-16-478 may also have spread contamination into the surrounding soil.

5.29.2.2 Decision Process

The sampling plan for SWMUs 16-003(p) and 16-029(h) has several objectives. First, each drain line will be located and traced to its terminus. Then the drain line and terminus will be sampled. Second, sampling will be required to determine the potential extent of contamination from releases. Finally, the sump will be sampled around its perimeter to detect potential releases.

The sampling described above will determine if COPC concentrations are above SALs in subsurface soils. If COPC concentrations are below SALs and there are no multiple constituent concerns, then a NFA decision may be proposed. If COPC concentrations are greater than SALs and background levels, then a Phase II study may be initiated to determine the extent of contamination, or the site may be proposed for EC. Sampling information obtained during Phase I will be used to estimate extent of contamination, identify waste constituents, and approximate waste volumes to determine if an EC would be feasible and effective for this SWMU.

5.29.2.3 Inputs

Prior to sampling, the location of the drain lines and the presence or absence of pipe in the drain trench will be ascertained. The vitreous clay drain line which exits the sump flowing east has already been visually located. Geophysical surveys and sampling results associated with other SWMUs near TA-16-478 may provide information about the location of drain lines at this structure. See Subsection 5.13 of the 1993 RFI Work Plan for OU 1082 for descriptions of sampling plans near TA-16-478 (LANL 1993, 1094). This information will be incorporated into this sampling plan as it becomes available. Other techniques may be needed to determine the location of subsurface structures and drain lines. Results from a recent pilot study using GPR at TA-16 indicate that GPR can successfully locate vitreous clay drain lines (LANL 1995, 15-16-610). Trenching will indicate if the pipe in the drain line is present or absent, or if a drain line ever existed to the south of the sump.

The primary data need from this phase of the investigation is sampling information from the outfall area that will allow a comparison to background and SALs to determine if a contaminant release occurred.

5.29.2.4 Boundaries

The spatial boundaries of potential contamination for the outfall aggregate include the PRS boundaries for the sump, drain lines, and outfalls. It is expected that drain lines were excavated into the tuff because the soil is shallow at S-Site, usually less than three feet deep. Thus, the depth boundary for the drain lines is from the surface to a minimum of 2.5 ft into the tuff. The depth boundary for the sump is two feet below the bottom of the sump or approximately six feet below the surface given the four-foot depth of the sump. This would extend at least three feet into the tuff. The rationale for the depth boundary is based on the characteristics of tuff in the area of the drain line. If a French drain is present, then the surface to a minimum of five feet into the tuff will be used as the depth boundary. This deeper boundary is used for the French drain because it was designed to seep the constituents into gravel or other material below the drain line. The depth boundary for the outfall will be the top 24 in. of soil or to the soil-tuff interface.

Sampling points and sampling depth will be biased to areas believed to most likely contain the highest constituent concentrations based on areas of visible HE contamination, field screening, orthocorrected aerial photographs, archival data, and results of geomorphological surveys. The field team leader has the option to extend the depth of core samples taken in this PRS based on visual inspection, laboratory analytical results, field screening results, and other field information.

5.29.2.5 Decision Logic

If the drain locations have not been determined by visual inspection, prior sampling, or geophysical surveys, shallow surface scraping will be used to determine the presence of drain line ditches that have been excavated into the tuff. If scraping does not reveal the location of the drain lines, trenching near the sump and extending south should reveal the presence of any drain system originating with the sump.

The presence or absence of a drain system to the south of the sump will determine which of two possible sampling scenarios are carried out. If no drain system is located south of TA-16-478, the area directly south of the sump will not be sampled. However, samples will be collected below the berm at TA-16-478, based on the high HE levels which were allegedly measured there in 1984 and 1985 (Baytos 1986, 15-16-267; Baytos 1985, 15-16-268). The berm presently located south of TA-16-478 is assumed to be the berm referred to in this archival information.

Assuming that a drain pipe or rock-filled drainage ditch is located south of TA-16-478, samples will be collected along the drain line. Sampling will be biased toward the site of open joints in the pipe, if they are present and located. Samples will also be collected at the terminus of the drain line. HE spot test results taken in the field will be used to guide the depth of sampling. Samples will be collected downgradient from the end of the outfall to estimate the extent of contamination. Samples will also be collected below the berm, due to archival information indicating contamination there.
5.29.2.6 Design Criteria

If prior sampling information in this area is available before this sampling plan is implemented, the design of this sampling plan may change to reflect additional information. Sample locations from earlier Phase I studies in this area (see Subsection 5.13 of this document) are marked on the sampling figures. The sampling plan will be coordinated with decommissioning activities at TA-16-478.

The proposed sampling plan constitutes a minimum number of sampling points required to characterize this PRS, based on archival information. The two possible sampling scenarios incorporate assumptions about the location of the drain line south of TA-16-478, near the berm. The historical information available indicates that this PRS may be contaminated. Because the suspected contamination originates from an outfall, the contamination is expected to be homogeneous, decreasing gradually with distance from the source. The minimum sampling plan proposed incorporates this assumption of severity and homogeneity.

5.29.3 Sampling and Analysis Plan

SOPs that control field activities in this sampling plan are listed in Table 5-29-2. Appropriate health and safety precautions will be undertaken according to the ER Project SOPs (LANL 1993, 0875) and the site-specific health and safety plan. Proposed sampling numbers and required analyses are shown in Table 5-29-3. Field quality assurance samples will be collected according to the guidance provided in the latest revision of the IWP or other appropriate documentation (LANL 1995, 1164). Any QA/QC duplicate samples planned to be collected during the course of the field investigations are included in Table 5-29-3.

Fixed-base laboratory analysis of samples will be at Level III for radionuclides (LANL or DOE method), metals (SW-846 Method, 6010), VOCs (SW-846 Method 8240), SVOCs (SW-846 Method 8270), and HE and its byproducts (SW-846 Method 8330). The principal radionuclide of concern is uranium. TNT and RDX are the two most frequently used HE and the principal HE byproducts of concern are DNT, TNB, and DNB.

TABLE 5-29-2

LANL-ER-SOP	TITLE	NOTES
01.02, R0	Sample Containers and Preservation	Applied to all laboratory samples
01.04, R2	Sample Control and Field Documentation	Applied to all laboratory samples
03.01, R1	Land Surveying Procedures	Applied to all engineering surveys
03.10, R0	Trenching and Logging	Applies to the trenching survey
04.01, R0	Drilling Methods and Drill Site Management	Applied to all subsurface samples
06.09, R0	Spade and Scoop Method for Collection of Soil Samples	Used for surface samples at the outfall or other samples collected of unconsolidated soil or tuff
06.10, R0	Hand Auger and Thin-Wall Tube Sampler	Applied to all hand augered samples
10.06, R0	High Explosives Spot Test	Applied to all field- screened samples
10.07, R0	Field Monitoring for Surface and Volume Radioactivity Levels	Applied to all field- screened samples

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES FOR FIELD ACTIVITIES

5.29.3.1 Surface Scraping and Trenching Surveys

Geophysical studies of the area will be conducted at least two years prior to the implementation of this work plan, probably in fiscal year 1995. See Subsection 5.13 of the 1993 RFI Work Plan for OU 1082 for a detailed description of the survey (LANL 1993, 1094). If geophysical studies do not locate the subsurface structures at P-Site, other techniques may be needed. Given that the drain lines for this SWMU are expected to be buried into the tuff, surface scraping and trenching will be used to locate these underground structures. Shallow surface scraping will be used initially because it is a less intrusive technique. Differences in the tuff due to the presence of a drain line should be visible once the top layer of soil is scraped away.

If surface scraping does not reveal the drain line locations, trenches will be used. A likely trench pattern is shown in Fig. 5-29-2. The first trench will be located near the sump to determine the direction of the drain lines. Two or more additional trenches will be located along the drain line to completely map the location of the drain. All drain lines will be completely located to their termini.

July 1995

			LABO	RA	TORY	#			FIEL	DS	CRE	ENI	NG I	ŧ		•	FIE	LD		_		 	LAE	BOR	AT	DRY		IAL	YSE	<u>.</u> S #	έ γ	
											l (ĺ		<u>A</u>					В				C	ļ			D	E	F	G	<u>H</u>	
TABLE 5-29-3 SUMMARY OF SITE SURVEYS, SAMPLING, AND ANALYSIS FOR			STRUCTURE		SURFACE		SUBSURFACE		ETA			RFACE	XRF	ARACTERIZATION		ETA	S	VICS			SCOPY	DSCOPY	сору		WIN	MC		(SW 8270)	()	-	S (SW 8330)	
TA-16-478	AGGREGATE	MPLED MEDIA			LD DUP		LD DUP	ROSS ALPHA	ROSS GAMMAB	RGANIC VAPOR	SPOT TEST	EOPHYSICS SUI	VRIUM - LIBS OR	EOLOGICAL CH	ROSS ALPHA	ROSS GAMMA/B	GH EXPLOSIVE	DLATILE ORGAN	Ť	DIL MOISTURE	LPHA SPECTRO	AMMA SPECTRO	ETA SPECTROS	DTAL URANIUM	OTOPIC PLUTO	OTOPIC URANI	DCs (SW 8240)	EMIVOLATILES	ETALS (SW 6010	SBESTOS	IGH EXPLOSIVE	YANDE
PRS	PRS TYPE	SA					문	6	3	ō	Ξ	ত	à	ច	5	ច	I	ž	X	Š	A	σ	Ē	Ĕ	<u></u>	ŝ	Σ	S	Σ	<u>×</u>	T	<u>ن</u>
16-003(p)	Sump	Soil	\Box			2	1		3		3		3				*							2			2	2	2		2	—
16-029(h)	East drain	Soil				3			8		8		8				*							3			3	3	3	┝━━╋	3	┝━━
16-029(h)	Scenario one	Soil				4	1		10		10	1	[10	Ĺ	<u> </u>	L	Ľ.							4			4	4	4	-	4	
16-029(h)	Scenario two	Soil		+		1			5		5		5														1	1	1	 		
# = The acl	l tual number of san	nples v	will de	epe	nd on	the	res	ults	of th	ie fii	eld s	cree	r ening	and	d th	e de	, epth	of	he	core	95. 95.	The	se	nun	hbei	rs a	re a		•		! .	

A, B, C, D = not applicable; E = full suite; F = 1082 suite; H = full suite. * All samples with positive HE spot test results will be analyzed in the field for HE content in order to permit transportation of samples.





Fig. 5-29-2. Likely trench pattern for SWMU 16-029(h).

The trench located near the sump may be used to collect samples to estimate the extent of contamination due to leakage from the sump.

5.29.3.2 Sampling

Sampling of the drainage channels from P-Site will be conducted as described in Subsection 5.13 of the RFI work plan (LANL 1993, 1094). This sampling begins approximately 175 ft downgradient from the berm near TA-16-478. Therefore, this sampling would not be expected to detect contamination specifically from the sump or French drain at P-Site. However, information from this sampling will be incorporated into this sampling plan as relevant results become available.

Sampling will be done at the sump for TA-16-478, along the sump drain lines, directly at the outfalls, and downgradient from the outfalls. All samples will be field screened for HE by spot test and radionuclides by gross beta-gamma. LIBS or XRF will be used to field screen for barium. Each sample will be field screened at its midpoint on 12-in. intervals. The detection limits of the HE spot test are at a level such that a positive reading for TNT or RDX indicates a sample with contamination at a level above its SAL. All samples greater than a 6-in. depth will be field screened for volatile organic compounds with a PID. SOPs for these procedures have been prepared and are noted in Table 5-29-2. All samples that yield positive readings, defined as a positive HE or PID reading or a metals or radiation reading of twice background or more, will be sent for laboratory analysis. If a core section field screens positive, that interval and a sample collected two feet below that interval will be sent for laboratory analysis in order to estimate the vertical extent of contamination. If multiple positive screenings are obtained on a core, the shallowest positive interval, the deepest positive interval, and the interval below the deepest interval will be submitted for laboratory analysis.

Each subsurface core will be augered to a depth of 2.5 ft beneath the soil-tuff interface. The field team leader has the option to focus screening and laboratory sample selection at a given depth for deep surface cores taken in a PRS. For each PRS, sampling points will be biased to areas believed most likely to contain the highest concentrations of COPCs based on field screening, orthocorrected aerial photographs, archival data, and

the results of geomorphological surveys. Sample parameters, including complete lists of constituents to be analyzed in the laboratory, are summarized in Table 5-29-3. A number of different sampling techniques may be used at this site including remote drilling, hand augering, and hand digging.

Two possible sampling scenarios could occur. A flow chart of the samples to be collected for the two scenarios is shown in Fig. 5-29-3. In the first scenario, it is assumed that the French drain to the south of the structure is located. In the second scenario, it is assumed that the French drain is not located. These two scenarios lead to different sampling plans which are described below.

In both scenarios, the soil near the building sump will be sampled. Any liquid in the sump (rainwater) will be removed to allow visual inspection of the sump for cracks or leaks. The removed liquid will not be sampled. In the absence of cracks that would direct the sampling, subsurface core samples will be collected at the most likely source of leakage from the sump, under the joints connecting the drain lines and the sump, and also in the northwest corner of the sump opposite the joints. A minimum of two laboratory samples will be selected from the cores at these three locations based on field screening and visual inspection. In the absence of positive field screening results, the interval containing the tuff interface from the two samples near the sump joints will be sent for laboratory analysis.

In both scenarios the east drain line, which has been located, will be sampled by coring every 20 to 25 ft along the drain line. This would lead to a minimum of four sampling locations for the east drain. One sample location will be situated where the drain line daylights. A core sample will also be collected every 10 ft for 40 ft downgradient from the east drain, for a total of four downgradient sample locations from the east drain. Each subsurface sample will be augered at least 2.5 ft below the soil-tuff interface or as deep as field screening dictates. The selection of core segments to be submitted for laboratory analysis will be guided by field screening and visual inspection. If no samples test positive with field screening, one laboratory sample will be selected at the mouth of the outfall at the surface, one will be randomly selected from the cores along the drain line at an interval beneath the drain line, and one will be randomly selected from the surface samples.



Fig. 5-29-3. TA-16-478 outfall aggregate sampling decision flow.

<u>Scenario one:</u> If the French drain to the south of the structure is located, it will be sampled in a similar manner to the existing drain, every 20 to 25 ft along the drain line (Fig. 5-29-4). This would lead to a minimum of five cores along the south drain. One sample core will be located where the drain line daylights. Samples will also be collected downgradient from the outfall. Four samples total will be collected at a point every five feet downgradient from the south drain outfall. The selection of core segments to be submitted for laboratory analysis will be guided by field screening and visual inspection. If no samples test positive with field screening, one laboratory sample will be randomly selected along the drain line at a depth beneath the drain line, one laboratory sample will be selected at the mouth of the outfall at the surface, one laboratory sample will be selected 10 ft downgradient from the mouth of the south outfall at the surface, and one laboratory sample will be selected the furthest downgradient from the outfall at the surface.

<u>Scenario two:</u> If the alleged French drain is not located, no samples will be collected directly south of TA-16-478 (Fig. 5-29-5). However, five core samples will be collected in the area below the berm, where archival information indicates possible contamination. In the early 1980s, soil samples from 10 ft below the berm at TA-16-478 contained more than 4 wt % of HE in soil (Baytos 1986, 15-16-267; Baytos 1985, 15-16-268). These five cores will be collected at a point every five feet downgradient from the berm. The samples should detect HE contamination in this area if it is still present. The selection of core segments to be submitted for laboratory analysis will be guided by field screening and visual inspection. If no samples test positive with field screening, one laboratory surface sample will be selected 10 ft downgradient from the berm.

A total of three toxicity characteristic leaching procedure (TCLP) samples will be collected near the sump's pipe joints and at the outfalls. These samples are in addition to the sampling plan described above. TCLP samples will be guided by field screening, particularly for barium, with default sample selection of one sample from the sump and one from each outfall. TCLP methods will be used to identify and quantify RCRA constituents in order to evaluate whether this SWMU is a possible candidate for EC after Phase I sampling.



Fig. 5-29-4. Sampling plan scenario one.

1



Fig. 5-29-5. Sampling plan scenario two.

REFERENCES

Baytos, J. F., June 2, 1970. "Analysis for Residual Explosives in Drainage Ditches at the Sump Effluent Outlets at Group GMX-3 Operating Building," Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory Memorandum to E. Wilder (GMX-3) from J. F. Baytos (GMX-3), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (See also LA Notebook No. 13513, pp. 54-55) (Baytos 1970, 15-16-278)

Baytos, J. F., December 21, 1970. "Analysis for Residual Explosives in Drainage Ditches at Sump Effluent Outlets at Group GMX-3 Operating Building," Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory Memorandum to H. E. Ballance (GMX-3) from J. F. Baytos (GMX-3), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Baytos 1970, 15-16-276)

Baytos, J. F., December 27, 1974. "Analysis for Residual Explosives in Drainage Ditch Soil at Sump Effluent Outlets," Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory Memorandum to H. E. Ballance (GMX-3) from J. F. Baytos (GMX-3), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Baytos 1974, 15-16-273)

Baytos, J. F., August 7, 1985. "Analyses of Soil Samples for Residual Explosives from Drainage Ditches at Sump Effluent Outlets," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum to A. P. Torres (WX-3) from J. F. Baytos (M-1), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Baytos 1985, 15-16-268)

Baytos, J. F., July 21, 1986. "Analyses of Soil Samples for Residual Explosives from Drainage Ditches at Sump Effluent Outlets," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum to A. P. Torres (WX-3) from J. F. Baytos (M-1), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Baytos 1986, 15-16-267)

Blackwell, C. D., November 17, 1983. "Structures Removed From TA-16," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum HSE 8-83-794 to A. J. Ahlquist.(HSE-8) from C. D. Blackwell (HSE-1), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076)

Bradbury, N. E., September 11, 1947. "General Background Data Concerning the Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory," LASL report to the Manager (US Atomic Energy Commission) from the Director of LASL, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Bradbury 1947, 15-16-320) Brooks, M. L., July 17, 1956. "New Group GMX-3 Facilities," Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory Memorandum to Distribution from M. L. Brooks, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Brooks 1956, 15-11-014)

Buckland, C., July 10, 1967. "Radioactive Contamination Survey: S-Site Structures, TA-16," Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory Memorandum, to S.E. Russo (ENG-3) from Carl Buckland (H-1), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Buckland 1967, 15-16-131)

Campbell, E., May 25, 1959. "Irritant in SD-1 Shop, GMX-3, Bldg. 202," Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory Memorandum H-5 Lab to File from E. Campbell, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Campbell 1959, 15-16-254)

Drake, R. W., June 30, 1966. "Machining Laminates of Tuballoy/Niobium with HE," Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory Memorandum to M. L. Brooks from R. W. Drake (GMX), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Drake 1966, 15-16-129)

Environmental Protection Group, December 1990. "Environmental Surveillance at Los Alamos During 1989," Los Alamos National Laboratory Report LA-12000-ENV, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Environmental Protection Group 1990, 0497)

EPA (Environmental Protection Agency), July 14, 1994. "Revised Interim Soil Lead Guidance for CERCLA Sites and RCRA Corrective Action Facilities," OSWER Directive 9355.4-12, Office of Emergency and Remedial Response, Washington, D.C. (EPA 1994, 15-16-587)

LANL (Los Alamos National Laboratory), August 1989. "Release Site Database; Task 13; TA-11, 13, 16, and 25" (Preliminary Draft, Volumes I and II), Prepared by Roy F. Weston, Inc., for the Department of Energy, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (LANL 1989, 15-16-362)

LANL (Los Alamos National Laboratory), November 1990. "Solid Waste Management Units Report," Volumes I through IV, Los Alamos National Laboratory Report No. LA-UR-90-3400, prepared by International Technology Corporation under Contract 9-XS8-0062R-1, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (LANL 1990, 0145) LANL (Los Alamos National Laboratory), April 1992. "Wastewater Stream Characterization for TA-16-220, 221, 222, 223, 224, 225, 226, 230, 231, 232, 233, 234, 235, 236, 237, 238 and 239 at Los Alamos National Laboratory an Environmental Study, Characterization Report #7," Prepared for the Los Alamos National Laboratory under Subcontract 9-XG8-2874P-1 by Santa Fe Engineering, Ltd., Santa Fe, New Mexico and Engineering and Information Resources (WX-12), Los Alamos National Laboratory, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (LANL 1992, 15-16-530)

LANL (Los Alamos National Laboratory), May 1992. "Wastewater Stream Characterization for TA-16-192, 193, 195, 200, 202, 203, 204, 207, 209, 218, 242, 244, 1411, 1416 & 1421 at Los Alamos National Laboratory an Environmental Study, Characterization Report #15," Prepared for the Los Alamos National Laboratory under Subcontract 9-XG8-2874P-1 by Santa Fe Engineering, Ltd., Santa Fe, New Mexico and Engineering and Information Resources (WX-12), Los Alamos National Laboratory, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (LANL 1992, 15-16-533)

LANL (Los Alamos National Laboratory), May 1992. "Wastewater Stream Characterization for TA-16-460, 461, 462 and 463 at Los Alamos National Laboratory an Environmental Study, Characterization Report #4," Prepared for the Los Alamos National Laboratory under Subcontract 9-XG8-2874P-1 by Santa Fe Engineering, Ltd., Santa Fe, New Mexico and Engineering and Information Resources (WX-12), Los Alamos National Laboratory, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (LANL 1992, 15-16-527)

LANL (Los Alamos National Laboratory), November 1992. "Installation Work Plan for Environmental Restoration," Revision 2, Los Alamos National Laboratory Report LA-UR-92-3795, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (LANL 1992, 0768)

LANL (Los Alamos National Laboratory), January 1993. "Los Alamos National Laboratory Environmental Restoration Program Standard Operating Procedures," Los Alamos National Laboratory Report, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (LANL 1993, 0875) LANL (Los Alamos National Laboratory), July 1993. "RFI Work Plan for Operable Unit 1082," Los Alamos National Laboratory Report LA-UR-93-1196, Los Alamos, New Mexico. **(LANL 1993, 1094)**

LANL (Los Alamos National Laboratory), November 1993. "Installation Work Plan for Environmental Restoration," Revision 3, Los Alamos National Laboratory Report LA-UR-93-3987, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (LANL 1993, 1017)

LANL (Los Alamos National Laboratory), May 1994. "RFI Work Plan for Operable Unit 1082," Adddendum 1, Los Alamos National Laboratory Report LA-UR-94-1580, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (LANL 1994, 1160)

LANL (Los Alamos National Laboratory), February 1995. "Installation Work Plan for Environmental Restoration," Revision 4, Los Alamos National Laboratory Report LA-UR-95-740, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (LANL 1995, 1164)

LANL (Los Alamos National Laboratory), May 1995. "Geophysical Pilot Study of TA-33 Septic Drainfield and Ground Penetrating Radar Investigation of TA-16 and TA-46 Septic Systems, Los Alamos National Laboratory," draft, prepared by ICF Kaiser Engineers, Inc., under contract number Y53480002-8M for Los Alamos National Laboratory, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (LANL 1995, 15-16-610)

LASL (Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory), no date. "Structure Areas Common Usage, TA-13-1 to TA-13-13," Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (LASL no date, 15-13-016)

Layton, D., B. Mallon, W. Mitchell, L. Hall, R. Fish, L. Perry, G. Snyder, K. Bogen, W. Mallock, C. Ham, and P. Dowd, 1987. *Conventional Weapons Demilitarization: A Health and Environmental Effects Data-Base Assessment, Explosives and Their Co-Contaminants, Final Report, Phase II.* US Army Medical Research and Development Command, Fort Detrick, Frederick, MD, P.O. 83PP3813, AD-UCRL-21109. (Layton et al. 1987, 15-16-447) Longmire, P., C. Duffy, and S. Reneau, 1993. "Preliminary Background Elemental Concentrations In Bandelier Tuff and Selected Soil Series, 1993," unpublished report, Los Alamos National Laboratory, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Longmire et al. 1993, 0958)

Martin, B. and D. Hickmott, April 2, 1993. "Early S-Site History: C. Courtright Interview," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum CLS-ER/ BM-93:021 to File from B. Martin (CLS-DO) and D. Hickmott (EES-1), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Martin and Hickmott 1993, 15-16-497)

Martin, W.B. and D.D. Hickmott, September 27, 1994. "Early S-Site History, Lee Hilton Interview," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum CST-ER/BM-94-08 to File from Brad Martin (CST-6) and Don Hickmott (EES-1), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Martin and Hickmott 1994, 15-16-549)

Miller, E., June 3, 1994. "Uses Given to Building at S-Site Held by Zia during 40s and 50s," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum CST-ER/BM-94-13 to File from E. Miller (CST-6), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Miller 1994, 15-16-552)

Morgan, G. L., May 2, 1994. "Investigation of Material Used in Underground Chambers at TA-33," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum P-15-94-U-141 to Dorothy Hoard (CST-1) from George L. Morgan (P-15), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Morgan 1994, 15-16-603)

No author no year, 15-16-109

Paige, K. S., April 13, 1994. "Phone Conversations with Leroy Roybal, 2/8/ 94 and 4/12/94, Regarding the Radiography Area at S-Site," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum KSP-94-003 to File from K. S. Paige (CST-4), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Paige 1994, 15-16-520)

Paige, K. S., April 18, 1994. "Phone Conversation with Lester Norman, 4/6/94," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum KSP-94-006 to File from K. S. Paige (CST-4), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Paige 1994, 15-16-553)

Paige, K. S., July 21, 1994. "Conversation with Richard Browning, July 20, 1994," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum KSP-94-014 to File from K. S. Paige (CST-4), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Paige 1994, 15-16-566)

Paige, K. S., February 24, 1995. "Telephone Conversation with Charles Blackwell," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum CST/ER KSP 95-005 to File from Karen Schultz Paige (CST-7), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Paige 1995, 15-16-600)

Paige, K. S., March 3, 1995. "Telephone Conversation with Mike Saladen," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum CST/ER KSP 95-007 to File from Karen Schultz Paige (CST-7), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Paige 1995, 15-16-601)

Panowski, J. B., and P. G. Salgado, July 28, 1971. "Group GMX-3 Effluents," Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory Memorandum to H. F. Schulte (H-8) from J. B. Panowski and P. G. Salgado (GMX-3), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Panowski and Salgado 1971, 15-16-038)

Thrap, R. L., February 11, 1970. "S-Site Demolition and Restoration Projects to Remove Potential Explosives Hazards," Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory Memorandum to C. A. Reynolds from R. L. Thrap (GMX-3), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Thrap 1970, 15-16-001)

Tidwell, V., June 9, 1989. Telephone Conversation to Lynn Parkinson (WX-3), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Tidwell 1989, 15-16-097)

Turner, A. and M. Schwartz, August 20, 1971. "Environmental Studies at S-Site; Water and Soil Analyses for RDX-HMX, Barium, TNT, and Boron," Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory Group WX-12 unpublished report, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Turner and Schwartz 1971, 15-16-284)

Wilder, E., June 5, 1970. "HE Sump Drainage Inspection, TA-11 and -16," Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory Memorandum from E. Wilder (GMX-3) to M. L. Brooks (GMX-3), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Wilder 1970, 15-16-282)



NOTE: ALL POTENTIAL RELEASE SITES (PRSs) LISTED IN TABLE 6-11 AND SUBSEQUENTLY DESCRIBED BELOW ARE PART OF THE JULY 1995 ADDENDUM 2 TO THIS WORK PLAN.

CLEANUP DOCUMENTATION FOR PRSs IN SUBSECTIONS 6.6.3, 6.7.3. AND 6.7.4 CAN BE FOUND IN ATTACHMENT A TO CHAPTER 6. ATTACHMENT A IS PUBLICLY AVAILABLE AT THE LOS ALAMOS NATIONAL LABORATORY (LANL) READING ROOM AND RECORDS PROCESSING FACILITY.

TABLE 6-11

PRSs RECOMMENDED FOR NO CURRENT RCRA FACILITY INVESTIGATION IN ADDENDUM 2

PRS AGGREGATE(S), DESCRIPTION(S)	EVALUATION STEP CRITERION ⁸	SUBSECTION
16-028(e), outfall; and 16-029(i), active sump	First	6.6.1.1
16-016(d,e,g), surface disposal	First	6.6.1.2
16-026(a,i,t,z) and 16-030(c), outfalls	First	6.6.1.3
16-026(a2), outfall	First	6.6.1.4
16-026(y), outfali	First	6.6.1.5
16-031(h), outfall	First	6.6.1.6
16-031(e), active outfall cooling tower; and 16-031(f), inactive outfall cooling tower	First	6.6.1.7
16-026(d2,e2,f2,g2,h,k,x) and 16-030(b,e,f), outfalls	Second	6.6.2.1
16-026(f), outfall	Second	6.6.2.2
16-026(g), outfall	Second	6.6.2.3
16-034(i,k), soil contamination at decommissioned buildings	Second	6.6.2.4
16-025(e2,f2,h2), soil contamination at decommissioned storage buildings	Fourth	6.6.3.1
C-16-072, fuel tank	First	6.7.1.1
16-003(q), active HE sump and C-16-071, hydraulic oil spill	First	6.7.1.2
C-16-049, decommissioned office and shop	First	6.7.1.3
C-16-062 and C-16-063, decommissioned electrical manholes	First	6.7.1.4
C-16-018, decommissioned water storage tank	First	6.7.1.5
C-16-020, decommissioned office building	First	6.7.1.6
C-16-034 and C-16-035, decommissioned water tanks	First	6.7.1.7
C-16-061, decommissioned latrine	First	6.7.1.8
C-16-041, decommissioned hose house	First	6.7.1.9
C-16-044 and C-16-046, decommissioned steam manholes	First	6.7.1.10



TABLE 6-11 (continued)

PRSs RECOMMENDED FOR NO CURRENT RCRA FACILITY INVESTIGATION IN ADDENDUM 2

PRS AGGREGATE(S), DESCRIPTION(S)	EVALUATION STEP CRITERION	SUBSECTION
C-16-050, decommissioned storage building	First	6.7.1.11
16-037, industrial waste tank	First	6.7.1.12
C-16-001, crossover platform	First	6.7.1.13
16-033(c,d), decommissioned aboveground fuel tanks	Second	6.7.2.1
C-16-008, implement shed; C-16-009, mess hall; C-16-010, storage building; C-16-012, decommissioned blacksmith shop; C-16-013, decommissioned lumber storage area; C-16-014, decommissioned equipment room; C-16-015, decommissioned hose house; C-16-016, decommissioned fire house; C-16-036, decommissioned latrine	Second	6.7.2.2
C-16-047, C-16-051, and C-16-058, decommissioned oil switches	Second	6.7.2.3
16-027(d), transformer	Second	6.7.2.4
C-16-019, decommissioned pump house	Second	6.7.2.5
C-16-070, underground fuel tank	Second	6.7.2.6
16-022(a), soil contamination	Third	6.7.3.1
16-033(a,b,f-j) and 16-022(b), underground storage tanks	Third	6.7.3.2
16-027(a-c), transformers	Fourth	6.7.4.1
16-021(b), operational release	Fourth	6.7.4.2
16-016(f), surface disposal area	Fourth	6.8.1.1

^a All evaluation step criteria are based on the No Further Action Criteria Policy, EM/ER:95-PCT-015, dated March 28, 1995 (Project Consistency Team, 1210).

6.6 Solid Waste Management Units Listed in the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) Module VIII Recommended for No Further Action

6.6.1 Solid Waste Management Units Recommended for No Further Action Under Step One of the Four-Step Criteria

Step one of the four-step criteria includes PRSs that have never been used for the management of Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) solid or hazardous waste and/or constituents, or other Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA) hazardous substances; PRSs which have never been located; nonexistent PRSs; duplicate PRSs; and PRSs investigated as part of another PRS (Project Consistency Team, 1210).

6.6.1.1 Outfall, SWMU 16-028(e); Active Sump, SWMU 16-029(i)

6.6.1.1.1 Background

SWMU 16-028(e) is potentially contaminated soil associated with a permitted outfall, Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 04A091, from the sump at Technical Area (TA) 16-450. This sump is addressed as Solid Waste Management Unit (SWMU) 16-029(g) in Subsection 5.2 of the 1993 RCRA Facility Investigation (RFI) Work Plan for Operable Unit (OU) 1082 (LANL 1993, 1094). Additional information on TA-16-450 is provided in Subsections 5.2.1.1 and 5.5.1.1.

SWMU 16-029(i) is a sump that serves TA-16-342. This sump is addressed as SWMU 16-003(n) in Subsection 5.2 of the 1993 RFI Work Plan for OU 1082 (LANL 1993, 1094). Additional information on TA-16-342 is provided in Subsection 5.2.1.1.

6.6.1.1.2 Recommendation

SWMUs 16-028(e) and 16-029(i) are recommended for no further action (NFA) because they were covered as SWMUs 16-029(g) and 16-003(n), respectively, in the 1993 RFI Work Plan (LANL 1993,1094).

6.6.1.1.3 Rationale for Recommendation

SWMU 16-028(e) was covered in the 1993 RFI Work Plan as SWMU 16-029(g) (LANL 1993,1094). SWMU 16-029(g) addresses the sump and permitted outfall (EPA 04A091) associated with TA-16-450. There is only one sump and permitted outfall associated with TA-16-450. Therefore, SWMU 16-028(e) and SWMU 16-029(g) are identical.

SWMU 16-029(i) was covered in the 1993 RFI Work Plan as SWMU 16-003(n) (LANL 1993,1094). SWMU 16-003(n) is designated as an active sump outfall. SWMU 16-029(i) designates this outfall as an inactive sump outfall. Because there is only one sump attached to this building, SWMUs 16-029(i) and 16-003(n) must be identical.

6.6.1.2 Surface Disposal, SWMUs 16-016(d,e,g)

6.6.1.2.1 Background

SWMU 16-016(d) is a small debris area at TA-16-222. The most hazardous item observed was a paint can that had been used to mix a small amount of cement. Other items included a few segments of corrugated metal pipe, some cable, and rebar. All material appears to be waste associated with the construction of the building rather than operational waste. These materials were field screened for radioactivity and high explosives (HE) and removed to the burning grounds by the operating group under work order LN 05057 on March 27, 1995.

SWMU 16-016(e) is located among graded soil and tuff 150 ft southeast of TA-16-360. The SWMU Report describes the item as a white fibrous mass, possibly asbestos (LANL 1990, 0145). Photographs taken by Weston during the original SWMU investigations also show a white fibrous mass, which could be located by the surroundings visible in the photograph (LANL photograph RN88-109-070).

SWMU 16-016(g) is a debris area associated with TA-16-370. TA-16-370 is a metal machining facility and was formerly a barium nitrate grinding facility. The debris includes a few cans and several pipes spread over a 20 ft diameter area located 60 ft south of the building. All material appears to be waste associated with the construction of the building rather than operational waste.

The debris area lies in a drainage ditch south of TA-16-370. Soil samples were taken from this drainage in a study of SWMU 16-028(b) described in Subsection 5.28.1.2 of Addendum 2. Three samples were collected below the confluence of SWMU 16-028(b) and the drainage ditch associated with SWMU 16-016(g). X-ray fluorescence (XRF) measurements of metals in the soil are shown in Table 6-12 along with the background range of these metals in Los Alamos soil (Longmire et al. 1993, 0958). The XRF results show that almost all the metals are within the background range. Barium is above background because the structure was used as a barium nitrate grinding facility.

TABLE 6-12

XRF AND BACKGROUND VALUES FOR SOIL NEAR TA-16-370

	XRF MEASUR DOWNGRAD	EMENT FOR THR			
METAL	AT CONFLUENCE	21 FEET BELOW CONFLUENCE	78 FEET BELOW CONFLUENCE	BACKGROUND IN ppm (MINIMUM)	BACKGROUND IN ppm (MAXIMUM)
Barium	388.8 ppm	850.5 ppm	445.0 ppm	124.80	828.90
Chromium	13.4 ppm	27.6 ppm	28.4 ppm	2.03	71.07
Iron	2.014%	1.293%	1.720%	1.086%	4.864%
Manganese	0.041%	0.174%	0.036%	0.018%	0.155%
Nickel	Not detected	Not detected	10.4 ppm	Not available	Not available
Niobium	29.6 ppm	34.4 ppm	38.4 ppm	Not available	Not available
Titanium	0.132%	0.176%	0.183%	0.118%	0.5438%
Vanadium	18.8 ppm	41.8 ppm	26.9 ppm	11.54	113.10
Zinc	127.2 ppm	Not detected	82.0 ppm	19.97	146.20
Zirconium	206.5 ppm	258.0 ppm	298.2 ppm	148.00	704.30

SWMU 16-028(b) is being sampled for metals as described in Subsection 5.28.3.1. At least one laboratory sample will be collected below the confluence of the two drainages and tested for metals and other constituents.

6.6.1.2.2 Recommendation

SWMUs 16-016(d,e,g) are recommended for NFA because there are no hazardous constituents present at these sites.

6.6.1.2.3 Rationale for Recommendation

The items seem to be construction debris. Field observation suggests that the remnants are not of a hazardous nature or extent. HE spot tests were conducted at all three locations on various pieces of debris, and none of the materials was found to be HE contaminated (Watanabe 1994, 15-16-569). Preliminary XRF results from the drainage near SWMU 16-016(g) show no contamination associated with SWMU 16-016(g). SWMU 16-016(d) was found to be nonhazardous and the debris was removed. The white fibrous mass southeast of TA-16-360 [SWMU 16-016(e)] was analyzed by x-ray diffraction and found to be fiberglass insulation, not asbestos (Hickmott 1994, 15-16-567).

6.6.1.3 Outfalls, SWMUs 16-026(a,l,t,z) and 16-030(c)

6.6.1.3.1 Background

SWMU 16-026(a) is soil associated with two outfalls from TA-16-370. TA-16-370, built in 1953 as a barium nitrate grinding facility, was converted to a metal forming shop in the late 1950s (Tidwell 1989, 15-16-097). The two outfalls in question serve a roof drain on the east side of the building and a steam pit condensate drain from the south side of the building. The two other outfalls from the building, a sanitary drain and a permitted outfall, are covered as SWMU 16-006(c) in the 1993 RFI Work Plan and SWMU 16-028(b) of Addendum 2, respectively. The east outfall is listed on various maps and drawings as a downspout draining rainwater (ENG-C 15856-7, ENG-C 15857). The east outfall is 6-in. cast iron pipe and daylights 29 ft southeast of the building. The steam pit drain is 4-in, cast iron pipe and daylights 70 ft south of TA-16-370. The steam pit is physically isolated from the building and is located just north of the door in the southeast corner of the building. The physical isolation of the steam pit drain from the rest of the building makes contamination highly unlikely, since the building itself is the only source of contaminated material. Effluent from both outfalls drains south into Water Canyon down a steep, rocky grade.

The steam pit drain joins an EPA permitted outfall [SWMU 16-028(b)] as it drains into Water Canyon. Soil samples were taken from this drainage in a study of SWMU 16-028(b) described in Subsection 5.28.1.2 of Addendum 2. Three samples were collected below the confluence of SWMU 16-028(b)

and SWMU 16-026(a). Preliminary XRF measurements of various machining metals are shown in Table 6-12 along with the background range of these metals in Los Alamos soil (Longmire et al. 1993, 0958). The XRF results show that almost all the metals are within background. SWMU 16-028(b) is being sampled for metals as described in Subsection 5.28.3.1. At least one laboratory sample will be collected below the confluence of the two outfalls and tested for metals.

SWMU 16-026(I) is soil associated with outfalls from TA-16-220. TA-16-220 is an x-ray facility for HE components. It was built in 1952 along with seven similar buildings in the radiography area. This SWMU consists of drains from the east wall and the northeast and southeast corners of TA-16-220. The outfalls could not be located. Engineering drawing ENG-C 15660 shows that roof drainage is from the northeast and southeast corners of the building and that the east wall contains a steam pit drain. The only other drain is a permitted floor drain outfall covered under SWMU 16-028(c) of Addendum 2. The physical isolation of the steam pit drain from the rest of the building makes contamination highly unlikely. The SWMU Report states that the steam pit drain was located on the south side of the building, but field investigation found the drain to be on the east wall (LANL 1990, 0145).

SWMU 16-026(t) is soil associated with an outfall from TA-16-207. TA-16-207, built in 1954 in the administration area of S-Site, was a secure storehouse that contained small quantities of depleted uranium (Paige 1994, 15-16-586). In 1993 it was decontaminated and converted into a packaging test facility (Paige 1994, 15-16-565). Engineering drawing ENG-C 7162 shows two roof drains, which carry only rainwater, joining on the north end of the building and flowing east. The drains are 8-in. vitrified clay pipe. This outfall daylights near the security fence about 80 ft southeast of the building and drains into a drainage ditch along old Anchor Ranch Road. According to ENG-C 46139, the only other drains in the building are sanitary drains.

SWMU 16-026(z) is soil associated with an outfall from TA-16-306. TA-16-306 is a plastics component development facility that has been operational since 1953. According to ENG-R 879, the building has one sanitary drain, four sump drains that were covered under SWMU 16-003(g) of the 1993 RFI Work Plan, and the outfall covered under SWMU 16-026(z). This outfall flows from a roof drain downspout near the southeast side of TA-16-306. The SWMU Report states that the outfall was located on the south side of the building, but field investigation located the outfall on the southeast corner (LANL 1990, 0145). The outfall leads directly into a paved drainage ditch located next to the building. This drainage ditch carries rainwater to a culvert and eventually into Water Canyon.

SWMU 16-030(c) is soil associated with an outfall from TA-16-222. TA-16-222, built in 1953, is an x-ray film processing lab located in the center of the radiography area in TA-16. The outfall originates from a roof drain downspout located on the northwest side of the building. ENG-R 855 shows four drains exiting from the corners of TA-16-222. The drawing indicates that they are roof drains. Upon site visit, the outfall could not be located. This drawing also shows the sanitary sewer lines and the only other building drain, a chemical drain that was covered under SMWU 16-020 of the 1993 RFI Work Plan.

6.6.1.3.2 Recommendation

SWMUs 16-026(a,l,t,z) and 16-030(c) are recommended for NFA because there have been no process-related hazardous constituents introduced into the roof drains or the steam pit drains.

6.6.1.3.3 Rationale for Recommendation

These SWMUs are recommended for NFA because none of them is contaminated and threatens the environment. The steam pits and drains at buildings TA-16-370 and TA-16-220 are completely isolated from the process buildings that they serve. It is highly unlikely that the steam pits are contaminated.

There are no documented releases of contaminants to the roof of any building associated with each SWMU. It is doubtful that any of the roof downspouts are carrying any type of contamination to the environment.

6.6.1.4 Outfall, SWMU 16-026(a2)

6.6.1.4.1 Background

SWMU 16-026(a2) is soil associated with an outfall from TA-16-200. The outfall is a 12-in. corrugated metal drain that flows from the south end of TA-16-200. The outfall daylights 200 ft southeast of TA-16-200 near TA-16-202. The outfall receives effluent from thirteen roof drains and two floor drains. The floor drains, which receive floor washings and compressor condensate, are located in basement equipment rooms. The floors show some oil or dirt stains. The equipment rooms contain building wiring, ductwork, sprinkler system pipes, and small pumps containing less than one gallon of oil.

6.6.1.4.2 Recommendation

SWMU 16-026(a2) is recommended for NFA because there are no hazardous constituents associated with this SMWU.

6.6.1.4.3 Rationale for Recommendation

TA-16-200, in operation since 1952, has always been designated as the administration building at S-Site. Historical evidence confirms that no hazardous processes occurred in this building and no hazardous materials were generated (Martin and Hickmott 1994, 15-16-549).

6.6.1.5 Outfall, SWMU 16-026(y)

6.6.1.5.1 Background

SWMU 16-026(y) is soil associated with an outfall on the east side of TA-16-411. TA-16-411, built in 1951, is used as an assembly building for finished HE components. In 1976 and 1977, modifications were made to the building in order to house special nuclear materials weapons components. A vault and a temperature and humidity control room were added to regulate the environment of the components. According to the former site safety officer, the building has always been used as an assembly station. Components to be assembled arrive in a finished condition. No forming, machining, or washing has ever been done at this facility (Martin and Hickmott 1994, 15-16-549). The outfall from this building has several

sources. An isolated utility room containing pumps and compressors has a floor drain that receives condensate. The pumps and compressors are small and contain less than one gallon of oil. Within the building an eyewash station, drinking fountain, and sink drain contribute effluent to the line. Externally, two roof drains and a steam pit also connect to the outfall. The 4-in. vitrified clay pipe daylights 2 ft south of a double security fence, approximately 100 ft south of TA-16-411. The effluent drains down a very steep, rocky, canyon edge. Effluent volume averages 600 gal./month, 500 gal. as a result of precipitation (LANL 1992, 15-16-534).

6.6.1.5.2 Recommendation

SWMU 16-026(y) is recommended for NFA because there are no hazardous constituents associated with this SWMU.

6.6.1.5.3 Rationale for Recommendation

TA-16-411 is used for storage and assembly of finished components only. No forming, machining, or washing is done at this facility (Martin and Hickmott 1994, 15-16-549). Site workers use the sink to clean their hands prior to assembly to avoid contaminating the components (Paige 1994, 15-16-576). Solvents and chemicals were not extensively used in any processes that occur at TA-16-411. Administrative controls restrict dumping any chemicals into the sink. Finally, the pumps and compressors in the isolated utility room are small (less than one gallon of oil) and have not had any known leaks.

6.6.1.6 Outfall, SWMU 16-031(h)

6.6.1.6.1 Background

SWMU 16-031(h) is soil associated with an outfall from a utility room in TA-16-478. The outfall receives effluent from a floor drain in the utility room on the northwest corner of the building. The drain, which consists of 4-in. vitrified clay pipe, daylights approximately 30 ft from the building. TA-16-478, originally P-4, was initially part of TA-13, and was used as a bunker for photographing explosive testing. In 1950 the building was modified to be a facility for testing the effects of machining on HE products. The utility room was an addition to the building during this modification.

Engineering drawing ENG-C 14851 shows a drain in the utility room that serves a sink and floor drain. A site visit confirmed that the drain received floor wash down water and sink drainage. The site visit also revealed a vacuum line connected to a vacuum pump in the utility room marked "Caution - Contains HE." The water-sealed/water-cooled vacuum pump drained cooling water into the floor drain.

6.6.1.6.2 Recommendation

SWMU 16-031(h) is recommended for NFA because the SWMU has never been used for the management of hazardous constituents.

6.6.1.6.3 Rationale for Recommendation

Interviews with past site workers indicate that the utility room is not contaminated with HE because it was located adjacent to the control room that employees were careful not to contaminate (Martin and Hickmott 1994, 15-16-549; Paige 1994, 15-16-557). Engineering drawing ENG-C 14852 shows a natural gas-powered hot water boiler with an automatic pilot and push-button electric ignition that was installed in 1949 in the utility room. The boiler remained until approximately 1962. The open flame associated with this natural gas system supports the claim that employees were careful not to contaminate the utility room with HE.

According to a former building manager for TA-16-478, the vacuum system was used to hold HE pieces for machining. HE dust and chip production during machining was minimized with use of liberal amounts of water, which drained to the sump. A water filter is incorporated into the vacuum line to prevent HE from traveling down the line. The former building manager stated that it is unlikely that any HE got into the vacuum pump water lines (Paige 1994, 15-16-566).

6.6.1.7 Active Outfall Cooling Tower, SWMU 16-031(e); Inactive Outfall Cooling Tower, SWMU 16-031(f)

6.6.1.7.1 Background

SWMU 16-031(e) is soil associated with an outfall at TA-16-560. TA-16-560 is the chlorination station for TA-16. It was built in 1952 in Water Canyon and was later moved to its present site on West Jemez Road near the entrance

to TA-16. The building measures 11 ft long x 17 ft wide x 9 ft high. The outfall receives effluent from a concrete trench and a floor drain on the southeast corner of the building. The trench carries possible leakage from water inlet and outlet lines. The outfall also receives drainage from a beam scale sump. The beam scale is used to measure the amount of chlorine gas added to the water. The cast iron drain line daylights approximately 40 ft southeast in the drainage ditch along West Jemez Road.

SWMU 16-031(f) is soil associated with an outfall from decommissioned chlorination station TA-16-21. TA-16-21 was a wooden building built in 1944 measuring 18 ft long x 18 ft wide x 10 ft high. It was located in the old administration area of S-Site approximately 90 ft southeast of the old cafeteria, TA-16-16. The building was stripped of usable equipment in 1953 when the new chlorination station (TA-16-560) came on-line. TA-16-21 was removed in 1992 for the construction of TA-16-1374. This outfall received effluent from a line draining from the southeast corner of the building. Engineering drawing ENG-R 868 shows a 4-in. vitrified clay pipe leaving the southeast corner and daylighting 26 ft to the southwest.

6.6.1.7.2 Recommendation

SWMUs 16-031(e) and 16-031(f) are recommended for NFA because there are no hazardous wastes associated with these SWMUs.

6.6.1.7.3 Rationale for Recommendation.

SWMUs 16-031(e) and 16-031(f) are both outfalls that received drainage from concrete trenches within chlorination stations. The trenches are designed to drain leakage from water inlet and outlet lines. The chlorinator adds chlorine to the water as a gas, making any releases to the environment airborne. Any water that might leak into the trench would be chlorinated drinking water or pump condensate. No reported historical releases were associated with either chlorination station.

6.6.2 SWMUs Recommended for No Further Action Under Step Two of the Four-Step Criteria

Step two of the four-step criteria includes PRSs that have had no releases to the environment (Project Consistency Team, 1210).

6.6.2.1 Outfalls, SWMUs 16-026(d2,e2,f2,g2,h,k,x) and 16-030(b,e,f)

6.6.2.1.1 Background

SWMUs 16-026(d2,e2,f2,g2,h,k,x) and 16-030(b,e,f) are soil associated with outfalls that originated in utility rooms of rest houses. The rest houses associated with each SWMU are listed in Table 6-13. A rest house is an HE component storage building connected to an assembly, process, or machining building. Each rest house has an isolated 4 ft long by 8 ft wide utility room that houses condensate pumps used to move condensed steam from building to building and air compressors used for heating and ventilating the building. Small amounts of pump oil have been known to leak from the pumps and some staining is visible. However, there are no visible stains in the soil where the pipes daylight. The total volume of oil used in each of these pumps is less than one gallon. Pump oil is typically a mineral oil that contains no hazardous constituents. A floor drain in each room carries condensate to an outfall. These outfalls typically drain through 4-in. vitrified clay pipe to daylight 20 ft to 90 ft from their associated structures. Many of the outfalls could not be located, probably due to low flow volume.

TABLE 6-13

REST HOUSES AND REST HOUSE UTILITY ROOM DRAINS

SWMU	ASSOCIATED REST HOUSE
16-026(d2)	TA-16-435
16-026(e2)	TA-16-415
16-026(f2)	TA-16-413
16-026(g2)	TA-16-285
16-026(h)	TA-16-281
16-026(k)	TA-16-221
16-026(x)	TA-16-437
16-030(b)	TA-16-343
16-030(e)	TA-16-225
16-030(f)	TA-16-223

6.6.2.1.2 Recommendation

SWMUs 16-026(d2,e2,f2,g2,h,k,x) and 16-030(b,e,f) are recommended for NFA because no release to the environment has occurred.

6.6.2.1.3 Rationale for Recommendation

The only entrance to each utility room is an outside door so that the room is completely isolated from the HE storage area in each rest house. This isolation makes the possibility of HE contamination highly unlikely. The condensate drainage is of such low volume that it is unlikely that any environmentally damaging amounts of oil contamination could be carried down the outfall. Currently, condensate is collected in buckets and no oil is present. The oils were probably nonhazardous mineral oil. The volume of oil present in the utility room equipment is less than one gallon. There is no documented case of a release to the environment involving a utility room for a rest house.

6.6.2.2 Outfall, SWMU 16-026(f)

6.6.2.2.1 Background

SWMU 16-026(f) is the soil associated with two outfalls from TA-16-308. TA-16-308, built in 1953, was initially used as a drying building for nitrocellulose explosives. After the 1960s, the building was used to store detonators and squibs (HE initiators). TA-16-308 has a utility basement housing compressors and condensate pumps and is accessed by ladder only. Currently, basement access requires a confined space permit. Maintenance work in the basement is conducted annually or biennially. According to the building manager of the past fifteen years, no explosives or hazardous materials were ever stored or used in the basement and there is no water line to the building other than the sprinkler system (Paige 1994, 15-16-577). The outfall on the northeast corner of the building drains from a downspout that carries rainwater from the roof. The 4-in. vitrified clay pipe daylights approximately 20 ft northeast of the building. The outfall on the southeast corner of the building receives effluent from two basement floor drains that carry condensate from steam lines and pumps. The pipe opening could not be visually located; however, there is a shallow trench extending

southeast that is believed to be the outfall's drainage (LANL 1992, 15-16-526).

6.6.2.2.2 Recommendation

SWMU 16-026(f) is recommended for NFA because no release to the environment has occurred.

6.6.2.2.3 Rationale for Recommendation

The chemicals of potential concern (COPCs) in TA-16-308 do not have a suitable pathway to the environment. The northeast outfall received effluent from a roof downspout. There is no documented knowledge of a release from the building that contaminated the roof; therefore, it is unlikely that COPCs were released to the environment. There are no floor drains on the first floor and no significant water source for drainage from the basement drains. The first floor and basement are not connected to each other and have separate entrances. HE and other hazardous materials were never stored in the basement, partly due to inconvenient access. The equipment located in the basement typically contains less than one gallon of oil. Therefore, no contaminants could have been carried through the basement drains.

6.6.2.3 Outfall, SWMU 16-026(g)

6.6.2.3.1 Background

SWMU 16-026(g) is soil associated with an outfall from TA-16-280. TA-16-280, built in 1951, is an HE physical inspection building. Both HE and natural and depleted uranium components are handled and inspected on the first floor of this facility (Voelz 1979, 15-37-003). Engineering drawing ENG-C 4115 shows the outfall receiving effluent from four equipment drains and five floor drains in the basement. A site visit showed that the floor drains are now plugged. The basement is used as a utility room. The first floor and basement are not connected to each other and have separate entrances. No hazardous materials are stored in the basement. The 6-in. vitrified clay drain line daylights 300 ft to the northeast of TA-16-280.

6.6.2.3.2 Recommendation

SWMU 16-026(g) is recommended for NFA because no release to the environment has occurred.

6.6.2.3.3 Rationale for Recommendation

According to the current building manager for TA-16-280, the basement has always been used as a utility room for pumps and compressors. No components were inspected in the basement (Paige 1994, 15-16-551). The only likely contaminant that could enter the drain would be pump oil, typically mineral oil that contains no hazardous constituents. At most, there are a few gallons of oil contained in the equipment located in the basement of TA-16-280. Generally, unless there is a spill, the amount of oil leakage from the compressors and pumps is insignificant. There is no record of oil spills from this drain. The basement of the building was kept free of contamination because it also functions as an emergency fallout shelter. In addition, the basement and first floor processing area are not connected.

6.6.2.4 Soil Contamination at Decommissioned Buildings, SWMUs 16-034(i,k)

6.6.2.4.1 Background

SWMUs 16-034(i,k) were two buildings, built in 1944 and 1945, as part of a Zia Company satellite maintenance station used for the upkeep of S-Site buildings. This maintenance station was near the decommissioned S-Site fire station, whose foundation still exists. The maintenance station was removed by 1995. The area is now a field covered with grass and small trees. The maintenance station is west of West Road, the only entry to S-Site prior to 1951. This road, which was fenced on the east side, formed the boundary of the HE exclusion zone. HE was not allowed beyond the boundary of the exclusion zone. Thus, the maintenance station was protected from exposure to HE by administrative control.

The former Zia maintenance manager during most of the life of the station stated that methods and policies insured that no HE would enter the maintenance station and that contamination would be insignificant (Miller 1994, 15-16-552). A former worker at the site during World War II also claims that the area was not contaminated (Martin 1993, 15-16-477; Martin

and Hickmott 1994, 15-16-549). Both of these buildings are listed in Blackwell's 1981 report on destroyed buildings as potentially HE contaminated (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076; Paige 1995, 15-16-600). The conversations with two site workers indicate that Blackwell was in error. Both of these buildings were removed, not destroyed by burning, which further suggests that HE contamination was not present.

SWMU 16-034(i) was TA-16-141, a small, portable wooden building 16 ft square and 9 ft high, previously numbered S-146. It was used originally for storage at the Zia satellite maintenance station, but was later moved to TA-35 for use as a construction shack.

SWMU 16-034(k) was storage building TA-16-140, previously numbered S-145. It was 16 ft square and 9 ft high. The exact location of TA-16-140 has not been determined from available photos. It is not known what was stored in the structure.

6.6.2.4.2 Recommendation

SWMUs 16-034(i,k) are recommended for NFA because no release to the environment has occurred.

6.6.2.4.3 Rationale for Recommendation

Extensive information from former site workers familiar with the operations of the Zia maintenance station indicates that there is no HE contamination at this site. It is unlikely that any other significant types of contamination would be associated with these structures. One of the storage buildings [SWMU 16-034(i)] was considered clean enough to permit moving the building off site. There is no reason to believe that these storage buildings were contaminated and pose a threat to the environment.

6.6.3 SWMUs Recommended for No Further Action Under Step Four of the Four-Step Criteria

Step four of the four-step criteria includes PRSs that have been characterized or remediated in accordance with current applicable regulations, and available data indicate that contaminants of concern are either not present or present in concentrations that would pose an acceptable level of risk (Project Consistency Team, 1210).

6.6.3.1 Soil Contamination at Decommissioned Storage Buildings, SWMUs 16-025(e2,f2,h2)

6.6.3.1.1 Background

SWMUs 16-025(e2,f2,h2) are the soil and remnants of three small (6 ft x 6 ft) wood frame storage buildings. TA-16-106, TA-16-107, and TA-16-109, originally A-1, A-2, and A-4, were built in mid-1944 on the western edge of S-Site and removed in 1950. The structures resembled magazines with earthen berms on three sides and a door on the fourth. According to a former site safety officer, they were largely used for the storage of non-HE materials such as aluminum powder, lead oxide, and barium nitrate but there is a possibility that small quantities of HE might have been stored there (Martin and Hickmott 1994, 15-16-549). An associated building, TA-16-108 [SWMU 16-025(g2)], was recommended and approved for NFA in Subsection 6.4.3.5 of the RFI Work Plan for OU 1082, Addendum 1 (LANL 1994, 1160).

6.6.3.1.2 Recommendation

SWMUs 16-025(e2,f2,h2) are recommended for NFA because information indicates that they have been removed or remediated and there are no contaminants of concern to pose a threat to human health or the environment.

6.6.3.1.3 Rationale for Recommendation

TA-16-106, TA-16-107, and TA-16-109 were small, lightly used buildings. If HE was stored at this location, it would have been in a containerized or packaged form (Martin and Hickmott 1994, 15-16-549). HE was stored at these locations until it was taken to other facilities for processing. None of these buildings was located in the HE exclusion zone. No HE processing was done at any of these locations, and there are no documented cases of a release to the environment. In February 1945 construction began on four large HE storage magazines on the southeast side of S-Site that replaced TA-16-106, TA-16-107, and TA-16-109 (Martin and Hickmott 1994, 15-16-549). Therefore, if HE was stored at in these structures, it would have been there for less than one year. Finally, it appears that all three buildings are either near or under State Road 501 which is elevated and fully graded for drainage. Construction of the road involved moving quantities of soil that would have dispersed any traces of contaminants. A memorandum titled "Destruction of Building A-1 at S-Site" states that TA-16-106 was intentionally blown up with more than 125 lb of explosives in August 1949 (Drake 1949, 15-16-144). As a result, minimal residual materials remain at this particular building site.

6.7 SWMUs and AOCs Not Listed in the HSWA Module That Are Recommended for No Further Action

6.7.1 SWMUs Recommended for No Further Action Under Step One of the Four-Step Criteria

Step one of the four-step criteria includes PRSs that have never been used for the management of RCRA solid or hazardous waste and/or constituents, or other CERCLA hazardous substances; PRSs which have never been located; nonexistent PRSs; duplicate PRSs; and PRSs investigated as part of another PRS (Project Consistency Team, 1210).

6.7.1.1 Fuel Tank, C-16-072

6.7.1.1.1 Background

C-16-072 is listed in the SWMU Report as a fuel tank, TA-16-216 (LANL 1990, 0145). The tank is referenced on 1983 Engineering drawing ENG-R 5111 structure location index sheet as not shown. Other structure indexes from earlier years list the area as reserved. The historical structure list at ENG-7 lists TA-16-216 as proposed. Interviews with site personnel indicated no location for the tank. Evidence indicates that the tank was never installed.

6.7.1.1.2 Recommendation

C-16-072 is recommended for NFA because its location and existence cannot be established and it is assumed that the tank was never installed.

6.7.1.1.3 Rationale for Recommendation

The existence of this area of concern (AOC) cannot be verified based on the information in the SWMU Report or as a result of an extensive archival search. Because the existence and location of C-16-072 cannot be established, it is impossible to develop an applicable sampling plan.
6.7.1.2 Active HE Sump, SWMU 16-003(q); Hydraulic Oil Spill, C-16-071

6.7.1.2.1 Background

16-003(q) is listed in the SWMU Report as an active HE sump that serves TA-16-450, a materials testing facility (LANL 1990, 0145). This sump is addressed as SWMU 16-029(g) in Subsection 5.2.1.1 of the 1993 RFI Work Plan for OU 1082 and additional information on TA-16-450 is provided in Subsections 5.2 and 5.5 (LANL 1993, 1094).

C-16-071 is listed as a hydraulic oil spill associated with TA-16-430, an HE pressing facility. There was a spill of hydraulic fluid in this facility in the late 1980s. This spill is addressed as SWMU 16-021(b) in Subsection 6.7.4.2 of Addendum 2.

6.7.1.2.2 Recommendation

SWMU 16-003(q) and C-16-071 are recommended for NFA because they are inaccurately listed as being separate from SWMU 16-029(g) and SWMU 16-021(b), respectively. SWMU 16-029(g) was addressed in the 1993 RFI Work Plan (LANL 1993,1094) and SWMU 16-021(b) is currently addressed in Addendum 2.

6.7.1.2.3 Rationale for Recommendation.

SWMU 16-003(q) is a duplicate of SWMU16-029(g). SWMU 16-029(g) addresses the sump and NPDES permitted outfall (04A091) associated with TA-16-450. There is only one sump and permitted outfall associated with TA-16-450. Therefore, SWMUs 16-028(e) and 16-029(g) are identical. SWMU 16-029(g) has already been addressed as noted above.

C-16-071 is a duplicate of SWMU 16-021(b). SWMU 16-021(b) is an operational release of hydraulic fluid from TA-16-430. C-16-071 is a hydraulic fluid spill from TA-16-430. Only one hydraulic fluid leak has been reported at TA-16-430. Therefore, C-16-071 and SWMU 16-021(b) are identical. SWMU 16-021(b) is addressed as noted above.



6.7.1.3 Decommissioned Office and Shop, C-16-049

6.7.1.3.1 Background

C-16-049 is the soil associated with TA-16-475, a 24 ft x 75 ft structure that was built in 1944 and removed in 1951. The building, located at P-Site approximately 250 ft east of TA-16-343, consisted of a workshop addition containing workbenches and shelving; a middle section housing a generator and storage area; and a northern section containing an office, a lab, a workroom, a bathroom, and a darkroom. Because the building was situated on a concrete slab floor, the most likely source of potential soil contaminants is the northern section of the building containing drain lines. A plumbing diagram (ENG-C 1643) shows that the only drain lines in the building were from a lead sink in the darkroom and the sanitary facilities in the lavatory that connected to a septic tank, TA-16-486, located north of TA-16-475. The septic tank was located at the end of a 100-ft drain line from the lavatory in TA-16-475. Septic tank TA-16-486 and its drain field are a separate site covered under SWMUs 13-003(a,b) in Subsection 5.4.1.1 of the 1993 RFI Work Plan for OU 1082 (LANL 1993, 1094). These SWMUs will be sampled for HE, barium, metals, radionuclides, organics, silver, and cyanide.

6.7.1.3.2 Recommendation

C-16-049 is recommended for NFA because the drain line, septic tank, and associated drain field that constitute the most likely source of contamination at the site are already being sampled under Subsection 5.4.1.1 of the 1993 RFI Work Plan for OU 1082 (LANL 1993, 1094).

6.7.1.3.3 Rationale for Recommendation

Because TA-16-475 was situated on a concrete slab, it is unlikely that potential soil contamination could have reached the footprint of the building under the concrete. The most likely source of contamination would have been through drain lines, and the only septic system and drain field associated with this building are already being sampled as noted above.

6.7.1.4 Decommissioned Electrical Manholes, C-16-062 and C-16-063

6.7.1.4.1 Background

C-16-062 and C-16-063 are decommissioned electrical manholes, TA-16-889 and TA-16-888, used to access underground electrical conduits at P-Site. They were installed in 1950 and removed in 1972. A site visit confirmed that they were removed. No hazardous materials were ever associated with these structures (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076).

6.7.1.4.2 Recommendation

C-16-062 and C-16-063 are recommended for NFA because there are no hazardous constituents associated with these sites.

6.7.1.4.3 Rationale for Recommendation

There were no hazardous materials used at these locations (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076).

6.7.1.5 Decommissioned Water Storage Tank, C-16-018

6.7.1.5.1 Background

C-16-018 was a 30 000-gal. water tank, TA-16-172, that was located in the area along Jemez Road across from the current entrance to TA-16. It was located approximately 125 ft north of water tank TA-16-171 and 100 ft west of water tank TA-16-247. TA-16-172 was 48 ft long and 10.5 ft in diameter. It was used from 1945 until 1959 when it was moved to TA-49 and renumbered FM-66. It was later moved to TA-3 and renumbered SM-178.

6.7.1.5.2 Recommendation

C-16-018 is recommended for NFA because it has never been used for the management of hazardous waste.

6.7.1.5.3 Rationale for Recommendation

There were no hazardous constituents associated with this water tank (Blackwell 1983,15-16-076), and the movement of the structure to another technical area indicates that it was free of contamination.

6.7.1.6 Decommissioned Office Building, C-16-020

6.7.1.6.1 Background

C-16-020, TA-16-22, was originally a 20 ft wide x 70 ft long x 9 ft high office building built in 1944 near the old cafeteria, TA-16-16, in the administration area of S-Site. The structure was moved to the Los Alamos ice rink in 1961.

6.7.1.6.2 Recommendation

C-16-020 is recommended for NFA because it has never been used for the management of hazardous waste.

6.7.1.6.3 Rationale for Recommendation

This structure was not used for the handling or storage of hazardous constituents (Blackwell 1983,15-16-076). The relocation of the structure to a public area indicates that it was free of contamination at the time it was moved.

6.7.1.7 Decommissioned Water Tanks, C-16-034 and C-16-035

6.7.1.7.1 Background

C-16-034 and C-16-035 were 50 000-gal. water tanks, TA-16-1130 and TA-16-1131. The 15 ft high, 23.3 ft diameter tanks were located along Jemez Road near the current location of the 1 000 000-gal. water tank, TA-16-171, at the entrance to S-Site. The water tanks were used from 1944 until 1949. Engineering drawing ENG-R 793 shows the tanks connected to the site water supply via the pump station, TA-16-20, located in the central administration area of S-Site. These structures had no hazardous materials associated with them (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076), and the area is physically isolated from the HE facilities at S-Site.

6.7.1.7.2 Recommendation

C-16-034 and C-16-035 are recommended for NFA because they have never been used for the management of hazardous waste.

6.7.1.7.3 Rationale for Recommendation.

These structures were not used for the handling or storage of hazardous materials (Blackwell 1983,15-16-076), and they were isolated from the HE or other operational facilities at S-Site.

6.7.1.8 Decommissioned Latrine, C-16-061

6.7.1.8.1 Background

C-16-061 is potential soil contamination associated with TA-16-396, the latrine for the burning grounds at TA-16. TA-16-396 was a 4 ft long x 4 ft wide x 7.5 ft high wooden frame building located approximately 80 ft east of TA-16-390, the central basket wash facility for the burning grounds. At TA-16-390, HE baskets were washed down in troughs that drained to filter beds (Engineering drawing ENG-R 790). The latrine was built in 1951 and removed in 1968. It contained no plumbing. According to the structure list, all materials from the removal were disposed of at the Area P landfill. No evidence of it remains. No hazardous materials were ever associated with the latrine (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076). Given its size and distance from TA-16-390, it is unlikely that HE contaminated the facility.

6.7.1.8.2 Recommendation

C-16-061 is recommended for NFA because it has never been used for the management of hazardous waste.

6.7.1.8.3 Rationale for Recommendation

This structure was not used for the handling or storage of hazardous constituents (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076). It contained no hand washing facilities and due to its distance from TA-16-390, is extremely unlikely to have inadvertently been contaminated with HE.

6.7.1.9 Decommissioned Hose House, C-16-041

6.7.1.9.1 Background

C-16-041 was a small hose house, TA-16-198, built in 1945 on the driveway into the old burning area along Anchor Ranch Road north of the administration area at S-Site. The 6.5 ft long x 3.5 ft wide x 7.5 ft high wooden building was used to store and protect lengths of fire hose. The building tested free of

radioactive contamination in 1967 (Buckland 1967, 15-16-131). According to a 1983 memo, the structure had no hazardous materials associated with it (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076). The removal date of TA-16-198 is uncertain. Although the engineering structure list indicates that it was removed in 1958, according to other documentation the building was monitored for radioactivity in 1967 (Buckland 1967, 15-16-131). In either case, the building is no longer present.

6.7.1.9.2 Recommendation

C-16-041 is recommended for NFA because it has never been used for the management of hazardous waste.

6.7.1.9.3 Rationale for Recommendation

This structure was not used for handling or storage of hazardous materials (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076). It specifically tested free of radioactive contamination (Buckland 1967, 15-16-131).

6.7.1.10 Decommissioned Steam Manholes, C-16-044 and C-16-046

6.7.1.10.1 Background

C-16-044 was a steam manhole, TA-16-1079, made of reinforced concrete with a wooden cover. It was located along Anchor Ranch Road near the decommissioned fire station, TA-16-142. The manhole was built in 1945, and decommissioned at an unknown date, and then filled with gravel. A site visit confirmed that the manhole has been decommissioned. It is believed to have contained pipes that carried only distilled steam vapor or cool condensate water to and from the steam plant. There were no hazardous materials associated with the manhole (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076).

C-16-046 was a steam manhole, TA-16-1090, constructed of 5-ft diameter corrugated metal pipe. The manhole was 9 ft deep with a gravel bottom and sheet metal cover. Its exact location is not known; however, it was near TA-16-460, southeast of the present administration area. The manhole is believed to have contained pipes that carried only distilled steam vapor or cool condensate water to and from the steam plant. No hazardous materials were ever associated with TA-16-1090 (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076). Engineering drawing ENG-R 5111 indicates that the manhole was removed in 1970.

6.7.1.10.2 Recommendation

C-16-041 and C-16-046 are recommended for NFA because they have never been used for the management of hazardous waste.

6.7.1.10.3 Rationale for Recommendation

These decommissioned steam manholes carried only steam or condensate to the steam plant and have never had any hazardous materials associated with them (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076). There is no record of any releases associated with either of these steam manholes. Chromates were used to prevent corrosion in the main steam plant cooling tower through the late 1960s, but they were not used in steam systems.

6.7.1.11 Decommissioned Storage Building, C-16-050

6.7.1.11.1 Background

C-16-050 was a wooden frame storage building, TA-16-482, located near TA-16-475. It measured 16 ft long x 16 ft wide x 8 ft high. It was constructed in 1944 at TA-30 and was moved from TA-30 to TA-16 in July 1947. It was subsequently moved and designated TA-11-9 in July 1949. It is not known what was stored in this structure. However, a site worker with 35 years of experience reported that no hazardous materials were associated with the structure (Paige 1995, 15-16-600; Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076).

6.7.1.11.2 Recommendation

C-16-050 is recommended for NFA because it has never been used for the management of hazardous waste.

6.7.1.11.3 Rationale for Recommendation

No hazardous materials were ever associated with this structure (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076).

6.7.1.12 Industrial Waste Tank, SWMU 16-037

6.7.1.12.1 Background

SWMU 16-037 is listed in the SWMU Report as an industrial waste tank, structure TA-16-215 (LANL 1990, 0145).

6.7.1.12.2 Recommendation

SWMU 16-037 is recommended for NFA because the SWMU Report incorrectly identifies the existence of the SWMU.

6.7.1.12.3 Rationale for Recommendation

After extensive investigation by field team members, it appears that SWMU 16-037, industrial waste tank TA-16-215, does not exist. In 1982 TA-16-215 was proposed. However, no lab jobs or work orders are listed for this structure. In 1983, the tank is mentioned on structure location index sheet ENG-R 5111, but there is no information about the structure. It appears that this tank was never installed. Interviews with former site workers provided no further information.

6.7.1.13 Crossover Platform, C-16-001

6.7.1.13.1 Background

C-16-001 is a T-shaped, elevated, crossover platform, TA-16-384, that runs across the three HE slurry drain troughs [SWMUs 16-010(h,m,n)] coming out of TA-16-390 at the burning grounds of TA-16. The platform is made of steel, with an open crosshatched floor and is approximately 7 ft long x 9 ft wide x 3 ft high. The platform was built in 1962 to allow workers to cross over the trough area instead of walking around it. Laboratory records indicate that the structure was intended for removal in 1970 (Russo 1970, 15-16-015; Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076). However, it remains in place. There is some debate as to whether or not the platform was ever HE contaminated. While an engineering department memo lists the structure as HE contaminated (Russo 1970, 15-16-015), a former site worker includes the structure on a list of structures removed from TA-16 and states that it was not associated with hazardous materials (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076; Paige 1995, 15-16-600). The crossover platform is presently inactive, but will probably be used when the drain trough area is sampled as planned in Subsection 5.8.4 of the 1993 RFI Work Plan for OU 1082 (LANL 1993, 1094).

6.7.1.13.2 Recommendation

C-16-001 is recommended for NFA because it has never been used for the management of hazardous waste.

6.7.1.13.3 Rationale for Recommendation

The crossover platform [C-16-001] presents no current human health or environmental risk on or off site. The only COPC associated with the platform itself would be HE. Because the crossover platform is made of open, crosshatched steel, HE would not collect on the top of the platform. It is unlikely that HE would splash up from the troughs located one foot below the platform. The environmental risk at this site is limited to what is already being considered for the HE slurry troughs.

6.7.2 SWMUs and AOCs Recommended for No Further Action Under Step Two of the Four-Step Criteria

Step two of the four-step criteria includes PRSs that have had no releases to the environment (Project Consistency Team, 1210).

6.7.2.1 Decommissioned Aboveground Fuel Tanks, SWMUs 16-033(c,d)

6.7.2.1.1 Background

SWMU 16-033(c) was a 52 000-gal. aboveground fuel oil storage tank, TA-16-29, constructed of metal and mounted in concrete saddles. The 62 ft long x 12 ft diameter tank was located approximately 50 ft north of the cafeteria, TA-16-16. It was installed in 1945 and removed in 1956. According to a former site worker with 35 years of tenure at S-Site, the piping went directly from the tank to the pump house, TA-16-19, and then to the steam plant, TA-16-7 (Martin and Hickmott 1994, 15-16-549). During a site visit, no obvious soil staining was observed, and archival research reveals no record of any releases. There is a chance that filling the tank could have resulted in minimal spills down the side of the tank and caused some surface contamination. However, because all but one of the berms around the tank has been removed, it is unlikely that any surface contamination could presently be found. **SWMU 16-033(d)** was an aboveground propane tank, TA-16-1140, that once served the cafeteria, TA-16-16. The tank was installed in 1946 and removed in 1956. It was located 50 to 60 ft west of TA-16-16, near transportable TA-16-1407. The exact size of the tank is not known. The two saddles that held the tank still remain and are positioned seven feet apart. There are no records of any releases from this tank. A 1983 memo reports no hazardous materials were associated with the tank (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076).

6.7.2.1.2 Recommendation

SWMUs 16-033(c,d) are recommended for NFA because no release to the environment has occurred.

6.7.2.1.3 Rationale for Recommendation

No visible soil stains were found during site visits and there are no records of any releases at either SWMU. Any oil spills small enough not to have been reported would probably be dispersed and very difficult to trace because the tanks (TA-16-29 and TA-16-1140) and three of the four berms around TA-16-29 have been removed.

6.7.2.2 Implement Shed, C-16-008; Mess Hall, C-16-009; Storage Building, C-16-010; Decommissioned Blacksmith Shop, C-16-012; Decommissioned Lumber Storage Area, C-16-013; Decommissioned Equipment Room, C-16-014; Decommissioned Hose House, C-16-015; Decommissioned Fire House, C-16-016; Decommissioned Latrine, C-16-036

6.7.2.2.1 Background.

C-16-008, C-16-009, C-16-010, C-16-012, C-16-013, C-16-014, C-16-015, C-16-016, and C-16-036 were part of a cluster of buildings that were used by The Zia Company for storage of equipment and tools used for utilities maintenance in the World War II era S-Site (Table 6-14). All the buildings were removed in 1955, although the foundation of TA-16-142 (C-16-016) remains. The area is now a field covered with grass and small trees. The buildings were located west of West Road, the only entry to S-Site prior to 1951. No unpackaged HE was allowed west of West Road, so this group of buildings did not handle or store unpackaged HE. A 1983 memo lists each of the structures associated with the above areas of concern as having no association with hazardous materials (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076), and a former site worker with 35 years of tenure at S-Site specifically states that TA-16-139 through TA-16-146 were not HE contaminated (Martin and Hickmott 1994, 15-16-549). The most likely source of HE contamination to any of these structures would have occurred as a result of personnel and equipment inadvertently introducing HE particles or chunks into the area. A former site worker states that the possibility of HE contamination by these means would be limited because The Zia Company took precautions to prevent HE contamination of this area (Miller 1994, 15-16-552). Other hazardous constituents are not likely at any of these units based on knowledge of the processes that occurred in them.

TABLE 6-14

AOC NUMBER	STRUCTURE NUMBER	FUNCTION	OPERATIONAL DATES	DIMENSIONS, LENGTH X WIDTH X HEIGHT (FT)
C-16-008	TA-16-136	Implement shed	1944-1955	18 x 32 x 9
C-16-009	TA-16-134	Mess hall	1944-1955	32 x 52 x 10
C-16-010	TA-16-135	Storage building	1944-1955	16 x 16
C-16-012	TA-16-138	Decommissioned blacksmith shop	1944-1955	8 x 10 x 9
C-16-013	TA-16-133	Lumber storage area	1944-1955	18 x 69 x 10, open on one long side
C-16-014	TA-16-144	Decommissioned equipment room	1945-1955	20 x 45 x 10
C-16-015	TA-16-143	Decommissioned hose house	1945-1955	12 x 55 x 10
C-16-016	TA-16-142	Decommissioned fire house	1945-1955	56 x 74 x 13
C-16-036	TA-16-145	Decommissioned latrine	1945-1955	7x7x9

DECOMMISSIONED ZIA MAINTENANCE FACILITY STRUCTURES

6.7.2.2.2 Recommendation

C-16-008 through C-16-010, C-16-012 through C-16-016, and C-16-036 are recommended for NFA because no release to the environment has occurred.

6.7.2.2.3 Rationale for Recommendation

The historical use of each structure is well documented, and there were no known hazardous materials used at these locations (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076). Further, the group of buildings was physically isolated from work involving HE.

6.7.2.3 Decommissioned Oil Switches, C-16-047, C-16-051, and C-16-058

6.7.2.3.1 Background

C-16-047, C-16-051, and C-16-058 are decommissioned 200- to 400-gal. oil switches used to control large amounts of electrical power for several clusters of buildings at S-Site (Table 6-15). These oil switches were in service from 1952 to 1967 when they were removed. Each was mounted on a 7 ft x 7 ft concrete pad that was surrounded by a metal fence. The pads and some attached metal pieces remain in place.

6.7.2.3.2 Recommendation

C-16-047, C-16-051, and C-16-058 are recommended for NFA because no release to the environment has occurred.

TABLE 6-15

OIL SWITCHES

AOC NUMBER	STRUCTURE NUMBER	FUNCTION	OPERATIONAL DATES	CAPACITY (GALLONS)
C-16-047	TA-16-1101	Oil switch controlling power to radiography buildings	1952-1967	200 to 400
C-16-051	TA-16-1103	Oil switch controlling power to the 300 Line	1952-1967	200 to 400
C-16-058	TA-16-1102	Oil switch controlling power to the assembly and pressing area	1952-1967	200 to 400

6.7.2.3.3 Rationale for Recommendation

There were no known hazardous materials associated with these sites (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076), and no documented releases. The most likely COPC would be lubricating oil containing polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs). However, a specialist from Westinghouse Electrical Engineering Service Division stated that mineral oil is generally the lubricant chosen for oil switches and that oil containing PCBs would be a poor replacement because of its consistency (Miller 1994, 15-16-559). Site inspection showed no staining in the area around the oil switches.

6.7.2.4 Transformer, SWMU 16-027(d)

6.7.2.4.1 Background

SWMU 16-027(d) is listed in the SWMU Report as a leak from a transformer, TA-16-569, located approximately 100 ft north of TA-16-430. The SWMU Report claims that the slow leak, discovered in 1987, was oil with a 25 000 ppm PCB content (LANL 1990, 0145). Extensive archival research revealed no record of any releases from TA-16-569. Further, records on the transformer indicate that it never contained oil with a 25 000 ppm PCB concentration (Wechsler 1994, 15-16-595), but rather it contained a mineral oil dielectric fluid which, according to 40 CFR 761.123, must be assumed to contain 50 to 499 ppm PCBs. Based on these records, it is assumed that the spill listed in the SWMU Report refers to a nearby transformer, TA-16-563, that did contain oil with a 25 000 ppm PCB content and that did have a reported release in 1987, TA-16-563 is discussed as SWMU 16-027(c) in Subsection 6.7.4.1 in Addendum 2. Transformer TA-16-569 has no record of releases and was dechlorinated in 1992 and reclassified February 3, 1993, as a non-PCB transformer containing 2 ppm PCBs (Wechsler 1994, 15-16-595). In addition, a soil sample was collected from the area around the transformer April 28, 1994, with a result of 7.3 ppm PCBs (LANL 1994, 15-16-562), which places it within PCB limits of 25 ppm mandated by 40 CFR 761.125.

6.7.2.4.2 Recommendation

SWMU 16-027(d) is recommended for NFA because no release to the environment has occurred.

6.7.2.4.3 Rationale for Recommendation

There have been no known releases from this site. Transformer TA-16-569 never used oil containing 25 000 ppm PCBs, and it was reclassified to non-PCB containing status in 1993. It is believed that the spill described at this site in the SWMU Report actually refers to a spill at a nearby transformer, TA-16-563. The latter site is covered under SWMU 16-027(c) in Subsection 6.7.4.1 of Addendum 2.

6.7.2.5 Decommissioned Pump House, C-16-019

6.7.2.5.1 Background

C-16-019 was a small wooden pump house, TA-16-19, previously numbered S-16, located in the old administration area of S-Site. The 10 ft x 10 ft building, built in 1945 and removed in 1956, was located approximately 50 ft northeast of the former cafeteria, TA-16-16. The concrete foundation remains in place. The pump house moved fuel from nearby tank TA-16-29 across Anchor Ranch Road via overhead pipes to TA-16-7 to fuel steam boilers (Martin and Hickmott 1994, 15-16-549). There is no record of any fuel spills occurring in the area during the eleven years it was in use and no stained soil is visible in the area.

While a 1983 memo cites this pump house as HE contaminated (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076), based on archival review it is unlikely that any HE would have come into contact with the pump house. The only possible source of HE contamination in this structure would have been from the movement of people between HE-contaminated areas and the administration area. Former site workers have stated that special care was taken to prevent contamination of the administration area, including TA-16-19 (Martin and Hickmott 1994, 15-16-549).

6.7.2.5.2 Recommendation

C-16-019 is recommended for NFA because no release to the environment has occurred.

6.7.2.5.3 Rationale for Recommendation

The historical use of TA-16-19, as well as its location, do not support the conclusion that the pump house was HE contaminated. Former site workers

have stated that special care was taken to prevent contamination of the administration area in which the structure was located (Martin and Hickmott 1994, 15-16-549). Given the proximity of pump house TA-16-19 to the cafeteria and other commonly used buildings, and the distance of the structure from facilities associated with HE, it seems clear that workers would not only have good cause to keep TA-16-19 clear of HE contamination, but also the ability to do so. Further, any possible HE contamination would have been in such small amounts that it would be untraceable nearly 40 years after removal of the building.

There are no records of any fuel spills at the pump house and no evidence of any spills. Any spills that may have occurred would have spilled onto the concrete foundation which is still in place. In addition, the soil in this area has been highly disturbed due to redistribution of soil from the berms surrounding nearby tank TA-16-29. This would make detection of spill residues highly unlikely.

6.7.2.6 Underground Fuel Tank, C-16-070

6.7.2.6.1 Background

C-16-070 is TA-16-391, a 3 063-gal. underground propane tank that was installed at the burning grounds in 1951. This tank provided fuel to heat and dry the sand in filter tanks TA-16-401 and TA-16-406 before the sand was burned to remove HE (Martin and Hickmott 1994, 15-16-549). The tank was 24 ft long by 5 ft in diameter and lay approximately 50 ft northeast of TA-16-390. It had a manhole to access tank valves and a 6-in. corrugated metal drain from the manhole (ENG-C 1098 and ENG-R 790). The tank was abandoned in place in 1970. Although there is no record of its removal, the tank is no longer present. The building manager recalls that it was removed approximately five years ago (Paige 1994, 15-16-563). There is only a level, cleared, pebble-covered area where the tank was located. A vitrified clay pipe was discovered approximately 50 ft east of the tank but it is not known if this is associated with the tank or with another structure.

This structure had no hazardous materials associated with it (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076). In addition, it has been specifically cleared of both HE and radioactive contamination (Brooks 1970, 15-16-002; Buckland 1970, 15-16-005).

6.7.2.6.2 Recommendation

C-16-070 is recommended for NFA because no release to the environment has occurred.

6.7.2.6.3 Rationale for Recommendation

C-16-070 is underground propane tank TA-16-391, which is no longer in place, and was never associated with any hazardous materials (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076). It is assumed that the former location of the tank also contains no COPCs.

6.7.3 SWMUs Recommended for No Further Action Under Step Three of the Four-Step Criteria

Step three of the four-step criteria includes PRSs regulated or closed under a different authority that addresses corrective action (Project Consistency Team, 1210).

6.7.3.1 Soil Contamination, SWMU 16-022(a)

6.7.3.1.1 Background

SWMU 16-022(a) is an area where a steel underground storage tank (UST) containing diesel fuel was once located. The tank had a 560-gal, capacity and was 6 ft in length and 4 ft in diameter. The UST served TA-16-205, the tritium processing building. According to the SWMU Report, the tank was installed in 1984 and was located near the northwest corner of the building (LANL 1990, 0145). Upon removal of the UST September 22, 1993, no visual soil contamination was noted beneath the tank. However, according to a letter from LANL's Environmental Management Division Office to the New Mexico Environment Department (NMED), a faint odor of diesel fuel was noticed in the soil. Because the tank had no evidence of leaks and passed a tightness test, it was assumed that the odor came from past surface spills that might have occurred when refilling the UST (Gunderson 1993,15-16-544).

Pursuant to Part XII, Section 1205 of the New Mexico Underground Storage Tank Regulations, LANL must determine the extent of the diesel fuel contamination; therefore, beginning on September 22, 1993, samples were collected from the excavation in accordance with Appendix C, Part XII. All samples were analyzed for total petroleum hydrocarbons (TPH) using EPA SW-846, Analytical Method 418.1. On August 5, 1994, borehole one was resampled. Sample locations and results are listed in Table 6-16.

The soil beneath the tank at TA-16-205 was not found to be highly contaminated. The results of the resampled boreholes show no TPH >100 μ g/g. According to New Mexico UST Regulation §1209, soil must be excavated until TPH values are <100 μ g/g. The extent of contamination was

TABLE 6-16

ANALYTICAL RESULTS FROM BOREHOLE SAMPLES AT TA-16-205

TA-BOREHOLE NUMBER- DEPTH	 ΤΡΗ (μ g/g)	DATE COLLECTED
16-BM (bls) ^a	3 881	9/22/93
16-BM-S/C (10 ft bls)	9 062	9/22/93
16-ES (7 ft bls)	2 086	9/22/93
16-1 (10 ft bls)	1 898	10/14/93
16-B (10.5 ft bls)	20 067	10/14/93
16-W	3 716	10/14/93
16-E	399	10/14/93
16-S	1 325	10/14/93
16-1-5	1 600	11/16/93
16-1-10	960	11/16/93
16-1-15	230	11/16/93
16-2-5	14	11/16/93
16-2-10	2	11/16/93
16-2-15	12	, 11/16/93
16-3-5	2	11/16/93
16-3-10	2	11/16/93
16-3-15	<1	11/16/93
16-4-5	<1	11/16/93
16-4-10	<1	11/16/93
16-4-15	4	11/16/93
16-1-10 ^b	3	8/5/94
16-1-15 ^b	10	8/5/94
16-1-20 ^b	<1	8/5/94
16-1-25 b	<1	8/5/94

^a bis = below land surface.

^b Resampled.

determined to be 12 ft laterally and 20 ft vertically (Garvey 1994, 15-16-574).

LANL has determined that there is no immediate threat to human health and the environment from the diesel fuel contamination at SWMU 16-022(a). Depth to the main aquifer beneath TA-16 is approximately 1 000 ft. There are no private water supply wells within a 1 000 ft radius or municipal water wells within a one mile radius of this UST removal site. Additionally, there are no surface water courses within 500 ft of this site. The nearest utility corridor is approximately 20 ft away; however, no diesel fuel or potentially explosive vapors have been detected in this corridor or in the vicinity of this UST removal (Gunderson 1993, 15-16-544).

6.7.3.1.2 Recommendation

SWMU 16-022(a) is recommended for NFA because it has gone through the regulatory closure process. NMED has stated that it currently requires no additional work on this UST evaluation and cleanup (Moreland 1994, 15-16-568).

6.7.3.1.3 Rationale for Recommendation

The NMED reviewed a status report received June 24, 1994, for the abovereferenced SWMU. The NMED determined that the site does not pose an immediate public health or environmental threat for the following reasons: the horizontal and vertical extent of soil contamination has been adequately defined and is greater than 900 ft above high static water; and, the depth to groundwater at the site is greater than 1 000 ft. Based on this information, the department required that no additional work was needed (Moreland 1994, 15-16-568).

6.7.3.2 Underground Storage Tanks, SWMUs 16-033(a,b,f-j), and 16-022(b)

6.7.3.2.1 Background

The USTs described below were removed from TA-16 prior to 1988, with the exception of TA-16-197. The USTs only contained product fuel and their use was in no way related to building activities or processes. Table 6-17 provides an overview of these removed USTs.

SWMU 16-033(a) is a diesel fuel tank that was located east of TA-16-16 in the administration area. According to the SWMU Report, there was a documented release from this tank (LANL 1990, 0145). The tank was rectangular and attached to a larger cylindrical tank that had a volume of 1 000 gal. Analysis of the tank for gross alpha, beta, gamma, and tritium prior to removal in 1987 revealed no detectable activity. During removal approximately 15 yd³ of contaminated soil were excavated and taken to TA-54 for land farming. The excavation was backfilled with clean soil (McInroy 1995, 15-16-597).

TABLE 6-17

PRS NO.	STRUCTURE NO.	DESCRIPTION	INSTALLATION DATE	REMOVAL DATE
16-022(b)	TA-16-197	4 000-gal. unleaded gas tank; served TA-16-195	1952	1990
16-033(a)	Unknown	1 000-gal. diesel tank; served TA-16-16	*	1987
16-033(b)	TA-16-196	4 000-gal. leaded gas tank; served TA-16-195	1951	1987
16-033(f)	TA-16-512	1 000-gal. oil tank; served TA-16-502	1944	1968
16-033(g)	TA-16-1138	Sizes unknown; served	1951	*
16-033(h)	TA-16-1139	TA-16-260		
16-033(i)	TA-16-1341	Two 5 000-gal. leaded gas	Early	1980
16-033(j)	TA-16-1342	tanks; served TA-16-195	1950s	

UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS REMOVED FROM TA-16

* Unknown

SWMU 16-033(f) is a 1 000-gal. oil tank once located at **T**-Site approximately 750 ft northeast of TA-16-54. In 1960 the tank was found to be free of radioactivity and toxic contamination (Blackwell 1960, 15-16-114). According to a 1983 memo, no hazards were found to be associated with TA-16-512 (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076).

SWMUs 16-033(g,h) consist of two tanks, TA-16-1138 and TA-16-1139, that were located west of TA-16-260. The Comprehensive Environmental Assessment Response Program (CEARP) Report lists these structures as possibly being aboveground (DOE 1987, 0264); however, after examination of Engineering drawing ENG-C 3556, it is apparent the tanks were underground. Construction started on the tanks in 1949 and was completed in February 1951. According to the Engineering structure list, the tanks were abandoned in place in July 1951 when the main steam line was connected to TA-16-260. The tanks were found to be free of radioactive and toxic contamination before removal (date unknown) (Buckland 1967, 15-16-131). This survey presumably occurred after the tanks had been excavated prior to removal.

It is assumed the tanks were used temporarily for heating during the construction of building TA-16-260. There was no visible evidence indicating that the tanks are still present. A preliminary site screening with a metal detector did not locate the tanks. It is presumed that they have been removed, probably in 1967 when the contamination survey was conducted.

SWMUs 16-033(i,j) are leaded gasoline tanks, TA-16-1341 and TA-16-1342, that once served the TA-16 service station, TA-16-195. The installation dates for the tanks are unknown but it is estimated to be the early 1950s when TA-16-195 was constructed. The tanks were located on the west side of the building and were removed in 1980 with no record of historical releases (LANL 1990, 0145).

SWMU 16-033(b) is a 4 000-gal. leaded gasoline tank, TA-16-196, once located next to tank TA-16-197 on the east side of the TA-16 service station, TA-16-195. Before removal in 1987 attempts were made to remove soil contaminated by TA-16-196, but further excavation was impeded by the adjacent UST, TA-16-197, and TA-16-195 (LANL 1990, 0145; McInroy 1995, 15-16-596).

SWMU 16-022(b) is a 4 000-gal. unleaded gasoline tank, TA-16-197. In 1987 tank TA-16-197 tested tight. During removal in 1990, scale was dislodged from the bottom of the tank resulting in a 15 to 20 gal. release of residual fuel (LANL 1990, 0145). The contaminated soil was removed immediately. The area of contamination was cleaned in compliance with the Corrective Action Section, Part XII of the New Mexico Underground Storage Tank Regulations (Tiedman 1990, 15-16-540). After the contaminated soil was removed, a 10 000-gal. tank, TA-16-1465, was installed.

On August 3, 1994, during repairs to tank TA-16-1465, light soil staining and a faint odor of gasoline was discovered. The NMED, Underground Storage Tank Bureau was notified of a gasoline release from overfills of tank TA-16-1465. This structure, which has been incorrectly identified as TA-16-197 in a few ESH-19 reports, is a 10 000-gal. unleaded gasoline tank that was installed after the removal of TA-16-197 (Garvey 1994, 15-16-573). TA-16-1465 is located in the pit where tanks TA-16-196 and TA-16-197 were located.

On September 28, 1994, two boreholes were drilled to a depth of 35 ft to determine the extent of contamination. Samples were collected for volatile analysis. Because there is known residual contamination from TA-16-196, additional samples were collected and analyzed for total lead. Five of the six holes were drilled on the east side of the service station, TA-16-195. An additional hole was drilled on the west side of the building. See Fig. 6-1 for a map of the borehole locations. The sample results from the borehole on the west side determined that no contamination had spread under TA-16-195; in addition, the results did not indicate residual contamination from former tanks TA-16-1341 and TA-16-1342 (LANL 1994, 15-16-585). These two tanks contained leaded gasoline and are recommended for NFA [see SWMUs 16-033 (i,j)]. The analytical results of the soil samples taken from the six boreholes, listed in Tables 6-18 and 6-19, show elevated levels of BTEX (benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene, and xylene) in borehole number one at 30 ft below land surface. This suggests historical contamination from tank TA-16-196.

On October 12, 1994, all potentially contaminated soil in the vicinity of the spill was removed. Ninety-four drums of soil were collected and sampled for BTEX. Eighty-one of the 94 drums did not contain any measurable amount of gasoline; 13 drums contained measurable amounts of gasoline; 5 of the 13 drums contained benzene over 10 mg/kg. Eighty-nine drums were sent to Sigma Mesa for reuse and the remaining five were shipped to the Chemical and Mixed Waste Science Group (CST-5) to be managed as a special waste under New Mexico Solid Waste Management Regulations (SWMR-4) (Carmichael 1994, 15-16-588).



Fig. 6-1. Borehole locations for sampling near TA-16-1465.

TABLE 6-18

DEPTH/BORING (IN FT)	1	2	3	4	5	6
5	N/S ^b	N/S	2	1	1	50
10	N/S	N/S	40	1	150	50
15	N/S	N/S	13	2	100	400
20	N/S	450	32	1	50	450
25	350	375	6	8	20	500
30	400	с	5	С	50	550
35	400	с	3	1	С	500

HEADSPACE TEST RESULTS^a

^aAll readings measure BTEX in parts per million (ppm)

^bN/S Interval not sampled

^C No test conducted on this sample, poor sample recovery

TABLE 6-19

BOREHOLE	DEPTH (FT)	BENZENE	TOLUENE	ETHYLBENZENE	TOTAL XYLENES
1	35-35.5	0.69	34	36	280
2	30-30.5	<0.05	<0.05	<0.05	<0.05
3	10-11.5	<0.05	<0.05	<0.05	<0.05
4	35-36	<0.05	<0.05	<0.05	<0.05
5	10-11.5	<0.05	<0.05	<0.05	<0.05
6	35-36	<0.1	<0.1	<0.10	1.1

RESULTS OF LABORATORY ANALYSES^a

^aAll concentrations are in mg/kg; 1 000 µg/kg = 1 mg/kg = 1 ppm

Additional samples from borehole number one were collected February 13, 1995. A sample was collected at 44 ft and submitted for BTEX analysis using EPA Method 8020. The analysis found the following: benzene 1.5 ppm; toluene 47 ppm; ethyl benzene 33 ppm; and total xylenes 260 ppm. Drilling continued in an effort to define the lateral and vertical extent of contamination because total xylenes were above 100 ppm (Geo-Test 1995, 15-16-602). An air drill was necessary to continue drilling past 45 ft. On April 28, 1995, the

air drill lost the core stem at 65 ft. The stem could not be retrieved and the hole was abandoned. Photoionization detector readings at 55, 60, and 65 ft were 2 300, 2 068, and 1 908 ppm, respectively (Cook 1995, 15-16-607). Currently, ESH-19 is in the process of submitting a report to the New Mexico UST Bureau on the drilling status at this site.

6.7.3.2.2 Recommendation

NFA for RCRA Facility Investigation is being proposed for SWMUs 16-033(a,f,g,h) because historical information does not suggest that a potential threat to human health and the environment exists. Furthermore, fuel USTs do not manage hazardous waste. The common practice of closing USTs prior to 1988 consisted of removing obviously contaminated soil and collecting samples for analysis of extraction procedure (EP) toxicity test levels of lead, benzene, toluene, and xylene prior to regrading the excavation (Barr 1988, 15-16-589).

The current investigation of TA-16-1465 is addressing potential contamination from tanks TA-16-196, TA-16-197, TA-16-1341, and TA-16-1342 [SWMUs 16-022(b) and 16-033(b,i,j)]. LANL is in the process of determining extent of contamination from tank TA-16-1465; in doing so, any residual contamination from past releases from the other tanks that served the service station will be included in the overall investigation.

6.7.3.2.3 Rationale for Recommendation

Once the extent of contamination is determined for the current investigation of TA-16-1465, further action will be taken under the current UST program in accordance with the New Mexico state regulations. According to the New Mexico UST Regulation §803, Applicability To Previously Closed UST Systems, the owner and operators of the UST are not obligated to assess the excavation zone of USTs closed prior to December 22, 1988, if releases from the decommissioned UST pose no current or potential threat to human health or the environment. For all these tanks, depth to groundwater is greater than 1,000 ft with no private wells within 1,000 ft or municipal water wells within one mile (LANL 1993, 1094).

6.7.4 SWMUs and AOCs Recommended for No Further Action Under Step Four of the Four-Step Criteria

Step four of the four-step criteria includes PRSs that have been characterized or remediated in accordance with current applicable regulations, and available data indicate that contaminants of concern are either not present or present in concentrations that would pose an acceptable level of risk (Project Consistency Team, 1210).

6.7.4.1 Transformers, SWMUs 16-027(a-c)

6.7.4.1.1 Background

SWMU 16-027(a) is a leak from a transformer in TA-16-260, an HE processing building. Located in equipment room 110 (PCB ID #5607, 5608), the transformer was estimated to be 31 to 35 years old and contained 100- to 500-gal. of PCB-containing dielectric oil listed at concentrations greater than 500 000 ppm (LANL 1990, 0145). May 17, 1990, a spill characterized as a high-concentration spill involving a nonreportable release occurred. Contaminated materials were nonimpervious solid surfaces: the concrete floor, a concrete sump, and an impervious metal sump cover. Cleanup was initiated immediately using the double-wash/double-rinse method. The cleanup was completed on the following day using the scabbler concrete removal system. There were subsequent cleanup efforts four other times in employed Penetone® 1990. These cleanup efforts the double-wash/double-rinse method and the Capsur® foam method. Final cleanup was November 13, 1990 (LANL 1990, 15-16-386).

During the cleanup process, the concrete floor under the transformer was scabbled, sampled, and encapsulated. The concrete floor and sump under the pump and drums were cleaned using various cleaning agents, including the Capsur® cleaning method. The sump lid was taken to Area G at TA-54. After ascertaining that all grid points were below the 100 μ g/100 cm² required by 40 CFR 761.125, the entire floor of the room was encapsulated using two-tone epoxy coating. Post-cleanup sampling, based on Midwest Research Institute guidelines, was conducted after each cleanup effort. Surface samples were taken using gauze, cyclohexane, and 100 cm²

templates (LANL 1990, 15-16-386). The transformer was drained, removed, and replaced with a non-PCB-containing unit on July 9, 1990 (Sandoval 1994, 15-16-546).

SWMU 16-027(b) is a leak from a transformer (PCB ID #5020) located on the second floor of TA-16-540, a steam plant. The transformer contained 100 to 500 gal. of PCB-containing dielectric oil listed at concentrations greater than 500 000 ppm. The SWMU Report characterizes the transformer as being 31 to 35 years old and having a moderate leak (LANL 1990, 0145). According to a memo from the Environmental Protection Group (ESH-8), the transformer at this location had a slow leak, but never spilled onto surfaces that required cleanup (Sandoval 1994, 15-16-546). The leak was contained in a metal can, so no spill records exist. The transformer began a retrofill process July 15, 1988, and was reclassified as non-PCB containing September 6, 1990. Disposal of the PCB-containing and retrofill fluids is documented (Sandoval 1994, 15-16-546).

SWMU 16-027(c) is a leak from a transformer, TA-16-563, that contained 100 to 500 gal. of 25 000 ppm PCB-containing oil. The outside, fenced, pad-mounted transformer was located approximately 100 ft north of TA-16-430. It was built in 1952 and was also known as Station 9. A moderate leak of 0.5 to 1 gal. was detected July 28, 1987, and the surrounding soil and concrete pad on which the transformer was mounted underwent immediate cleanup. The concrete was cleaned with the double-wash/double-rinse method, and the soil was removed to a depth of approximately 2.5 ft, drummed, and taken to Area G at TA-54. In 1989 inspection and sampling revealed a need for further cleanup. Several sampling and cleanup efforts followed, including removal of the transformer and concrete pad, excavation of the contaminated soil underneath the pad, and replacement of the transformer and pad with a non-PCB transformer and a new pad (Bailey 1993, 15-16-547; Sandoval 1994, 15-16-546). A total of 691 ft³ of soil was removed from TA-16-563. The site cleanup was completed November 12, 1992, when samples revealed PCB levels below the 25 ppm Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA) mandated cleanup levels for low-contact outdoor electrical substations (Bailey 1993, 15-16-547).

6.7.4.1.2 Recommendation

SWMUs 16-027(a,b,c) are recommended for NFA because they have been remediated and no longer pose a threat to human health or the environment.

6.7.4.1.3 Rationale for Recommendation

Each of these transformer leaks has been remediated in accordance with the Toxic Substances Control Act regulations found in 40 CFR 761. The PCB-containing dielectric oil units have been replaced with non-PCB units as noted above (Sandoval 1994, 15-16-546).

6.7.4.2 Operational Release, SWMU 16-021(b)

6.7.4.2.1 Background

SWMU 16-021(b) is the soil associated with a hydraulic fluid leak from TA-16-430. A leak of approximately 500 gal. of hydraulic fluid occurred in Bay 1 of TA-16-430 June 6, 1986. The exact volume of hydraulic fluid that reached the environment is not known. The incident was reported immediately after the leak occurred. Analysis of the fluid indicated that no PCBs or HE were present (Nylander 1986, 15-16-590). The spill area was bermed and trenched to avoid spreading contamination into the canyon. Although the spill documentation states that the spill was not cleaned up further, a site visit shows that the outfall area has been cleaned up. The rock surface at the outfall appears to have been chipped off, removing contaminated material.

6.7.4.2.2 Recommendation

SWMU 16-021(b) is recommended for NFA because the site has been remediated and no longer poses a threat to human health or the environment.

6.7.4.2.3 Rationale for Recommendation

The hydraulic fluid used at the time of the leak was an ethylene glycol/water mixture, which has a relatively high screening action level (SAL) in soil (160 000 mg/kg) and is easily dissolved and washed away (Nylander 1986, 15-16-590; LANL 1993, 1017). The hydraulic fluid did not contain PCBs or

HE. Given the rapid response to the leak, the low toxicity of the spilled material, and the apparent cleanup, there is no longer a problem at this outfall.

6.8 SWMU Recommended for Voluntary Corrective Action

6.8.1 SWMU Recommended for No Further Action due to Voluntary Corrective Action Under Step Four of the Four-Step Criteria

The following SWMU is recommended for NFA because it is in the process of undergoing voluntary corrective action (VCA) in fiscal year 1995. During the VCA process, the SWMU will be completely remediated in accordance with current applicable state or federal regulations. Therefore, this SWMU is recommended for NFA under step four of the four-step criteria (Project Consistency Team, 1210).

6.8.1.1 Surface Disposal, SWMU 16-016(f)

6.8.1.1.1 Background

SWMU 16-016(f) is a construction debris site southeast of TA-16-360. The debris consists of black cellular glass foam material (Foamglas[®]) that is used for roof insulation and of miscellaneous materials such as aluminum cans, broken insulators, rusted wires, and cans. A piece of friable asbestos was also identified at the site (Paige 1995, 15-16-599).

6.8.1.1.2 Recommendation

SWMU 16-016(f) is recommended for NFA because it is undergoing VCA. The friable asbestos will be removed according to the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) and TSCA regulations. All other on-site debris will be evaluated for asbestos contamination and disposed of accordingly.

6.8.1.1.3 Rationale for Recommendation

SWMU 16-016(f) will be completely remediated during VCA in fiscal year 1995.

REFERENCES

Bailey, M., March 9, 1993. "Subcontract No. 9-S86-Y7575-1, Closure Report for Non-Reportable PCB Release at TA-16, Structure 563, Station 9," Johnson Controls World Services Letter from M. Bailey (JENV) to Raul Morales (LANL/EM-8), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Bailey 1993, 15-16-547)

Barr, A., May 20, 1988. "Definition of Release and Degree of Sampling and Analysis during Excavation of UST Removal," Los Alamos National Laboratory Record of Communication, between Karl Souder, Program Manager, Underground Storage Tank Program, New Mexico Environmental Improvement Division (NMEID), and Alice Barr (HSE-8), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Barr 1988, 15-16-589)

Blackwell, C. D., March 15, 1960. "Contamination Survey, TA-16," Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory Memorandum to S. E. Russo (ENG-3) from C. D. Blackwell (H-1), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Blackwell 1960, 15-16-114)

Blackwell, C. D., November 17, 1983. "Structures Removed From TA-16," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum HSE 8-83-794 to A. J. Ahlquist (HSE-8) from C. D. Blackwell (HSE-1), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Blackwell 1983, 15-16-076)

Brooks, M. L., February 11, 1970. "S-Site Demolition and Restoration Projects to Remove Potential Explosive Hazards," Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory Memorandum to L. P. Reinig from M. L. Brooks (GMX-3), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Brooks 1970, 15-16-002)

Buckland, C., July 10, 1967. "Radioactive Contamination Survey: S-Site Structures, TA-16," Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory Memorandum, to S.E. Russo (ENG-3) from Carl Buckland (H-1), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Buckland 1967, 15-16-131)

Buckland, C., March 4, 1970. "Contamination Survey: Buildings and Structures, TA-16," Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory Memorandum to S. E. Russo (ENG-3) from C. Buckland, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Buckland 1970, 15-16-005) Carmichael, J., November 2, 1994. "Gasoline Spill Waste Drums at TA-16," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum ESH-19/HSWS-94-0399 to H. Nunes (FSS-6) from J. Carmichael (ESH-19), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Carmichael 1994, 15-16-588)

Cook, P., May 2, 1995. Personal communication (FAX transmittal) to Margo Buksa (CST-18), pertaining to drilling results at TA-16-1465, Los ALamos National Laborartory, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Cook 1995, 15-16-607)

DOE (US Department of Energy), October 1987. "Phase I: Installation Assessment, Los Alamos National Laboratory," Volumes 1 and 2, (draft), Comprehensive Environmental Assessment and Response Program, Albuquerque Operations Office, Albuquerque, New Mexico. (DOE 1987, 0264)

Drake, R. V., August 12, 1949. Destruction of Building A-1 at S-Site (TA-16)," Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory Memorandum to J. Belten (ENG) from R. V. Drake, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Drake 1949, 15-16-144)

Garvey, D., September 2, 1994. "Thirty Day Notification Report for UST TA-16-197," Los Alamos National Laboratory Letter ESH-8/HSWS-94-0284 to Anthony Moreland (NMED) from Doris Garvey (ESH-8), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Garvey 1994, 15-16-573)

Garvey, D., September 12, 1994. "Soil Sampling Results on Underground Storage Tank TA-16-205 Site Investigation," Los Alamos National Laboratory Letter ESH-8/HSWS-94-0289 to Anthony Moreland (NMED) from Doris Garvey (ESH-8), Los Alamos, New Mexico (Garvey 1994, 15-16-574)

Geo-Test, Inc., March 13, 1995. "Additional Subsurface Exploration and Laboratory Analysis Service Station Building #195 S-Site, TA-16," Geo-Test Job No. 1-50203 prepared for Johnson Controls, Inc., Albuquerque, New Mexico. (Geo-Test 1995, 15-16-602)

Gunderson, T., November 4, 1993. "Thirty Day Notification Report to NMED UST Bureau," Letter from Tom Gunderson (LANL/EM-DO) to Anthony Moreland (NMED), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Gunderson 1993, 15-16-544) Hickmott, D.D., December 15, 1994. "X-Ray Diffraction Pattern of Fibrous Material," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum CST-ER/94-35 to File from D. D. Hickmott (EES-1), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Hickmott 1994, 15-16-567)

LANL (Los Alamos National Laboratory), May 17, 1990. "Spill Report for TA-16 Building 260, Room 110," Los Alamos National Laboratory Spill Report from Michael Bailey, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (LANL 1990, 15-16-386)

LANL (Los Alamos National Laboratory), November 1990. "Solid Waste Management Units Report," Volumes I through IV, Los Alamos National Laboratory Report No. LA-UR-90-3400, prepared by International Technology Corporation under Contract 9-XS8-0062R-1, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (LANL 1990, 0145)

LANL (Los Alamos National Laboratory), March 1992. "Wastewater Stream Characterization for TA-16-300,301,302,303,304,305,306,307,308 and 319 at Los Alamos National Laboratory an Environmental Study, Characterization Report #2," Prepared for the Los Alamos National Laboratory under subcontract 9-XG8-2874P-1 by Santa Fe Engineering, Ltd., Santa Fe, New Mexico and Engineering and Information Resources (WX-12) Los Alamos National Laboratory, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (LANL 1992, 15-16-526)

LANL (Los Alamos National Laboratory), May 1992. "Wastewater Stream Characterization for TA-16-101, 410, 411, 413, 414, 415, 416, 418, 419, 435, 437, 442, 443, 444, 1364, 1366 and 1384 at Los Alamos National Laboratory an Environmental Study, Characterization Report #16," Prepared for the Los Alamos National Laboratory under subcontract 9-XG8-2874P-1 by Santa Fe Engineering, Ltd., Santa Fe, New Mexico and Engineering and Information Resources (WX-12) Los Alamos National Laboratory, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (LANL 1992, 15-16-534)

LANL (Los Alamos National Laboratory), July 1993. "RFI Work Plan for Operable Unit 1082," Los Alamos National Laboratory Report LA-UR-93-1196, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (LANL 1993, 1094)

ERID 20948

LANL (Los Alamos National Laboratory), November 1993. "Installation Work Plan for Environmental Restoration," Revision 3, Los Alamos National Laboratory Report LA-UR-93-3987, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (LANL 1993, 1017)

LANL (Los Alamos National Laboratory), April 28,1994. "Polychlorinated Biphenyls," Los Alamos National Laboratory Analytical Report #24215 by Kelly Hakonson (EM-9) for Daniel E. Bryant (ESH-8), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (LANL 1994, 15-16-562)

LANL (Los Alamos National Laboratory), May 1994. "RFI Work Plan for Operable Unit 1082," Addendum 1, Los Alamos National Laboratory Report LA-UR-94-1580, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (LANL 1994, 1160)

LANL (Los Alamos National Laboratory), October 26, 1994. "Sub-surface Exploration and Laboratory Analysis Service Station Building #195, S-Site, TA-16, Los Alamos National Laboratory," Geo Test Job No. 6-40902 for Los Alamos National Laboratory, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (LANL 1994, 15-16-585)

Longmire, P., C. Duffy, and S. Reneau, 1993. "Preliminary Background Elemental Concentrations In Bandelier Tuff and Selected Soil Series, 1993," unpublished report, Los Alamos National Laboratory, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Longmire et al. 1993, 0958)

Martin, W. B., November 17, 1993. "Early S-Site History: Lee Hilton Interview," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum CST-6-ER/BM-93-060 to File from W. B. Martin (CST-6), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Martin 1993, 15-16-477)

Martin, W.B., and D.D. Hickmott, September 27, 1994. "Early S-Site History, Lee Hilton Interview," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum CST-ER/BM-94-08 to File from Brad Martin (CST-6) and Don Hickmott (EES-1), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Martin and Hickmott 1994, 15-16-549)

McInroy, D., January 31, 1995. "Information Pertaining to the Removal of UST Structure Number TA-16-196," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum EM/ER:95-M004 to K. Paige (CST-7) from D. McInroy (EM/ER), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (McInroy 1995, 15-16-596)

McInroy, D., January 31, 1995. "Information Pertaining to the Removal of UST Associated with Building TA-16-16" Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum EM/ER:95-M003 to K. Paige (CST-7) from D. McInroy (EM/ER), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (McInroy 1995, 15-16-597)

Miller, E. L., April 26, 1994. "PCBs and Oil Switches," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum CST-ER/BM-94-12 to File from E. L. Miller (CST-6), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Miller 1994, 15-16-559)

Miller, E., June 3, 1994. "Uses Given to Building at S-Site Held by Zia during 40s and 50s," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum CST-ER/BM-94-13 to File from E. Miller (CST-6), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Miller 1994, 15-16-552)

Moreland, A., June 27, 1994. "No Further Action Required at TA-16 for UST #TA-16-205," State of New Mexico Environment Department Letter from Anthony Moreland (NMED) to Joseph Vozella (LAAO), Santa Fe, New Mexico. (Moreland 1994, 15-16-568)

Nylander, C., June 17, 1986. "Oil Spill at TA-16, Building 430, "Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum HSE8-86-689 to Jesse Aragon, HSE Division Leader, through Thomas C. Gunderson, HSE-8 Group Leader, from Charlie Nylander (HSE-8), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Nylander 1986, 15-16-590)

Paige, K. S., April 4, 1994. "Phone Conversation with Richard Benevidez, 4/4/94," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum KSP-94-007 to File from K. S. Paige (CST-4), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Paige 1994, 15-16-551)

Paige, K. S., April 13, 1994. "Interview with Clarence Courtright," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum CST-ER/KSP-94-008 to File from K. S. Paige (CST-4), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Paige 1994, 15-16-586)

Paige, K. S., May 9, 1994. "Telephone Conversation with Clarence Courtright regarding TA-16-478, 5/9/94," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum KSP-94-012 to File from K. S. Paige (CST-4), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Paige 1994, 15-16-557) Paige, K. S., July 5, 1994. "Discussion with Pete Velarde regarding Removal of Underground Storage Tank," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum CST-ER-KSP-020 to File from K. S. Paige (CST-4), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Paige 1994, 15-16-563)

Paige, K. S., July 15, 1994. "Phone Conversation Regarding SWMU 16-026(t), TA-16-207," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum KSP-94-013 to File from K. S. Paige (CST-4), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Paige 1994, 15-16-565)

Paige, K. S., July 21, 1994. "Conversation with Richard Browning, July 20, 1994," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum CST-ER DSP 94-014 to File from Karen Schultz Paige (CST-4), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Paige 1994, 15-16-566)

Paige, K. S., September 30, 1994. "Phone Conversation with Royce Taylor, ESA-12," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum CST-ER/KSP-94-015 to File from K. S. Paige (CST-4), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Paige 1994, 15-16-576)

Paige, K. S., October 4, 1994. "Telephone Conversation with Burt Martinez," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum CST-ER/KSP 94-016 to File from K. S. Paige (CST-4), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Paige 1994, 15-16-577)

Paige, K. S., February 22, 1995. "Asbestos Analysis for SWMU 16-016(f) at TA-16-360," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum CST-ER/KSP 95-004 to File from Karen Schultz Paige (CST-8), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Paige 1995, 15-16-599)

Paige, K. S., February 24, 1995. "Telephone Conversation with Charles Blackwell," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum CST/ER KSP 95-005 to File from Karen Schultz Paige (CST-7), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Paige 1995, 15-16-600)

Project Consistency Team. "Project Consistency Team (PCT) Policy Memo Notebook," EM/ER:95-PCT-015,"No Further Action Criteria, March 28, 1995," Environmental Restoration Project, Los Alamos National Laboratory, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Project Consistency Team, 1210) Russo, S. E., June 10, 1970. "Return of Laboratory Structures, S-Site, TA-16," Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory Memorandum to F.C. Sander (LAAO) from S.E. Russo (ENG-3), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Russo 1970, 15-16-015)

Sandoval, T. M., January 4, 1994. "Request for PCB-Related Documentation," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum EM-8/WQ&H:94-008 to M. Buksa (CST-6) from T. M. Sandoval (EM-8), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Sandoval 1994, 15-16-546)

Tidwell, V., June 9, 1989. Telephone Conversation to Lynn Parkinson (WX-3), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Tidwell 1989, 15-16-097)

Tiedman, A.J., September 13, 1990. Los Alamos National Laboratory Letter from Allen J. Tiedman (LANL/ADO) to Harry T. Season, Jr. (DOE), Los Alamos, New Mexico. **(Tiedman 1990, 5-16-540)**

Voelz, G. L., July 12, 1979. Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory Letter from G. L. Voelz (H-DO) to H. E. Roser, Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Voelz 1979, 15-37-003)

Watanabe, S. P., July 27, 1994. "HE Spot Tests at TA-16-222 and TA-16-360," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum CST-ER SPW 94-004 to File from S. P. Watanabe (CST-6), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Watanabe 1994, 15-16-569)

Wechsler, B., August 8, 1994. "Copies of PCB Program Procedures, Federal Regulations, and EPA Guidance References," Los Alamos National Laboratory Memorandum ESH-8/WQ&H-94-363 to Margo Booksa [sic] (EM-ER) and Steve Watanabe (EM-ER), Los Alamos, New Mexico. (Wechsler 1994, 15-16-595)

July 1995

ATTACHMENT A TO CHAPTER 6

This attachment contains cleanup documentation for SWMUs recommended for no further action under step 3 or 4 of the the four-step criteria.

The SWMU, its location in Chapter 6, and associated documentation are listed below:

SWMU	Subsection	Documentation
16-021(b)	6.7.4.2	15-16-590
16-022(a)	6.7.3.1	15-16-568
16-022(b)	6.7.3.2	15-16-540, 15-16-585
16-025(e2,f2,h2)	6.6.3.1	15-16-144
16-027(a-c)	6.7.4.1	15-16-546, 15-16, 547, 15-16-386
16-033(a,b,f-j)	6.7.3.2	15-16-076, 15-16-114, 15-16-131,
		15-16-602, 15-16-607, 15-16-588,
		15-16-585, 15-16-597, 15-16-596
6-0000

.....

memorandum

OATE: June 17, 1986 Jesse Aragon, TO-HSE Division Leader, MS K491 Thomas C. Gunderson, MAIL STOP/TELEPHONE: K490/7-5021 THRU: HSE-8 Group Leader, MS K490 CLN Charlie Nylander, HSE-8 HSE8-86-689 SYMBOL: FROM: 430 CLA OIL SPILL AT TA-16, BUILDING 340 SUBJECT:

_os Allamos

Los Alamos National Laboratory Los Alamos New Mexico 87545

On June 6, 1986 I received a telephone call at 10:00 a.m. from Larry Hupke, Waste Management Group (HSE-7), informing me that there had been an oil spill at TA-16, Building 340730Larry was proceeding to the site following our telephone conversation, and I was to follow shortly thereafter. At approximately 10:30 a.m. I arrived at the site and recorded the following facts and observations. 930

At approximately 9:00 on June 6,/1986 the 20,000 pound hydraulic press in Bay 1 of Building 340 was being readied for use. The hydraulic system that operates the press is located in the basement below it. As the hydraulic system was turned on, the operators heard noises and upon investigation found that the hydraulic system was leaking and oil was spreading across the basement floor. Approximately 500 to 600 gallons of hydraulic oil spread across the basement floor, flowed through a floor drain, and drained from the floor drain outlet pipe onto a terrace above Water Canyon.

By 10:30 a.m. the floor drain had been plugged, and the discharge from the pipe was a mere trickle. A berm and trench had been constructed on the terrace to prevent the flow of any oil reaching the canyon. The wetted area on the terrace was estimated to be approximately 1,000 square feet. Samples of the oil were collected and analyzed for high explosive (HE) content and polychlorinated biphenyls (PCB). A specialized janitorial crew from Zia was called in to clean up the basement. The janitorial crew (trained in cleaning up PCBs) was instructed to wear booties, gloves, and coveralls. However, because the hydraulic equipment had been checked for PCBs two years ago, the negative PCB analytical results, the oil was presumed to be non-PCB and respirators were not recommended.

June 17, 1986

J. Aragon HSE8-86-689

The hydraulic oil was a water-based Texaco Safety Oil #46. This is a water solution of blends of high and low molecular weight glycols. It contains approximately 40 percent water. Upon analysis the oil did not have any PCB contamination, nor did it contain HE waste. Therefore, based upon the Materials Data Sheet for the water-Lased oil and the laboratory results, the fluids that had spilled onto the terrace were left in place. Professional judgement would indicate that biological degradation, sorption, and volatilization will render the spill innocuous to the environment.

-2-

Glycol is not listed under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act's (CERCLA) "List of Hazardous Substances and Reportable Quantities," so we were not required to notify the Environmental Protection Agency's National Response Center. Glycol is also not a Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) waste.

However, the spill did discharge through an outlet pipe that was not permitted under our National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit. We are evaluating the options of requesting a permit for this outfall or eliminating it.

TCG:tp

Cy: W. Hansen, HSE-DO, MS K491 R. Garde, HSE-7, MS E518 A. Drypolcher, HSE-8, MS K490 C. Nylander, HSE-8, MS K490 J. White, HSE-8, MS K490 D. Garvey, ECMO, MS A120 J. Mitchell, ADLC, MS A189



June 27, 1994

Los Alamos National Laboratory Joe Vozella, LAAO Environment, Safety & Health Group Mailstop A316 Los Alamos, NM 87545

RE: NO FURTHER ACTION REQUIRED AT TA-16 FOR UST #TA-16-205

STATE OF NEW MEXICO CO Dear Mr. Vozella:

Sincerely,

The New Mexico Environment Department has reviewed the Status Report received on June 24, 1994 for the above-referenced site. The Department has determined that this site does not pose an immediate public health or environmental threat for the following reasons:

16-000568

- 1. The horizontal extent of soil contamination has been adequately defined. The vertical extent of soil contamination has been adequately defined and is greater than 900 feet above high static ground water.
- 2. Depth to ground water at the site is greater than 1000 feet below ground surface.

Based on this information, the Department requires no additional work at this time, although it reserves the right to do so should petroleum hydrocarbon contamination resulting in a threat to public health or the environment is discovered.

Thank you for your cooperation in this matter.

Bruce King Governor

Judith M. Espinosa Secretary

Ron Curry Deputy Secretary

Trarold Runnels Bullding : 11 so Serrancis Drive 12 so Serrancis Drive 13 so Serrancis Drive 14 so Serrancis Drive 15 so Serrancis D

Anthony Moreland Geologist Underground Storage Tank Bureau

cc: NMED District II Office NMED Espanola Field Office i Jeff Carmichael, Los Alamos National Laboratory, ES&H Group, Mailstop K490, Los Alamos, New Mexico 87545

Prima By Training Prime Group/Division HSE-3: 90-34.5 David McInroy 17-0819 HSE-3: 90-34.5 Subject Scatter & LD, Leak from Laboratory UST Post mark & Dive 17-0819 Priotidication to State EID, Leak from Laboratory UST Post mark & Dive 17-0819 Priotidication to State EID, Leak from Laboratory UST Post mark & Dive 17-0819 Priotidication to State EID, Leak from Laboratory UST 17-0810 17-0819 Priotidication Dorigon 17-0819 17-0819 17-0829 Priotidication Dorigon 17-0819 17-0819 17-0829 Priotidication Dorigon 18 17-0829 18 17-0829 Priotidication Dorigon 18 17-0829 18 17-0829 Priotidication Dorigon 18 17-0829 18 17-0829 Priotidication Dorigon 18 18 18 18 Priotidication Dorigon 18 18 18 18 Priotidication Dorigon 1 18 18 18 <td< th=""><th></th><th>os Natio os New</th><th>nai L Mati</th><th>abon co 87</th><th>Diory 7545</th><th></th><th>A</th><th>sso</th><th></th><th>E D</th><th></th><th>RF</th><th></th><th>PERA</th><th>121/3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1</th><th></th><th></th><th></th></td<>		os Natio os New	nai L Mati	abon co 87	Diory 7545		A	sso		E D		RF		PERA	121/3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1			
Devid McInroy 7-0819 HSE-8:00-845 Somet Interval Dec. Mapping Dec. Mapping Dec. Decidication to State EID, Leak from Laboratory UST Mapping Dec. Mapping Dec. Mapping Dec. Mapping Decidication to State State Dec. ACTION Sec. Mapping Decidication Mapping Decidication to State State Dec. ACTION Sec. Mapping Decidication Action Do ACTION Sec. Mapping Decidication Action Action Do Action Action Sec. Action Action Action Do Action Action Action Action Action	ginated I	By (Name)						Phone			Group/Divis	sion			1997 			
Surgents Date (# Applicable) Surgents Date (# Applicable) Striffication to State EID, Leak from Laboratory UST P-500 DR ACTION Sec Provide Original Date ACTION Sec Provides Original Date A100 DR ACTION Sec Provide Original Date ACTION Sec Provides Original Date A100 DR ACTION Sec Provide Original Date ACTION Sec Provide Original Date A100 DR ACTION Sec Provide Original Date ACTION Sec Provide Original Date A100 DR ACTION Sec Provide Original Date ACTION Sec Provide Original Date A100 DR ACTION Sec Provide Original Date Original Date A120 Dr De Original Date ACTION Sec Provide Original Date A120 Dr De Original Date ACTION Sec Provide Original Date A120 Dr De Original Date Original Date Original Date A120 Dr De Original Date Original Date A120 ADMM D A11 PA ACTION DATE ORIginal Date A120 ADMM D A12 A120 PA ACTION DATE A120 ADMM D A12 A120 ADMM D A120 ADMM	Dav:	id McIr	roy					7-08	319		HSE-8	:90-	845			្រ ភ្លាំឆ្នាំ អ	ំ ខ្លែង ខ្ល	1
Gillization to state LD, Leak from Laboratory UST PS/Mathematical State LD, Leak from Laboratory UST Cost and the state LD, Leak from Laboratory UST Cost and the state LD, Leak from Laboratory UST Cost and the state LD, Leak from Laboratory UST Cost and the state LD, LD, Leak from Laboratory UST 7.500 DR ATOM Se mean Add monor Add monor Add the state LD of the state LD	Subject										Suspense D	ate (li	Applicab	ie) L	1		1	-
A TAUL CAS A TAUL A TAUL A TAUL A TAUL See Area A TAUL CAS A TAUL A TAUL A TAUL See Area SEE Area A TAUL CAS A TAUL A TAUL A TAUL A TAUL See Area A TAUL CAS A TAUL A TAUL A TAUL A TAUL A TAUL A TAUL CAS A TAUL A TAUL A TAUL A TAUL A TAUL A TAUL CAS A TAUL	OTITIC	ation t	:0 50 Initiale	ate	LLD, Lea	IK I	Prom La	Dira	Lory	UST	ACTION	Sec	Phone/MS	Orice	Turk	4/		- 234i
A100 DIR A130 CRM 0733 ISEC 7.4188 7.4131 ENS 7.4131 ENS 7.4233 ISEC 4.101 DD A7416 Frain A120 DA ISEC 7.4188 A120 DA 2 7.4216 Frain ISEC G731 SA0 7.4353 LG 7.4216 Frain ISEC Frain ISEC G731 SA0 7.4353 LG 7.4216 Frain ISEC Frain ISEC Frain ISEC Frain 7.4353 LG 7.4445 Frain ISEC Frain </td <td>7-510</td> <td>1</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>004.</td> <td>7-4515</td> <td>011120</td> <td></td> <td>00.0</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>5-2448</td> <td></td> <td>TI</td> <td>100</td> <td>2021 2792)</td> <td></td>	7-510	1				004.	7-4515	011120		00.0			5-2448		TI	100	2021 2792)	
7.4188 7.4218 7.4218 7.4218 A100 DD 2 4.811 HSE 2.4218 4.11 5.2179 SAO A120 AD 2 4.811 HSE 2.4218 5.2179 SAO A120 AD 2 4.811 HSE 2.4249 G731 SAO A120 DEP 7.4218 F850 IS 5.2179 SAO A120 DEP 7.4353 AST 7.4353 AST 6.1246 A120 DEP 0.472 MEC 7.4558 R 7.4353 A120 DEP 0.472 MEC 7.4353 A.450 CAM4 7.4370 A120 EUD 0.7230 0.5 6 A150 CAM4 7.3970 A120 EUD 7.7301 1 K490 1 K490 HSF. A120 EVEC 1 A18 PA 3 A180 T.500 MM F.100 A120 EVEC 1 K490 HSF. HSF. HSF.100 M F.100 HSF.100 M F.100<	A100			ļ			A150	CRM					G733	ISEC		(2775) (1	7.384 (S)	3 · · ·
Altor DD Altor Alt	7-416	8		· ·			7-6131				}		7-3535					
A120 A0 2 7.4218 HSE 67.31 SAC A120 DEP 13 5.444 7.4355 5.1244 7.4555 A120 DEP 13 5.444 7.4355 7.4449 7.4355 A120 DEP 14.247 MEC 7.4355 7.4449 7.4855 A120 DEP 17.357 3. 7.4849 7.4849 7.4855 A120 DEP 17.4919 7.591 6 A150 CRM4 A120 DEP 17.391 6 A150 CRM4 7.4970 A120 DEP 17.391 6 A150 CRM4 7.4970 A120 DEP 17.391 6 A150 CRM4 7.4970 4 A120 ANMININ 1 7.502 M M.444 M.444 7.4938 1 7.4970 1 K490 HSE-8 M.444 A118 PA 3 A182 IC M.444 A120 DEF M.444 M.4490 HSE-8 M.444 M.444	A101	DD	<u> </u>			 	M719	ENG	1.10	A 13 1	<u>}</u>		A120	QA	<u> </u>	ļ		
2 A120 A12 A13 Hise Hise A120 A121	7-939	0				1,	7-4218		TAIN	0/4.			5-2179		ł			
A120 OEP G H3 Status P300 IS E584 SNM A120 OEP G H3 Status P300 IS P300 <	7-353			61		<u> </u>	7-4355	HSE	<u> </u>	712	f		5-1248	SAU	 			{
7.3535 JS 7.4849 7.4849 7.4849 7.8858 IR A120 DEP D472 MEC 7.7364 IR 7.7364 IR A120 BUD G728 OS G G A150 CRM-4 7.7364 IR 4 A120 BUD G728 OS G G A150 CRM-4 7.7364 4 A120 ADMIN (2) A.5770 G728 OS G G 7.7320 IR IR 7.7320 IR IR 7.7320 IR IR 7.7320 IR IR <t< td=""><td>A120</td><td>DEP</td><td>6</td><td>43</td><td>signed</td><td></td><td>P360</td><td>IS</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>E584</td><td>SNM</td><td></td><td>-</td><td></td><td></td></t<>	A120	DEP	6	43	signed		P360	IS					E584	SNM		-		
A120 DEP D472 MEC PA868 IR 7-9380 ASST 7.5911 6 A150 CRM-4 1 A120 BUD 7.5720 3 A183 C 7-9380 ASST 7.5720 3 A183 C 1 7-9380 ASST 7.5720 3 A183 C 1 1 7-9380 ASST 7.5720 1 K490 HSE-BUNK 1 WHAT: This is a written notification to the State's UST Bureau informing them of leak from a Laboratory UST. This motification is a requirement of the State's UST Regulations. DISCUSSION: 0 The State has been verbally notified of the occurrence. 0 This notification must be postmarked by Friday September 14, 1990. 0 Problem, clean-up has already taken place. Approve and sign ASAP to meet regulatory deadline. AUCC S. T(13 / 9 D)	7-353	IS JS	†			†	7-4849		<u> </u>		<u> </u>	1	7-8558			1		
7.9300 ASST 6 7.5720 4 A120 BUD 7.5720 6 7.3970 4 A120 ADMMAR D 7.5720 7.3970 3 A183 LC 4.7.300 7.4330 A110 PA 3 A183 LC 4.7.370 MM 7.4390 EXEC 7.511 G 7.520 A.118 PA 3 A183 LC 4.7.370 7.4390 EXEC 7.2121 A.118 PA 3 A183 LC 4.7.5720 A120 EXEC 7.2121 A.118 PA 3 A183 LC 4.7.5720 A120 EXEC 7.2121 A.118 PA 3 A183 LC 4.7.5720 MHAT: This notification to the State's UST Bureau Informing them of leak from a Laboratory UST. This notification must be postmarked by Friday September 14, 1990. 0 Problem, clean-up has already taken place. RECOMMENDATION: Approve and sign ASAP to meet regulatory deadline. Aumod - Addumed Al.3 /9 D MOUNC Al.3 /9 D Al.3 /9 D	A120	DEP	<u> </u>				D472	MEC	L	ļ	<u> </u>		P368	IR				
A120 BUD G728 OS G73970 4 A120 ADMIN ML D A118 PA 3 A183 LC H7, dV 7-4398 A120 ADMIN ML D A118 PA 3 A183 LC H7, dV 7-4398 A120 EXEC A118 PA 3 A183 LC H7, dV A120 EXEC A118 PA 3 A183 LC H7, dV A120 EXEC A118 PA 3 A183 LC H7, dV A120 EXEC A118 PA 3 A183 LC H7, dV A120 EXEC A118 PA 3 A183 LC H7, dV A120 EXEC M988 OM 1 K490 HSE-8 H7 WHAT: This is a written notification to the State's UST Bureau informing them of leak from a Laboratory UST. This notification must be postmarked by Friday September 14, 1990. O Problem, clean-up has already taken place. RECOMMENDATION: Approve and sign ASAP to meet regulatory deadline. AUAUA<	7-939	0 ASST	ł				7-5911			ł		c	7-7320					1
4 A120 ANIONING D A118 PA 3 A183 LC To T	7.030					╂	G729				<u> </u>	<u>•</u>	A150			<u> </u>		
7-4998 A120 EXEC 7-2121 M998 OM 1 K490 7-502 M 7/3 Myrmad WHAT: This is a written notification to the State's UST Bureau informing them of leak from a Laboratory UST. This notification is a requirement of the State's UST Regulations. DISCUSSION: o The State has been verbally notified of the occurrence. o This notification must be postmarked by Friday September 14, 1990. o Problem, clean-up has already taken place. RECOMMENDATION: Approve and sign ASAP to meet regulatory deadline. Maged - Jackana Maged - Jackana	4 A120		Mr.	3	ļ		A118	PA		ł	ļ	3	A183		1 ste	1/2	de	-
A120 EXEC M998 OM 1 K490 HSE-Bit 173 Mmmm WHAT: This is a written notification to the State's UST Bureau informing them of leak from a Laboratory UST. This notification is a requirement of the State's UST Regulations. DISCUSSION: 0 The State has been verbally notified of the occurrence. 0 This notification must be postmarked by Friday September 14, 1990. 0 Problem, clean-up has already taken place. RECOMMENDATION: Approve and sign ASAP to meet regulatory deadline. Output Output Output 4005 9 70 70 70 70 0 1 K490 HSE-Bit 14, 1990. 1 1 1 0 The State has been verbally notified of the occurrence. 0 1 1 1990. 1 1990. 0 Problem, clean-up has already taken place. RECOMMENDATION: Approve and sign ASAP to meet regulatory deadline. Output Output Output Output 1 13 19 0 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 <td< td=""><td>7-499</td><td>8</td><td>16-</td><td><u> </u></td><td>+<u>-</u></td><td></td><td>7-2121</td><td></td><td><u> </u></td><td></td><td><u> </u></td><td>1</td><td></td><td>7-50</td><td>2747</td><td>V.</td><td>Andrea</td><td></td></td<>	7-499	8	16-	<u> </u>	+ <u>-</u>		7-2121		<u> </u>		<u> </u>	1		7-50	2747	V.	Andrea	
WHAT: This is a written notification to the State's UST Bureau informing them of leak from a Laboratory UST. This notification is a requirement of the State's UST Regulations. DISCUSSION: • The State has been verbally notified of the occurrence. • This notification must be postmarked by Friday September 14, 1990. • Problem, clean-up has already taken place. RECOMMENDATION: Approve and sign ASAP to meet regulatory deadline. • The State has been verbally notified of the occurrence. • This notification must be postmarked by Friday September 14, 1990. • Problem, clean-up has already taken place. RECOMMENDATION: Approve and sign ASAP to meet regulatory deadline. • The state has been verbally not for the state of the occurrence. • This notification must be postmarked by Friday September 14, 1990. • Problem, clean-up has already taken place. RECOMMENDATION: Approve and sign ASAP to meet regulatory deadline. • The state has been verbally have been been been been been been been be	<u>A12</u>	EXEC	L			1	M998	ОМ				<u>11</u>	<u>K490</u>	HSE-	. <u>8</u> 0%.	72	N/	
 The State has been verbally notified of the occurrence. This notification must be postmarked by Friday September 14, 1990. Problem, clean-up has already taken place. RECOMMENDATION: Approve and sign ASAP to meet regulatory deadline.	•	This inform This m	is a ming notii	writ them ficat	ten noti 1 of leak 1 ion is a	ific c fi a re	cation rom a I equiren	to t Labor ment	he Si atory of th	tate y US ne Si	's UST Bu T. tate's U:	urea ST	iu					
 This notification must be postmarked by Friday September 14, 1990. Problem, clean-up has already taken place. RECOMMENDATION: Approve and sign ASAP to meet regulatory deadline. Approve and sign ASAP to meet regulatory deadline. 	DIS	This : inform This m Regula CUSSIO	is a ming notif atior N:	writ then ficat ns.	ten noti of leak ion is a	ifia c fi a re	cation rom a I equiren	to t Labor nent	he Si atory of th	tate y US he Si	's UST Bu T. tate's U	ure: ST	iu	-				
 Problem, clean-up has already taken place. RECOMMENDATION: Approve and sign ASAP to meet regulatory deadline. Approve and sign ASAP to meet regulatory deadline. 	DIS	This finform This m Regula CUSSIO	is a ming notif ntior N:	writ then ficat ns.	ten noti of leak ion is a has bee	ific c fi a re	cation rom a I equiren	to t Labor ment Ly no	he S atory of th tific	tate y US ne Si ed o	's UST B T. tate's U f the occ	urea ST curr	u rence.	•				
RECOMMENDATION: Approve and sign ASAF to meet regulatory deadline. Over which a define of the second	DIS	This inform This T Regula CUSSION O	is a ming notif ntior N: The S This	writ then ficat ns. State noti	ten noti of leak ion is a has bee lficatior	ific c fi a re en v	cation rom a I equiren verball ust be	to t Labor ment Ly no post:	he Si atory of th tific marke	tate y US ne S ed o	's UST Bu T. tate's U f the occ y Friday	ure: ST cur: Sej	au rence. otembe	r 14,	199	0.		
Approve and sign ASAP to meet regulatory deadline.	DIS	This inform This m Regula CUSSION O	is a ming notif ation N: The S This ProbJ	writ then ficat is. State noti lem,	ten noti of leak ion is a has bee lfication clean-up	ific fi reen v n mu	cation rom a I equiren verball ust be as alre	to t Labor ment Ly no post eady	he Si atory of th tific marke takes	tate y US ne S ed o ed b n pl	's UST B T. tate's U f the occ y Friday ace.	urea ST Curi Sej	u rence. ptembe	r 14,	199	0.		
ougunes Jourel - delivered 9/13/90	DIS	This inform This T Regula CUSSION O O O MMENDA	is a ning notif ation N: The S This Probl	writ then ficat s. State noti Lem,	ten noti of leak ion is a has bee fication clean-up	ific c fi a re en v n mu n mu	cation rom a I equiren verball ust be as alre	to t Labor ment Ly no post eady	he Si atory of th tific marke takes	tate y US ne S ed o ed by n pl.	's UST Ba T. tate's U f the occ y Friday ace.	urea ST Curr Sej	au rence. ptembe	r 14,	199	0.		
ougener hand-delivered 9/13/90	DIS	This inform This m Regula CUSSION O O O O MMENDA Approv	is a ning notif ation N: The S This Probl ATION ve an	writ then ficat State noti Lem, N: nd si	ten noti of leak ion is a has bee ification clean-up ign ASAP	ific fi a re en v n mu p ha	cation rom a I equiren verball ust be as alre meet n	to t Labor ment Ly no post eady regul	he Si atory of the tific market takes atory	tate y US ne S ed o ed by n pl y de	's UST Ba T. tate's U f the occ y Friday ace. adline.	urea ST Cur: Sej	au rence. ptembe	r 14,	199	0.		
bund-delivered 9/13/90	DIS	This inform This m Regula CUSSION O O O MMENDA Approv	is a ning hotif ation N: The S This Probl ATION ve an	writ then ficat s. State noti lem, N: nd si	ten noti of leak ion is a has bee ificatior clean-up ign ASAP	ific fi a re n mu n mu n ha	cation rom a I equiren verball ust be as alre meet n	to t Labor ment ly no post eady regul	he Si atory of th tific marke takes atory	tate y US he S ed o ed b n pl y de	's UST Ba T. tate's U f the occ y Friday ace. adline.	urea ST Cur: Sej	au rence. ptembe	r 14,	199	0.		
Land - delivered 9/13/90	DIS	This : inform This n Regula CUSSION O O O MMENDA Approv	is a ning hotif ation N: The S This ProbJ ATION Ve an	writ then ficat s. State noti Lem, N: nd si	ten noti of leak ion is a has bee ificatior clean-up ign ASAP	ific fi a re n mu p ha to	verball ust be meet n	to t Labor ment ly no post eady regul	he Si atory of th tific marke takes atory	tate y US he S ed o ed b n pl y de	's UST Ba T. tate's US f the occ y Friday ace. adline.	urea ST Curr Sey	au rence. ptembe	r 14,	199	0.		
Jamel - delivered 9/13/90	DIS REC	This inform This n Regula CUSSION O O O MMENDA Approv	is a ming hotif ation N: The S This ProbJ ATION ve an	writ then ficat s. State noti Lem, N: nd si	ten noti of leak ion is a has bee lfication clean-up ign ASAP	ific fi a re n mu p ha to	verball ust be meet n	to t Labor ment ly no post eady regul	he Si atory of th tific marke takes	tate y US he S ed o ed b n pl y de	's UST Ba T. tate's US f the occ y Friday ace. adline.	urea ST Curr Sep	au rence. otembe	r 14,	199	o.		
9/13/9D	DIS	This inform This r Regula CUSSION O O O MMENDA Approv	is a ning notif ation N: The S This ProbJ ATION ve an	writ then ficat State noti Lem, N: nd si	ten noti of leak ion is a has bee ification clean-up ign ASAP	ific fi a re a re a mu b ha to	cation rom a I equiren verball ust be as alre meet n	to t Labor ment Ly no post eady regul	he Si atory of the tific marke takey atory	tate y US ne S ed o ed b n pl y de	's UST Ba T. tate's US f the occ y Friday ace. adline.	urea ST Cur: Sej	au rence. otembe	r 14,	199	o.		
	DIS	This inform This m Regula CUSSION O O O MMENDA Approv	is a ning hotif ation N: The S This ProbJ ATION ve an	writ then ficat s. State noti Lem, N: nd si	ten noti of leak ion is a has bee ification clean-up ign ASAP	ific fi a re n mu p ha to	verball ust be meet n	to t Labor nent ly no post eady regul	he Si atory of th tific marke takes atory	tate y US he S ed o ed b n pl y de	's UST Ba T. tate's US f the occ y Friday ace. adline.	ures ST Sej	ence.	r 14,	199 مى	o.		i
	DIS	This inform This r Regula CUSSION O CONSION O CONSENDA Approv	is a ning notif ation N: The S This Probl ATION ve an	writ then ficat State noti Lem, N: nd si	ten noti of leak ion is a has bee ification clean-up ign ASAP	ific fi a re a mu b ha to	cation rom a I equiren verball ust be as alre meet n	to t Labor ment Ly no post eady regul	he Si atory of the tific market taket	tate y US he S ed o ed b n pl y de	's UST Ba T. tate's U f the occ y Friday ace. adline.	urea ST Sey	ence. otembe	r 14, 2(- 1/3	199 199	0. V D	Ner	re

Form Number 1123 (3/90) - Replaces Form Number 1123 (12/89) which is obsolete



Los Alamos National Laboratory Los Alamos, New Mexico 87545 DATE: IN REPLY REFER TO: MAIL STOP: TELEPHONE:

September 13, 1990
 ADO:90-670
 A120
 (505) 665-2167
 (FTS) 855-2167

Mr. Harry T. Season, Jr. Area Manager U.S. Department of Energy Los Alamos Area Office Los Alamos, NM 87544

Dear Mr. Season:

Enclosed for your review and approval/disapproval is a self-explanatory letter to the New Mexico Environmental Improvement Division's Underground Storage Tank (UST) Bureau (EID/USTB) transmitting the notification of a release from one of the Laboratory's USTs. This written notification is required by Part II of the UST regulations enforced by the EID. It must be postmarked no later than seven days after discovery of a potential release from a tank system. This potential release was discovered on September 8, and this notice should be postmarked no later then September 14, 1990.

Dave McInroy of my staff and Paul Schumann of your staff notified the State verbally on Monday the 10th. This is also required under Part II of the regulations. This release has since been cleaned up to comply with the State's Corrective Action Section of the Underground Storage Tank Regulations.

Should you have any questions, please feel free to call Dave McInroy of the Environmental Protection Group (HSE-8) at 667-0819.

Sincerely,

LH Contro for

Allen J. Tiedman Associate Director for Operations

AJT:DM/gr

Enc. a/s

Cy: J. Puckett, HSE-DO, MS K491 K. Hargis, (HSE-8:90-845), HSE-8, MS K490 J. White, HSE-8, MS K490 CRM-4, MS A150 Circ. File

DRAFT CERTIFIED MAIL RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Ms. Marcy Leavitt, Program Manager Corrective Action Section Underground Storage Tank Bureau 1100 St. Francis Drive Harold Runnels Building Santa Fe, New Mexico 87503

Dear Ms. Leavitt:

RE: RELEASE DISCOVERED DURING TANK REMOVAL

On September 8, 1990 an underground storage tank was removed from the ground at Technical Area 16. The tank was a 4,000 gallon gasoline tank registered with your bureau as Tank ID number TA-16-197. The tank was tested "tight" in 1987 and showed no problems with inventory records and subsequent reconciliation. During the removal, scale was dislodged from the bottom of the tank, resulting in a release of the residual fuel that could not be pumped prior to removal. It was estimated that between 15 and 20 gallons of fuel was released in the area of the excavation. This contaminated soil was immediately removed and will be land farmed with other soil removed from the excavated area (presumed to be contaminated from overfill practices). area of contamination has been cleaned up in a matter to comply with the Corrective Action Section, Part XII of the Underground Storage Tank Regulations.

As required in Part II, Section 204 B, of the Underground Storage Tank Regulations, we are notifying you in writing of this occurrence. As required in Part II, Section 204, A, of the UST regulations, 24 hour notification was made to your bureau on Monday, September 10, to Mr. Reid Allen. This call was made by Dave McInroy of Los Alamos National Laboratory and Paul Schumann of the Department of Energy at 2:30 p.m.

Should you have any questions, please contact Paul Schumann of my staff at 665-5027.

Sincerely,

Harry T. Season Jr. Acting Area Manager

HTS:DM/gr

Cy: A. Tiedman, LANL, ADO, MS A120 J. Puckett, LANL, HSE-DO, MS K491 K. Hargis, (HSE-8:90-845-1), HSE-8, MS K490 J. White, HSE-8, MS K490



JEO-EST

ANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

LAS CRUCES, NEW MEXICO

I-IEST October 26, 1994 Ms. Paula T. Cook EMCM Johnson Controls Inc P.O. Box 50 Los Alamos, New Mexico 87544 Re: Subsurface Exploration and Laboratory Analysis, Service Station Building #195, S-Site, TA-16, Los Alamos National Laboratory, Los Alamos, New Mexico, Geo-Test Job No. 6-40902 Dear Ms. Cooks the Pres Geo-Test, Inc., is pleased to provide the enclosed data summary report presenting the procedures and findings of the subsurface exploration and laboratory analysis of soil samples for the gasoline release at the referenced site. The report includes data from our subsurface exploration and soil sampling, field screening of soil samples and laboratory analysis. This report completes the tasks described the Los Alamos National Laboratory purchase order #AM5895MLA-J8 dated August 27, 1994 confirmed on September 26, 1994 by Ms. Terry Cde Baca The following report has been prepared by the undersigned. It has been a pleasure to serve you on this project and we look forward to providing services to you in the future. Should there be any questions concerning this report, please feel free to call me at (505) 857-0933. Sincerely, GEO-TEST, INC. AT STATE John R. Dickey, EI PARKWAY DRIVE Environmental Services Manager STATE OF SALES enclosure 505) 471-2245 Copies to: Addressee (3). **INGTON, NE**

TEST, INC.

MEXICO

471-1101

MEXICO

857-0933 505) 857-0803

A FE.

Johnson Controls Inc. Geo-Test Job No. 6-40902 October 26, 1994 Page 3

	TAF	BLE 1 - HEA	D SPACE 7	TEST RESUL	rs	
Depth/Boring	1	2	3	4	5	6
5 Feet	N/S	N/S	2	1	1	50
10 Feet	N/S	N/S	40	1	150	50
15 Feet	N/S	N/S	13	2	100	400
20 Feet	N/S	450	·32	1	50	450
25 Feet	350	375	6	8	20	500
30 Feet	400	1444 24	5	•	50	550
35 feet 2	400	•	3	1	•	500

All readings are in parts per million (ppm)

no test conducted on this sample, poor sample recovery ې د د ولوگونۍ کې کې د د د د ولوکو کې کې کې کې کې کې کې کې

N/S - interval not sampled

The results of the field screening are also presented on the boring logs (Appendix A). Based on the sample recovery, the quality of the sample, and the results of the field screening the following soil samples were submitted to the laboratory: 1 @ 35-351/2, 2 @ 30-301/2, 3 @ 10-111/2, 4 @ 35-36', 5 @ 10-111/2', and 6 @ 35-36

والمعادية والمعادية والمعادين 3.0 LABORATORY ANALYSIS

"The start of

Soil samples from the borings were analyzed for benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene, and total xylenes (BTEX) according to EPA Method 8020 by Hall Environmental Analysis Laboratory in Albuquerque. The results of the analyses and the laboratory quality control reports are presented in Appendix B. Table 2 lists the results of soil sample analyses:

33500 (M-2). - A-See. 1

DEO-IES1

Copyright @ 1994, Geo-Test, Inc.

Johnson Controls Inc. Geo-Test Job No. 6-40902

11

DEO-IEST

October 26, 1994 Page 4

TABLE 2	- RESULTS	OF LABO	RATORY ANA	LYSES
SAMPLE	Benzene	Toluene	Ethylbenzene	Total Xylenes
1 @ 35-351/2'	0.69	34	36	280
2 @ 30-301/2'	< 0.05	<0.05	<0.05	<0.05
3 @ 10-1114'	< 0.05	< 0.05	< 0.05	<0.05
4 @ 35-36'	< 0.05	<0.05	< 0.05	< 0.05
5 @ 10-11½'	< 0.05	<0.05	<0.05	< 0.05
6 @ 35-36'	<0.1	<0.1	<0.1 0	• 1.1

All concentrations are in mg/Kg 1000 μ g/Kg = 1000 ppb = 1 mg/Kg = 1 ppm



								<u> </u>			Chkd. By:	Ji
ng Co). <u> </u>	GEO-TE	ST, INC.		<u> </u>	<u>Casing</u>	Sampler		Ground	Mater R	leadings	1
an					тур та	·		Date	13000	Depth	Casing	Stab.
ep.			18	0.00.00/	I.U	./0.0.	1/0				<u> </u>	┼───
Star	-t 9/		End _	9/29/94		BEF WI.			┼───┼			┝───
tion					Nam	mer rall			┨╼╍╌╴┨	·	· }	┥
ev.				mation	Uth			<u>↓</u>		10	L. Fauisses	
L		58	Deeth		010		mple L Classification	.	Soil	Ĥ		
0 G	No.	TYPE	(Ft.)	6"	(pp#)			<u> </u>		ŝ		
\mathbb{Z}												
						· .	•				6	
].		Ì			1	
]	•		•			
	-		1					i				
	1	SS	5-6.5	5	50							
]//]				ļ		
% []					l	
]						
				6								
	2	SS	10-11.5	6	50							
<i>[</i>]			1	_ ··· _			and and the b		C1			
<i>[</i>]			1			TUFF, low to medi	um plasticity,	1				
//						HOIST Drown						
				19								
	3	SS	15-16.5	20	400	an the second						
								1				
						And the second second	•			1	[
				20 -								
	4	SS	20-21.5		450		·			Ì		
					·#.,	- 29- 						
					*0	Teleform .	<u> </u>					
111		<u> </u>		<u> </u>	· ·		-	ł			1	
	5	SS	25-26.5		500							
						TUFF; weided, co	mpetent, non					
		<u> </u>				and the second	· · ·					
Ш							· ·					
S	S = s	nlit e		ler			ter Encountered			-		
Ū	0 = u 0 = a	ndistu	rbed ring									
ĉ	Š = C	ontinu	ous sampl	er	۰.							
						and the second se				_		

		0- TE	ST, IN	iC.				SERVICE STATION BUILDIN S-SITE, TA-16	G #195,		Boring No. 6
	١.	104 W 10001	ASHING ERQUE, BS7-09	TON NE NEW ME 33	XICO 871	13		LOS ALAMOS HATIONAL LAB LOS ALAMOS, HEW MEXICO	ORATORY		File No. 6-40902
٠	مسسا			 5 ~				Sample	Unified	R	Equipment Installer
		LOG	NO.	TYPE	Depth (Ft.)	Blows/	PID (ppm)	Description & Classification	Soil Class	H K S	
	Ļ	hΤ	6	SS	30-30.2	50/2"	550				
					· · ·						
1											
				[┥	
٩	35		7	SS	35-35.1	50/1*	500	STOPPED AUGER AT 35 FEET SAMPLER REFUSAL AT 35 FEET 1 INCH			
		l	ļ	ļ	 	[{				
				<u> </u>	ļ						
			┝				<u> </u>			I	
	40		├	{	 -	[{	4	•		-
Ĵ,			}	<u> </u>	}	}	<u> </u>				
-			├							1	
2				{						Í	
٦											
	45			<u> </u> -							
1											1
											1
	50										
									L.		
			;								
	55										-
1				·							{
Ì								1			
4	20										
ł	1							· ·		ĺ	1
Ī	1		<u> </u>		<u> </u>						
Í-	_			L			[[L
ļ	R		S = s	plit sp	con sampl	er					
			N = 0 C = a S = 0	Uger cu	ittings	.r.					
	ř		-a = C	GGCIMUC	∼a sampte	ы.					
-	3										•
_ *	itra	țifi	cation	lines	represent	t approx	imate boun	daries between soil types, transitions may	y be gradual.	Wat	er level
ľ	the	ings r th	have an the	been ma	de at til sent at ti	nes and i ne time :	under cond measuremen	itions stated. Fluctuations of groundwate ts were made.	er may occur (t sub 1	o factors
											Boring No. 4 6

Results for sample: 6@35-36'

Date collected: 9/29/94	Date received: 10/3/94
Date extracted: 10/4/94	Date analyzed: 10/6/94
Client: Geo-Test, Inc.	
Project Name: TA-16 Bldg. #195	Heal #: 9409085-6
Project Manager: John Dickey	Sampled by: T. Byres
Matrix: Non-Aqueous	

Test: EPA 8020

Compound	Amount .	<u>Units</u>
Benzene	<0.1	PPM (MG/KG)
Toluene	<0.1	PPM (MG/KG)
Ethylbenzene	<0.1	PPM (MG/KG)
Total Xylenes	1.1	PPM (MG/KG)

BFB (Surrogate) Recovery = 100,%

Dilution Factor = 2

195 * 4 JAN 196

16-000144

12 August 1949

Department of Ingineering, Litz. John Dolton

1. V. Bruke

Destruction of Deliding 1-1 at 5-81te (21-16)

Leference: MI

-, ,000

State All Provide

This is to report to you the successful destruction at 6:33 A.K., 12 August 1949 of the explosive in Engasime A-2 at 5-81te mentioned in our recent newsrandum to you.

The explanion consol the eccentially complete densities of the building, which may now be said no langer to exist. The destruction was accomplished without damage to other property and without injury to persensel.

Photographs of the recelt, which also are instructive about barriesds performance, are being propared and will be forwarded to you for your infernation and files,

I. V. Drake

HVD/vb ee: J. Bolton L. H. Kightever R. Reider E. Keyt File (3)

Shrenkranz and Reider wase at the site as observers; the incident was carried out without difficulty. It appeared as though there was more than 125 pounds of explosive.' The barricading was barely distincted and the extra sandbagging placed at the portal was effective.

RR

16-000546

Los Alamos

Los Alamos National Laboratory Los Alamos, New Mexico 87545

memorandum

TO: Margo Buksa, CST-6, MS E525

DATE: January 4, 1994

FROM: Tina Marie Sandoval, EM-8

MAIL STOP/TELEPHONE:

K490/5-2288

SYMBOL: EM-8/WQ&H:94-008

SUBJECT: REQUEST FOR PCB-RELATED DOCUMENTATION

Enclosed are copies of documentation you requested regarding PCB-related activities, including spills, which occurred at three Laboratory S-Site locations. Below is a summary of these activities.

TA-16-260, Room 110 (Transformer PCB s ID #'s 85-5607 and 85-5608)

- A PCB spill cleanup was performed at this location on May 17, 1990. EM-8/JENV PCB spill documentation is enclosed.
- The two transformers noted were drained, removed and replaced with non-PCB units on July 9, 1990. Disposal information is enclosed.

TA-16-540, (Transformer PCB ID # 85-5020)

- The transformer noted at this location had a slow leak, but never spilled onto surfaces which required cleanup. The spilled oil was contained in a coffee can which was disposed of. No EM-8/JENV PCB spill records exist for the spill activities occurring at this location.
- The transformer noted above, began a UNISON retrofill process on July 15, 1988 and was re-classified to non-PCB on September 6, 1990. Disposal information for the PCB oil and retrofill fluids is enclosed.

TA-16-563, Station 9, (Transformer PCB ID # 86-4997, which is located next to Building TA-16-430)

- A PCB spill cleanup was performed at this location beginning July 28, 1987. EM-8/JENV PCB spill documentation is enclosed.
- This transformer was drained, removed and replaced with a non-PCB unit in September 1993. In-service documentation reflecting a REM/STO (removal/storage) date is enclosed.

I hope the information provided herein satisfies your request. Please call me if you have any questions.

TMS/em

Enc. a/s

Cy: EM-8 Reading File, w/o enc. Circ. File, w/o enc. E

Linin k

Children of

der Arten

ļ

į

-

PCB TRANSFORMER/MISCELLANEOUS DISPOSAL REPORT (2500 ppm)

OWNER	PCB	Ŧ	PCB WT.	DESCRIPTION	REM/STO	TRANSPORT	L	DESTRUCT	CERT.#	SHIP WT.	MANIF.#	F
	[D#	Y	(kg)		DATE	DATE	0	DATE		(lbs)		
		Ρ			yy/mm/dd	yy/mn/dd	С	yy/ma/dd				
		E	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • •									
FNG-4	855573	RŤ	2336.02	TRANSFORMER	89/12/08	90/03/16	U1	90/06/20	U0006318	32495	10144	296
ENG-4	855574	RT	2336.02	TRANSFORMER	89/12/04	90/03/16	U1	90/03/21	U0003574		10144	296
ENG-4	855575	RT	2336.02	TRANSFORMER	89/11/27	90/03/16	U1	90/08/01	U0006240)	10144	296
ENG-4	855576	RŤ	2336.02	TRANSFORMER	89/11/30	90/03/16	U1	90/06/20	U0006317	,	10144	297
ENG-4	855577	RT	2866.73	TRANSFORMER	89/11/07	90/03/16	U1	90/07/27	U0006241		10144	297
ENG-4	855ó07	RT	1734.99	TRANSFORMER	90/05/17	90/07/09	U1	90/10/26	U0006445	10350	11039	346
ENG-4	855608	RT	1734.99	TRANSFORMER	90/05/17	90/07/09	U1	90/10/26	U0006444	,	11039	346
WX-3	902089	RT	2103.00	TRANSFORMER	90/05/04	90/07/16	U1	90/10/26	U0006454	3700	0007203	365
wx-3	902090	RT	2103.00	TRANSFORMER	90/ 05/0 4	90/07/16	U1	90/10/26	U0006453	1	0007203	365
101	855001	RT	3923.61	TRANSFORMER	90/09/05	90/09/10	U1	90/12/06	U0006545	40070	0007281	365
JCI	8550 02	RT	3923.61	TRANSFORMER	90/09/05	90/09/10	U1	90/09/20	U0004196	1	0007281	365
JCI	855006	RT	3742.17	TRANSFORMER	90/08/21	90/09/10	U1	90/12/06	U0006543		0007281	365
JCI	855007	RT	3655.99	TRANSFORMER	90/08/21	90/09/10	U1	90/12/06	U0006544	,	0007281	366
JCI	855000	RT	3923.61	TRANSFORMER	90/09/07	90/09/17	U1	90/09/28	U0004362	12918	0007306	366
JCI	855003	RT	1355.80	TRANSFORMER	90/09/12	90/09/17	V1	90/12/06	U0006554	•	0007306	366
JCI	855005	RT	235.87	TRANSFORMER	90/09/14	90/09/17	ป1	91/03/23	U0006686	I	0007306	366
1-6	909061	VP	101.15	VAC PUMP - DRAINED, FLUSHED	90/01/11	90/01/11	G	90/01/11	NONE	223	R-\$900386	389
1-6	919062	VP	101.15	BOOSTER PUMP - DRAINED, FLUSHED	90/02/06	90/02/06	G	90/02/06	NONE	223	R-S900390	389

TOTAL PCB WT(kg)= 40849.75

TOTAL PCB WEIGHT SHIPPED (lbs)= 99979

, .

18

PAGE 12

RT=RADIAL TRANSFORMER VP=VACUUM PUMP

.

9 . 20

K

24

3.4

PCB OIL/SOIL/RETROFILL FLUIDS/DISPOSAL REPORT

OWNER	PCB	PCB WT.	DESCRIPTION	REM/STO	TRANSPORT	£	DESTRUCT	CERT.#	SHIP WT.	MANTE	FORM#
	ID#	(kg)		DATE	DATE	0	DATE		(lbs)		1 010174
				yy/mn/dd	yy/ma/dd	C	yy/mm/dd				
····•		•••••	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •								
JCT	0-493	302.30	6 OF 12 55 GAL DRIM - OTL (855002)	00/09/05	00/00/10		90 /00 /34	NONE			
JC1	0-494	302.30	7 OF 12 55 GAL DRIM - OTL (855002)	00/00/05	00/00/10		00/07/20 00/00/24	NONE		00122882	3709
JCI	0-495	302.30	8 OF 12 55 GAL DRIM - OIL (855002)	00/00/05	00/00/10		00/00/20	NONE		00122882	3710
101	0-496	302.30	9 OF 12 55 GAL DRIM - OIL (855002)	00/00/05	00/00/10		00/00/24	NONE		00122882	3711
101	0-497	302.30	10 OF 12 55 GAL DRIM - OT (855002)	20100105	00/00/10		00/00/20	NONE		00122882	3712
JOL	0-498	302 30	11 OF 12 55 GAL DRIM - OTL (855002)	00/00/05	00/00/10		00/00/26	NONE		00122882	3713
101	10-400	302 30	12 OF 12 55 GAL DRUM - OIL (855002)	90/09/03	90/07/17	~	90/09/20	NONE		00122882	3714
101	0-500	302.30	1 OF 14 55 GAL DRUM - OIL (055002)	90/09/03	90/09/19	ĸ	70/09/20	NONE		00122882	3715
101	0-501	302.30	2 OF 14 55 GAL DRUM - OIL (855000)	00/07/12	90/09/19	А.	70/09/20	NONE		00122882	3716
101	0-502	302.30	Z OF 14 55 GAL DRUM - OIL (855000)	90/09/12	90/09/19	ĸ	90/09/20	NONE		00122882	3717
101	0-502	302.30	5 OF 14 55 GAL DRUM - OIL (855000)	90/09/12	90/09/19	ĸ	90/09/26	NONE		00122882	3718
	0-50/	302.30	4 OF 14 33 GAL DRUM - OIL (833000)	90/09/12	90/09/19	ĸ	90/09/20	NONE		00122882	3719
301	0-505	302.30	5 OF 14 55 GAL DRUM - OIL (855000)	90/09/12	90/09/19	×	90/09/26	NONE		00122882	3720
101	0-505	302.30	6 OF 14 55 GAL DRUM - OIL (855000)	90/09/12	90/09/19	R	90/09/26	NONE		00122882	3721
101	0-507	302.30	7 OF 14 55 GAL DRUM - OIL (855000)	90/09/12	90/09/19	R	90/09/26	NONE		00122882	3722
301	0.507	302.30	8 OF 14 55 GAL DRUM - OIL (855000)	90/09/12	90/09/19	R	90/09/26	NONE		00122882	3723
301	0-508	302.30	9 OF 14 55 GAL DRUN - OIL (855000)	90/09/12	90/09/19	R	90/09/26	NONE		00122882	3724
JCI	0-309	502.50	10 OF 14 55 GAL DRUM - OIL (855000)	90/09/12	90/09/19	R	90/09/26	NONE		00122882	3725
JCI	0-510	302.30	11 OF 14 55 GAL DRUM - OIL (855000)	90/09/12	90/09/19	R	90/09/26	NONE		00122882	3726
JCI	0-511	302.30	12 OF 14 55 GAL DRUM - OIL (855000)	90/09/12	90/09/19	R	90/09/26	NONE		00122882	3727
101	0-512	302.30	13 OF 14 55 GAL DRUH - OIL (855000)	90/09/12	90/09/19	R	90/09/26	NONE		00122882	3728
JCI	0-513	302.30	14 OF 14 55 GAL DRUM - OIL (855000)	90/09/12	90/09/19	R	90/09/26	NONE		00122882	3729
1C1	0-514	302.30	1 OF 4 55 GAL DRUM - OIL (855003)	90/09/12	90/09/19	R	90/09/26	NONE		00122882	3730
1C1	0-515	302.30	2 OF 4 55 GAL ORUM - OIL (855003)	90/09/12	90/09/19	R	90/09/26	NONE		00122882	3731
JCI	0-516	302.30	3 OF 4 55 GAL DRUM - OIL (855003)	90/09/12	90/09/19	R	90/09/26	NONE		00122882	3732
JCI	0-517	302.30	4 OF 4 55 GAL DRUM - OIL (855003)	90/09/12	90/09/19	R	90/09/26	NONE		00122882	3733
K WX-12	0-518	302.30	1 OF 10 55 GAL DRUH - OIL (855607/8)	90/05/17	90/09/24	R	90/10/13	NONE	9140	00235492	3768
¥.WX-12	0-519	302.30	2 OF 10 55 GAL DRUM - OIL (855607/8)	90/05/17	90/09/24	R	90/10/13	NONE		00235492	3769
-WX-12	0-520	302.30	3 OF 10 55 GAL DRUH - OIL (855607/8)	90/05/17	90/09/24	R	90/10/20	NONE		00235492	3770
c WX-12	0-521	302.30	4 OF 10 55 GAL DRUH - OIL (855607/8)	90/05/17	90/09/24	R	90/10/20	NONE		00235492	3771
< WX-12	0-522	302.30	5 OF 10 55 GAL DRUM - OIL (855607/8)	90/05/17	90/09/24	R	90/10/13	NONE		00235492	3772
CWX-12	0-523	302.30	6 OF 10 55 GAL DRUN - OIL (855607/8)	90/05/17	90/09/24	R	90/10/13	NONE		00235492	3773
- WX-1Z	0-524	302.30	7 OF 10 55 GAL DRUH - OIL (855607/8)	90/05/17	90/09/24	R	90/10/13	NONE		00235492	3774
- WX-12	0-525	302.30	8 OF 10 55 GAL DRUN - OIL (855607/8)	90/05/17	90/09/24	R	90/10/13	NONE		00235492	3775
- WX-12	0-526	302.30	9 OF 10 55 GAL DRUM - OIL (855607/8)	90/05/17	90/09/24	R	90/10/13	NONE		00235492	3776
-WX-12	0-527	302.30	10 OF 10 55 GAL DRUN - OIL (855607/8)	90/05/17	90/09/24	R	90/10/20	NONE		00235492	3777
WX-12	0-528	161.40	1 OF 1 55 GAL DRUM + OIL (855607)	90/05/17	90/09/24	8	90/10/13	NONE		00235492	3778
WX-12	0-529	152.30	1 OF 1 55 GAL DRUM - OIL (855608)	90/05/17	90/09/24	R	90/10/20	NONE		00235492	3779
₩X-12	0-530	146.00	1 OF 1 55 GAL DRUM - FLUSH	90/05/17	90/09/24	R	90/10/20	NONE		00235492	3780

Ξ.

ŧ

• -.

AS OF: 12/31/88

PCB.	D I SPOSAL	REPORT	(011.7FLUSH/DEBRIS)
,	01010046		for pretaining the unit of

TA-16-540 PCB-ID # 85 20 Reclassified /UNISON NON-PC 3/6/90

PAGE

٠	OWNER	10#	TYPE WT(ka)	DESCRIPTION	REM/STO DATE yy/mm/dd	TRANSPORT DATE yy/mm/dd	DESTINATION	DESTRUCT DATE yy/mm/dd	CERT. #	SH1P พт.	MANIF#	FORM#
	PAN AM	0-12	188.60	1 DRUM DIL	87/10/21	88/01/14	ENSCO	88/02/16	32194	1769	AR262208	80
	PAN AM	0-13	178.60	1 DRUM OIL	87/10/21	88/01/14	ENSCO	88/02/16	32194		AR262208	81
	PAN AM	0-14	194.10	1 DRUM OIL	Ø7/10/21	08/01/14	ENSCO	88/02/16	32194		AR262208	82
•	PAN AM	0-15	182.20	1 DRUM DIL	87/10/21	89/01/14	ENSCO	88/02/16	32194		AR262208	83
	PAN AM	0-16	186.80	1 DRUM OIL	87/10/21	88/01/14	ENSCO	88/02/16	32193	983	AR262208	84
	PAN AM	0-17	178.60	1 DRUM OIL	87/10/20	88/01/14	ENSCO	88/02/16	32193		AR262208	85
	PAN AM	0-18	171.30	1 DRUM OIL	87/05/18	AA/01 *1 *			32186	415	AR262208	86
	MEC-DO	0-19	2843.10		Tid	at			32192	5333	AR262208	87
_	PAN AM	0-20	185.00	IL NOT	ma	-	,		32193	901	AR262208	88
•	PAN AM	0-21	196.90		Class	100	$, \tau -$		32193		AR262208	89
	MEC-DU	0-22	1/91.80	TH-16	SKUL	720 411			2191	6922	AR262208	90
-		0-23	1767.70				·····		72171	1764	HRZ62208	71
•	H5E-U/	0-24	426.80			,	Aland a	1	11/30	421	HRZ0ZZZ/	434
	HSE-/	0-27	174.1V 579 40	ED Aland Pon	hed	into 7	FLOOV C		10477	1837	AB343333	474
	HSE-/	0-20	728.80 533 70	There read					14808	424	AP261111	636
•	BON OH	0-27	170 50	10 Mars and		Slow	leaner		10479	3786	02262212	473
	PAN AM	0-20	125.00	in other surge	and .		. ~		0479	2700	AR262212	474
	PON OM	0-30	182.30		1-1-1	and w	1 coffee	·	0479		AR262212	475
•	PAN AM	0-31	179.50	101 pland ups	mai	nea a	/		0479		AR262212	476
	PAN AM	0-32	161.40	1 DF D	. (.		, ``	1 ma .	0479		AR262212	477
•	PAN AM	0-33	192.30	$1 \text{ DF}^{\vee} \neq 0$	+ 1the	transp	former !	war_	0479		AR262212	478
-	PAN AM	0-34	180.40	1 OF CAN UNUS C	1 (00-	1. Carry		A	0479		AR262212	479
	PAN AM	0-35	179.50	1 DF	, 1	11.2000	or to no	n-POB	0479		AR262212	480
•	PAN AM	0-36	183.20	1 DF ANTOMILIA	by c	UNFOU	NION	· · · -	0479		AR262212	481
-	ENG	0-37	254.00	1 DF / Let Water		-	1)479	421	AR262212	559
	ENG	0-38	60.90	1-	, 1	he re	nopul		1479	421	AR262212	560
•	ENG-01	0-39	45.00	155 on G/6/40			1100		'64 9	196	AR270803	1604
-	PAN AM	0-40	152.30	1 55	isted	on 7	15 100.		1790	370	AR270687	1605
	PAN AM	0-41	95.90	155 process 37	anca	/	•		'648	246	AR270803	1606
	PAN AM	0-42	176.40	1 55				00/06/07	40790	423	AR270687	1607
	HSE-7	0-43	45.40	1 55 UNUN VERIS	88/05/16	88/05/23	ENSCO	89/05/05	47648	135	AR2/0803	1600
	PAN AM	0-44	73.20	1 DRUM DEBRIS	88/06/08	88/06/28	ENSCO	89/05/26	48271	675	AR2/0688	1873
	PAN AM	0-45	25.00	1 DRUM DEBRIS	88/06/08	80/06/28	ENSCO	89/05/26	482/1		AR2/0699	
	HSE-7	0-46	149.50	1 DRUM DEBRIS	88/05/31	88/06/28	ENSCU	89/05/26	482/1	11700	AR2/0688	18/7
-	HSE-7	0-47	4904.50	26 DRUMS OF DIL	88/05/31	88/06/28	ENSLU	88/98/05	41214	11/00	HR2/0600	18/0
0	PAN AM	0-48	313.00	1 55 GALLON DRUM UIL	88/0//06	88/11/21	ENSLU	00/11/29	47227	297	AP270724	2272
	MST - 06	0-49	217.00	1 55 GALLUN DRUM UIL	00/07/06	88/11/21	ENSCU	00/11/29	47227	717	AB270724	2797
_	MEC-05	0-50	241.00	1 55 GALLUN DRUM UIL	88/08/24	00/11/21	ENSLU	00/11/27	42227	/1/	AP270724	2355
•	11EC-05	0-51	323,00	I 55 GALLON DRUG OIL	00/00/24	00/11/21	ENSCO	88/11/27	47227	439	AR270724	2356
	ULS-07	0-92	177.00	1 SE CALLON DRUH DEPPIC	00/07/27	00/11/21	ENSCO	00/11/2/		428	AR270724	2357
-	HSE-07	0-53		I 55 GALLUN DRUH DEBRIS	88/08/07	00/11/21		1 1 -		-20	AR270689	2358
	HSE-UZ	U-54	2/9.00	1 55 GHLLON DRUH DEBRIS	90/00/07	99/11/21	ENSCO			681	AR281063	2359
	HSE-07	U->>	1/1,00	1 55 CALLON DRUH DEBRIS	99/09/07 99/09/09	88/11/21	FNGCO				AR281063	2360
•	HSE-07	0-96	117.00	1 SS GALLON DRIM DEBRIS	88/08/05	88/11/21	ENSCO	11			AR281063	2361
	HSE-U/	U-7/	/7,UU 07.00	1 55 CALLON DRUM DERRIS	88/09/09	88/11/21	ENSCO				AR281063	2362
	PAN AT	0-98	82,00 200 00	1 55 CALLON DRUM DERRIS	88/09/20	88/11/21	ENSCO	11		1201	AR270689	2363
	PAN AM	U-59	720.00 ED0 00	1 55 CALLON DRUM DERVIS	88/09/20	88/11/21	FNSCO				AR270689	2364¥
19	A MAN AM	0-60	770.00		88207215	99207279	APTUS	88/09/14	+ 153947		11519	2465%
	A MAN AM +	055020	1200.00		88/07/14	- 88/07/29	APTUS	88/09/14	19396.5	1154	11519	2466
	CNG-U4 🚄	077777	1500.00	A DAGUD DIE		00: 07 · 27						

AS OF: 02/05/90

.

н () 1

, ·

PCB DISPOSAL REPORT (OIL/FLUSH/DEBRIS)

e.

.

د

OWNER	ID#	T WT(kg Y P	DESCRIPTION	REM/STO DATE yy/mm/dd	TRANSPORT DATE yy/mm/dd	D E S	DESTRUCT DATE yy/mm/dd	CERT#	SHIP WT (165)	MANIF#	FORM#
		E 				T 					
ENG-1	0~192	280.00	9 OF 9 55 GALLON DRUM - DIL (855577)	89/11/08	89/12/19	R	89/12/21	NUNE		00145468	2891
ENG-1	0-193	311.33	1 OF 7 55 GALLON DRUM - UIL (8555/5)	89/11/2/	89/12/19	Ř	89/12/21	NUNE		00145468	2892
ENG-1	0-194	311.33	2 OF 7 55 GALLON DRUM - UIL (8555/5)	89/11/2/	89/12/19	ĸ	89/12/21	NUNE		00147468	2893
ENG-1	0-195	311.33	3 OF 7 55 GALLON DRUM - 0(L (8555/5)	89/11/2/	89/12/19	R	89/12/21	NUNE		00147468	2894
ENG-1	0-196	311.33	4 OF 7 55 GALLON DRUM - DIL (855575)	89/11/2/	89/12/19	R	89/12/21	NUNE		00145468	2895
ENG-1	0-197	311.33	5 OF 7 55 GALLON DRUM - UIL (855575)	89/11/2/	89/12/19	ĸ	89/12/21	NUNE		00147468	2896
ENG-1	0-198	311.33	6 OF 7 55 GALLON DRUM - UIL (8555/5)	89/11/2/	89/12/19	Ř	89/12/21	NUNE		00147468	2897
ENG-1	0-199	311.33	7 OF 7 55 GALLON DRUM - UIL (8555/5)	89/11/2/	89/12/19	R	89/12/21	NUNE		00147468	2898
ENG-1	0-200	311.33	1 OF 8 55 GALLON DRUM ~ OIL (8555/6)	89/11/30	89/12/19	R	89/12/21	NUNE		00145468	2899
ENG-1	0-201	311.33	2 OF 8 55 GALLON DRUM - DIL (8555/6)	89/11/30	89/12/19	Ř	89/12/21	NUNE		00147468	2900
ENG-1	0-202	311.33	3 OF 8 55 GALLON DRUM - UIL (8555/6)	89/11/30	89/12/19	R	89/12/21	NUNE		00145468	2901
ENG-1	0-203	311.33	4 OF 8 55 GALLON DRUM - DIL (855576)	89/11/30	89/12/19	R	89/12/21	NONE		00145468	2902
ENG-1	0-204	311.33	5 OF 8 55 GALLON DRUM - DIL (855576)	89/11/30	89/12/19	R	89/12/21	NONE		00145468	2903
ENG-1	0-205	311.33	6 OF 8 55 GALLON DRUM - DIL (855576)	89/11/30	89/12/19	R	89/12/21	NONE		00145468	2904
ENG-1	0-206	311.33	7 OF 8 55 GALLON DRUM - OIL (855576)	89/11/30	89/12/19	R	89/12/21	NONE		00145468	2905
ENG-1	0-207	311.33	8 OF 8 55 GALLON DRUM - OIL (855576)	89/11/30	89/12/19	R	89/12/21	NONE		00145468	2906
ENG-1	0-208	311.33	1 OF 6 55 GALLON DRUM - OIL (855574)	89/12/04	89/12/19	R	89/12/21	NONE		00145468	2907
ENG-1	0-209	311.33	2 OF 6 55 GALLON DRUM - OIL (855574)	89/12/04	89/12/19	R	89/12/21	NONE		00145468	2908
ENG-1	0-210	311.33	3 OF 6 55 GALLON DRUM - OIL (055574)	89/12/04	89/12/19	R	89/12/21	NONE		00145468	2909
ENG-1	0-211	311.33	4 OF 6 55 GALLON DRUM - OIL (855574)	89/12/04	89/12/19	8	89/12/21	NUNE		00145468	2910
ENG-1	0-212	311.33	5 OF 6 55 GALLON DRUM - OIL (855574)	89/12/04	89/12/19	R	89/12/21	NONE		00145468	2911
ENG-1	0-213	311.33	6 OF 6 55 GALLON DRUM - OIL (855574)	89/12/04	89/12/19	R	89/12/21	NUNE		00145468	2912
ENG-1	0-214	311.33	1 OF 7 55 GALLON DRUM - DIL (855573)	89/12/08	89/12/19	R	89/12/21	NUNE		00145468	2913
ENG-1	0-215	311.33	2 OF 7 55 GALLON DRUM - OIL (855573)	89/12/08	89/12/19	R	89/12/21	NUNE		00145468	2914
ENG-1	0-216	311.33	3 OF 7 55 GALLON DRUM - OIL (855573)	89/12/08	89/12/19	8	89/12/21	NUNE		00145468	2915
ENG-1	0-217	311.33	4 DF 7 55 GALLON DRUM - DIL (855573)	89/12/09	89/12/19	R	89/12/21	NUNE		00145468	2916
ENG-1	0-218	311.33	5 OF 7 55 GALLON DRUM - 01L (855523)	89/12/08	89/12/19	Ř	89/12/21	NUNE		00145468	2917
ENG-1	0-219	311.33	6 OF 7 55 GALLON DRUM - DIL (8555/3)	89/12/08	89/12/19	Ř	89/12/21	NUNE		00145468	2918
ENG-1	0-220	311.33	7 DF 7 55 GALLON DRUM ~ DIL (8555/3)	89/12/08	89/12/19	Ř	89/12/21	NUNE		00145468	2919
PAN AM	0-221	307.00	1 OF 4 55 GALLON DRUM - OIL (855060)	89/11/18	89/12/19	Ř	89/12/21	NUNE		00149468	2920
PAN AM	0-222	307.00	2 OF 4 55 GALLON DRUM - DIL (855060)	89/11/18	89/12/19	R	89/12/21	NUNE		00145468	2921
PAN AM	0-223	307.00	3 OF 4 55 GALLON DRUM - DIL (855060)	89/11/18	89/12/19	R	89/12/21	NUNE		00145468	2922
PAN AM	0-224	307.00	4 OF 4 55 GALLON DRUM ~ OIL (855060)	89/11/18	89/12/19	ĸ	89/12/21	NUNE		00145468	2923
PAN AM	0-225	189.00	1 55 GALLON DRUM - DIL (855560)	89/11/18	89/12/19	R	89/12/21	NUNE		00145460	2924
K PAN AM	855020	2619.00	9 55 GALLON DRUMS - PCB FLUSH (TFX)	08/12/22	89/01/03	C	89/06/05	02335	26576	11/81	2925
ENG-4	855549	1746.00	6 55 GALLON DRUMS - PCB FLUSH (TFX)	88/12/20	89/01/03	C	89/06/05	02335		11/01	2926
ENG-4	1855548	1455.00	5 55 GALLON DRUMS - PCB FLUSH (TFX)	88/12/31	89/01/03	C	89/06/05	02335		11/81	2927
ENG-4	855599	2037.00	7 55 GALLON DRUMS - PCB FLUSH (TFX)	88/12/27	89/01/03	U C	89/06/05	U2335		11/01	2928
ENG-4	855600	1746.00	6 55 GALLON DRUMS - PCB FLUSH (TFX)	88/12/28	89/01/03	C	89/06/05	02335		11781	2929
ENG-4	855602	1261.00	5 55 GALLON DRUMS - PCB FLUSH (TFX)	88/12/28	89/01/03	C	89/06/05	02335		11/81	2930
ENG-4	855601	1455.00	5 55 GALLON DRUMS - PCB FLUSH (TFX)	88/12/27	89/01/03	C	89/06/05	02335		11781	2931
ENG-4	855601	22.70	1 55 GALLON DRUM - PCB DEBRIS (SOL)	88/12/27	89/01/03	A	89/06/05	7037	. 100	11781	2932
ENC-4	855548	22.70	1 55 GALLON DRUM - PCB DEBRIS (SOL)	80/12/21	89/01/03	A	89/06/05	7037		11781	2933

****FOR ABBREVIATIONS: E,R,C,A,U3, SEE PAGE ii,iii

19

8. 1 N + ···

PCB DISPOSAL REPORT (DIL/FLUSH/DEBRIS)

OWNER	ID‡	T Y P E	WT(kg)		DESCRIPTION				REM/STO DATE yy/mm/dd	TRANSPORT DATE yy/mm/dd	D E S T	DESTRUCT DATE yy/mm/dd	CERT#	SHIP WT (165)	MANIF#	FORM#		
 FNG-4	A55559		2328.00			GALLON	DRUMS	- PCB	FLUSH	(TFX)	 B9/12/31	89/01/01		89/06/05	n2335	18254	11702	2034
FNG-4	855605		1900.00	2	55	GALLON	DRUMS	~ PCB	FLUSH	(TEX)	89/01/01	89/01/01	Ē	89/06/05	02335	10270	11782	2724
ENG-4	855603		2037.00	7	, 55	GALLON	DRUMS	- PCE	FLUSH	(TFX)	88/12/29	89/01/03	č	89/06/05	02335		11782	2936
ENG-4	855604		2037.00	7	55	GALLON	DRUMS	- PC8	FLUSH	(TEX)	88/12/30	89/01/03	С	80/06/05	02335		11782	2937
ENG-4	855605		22.70	1	55	GALLON	DRUM -	- PCB	DEBRIS	(SOL)	89/01/01	89/01/03	A	89/06/05	7037	50	11782	2938
ENG-4	855548		354,76	3	55	GALLON	DRUMS	- PC8	SIL-L	IQ (SILX)	89/09/19	89/09/23	U3	11		1184	11968	2939
ENG-4	855549		173.76	1	55	GALLON	DRUM .	- PCB	SIL-LI	Q (SILX)	89/09/19	89/09/23	U 3	11			11968	2940
ENG-4	855548		90.80	4	55	GALLON	DRUMS	- PCB	DEBRI	S (SOL)	89/09/19	89/09/23	U3	11		200	11968	2941
ENG-4	855559		1455.00	5	55	GALLON	DRUMS	- PCB	FLUSH	(TFX)	89/09/04	89/09/06	R	89/11/03	112242-	30128	11991	2942
ENG-4	855604		2328.00	0	55	GALLON	DRUMS	- PC9	FLUSH	(TEX)	89/09/03	89/09/06	R	89/11/03	112242-		11991	2943
ENG~4	855548		1164.00	4	55	GALLON	DRUMS	~ PCB	FLUSH	(TFX)	89/09/03	89/09/06	R	89/11/03	112242-		11991	2944
ENG-4	855549		873.00	- 3	- 55	GALLON	DRUMS	- PC8	FLUSH	(TFX)	89/09/02	89/09/06	R	89/11/03	112242-		11991	2945
🕅 PAN AM	855020		1455.00	- 5	55	GALLON	DRUMS	- PCB	FLUSH	(TFX)	89/09/04	89/09/06	R	89/11/03	112242-		119 91	2946 🗙
ENG-4	855605		1164.00	4	55	GALLON	DRUMS	- PC8	FLUSH	(TFX)	89/09/03	89/09/06	R	89/11/03	112242-		11991	2947 ``
ENG-4	855601		1746.00	6	55	GALLON	DRUMS	- PCB	FLUSH	(TEX)	89/09/02	89/09/06	R	89/11/03	112242-		11991	2948
ENG-4	855602		1164.00	4	55	GALLON	DRUMS	- PCB	FLUSH	(TFX)	89/09/01	89/09/06	R	89/11/03	112242-		11991	2949
ENG-4	855600		1455.00	- 5	55	GALLON	DRUMS	~ PC8	FLUSH	(TFX)	89/09/01	89/09/06	R	89/11/03	112242~		11991	2950
ENG-4	855599		1164.00	4	55	GALLON	DRUMS	- PCB	FLUSH	(TFX)	89/09/02	89/09/06	R	89/11/03	112242-		11991	2951
ENG-4	855559		597.00	- 3	55	GALLON	DRUMS	- PC8	SIL-L	IQ (SILX)	89/09/04	89/09/06	U3	11		16900	11993	2952
ENG-4	855604		1194.00	6	55	GALLON	DRUMS	- PC8	SIL-L	IQ (SILX)	89/09/03	89/09/06	- บว	11			11993	2953
ENG-4	855548		464.00	- 3	- 55	GALLON	DRUMS	~ PCB	SIL-L	IQ (SILX)	89/09/03	89/09/06	U3	11			11993	2954
ENG-4	855549		597.00	- 3	- 55	GALLON	DRUMS	- PC8	SIL-L	IQ (SILX)	89/09/02	89/09/06	- บ3	11			11993	2955
PAN AM	855020		796.00	4	55	GALLON	DRUMS	- PCE	51L-L	10 (SILX)	89/09/04	89/09/06	U3	/ /			11993	2956 杰
ENG-4	855605		796.00	4	55	GALLON	DRUMS	- PC8	SIL-L	IQ (SILX)	89/09/03	89/09/06	- U3	1 1			11993	2957
ENG-4	855601		1393.00	- 7	' 55	GALLON	DRUMS	- PCE	I SIL-L	10 (SILX)	09/09/02	89/09/06	- บ3	/ /		•	11993	2958
ENG-4	855602		796,00	4	55	GALLON	DRUMS	- PCB	SIL-L	ia (silx)	89/09/01	89/09/06	U3	/ /			11993	2959
ENG-4	855600		796.00	4	1 55	GALLON	DRUMS	- PCE	SIL-L	IG (SILX)	89/09/01	89/09/06	U3	/ /			11993	2960
ENG-4	855599		399.00	2	55	GALLON	DRUMS	- PCB	SIL-L	IQ (SILX)	89/09/02	89/09/06	U3	11			11993	2961
ENG-4	855548		22.70	1	. 55	GALLON	DRUM	- PCE	DEBRI	S (SOL)	89/09/03	89/09/06	U3			250	11993	2962
XPAN AM	855020		91.00	- 4	55	GALLON	DRUMS	- PC8	DEBRI	S (SOL)	89/09/04	89/09/06	- U3	89/09/16	51925		11993	29622

****FOR ABBREVIATIONS: E,R,C,A,U3, SEE PAGE ii,iii

TOTAL PC8 WT(kg)= 83452.86

TOTAL PCB SHIP WT(16s)= 188141

• •

202

>

.

.

.

i; i

-

1

۰,

20

AS OF: 07/01/91

7

R

the first

Ą

7

ц,

.

:

<u>.</u>

ŧ

owner	PC8 [D#	(kg)	DESCRIPTION	DATE yy/mm/dd	DATE yy/mm/dd	с С	DATE yy/mm/dd	CERT.#	(lbs)	MANIF.#	FORM
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	•••••	•••••••••			•••••	•••••••		 .
MST	0-341	194.51	1 OF 9 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855602)	90/05/17	90/05/20	С	90/08/14	11257		10244	3380
MST	0-342	194.51	2 OF 9 55 GAL DRUN - SILX (855602)	90/05/17	90/05/20	С	90/08/14	11257		10244	338
MST	0-343	194.51	3 OF 9 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855602)	90/05/17	90/05/20	C	90/08/14	11257		10244	338
MST	0-344	198.20	4 OF 9 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855602)	90/05/17	90/05/20	С	90/08/14	11257		10244	338
MST	0-345	198.20	5 OF 9 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855602)	90/05/17	90/05/20	C	90/08/14	11257		10244	3384
MST	0-346	198.20	6 OF 9 55 GAL DRUN - SILX (855602)	90/05/17	90/05/20	С	90/08/14	11257		10244	3389
MST	0-347	198.20	7 OF 9 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855602)	90/05/17	90/05/20	C	90/08/14	11257		10244	3386
MST	0-348	198.20	8 OF 9 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855602)	90/05/17	90/05/20	C	90/08/14	11257		10244	338
MST	0-349	198.20	9 OF 9 55 GAL DRUN - SILX (855602)	90/05/17	90/05/20	С	90/08/14	11257		10244	338
MST	0-350	194.51	1 OF 10 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855601)	90/05/18	90/05/20	С	90/08/14	11257		10244	338
NST	0-351	194.51	2 OF 10 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855601)	90/05/18	90/05/20	С	90/08/14	11257		10244	339
MST	0-352	194.51	3 OF 10 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855601)	90/05/18	90/05/20	С	90/08/14	11257		10244	339
MST	0-353	194.51	4 OF 10 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855601)	90/05/18	90/05/20	С	90/08/14	11257		10244	339
MST	0-354	198.20	5 OF 10 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855601)	90/05/18	90/05/20	С	90/08/14	11257		10244	339
MST	0-355	198.20	6 OF 10 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855601)	90/05/18	90/05/20	C	90/08/14	11257		10244	339
MST	0-356	198.20	7 OF 10 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855601)	90/05/18	90/05/20	С	90/08/14	11257		10244	339
MST	0-357	198.20	8 OF 10 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855601)	90/05/18	90/05/20	С	90/08/14	11257		10244	339
MST	0-358	198.20	9 OF 10 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855601)	90/05/18	90/05/20	C	90/08/14	11257		10244	339
NST	0-359	198.20	10 OF 10 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855601)	90/05/18	90/05/20	С	90/08/14	11257		10244	339
HST	0-360	194.51	1 OF 9 55 GAL DRUN - SILX (855600)	90/05/19	90/05/20	C	90/08/14	11257		10244	339
MST	0-361	194.51	2 OF 9 55 GAL DRUN - SILX (855600)	90/05/19	90/05/20	с	90/08/14	11257		10244	340
HST .	0-362	194.51	3 OF 9 55 GAL DRUN - SILX (855600)	90/05/19	90/05/20	с	90/08/14	11257		10244	340
MST	0-363	198.20	4 OF 9 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855600)	90/05/19	90/05/20	Ċ	90/08/14	11257		10244	340
HST	0-364	198.20	5 OF 9 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855600)	90/05/19	90/05/20	С	90/08/14	11257		10244	340
HST	0-365	198.20	6 OF 9 55 GAL DRUN - SILX (855600)	90/05/19	90/05/20	с	90/08/14	11257		10244	340
IST	0-366	198.20	7 OF 9 55 GAL DRUN - SILX (855600)	90/05/19	90/05/20	C	90/08/14	11257		10244	340
IST	0-367	198.20	8 OF 9 55 GAL DRUN - SILX (855600)	90/05/19	90/05/20	¢	90/08/14	11257		10244	340
NST	0-368	198,20	9 OF 9 55 GAL DRUN - SILX (855600)	90/05/19	90/05/20	С	90/08/14	11257		10244	340
NST	0-369	194.51	1 OF 8 55 GAL DRUN - SILX (855603)	90/05/20	90/05/20	U	90/08/14	11257		10244	340
MST	0-370	194.51	2 OF 8 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855603)	90/05/20	90/05/20	υ	111	11257		10244	340
MST	0-371	194.51	3 OF 8 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855603)	90/05/20	90/05/20	U	11	11257		10244	341
NST	0-372	194.51	4 OF 8 55 GAL DRUN - SILX (855603)	90/05/20	90/05/20	U	11	11257		10244	341
MST	0-373	198.20	5 OF 8 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855603)	90/05/20	90/05/20	U	11	11257		10244	341
MST	0-374	198.20	6 OF 8 55 GAL DRUM - STLX (855603)	90/05/20	90/05/20	U	Ni	11257		10244	341
HST	0-375	198,20	7 OF 8 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855603)	90/05/20	90/05/20	ŭ		11257		10244	341
MST	0-376	198.20	8 OF 8 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855603)	90/05/20	90/05/20	Ū	NI.	11257		10244	341
DQ-DQ	0-377	95.42	1 OF 1 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855020)	90/05/20	90/05/20	C	90/08/14	11257		10244	341
157	0-378	77 77	1 AC 1 EE CAL DOING - COL (DEE/A/)	00/05/15	00/05/20			400000-	104		

ac-

A.

đ (th

N.

.

PCB OIL/SOIL/RETROFILL FLUIDS/DISPOSAL REPORT

OWNER	РСВ [D#	PC8 WT. (kg)	DESCRIPTION	REM/STO DATE yy/mm/dd	DATE yy/mm/dd	с С	DATE yy/mm/dd	CERT.#	SHIP WT. (lbs)	MANIF.#	FORM
•••••		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •				•••					•••••
MST	0-379	22.72	1 OF 1 55 GAL DRUM - SOL (855603)	90/05/20	90/05/20	R	90/10/26	120299-		10244	341
MP/WX	0-380	194.51	1 OF 8 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855605)	90/05/28	90/05/29	С	90/08/14	11257	17667	10246	341
HP/WX	0-381	194.51	2 OF 8 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855605)	90/05/28	90/05/29	С	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
HP/WX	0-382	194.51	3 OF 8 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855605)	90/05/28	90/05/29	¢	90/08/14	11257		10246	343
нр/ух	0-383	194.51	4 OF 8 55 GAL DRUN ~ SILX (855605)	90/05/28	90 /05/29	С	90/08/14	11257		10246	342
MP/WX	0-384	198.20	5 OF 8 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855605)	90/05/28	90/05/29	С	90/08/14	11257		10246	342
MP/WX	0-385	198.20 (5 OF 8 55 GAL DRUN - SILX (855605)	90/05/28	90/05/29	C	90/08/14	11257		10246	342
MP/WX	0-386	198.20	7 OF 8 55 GAL DRUN - SILX (855605)	90/05/28	90/05/29	С	90/08/14	11257		10246	342
MP/WX	0-387	198.20	3 OF 8 55 GAL DRUN - SILX (855605)	90/05/28	90/05/29	C	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
INC/WX	0-388	198.20	I OF 7 55 GAL DRUN - SILX (855549)	90/05/25	90/05/29	С	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
INC/WX	0-389	198.20	2 OF 7 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855549)	90/05/25	90/05/29	С	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
INC/WX	0-390	198.20	5 OF 7 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855549)	90/05/25	90/05/29	С	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
INC/WX	0-391	198.20	• OF 7 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855549)	90/05/25	90/05/29	С	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
INC/WX	0-392	198.20	0F 7 55 GAL DRUN - SILX (855549)	90/05/25	90/05/29	С	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
INC/WX	0-393	198.20	5 OF 7 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855549)	90/05/25	90/05/29	С	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
INC/WX	0-394	198.20	7 OF 7 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855549)	90/05/25	90/05/29	С	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
INC/WX	0-395	194.51	i OF 7 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855548)	90/05/26	90/05/29	C	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
INC/WX	0-396	194.51	2 OF 7 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855548)	90/05/26	90/05/29	С	50/ 08/14	11257		10246	34
INC/WX	0-397	194.51	5 OF 7 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855548)	90/05/26	90/05/29	С	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
INC/WX	0-398	194.51 4	OF 7 55 GAL DRUN - SILX (855548)	90/05/26	90/05/29	С	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
INC/WX	0-399	194.51	5 OF 7 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855548)	90/05/26	90/05/29	С	90/08/14	11257		10246	
INC/WX	0-400	194.51	5 OF 7 55 GAL DRUN - SILX (855548)	90/05/26	90/05/29	С	90/08/14	11257		10246	
INC/WX	0-401	194.51	OF 7 55 GAL DRUN - SILX (855548)	90/05/26	90/05/29	c	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
P/J/WX	0-402	194.51	OF 9 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855559)	90/05/27	90/05/29	С	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
P/J/WX	0-403	194.51	2 OF 9 55 GAL DRUN - SILX (855559)	90/05/27	90/05/29	с	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
P/J/WX	0-404	194.51	5 OF 9 55 GAL DRUN - SILX (855559)	90/05/27	90/05/29	c	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
P/J/WX	0-405	194.51	GF 9 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855559)	90/05/27	90/05/29	с	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
P/J/WX	0-406	198.20	5 OF 9 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855559)	90/05/27	90/05/29	С	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
P/J/WX	0-407	198.20	5 OF 9 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855559)	90/05/27	90/05/29	C	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
P/J/WX	0-408	198.20	OF 9 55 GAL DRUN + SILX (855559)	90/05/27	90/05/29	c	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
27.J/WX	0-409	198.20	3 OF 9 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855559)	90/05/27	90/05/29	C	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
71/WX	0-410	198.20	OF 9 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855559)	90/05/27	90/05/29	с	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
X-DO	0-411	194.51	OF 10 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855020)	90/05/29	90/05/29	c	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
DX-DO	0-412	194.51	2 OF 10 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855020)	90/05/29	90/05/29	c	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
X-DO	0-413	194.51	OF 10 55 GAL DRUN - SILX (855020)	90/05/29	90/05/29	c	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
X-D0	0-414	194.51	OF 10 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855020)	90/05/29	90/05/29	c	90/08/14	11257		10246	34
X-D0	0-415	194.51	5 OF 10 55 GAL ORUN - SILY (855020)	90/05/29	90/05/29	Ċ	90/08/14	11257		10244	3/
N-D0	0-414	108 20 4	6 OF 10 55 CAL DRIM - STLY (855030)	00/08/20	00/05/20	~	00/09/4/	11767		102/4	7

.

-

ŧ

Ĵ,

AS OF: 07/01/91

. ^

3.

14

il.

10 A

a para

k

•

PCB OIL/SOIL/RETROFILL FLUIDS/DISPOSAL REPORT

OWNER	PCB ID#	PCB WT. (kg)	DESCRIPTION	REM/STO DATE yy/mm/dd	TRANSPORT DATE yy/mm/dd	L 0 C	DESTRUCT DATE yy/mm/dd	CERT.#	SHIP WT. (lbs)	MANIF.#	Form#
 .		•••••••••	•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••			•••	•••••		•••••		
₩x-D0	0-417	198.20	7 OF 10'55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855020)	90/05/29	90/05/29	C	90/08/14	11257		10246	3456 卷
₩¥-D0	0-418	198.20	8 OF 10 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855020)	90/05/29	90/05/29	С	90/08/14	11257		10246	3457 ×
≁ ₩X-D0	0-419	198.20	9 OF 10 55 GAL DRUH - SILX (855020)	90/05/29	90/05/29	С	90/08/14	11257		10246	3458 🌱
Қ •Х-D0	0-420	198.20	10 OF 10 55 GAL DRUM - SILX (855020)	90/05/29	90/05/29	С	90/08/14	11257		10246	3459+
INC/WX	0-421	22,72	1 OF 1 55 GAL DRUM - SOL (855549)	90/05/29	90/05/29	R	90/10/26	120229-	176	10246	3460
₩ WX	0-422	22.72	1 OF 1 55 GAL DRUM - SOL (855020)	90/05/29	90/05/29	R	90/10/26	120229-		10246	3461 ¥c
JCI	0-423	60.45	1 55 GAL DRUM - DEBRIS	90/01/22	90/07/12	R	90/08/31	NONE	1625	00269594	3534
CTR	0-424	43.64	1 55 GAL DRUM - DEBRIS	90/03/12	90/07/12	R	90/08/31	NONE		00269594	3535
JCI	0-425	11.34	1 55 GAL DRUM - DEBRIS	90/03/13	90/07/12	R	90/08/31	NONE		0026594	3536
JCI	0-426	58.20	1 55 GAL DRUM - DEBRIS	90/03/13	90/07/12	R	90/08/31	NONE		00269594	3537
JCI	0-427	143.20	1 55 GAL DRUM - DEBRIS	90/03/27	90/07/12	R	90/08/31	NONE		00269594	3538
WX-12	0-428	32.72	1 55 GAL DRUM - DEBRIS	90/05/17	90/07/12	R	90/08/31	NONE		00269594	3539
JCI	0-429	9.10	1 55 GAL DRUM - DEBRIS	90/05/24	90/07/12	R	90/08/31	NONE		00269594	3540
JCI	0-430	62.73	1 55 GAL DRUM - DEBRIS	90/05/24	90/07/12	R	90/08/31	NONE		00269594	3541
WX-17	0-431	55.50	1 55 GAL DRUM - DEBRIS	90/05/18	90/07/12	R	90/08/31	NONE		00269594	3542
HSE-7	0-432	34.10	1 55 GAL DRUM - DEBRIS	90/05/02	90/07/12	R	90/08/31	NONE		00269594	3543
P-10	0-433	197.72	1 55 GAL DRUM - OIL	90/03/15	90/07/12	R	90/07/28	NONE	2593	00269594	3544
CLS	0-434	165.91	1 55 GAL DRUM - OIL	90/03/27	90/07/12	R	90/07/28	NONE		00269594	3545
HSE-8	0-435	175.00	1 55 GAL DRUN - OIL	90/04/16	90/07/12	R	90/07/28	NONE		00269594	3546
HSE-8	0-436	56.82	1 55 GAL DRUM - OIL	90/04/16	90/07/12	R	90/07/28	NONE		00269594	3547
WX-3	0-437	185.00	1 55 GAL DRUM - OIL	90/05/04	90/07/12	R	90/07/28	NONE		00269594	3548
WX-3	0-438	102.30	1 55 GAL DRUM - OIL	90/05/04	90/07/12	R	90/07/28	NONE		00269594	3549
WX-3	0-439	185.00	1 55 GAL DRUM - OIL	90/05/04	90/07/12	R	90/07/28	NONE		00269594	3550
	0-440	400.00	1 55 GAL DRUM - SYSTEM 50 FLUID	90/05/16	90/07/15	ε1	90/07/27	66593	4515	456308	3647
	0-441	400.00	1 55 GAL DRUM - SYSTEM 50 FLUID	90/05/15	90/07/15	E1	90/07/27	66593		456308	3648
	0-442	409.00	T 55 GAL DRUM - SYSTEM 50 FLUID	90/05/15	90/07/15	ET	90/07/27	66593		456308	3649
	0-445	400.00	1 55 GAL DRUM - SYSTEM 50 FLUID	90/06/11	90/07/15	13	90/0//2/	66593		456508	3650
	0-444	400.00	1 55 GAL ORUM - STSTEM 50 FLUID	90/06/12	90/07/15	EI	90/0//2/	66593		456308	3651
	0-445	400.00	T 55 GAL DRUM - SYSTEM 50 FLUID	90/06/12	90/07/15	E1	90/07/27	66593		456308	3652
	0-448	400.00	1 55 GAL DRUM - SYSTEM 50 FLUID	90/06/13	90/07/15	E1	90/07/27	66593		456308	3653
	0-447	200.00	1 55 GAL DRUN - DEBRIS	90/07/15	90/07/15	E	90/10/20	71540	106	456307	3654
JCI	V-448	502.50	1 OF 14 55 GAL DRUH - OIL (855006)	90/08/21	90/09/19	R	90/09/26	NONE	45020	00122882	3664
JCI	0-449	502.50	2 UF 14 55 GAL DRUN - OIL (855006)	90/08/21	90/09/19	R	90/09/26	NONE		00122882	3665
101	0-430	502.50	3 UF 14 55 GAL DRUM - OIL (855006)	90/08/21	90/09/19	R	90/09/26	NONE		00122882	3666
101	0-451	502.30	4 UF 14 55 GAL DRUN - OIL (855006)	90/08/21	90/09/19	R	90/09/26	NONE		00122882	3667
JCI	0-452	302.30	> DF 14 55 GAL DRUH + OIL (855006)	90/08/21	90/09/19	R	90/09/26	NONE		00122882	3668
JCI	0-455	302.30	6 OF 14 55 GAL DRUM - OIL (855006)	90/08/21	90/09/19	R	90/09/26	NONE		00122882	3669
JCI	0-454	302.30	7 OF 14 55 GAL DRUM - OIL (855006)	90/08/21	90/09/19	R	90/09/26	NONE		00122882	3670

-- ·

ŧ

_

TA-16-430 (The building) is located next to TA-16-563 — the PCB Stanformer Station which housed PCB Transformer B6-4997, 25,000 ppm which had the slow leak in July 1987.

This transformer was removed + replaced in Sept. 1993. A non-PCB transform is now in Is place.

×

TABLE XI

06/30/93

PAGE 35

. . .

1

1

MIN 10

ł.

IN-SERVICE PCB TRANSFORMER/MISCELLANEOUS ARTICLE REPORT (≥500 ppm)

TA-BLDG	VICINITY	OWNER	TYPE	CONC(ppm)	ITEM ID#	PCB 1D#	VOL(gal)	PCB WT(kg)	REM/STO yy/mm/dd	
00 0000		CLS-DO	RT	> 2318	CAT-C17E5P	923159	0.00	159.00	92/12/19	
02 0051	NORTHEAST OF BLDG. 44	JCI	RT	>500000	GE-C-863956	855021	290.00	1723.67	11	
02 0051	NORTHEAST OF BLDG. 44	JCI	RT	>500000	GE-C-863964	855616	100.00	589.68	11	
03 0190	NORTHWEST CORNER OF SM-16	JCI	RT	>500000	ITE-9983-65	855010	260.00	1542.23	11	
03 0229	SOUTH OF BLDG. 206	JCI	RT	>500000	GE-C-858476	855012	380.00	2227.16	11	
03 0290	WEST OF BLDG. 287	JCI	RT	>500000	WES-YAR-99701	855013	145.00	771.12	11	
03 0290	WEST OF BLDG. 287	JCI	RT	>500000	WES-YAR-99731	855014	300.00	1564.91	11	
03 0290	WEST OF BLDG. 287	JCI	RT	>500000	WES-YAR-99691	855015	260.00	1356.25	11	
03 0290	WEST OF BLDG. 287	JC1	RT	>500000	WES-UAV4732-01	855016	203.00	1059.15	11	
03 0367	SOUTH SIDE BLDG. SM-216	JCI	RT	>500000	WES-7027589	855018	170.00	997.91	11	
03 0000		CTR-DO	RT	709	ITE-6660	912134 * 1	50,00	0.20	91/11/18	
03 0039		MEC-DO	EM	> 500	ELOX MACHINE	919158	0.00	545.54	11	
03 0105	OUTSIDE-WEST	CTR-DO	VR	> 500	GE-D-583429	919191	690.00	2.00	11	
03 0039		MEC-DO	PH	> 500	BC-489808	929159	0.00	590.90	92/03/05	
15 0196	WEST OF BLDG. 183	JCI	RT	>500000	ESC-4022243	855019	325.00	1914.16	11	
15 0000		M-4	VR	1227	GE-D583441	912124	530.00	3.70	11	
1185		ENG-DO	SG	≻ 500	23986-1	923160	0.00	1000.00	92/09/25	
,5		ENG-DO	SG	> 500	23987-1	923281	0.00	1200.00	92/09/25	
71	337	JCI	RT	> 500	9477681	845508 * 2	65.00	0.19	93/04/13	
10-0563	NORTH OF BLDG. 430	ENG-4	RT	25000	PEN-19091-7	864997	395.00	57.30	93 191 10	×
21 0193	SOUTHEAST OF BLDG. 215	JCI	RT	>500000	GE-E68531	855017	210.00	1224.71	11	
35 0032	SOUTH OF BLDG. 29	JCI	RT	>500000	GE-C-862754	855024	340.00	1995.83	11	
35 0053	SOUTH OF BLDG. 27	JCI	RT	>500000	STA-175023 WEST	855025	350.00	2095.62	11	
35 0053	SOUTH OF BLDG. 27	JCI	RT	>500000	STA-175022 EAST	855026	350.00	2095.62	11	
35 0087		P-4	VP	> 500		929160	0.00	63.63	92/06/07	
46 0036		CLS-DO	PS	590	AMER-	939468	15.00	0.50	11	
50 0004	EAST OF BLDG. 1	JCI	RT	>500000	GE-E-687176	855023	265.00	1587.59	11	
52 0009	NORTH OF BLDG. 1	JCI	RT	>500000	GE-E-688470A	855027	250.00	1406.14	11	

11: DISPOSED OF IN 1991 UNDER PCB ID# 919195.

2: PREVIOUSLY LISTED IN PCB-CONTAMINATED TRANSFORMER/MISCELLANEOUS INVENTORY (50-499 ppm); MISANALYZED.

"3: UNDERGOING RETROFILL BY UNISON, (PROCESS SOLD TO ENSR)

'4: UNDERGOING RETROFILL BY ENSR.

RADIAL TRANSFORMER

EM-ELOX MACHINE

YER HACKSAW

TAGE REGULATOR

SCIENTICH GEAR

VPS...CUUM PUMP

PS≂POWER SUPPLY SF=SCREEN FILTER יז יהואטו"טחואובה/ואוטטבננגאואבטטט אחרוטיבנ

CLEANUP RECORD OF HIGH-CONCENTRATION SPILLS INVOLVING NON REPORTABLE RELEASES

<u>TA- 16 - 260.</u>

Equipment Room 110

Records. The responsible party shall document the cleanup with records of decontamination. The records must be maintained for a period of 5 years. The records and certification shall consist of the following:

I. Identification of the source of the spill, e.g., type of equipment.

PCB transformers, PCB ID # 5607 and 5608.

II. Estimated or actual date and time of the spill occurrence.

Spill occurred on May 17, 1990 at approximately 7:00 pm

III. The date and time cleanup was completed or terminated (if cleanup was delayed by emergency or adverse weather: the nature and duration of the delay).

Cleanup initiated immediately on May 17, 1990, using the double wash/ double rinse method and completed on May 18, 1990 at approximately 4:00pm, using the scabbler concrete removal system.

Subsequent cleanup efforts were done on;

July 2, 1990, Penetone, double wash/double rinse August 27 and 28, 1990, Capsur foam method October 4 and 5, 1990, Capsur foam method

Cleanup completed on

November 13, 1990, Penetone, double wash/double rinse

IV. A brief description of the spill location and the nature of the materials contaminated. (This information should include whether the spill occurred in an outdoor electrical substation, other restricted access location, or in a nonrestricted access area.)

Spill occurred in Room 110 at Technical Area (TA) 16, Building 260. Contaminated material was nonimpervious solid surfaces; concrete floor, concrete sump, and an impervious metal sump cover. This location is considered as a "restricted access area".

Page 1 of 3

CLEANUP RECORD High concentration.

<u>TA- 16 - 260.</u>

Equipment Room 110

V. Pre-cleanup sampling data used to establish the spill boundaries if required because of insufficient visible traces and a brief description of the sampling methodology used to establish the spill boundaries.

Spill boundaries established using visual stain under transformer and visible stain under pump and drums.

VI. A brief description of the solid surfaces cleaned.

Concrete floor under transformer was scabbled, sampled and encapsulated. Concrete floor and sump under the pump and drums was cleaned using the double wash/double rinse methodology using various cleaning agents. The Capsur cleaning process was also used in these areas. The metal sump lid was wrapped in plastic and taken to at TA-54, Area G. The floor area of the entire room was encapsulated using a two tone epoxy coating, all grid points were below the required 100ug/100cm² prior to encapsulation.

VII. Approximate depth of soil excavation and the amount of soil removed.

No soil removed during this cleanup process.

- VIII. Post-cleanup verification sampling data and, if not otherwise apparent from the documentation, a brief description of the sampling methodology and analytical technique used.
- * Post-cleanup sampling was conducted after each cleanup effort. Sampling scheme established using the MRI guidelines. Surface swipes were taken using gauze, cyclohexane, and 100cm² templates.

Optional: 1) Estimated cost of cleanup (by man-hours, dollars, or both).

Page 2 of 3

uchnach Cuntro Au Laobratory Sucurn Post Offica Box 60 Los Alamos IMM 67344 16-00054/

٩.



March 09, 1993 JENV.93-202

Los Alamos National Laboratory Los Alamos, NM 87544

ATTN: Raul Morales, EM-8, MS K490

THRU: Michael Brown, Deputy Manager, JENV

THRU: Richard Perkins, Invironmental Compliance Supervisor, JENV

SUBJECT: SUBCONTRACT NO. 9-X86-Y7575-1, CLOSURE REPORT FOR NON-REPORTABLE PCB RELEASE AT TA-16, STRUCTURE 563, STATION 9

A PCB cleanup at TA-16, Structure 563, Station 9, was completed on November 12, 1992. A closure document stating the cleanup affects in chronological order is attached to this cover letter. A certification statement is included on page 4 of the closure document. If there are any questions or concerns about this report, please contact Michael Bailey, or Michael Brown, JENV, at 7-0104 or MS A-199, JENV.

Very truly yours, Michael Bailey Environmental Engineer, JCI/JENV

Attachment: 4 pages Non-Reportable Cleanup Record TA-16, Structure 563, Station 9

cy: R. Reines, EM-DO, MS J591 Steve Rae, EM-8, K490 S. J. Calanni, VP/General Manager, JMGR G. Vavra, Manager, Operations, OMDO J. J. Lopez, Manager, JHSE Joe Richardson, Env. Eng., JENV JENV file Reading file

NON-REPORTABLE

CLEANUP RECORD AND CERTIFICATION FOR HIGH-CONCENTRATION SPILLS WHICH INVOLVE LESS THAN 1 POUND OF PCBS BY WEIGHT

LOCATION: TA-16, STRUCTURE 563, STATION 9

SPILL OCCURRED:Date:July 28, 1987 Time:AMSPILL DISCOVERED:Date:July 28, 1987 Time:1:00 PMSPILL STOPPED:Date:August 1, 1987, AM

- Source of spill: A PCB transformer containing 25,000 I. PPM PCBs at TA-16, Structure 563, Station 9, PCB ID #4997, had a small leak from the electrical conduit pipe where the wiring was connected to the transformer. The oil was leaking through a bushing gasket up on the side of the transformer where the conduit was connected, and traveled down the electrical conduit to the concrete pad, and then onto the soil next to the pad. Approximately one half to one gallon of oil had leaked from the bushings (visual estimate), and traces of oil were found in the soil next to and below the pad. The transformer is located on a concrete pad surrounded by a fence with a locked gate. The transformer had a blue non-PCB label on it before and after the release, due to the fact that the transformer was retrofilled in 1984 with non-PCB mineral oil. It was sampled at that time, and found to be below 50 ppm PCBs. But, over the years, PCBs leached back into the oil, and when sampled again in 1987, was found to contain 25,000 PPM PCBs.
- II. Estimated or actual date and time of the spill occurrence:

The date and time that the leak started is unknown, but visual inspection of the transformer, indicated that the leak occurred shortly before discovery.

III. Chronology of cleanups and cleanup details:

Cleanup started on July 28, 1987, by the Johnson
 Control Linemen. The visible oil was washed from the transformer and the concrete using Penetone Power
 Cleaner 155, rags, and water. Contaminated soil was removed and placed in a 55 gallon drum.

1

Per 40 CFR 761.120 "Definitions", the method of cleanup to be used will be a "Double wash/rinse." This is a minimum requirement to cleanse solid surfaces (both impervious and non-impervious) two times with an appropriate solvent or other material in which PCBs are at least 5 percent soluble (by weight).

o The transformer continued to leak a very small amount until the morning of August 1, 1987. The transformer was inspected daily between July 28 and August 1, and for a period of two weeks following repair. On August 1, an outage was scheduled, and the Linemen repaired the leaking conduit coming from the transformer. A double wash/rinse was conducted on the concrete pad of the transformer using Penetone Power Cleaner 155, brushes, and water for rinse.

The transformer was found to be non-leaking after the repair. The soil and pad had received a cleanup in July 1987, and the transformer was inspected monthly for leaks after that. An inspection on August 3, 1989, by JENV, revealed the need for further sampling where the 1987 release had occurred. Five soil and three swipe samples were taken on August 25, 1989, by HSE-8 (now EM-8). The results of these samples indicated that further cleanup was necessary to ensure that PCB levels meet or are below levels required in EPA's PCB spill cleanup policy for old spills (40 CFR 761.120(a)(1)).

- A meeting was held on September 27, 1989 between EM-8 and JENV concerning further cleanup at Station 9. A grid of the area was completed by EM-8 on October 17. Sampling of the grid points was done on October 23 and November 3, 1989. Sample results indicated that further cleanup was necessary to ensure that PCB levels meet or are below levels required in 40 CFR 761.120(a)(1).
- JENV marked the fence around the pad and transformer with PCB signs, and increased the level of surveillance along with monthly inspections until further cleanup could be done. Further cleanup was to continue in conjunction with the transformer replacement.
- o The cleanup continued on May 12 and 13, 1992. The fence was removed from around the transformer, and the transformer was removed from the pad and placed nearby. The pad was removed along with soil around and under the pad at this time. Approximately 352 cubic feet of soil (including the pad) was removed to TA-54, Area G.
- o Sampling of the grid points was done on May 18, 1992, by EM-8. Sample results indicated that further cleanup

was necessary to ensure that PCB levels meet or are below levels required in 40 CFR 761.120(a)(1), which is 25 ppm in soils.

- o The cleanup continued on June 16, 1992. Approximately 198 cubic feet of soil was removed.
- Sampling of the grid points was done on July 15, 1992, by EM-8. Sample results indicated that further cleanup was necessary.
- o The cleanup continued on August 7, 1992. Approximately 15 cubic feet of soil was removed at this time.
- Sampling of the grid points was done on August 11, 1992, by EM-8. Sampling results indicated that further cleanup was necessary.
- The cleanup continued on September 16, 1992.
 Approximately 36 cubic feet of soil was removed at this time.
- Sampling of the grid points was done on September 18, 1992, by EM-8. Sampling results indicated that further cleanup was necessary.
- IV. The date and time cleanup was completed or terminated:
 - The cleanup was completed on November 12, 1992, when and additional 90 cubic feet of soil was removed from Structure 563, Station 9. Sampling of the grid points was done on November 13 by EM-8. All PCB levels in the soil are now below the TSCA mandated cleanup levels for low-contact outdoor electrical substations of 25 ppm.
 - V. A brief description of the spill location:
 - The spill location is at TA-16, Structure 563, Station
 9 which is located north of TA-16 Building 430.
 Structure 563, Station 9, is an outside fenced-in pad
 mounted PCB transformer (PCB ID #4997).
- VI. Precleanup sampling data used to establish the spill boundaries if required because of insufficient visible traces, and a brief description of the sampling methodology used to establish spill boundaries.
 - A standard wipe test (40 CFR 761.130) was done by EM-8 in accordance with EPA methodologies. A grid of the cleanup area was designed by EM-8 using methods described in the EPA publication "Field Manual for Grid Sampling of PCB Spill Sites to

Verify Cleanup" (EPA 560/5-86-017, May 1986).

- Grids, sample results, and information about the cleanup at TA-16, Structure 563 can be obtained from EM-8.
- VII. A brief description of the solid surfaces cleaned and of the wash/rinse method used:

o See Section III.

VIII. Approximate depth of soil excavation and the amount of soil removed:

The soil was excavated to a depth of 12 inches in some locations, and as deep as eight and one half feet in one location where a crack was evident on the pad (excavation of this area took place after the pad was removed). A total of 691 cubic feet of soil was removed from TA-16, Structure 563, Station 9.

IX. A certification statement signed by the responsible party stating that the cleanup requirements have been met and that the information contained in the record is true to the best of his/her knowledge.

Michael Bailey 9/93 _Date: 3/ Signature

Pan Am World Services, Inc.

INTER-OFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO: Stan Nalley, Utilities Department Manager, UMDO Bob Greuter, UESD Superintendent, UESD

THRU: 7 Joe J. Lopez, Manager, PHSE

THRU: Charlie Barnett, Acting Supervisor, PENV

FROM: Environmental Engineer, PENV Page 1

DATE: August 18, 1989

MEMO NO: PENV89-354

SUBJECT: ADDITIONAL PCB CLEANUP OF TRANSFORMER AT TA-16 BUILDING 430, STATION 9

An inspection on August 3 by PENV of a PCB (>500 ppm PCB oil) transformer at TA-16 Building 430, Station 9, and the immediate area by the pad revealed the need to sample these areas. PENV will take samples of the soil around the pad, and swipe the pad for PCB contamination. Utilities will ensure that the sampling by PENV personnel is being done in accordance with written safety procedures for electrical equipment.

After the sample results are received for the soil and the pad, a cleanup under the direction of PENV will take place, if necessary. Soil will be removed at this time, and the pad subjected to a cleanup with Penetone Power Cleaner 137. PENV will resample to ensure that PCB levels are below the limits required by EPA. Clean backfill soil will be used to fill in the cavity under the pad after it is determined that soil PCB contamination is at or below levels required.

On July 28, 1987, this outdoor transformer was reported to be leaking oil. A memo was written about the incident (Memo No. THH87-96, July 29, 1987). Contaminated soil was removed and placed in a 55 gallon drum and Zorball was also used to clean up oil on the concrete pad. The transformer is located on a concrete pad surrounded by a fence with a locked gate.

The transformer has not leaked since August 1, 1987, but because the contaminated soil excavation was never backfilled with clean soil, there is a noticable cavity underneath the pad where stained soil and pipes can be seen. Also, the pad is still stained from the July 1987 spill. Stains present in the soil and pad do not automatically mean that there are PCB oil levels in the range above those required by EPA for an effective outdoor electrical substation cleanup (25 ppm for the soil and 100 μ g per 100 square centimeters for the cement pad).

If you have any concerns or questions please do not hesitate to contact either myself or Charlie Barnett.

Michael Bailey

cy:

Charlie Nylander, HSE-8, K490 S. J. Calanni, PMGR A. L. Da Silva, OMDO file reading file Laboratory Support Division P.O. Box 50 Los Alamos, NM 87544-0050

Pan Am World Services, Inc.

TO: DISTRIBUTION THRU: Joe J. Lopez, Manager PHSE

FROM: Tom Holm-Hansen, Supervisor PENV / ///

DATE: July 29, 1987

MEMO NO. THH87-96

SUBJECT: PCB RELEASE AT TA16 BUILDING 430

A transformer containing approximately 25,000 parts-permillion (ppm) PCBs at TA-16, Building 430, Station 9 was reported to be leaking oil on July 28. According to Larry Hupke, HSE-7, the report was made to HSE-3 who then contacted HSE-7. Mr. Hupke contacted HSE-8, Pan Am Utilities, and Pan Am Environmental Protection (PENV). Mike Bailey of PENV met a crew of linemen at the transformer at approximately 3:00 P.M. Contaminated soil was removed and placed in a 55 gallon drum and Zorball was also used to clean up oil on the concrete pad. The amount of oil spilled appeared to be one to three gallons, which would not be considered a reportable quantity.

The transformer is continuing to slowly leak and Zorball is being used to contain the oil. Additional containment and cleanup measures are being taken today (July 29). Repairing. the transformer will require an outage and this is scheduled for August 1 (Saturday) from 7:00 A.M until 4:30 P.M. according to Mr. Manny Lopez of ENG-5 who coordinated with the LANL operational group. Daily inspections of this transformer will continue until the leak is repaired.

PENV is in the process of auditing and cross referencing our monthly transformer inspection list and the PCB transformer inventory (fire list). This is being done to ensure that all PCB transformers are on the monthly inspection list. This will be completed by August 1.

DISTRIBUTION:

Anthony Drypolcher, HSE-8, K490 Charles Nylander, HSE-8, K490 Larry Hupke, HSE-7, E518 M.R. Heineman, HSE-3, K489 Manny Lopez, ENG-5, C944 S.J. Calanni, PMGR Jack Nuckels, OMDO Stan Nalley, UMDO


HSE-9 ANALYTICAL SERVICE AGREEMENT

Request No. 8263

I. PRESAMPLING CONFERENCE

	Program Code <u>k/A56</u>	No. Samples Expected 22
	Submission Date 10/24/89	Completion Date TBA
	Chain of Custody? No	Special Protocol? (EPA etc.)
	Analyses Requested: List analyses on HSE (Indicate expected concentration range and	P Analytical Chemistry Request Sheet.
	Container Type <u>glass / tellon</u> (See Memo HSE-9/88-304. Guidelines fo	Preservative <u>Vonc</u> or Collection and Preservation of Liquid Samples.)
	Storage Conditions (circle one or more):	one Refrigerate Freeze Darkness
<	Sample Hazards Present? (Circle one or m No hazard Toxic Radioactive: alpha t	ore) peta gamma Flammable Explosive/Reactive
	Sample Disposal: Return (All hazardous samples or TRU wastes with	Discard Il be returned to the customer.)
	Customer <u>Michael R. Alexander</u> Customer Phone <u>5-0453</u> MS 104-2027 Date <u>M/24/89</u>	HSE-9 Section Leader Organic Inorganic Radiocher
II.	EMERGENCY SAMPLES	
	Emergency Status requires the following si	gnatures:
	Customer Group Leader HSE-9 Group Leader Date	N
III.	SAMPLE RECEIPT	
	Signature MBPhillips	Date $\frac{10/24}{39}$ Total No. Samples Received $\frac{22+2}{9}$
	HSE-9 Sample No. Range_ 59.17139	to <u>89,17161</u> 00.20072
	Customer Sample No. Range 87.0181	1 to 89.01832
		- 3-8-89

REQUESTOR DATA SHEET

Log BookPage
ampled by <u>Michael. R. Akzander</u> Collection Date <u>123/69</u> Time <u>fr</u> Weather <u>Witness</u>
resampling Conference Completed With Church R. On 19/23/69 Send Report To Mike Alexander MS # 496
none 5-0453 Source of Sample: TA-16-340, Trunsformer 363 Reason for Sampling Leak & stains in avea
oup <u>ENE-6</u> Site <u>16</u> Building <u>340</u> Room No. <u>predside</u>
iority Assigned: 1. Emergency; 2. Recognized Danger; 3. Imminent Deadline; 4. Special Survey; 5. Routine;
ircle One) Priority Approval: (1. GL or DGL; 2. or 3. AGL; 4. or 5. SL)
thod of Analysis Complies With:
ckground Information Useful to Analyst (Contamination Levels, Hazards, Etc.) <u>PCB suspect</u>

Chain of Custody: Yes____(See Attached Form) No_____ Other Information__

All Samples Submitted to HSE-9 Hust Be Screened For Radioactivity. Samples Containing Greater Than 20 dpm Total Alpha or 100 dpm Combined Gamma/Beta Contamination Cannot Be Handled At TA-59.

			Analysis Requested				Radio Scan	sctivity (dpm)	
Sample Number	Other I.D.	Sampling Location		Sampling <u>Method</u>	Sample Type	Preservative Utilized	Alpha	Beta/ Gamma	Remarks
	- <u>500</u>	ati	achment						

Sampling Method: 24FC=24 Hour Flow-Weighted Composite; 24TC=24 Haur Time-Weighted Composite; G=Grab; B=Bail; D=Drill; C=Core; P=Pump; O=Other (Please Specify)

Sample Type: E=Effluent; SL=STudge: SO=Sol1; SC-Sol1 Core; HM-Well Water; SW=Surface Water; O=Other Preservative: F=Filtered; NF=Non-Filtered; $HA=Bon Acidiiled; A=B_{a}=\{2,m1/1\}; A=HNO_{3}(5,m1/1); A=H$

SUPPLEMENTAL REQUESTOR DATA SHEET

Sample <u>Number</u>	Sampling Location	Sampling Nethod	Sample Type#	Romaricet
89.01R11	TA-16-430	greb	501	
89.01812			1_1	}
01813				
_01814				
01815				
.01816				
.01817	I7			
_01818				
.01819				
01820				
101821				
_01822		· .		
_01823				
01824				
01825				
01826				
01827				
.01828		1		
01829)			
01830		<u> </u>		
.01831	1	J.		
01832	TA-16-430	grab	Soil	
		-	<u></u>	
			7	

Indicate whether sample is soil, sludge, water, etc.

** Note preservation.

NP: No preservation; sample stored at room temperature.

P-Ice Sample stored in ice (not frozen).

 $P-Na_2S_2O_3$; Sample preserved in $Na_2S_2O_3$ to remove chlorine residual.



.

.

.

Prepared by: ESG on 17-Nov-1989

POLYCHLORINATED BIPHENYLS

REQUEST NUMBER:	8263	MATRIX:	SS	ANALYST:	Scott Brendecke

OUNER:	Michael Alexander	GROUP: HSE-8	MAIL-STOP: K490	PHONE: 7-0453
OBRILL .				

•

SUMMARY of TOTAL PCB's for customer samples on this report

CUSTOMER	SAMPLE					COMPLETION		
NUM	NUM	ANALYSIS	RESULT	UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	DATE	COMMENT	COMPOUND NAME
89.01811	89.17139	1336363	2.09	0.42	UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01812	89.17140	1336363	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor	,
89.01813	89.17141	1336363	2.16	0.88	UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01814	89.17142	1336363	1.23	0.25	UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor	•
89.01815	89.17143	1336363	3.38	1.8	UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01816	89.17144	1336363	2.23	0.44	UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroctor	
89.01817	89.17145	1336363	1.13	0.22	UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01818	89.17146	1336363	3.2	0.64	UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01819	89.17147	1336363	3.97	0.54	UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01820	89.17148	1336363	1.39	0.27	UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01821	89.17149	1336363	10.99	2.19	UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01822	89.17150	1336363	8.18	1.63	UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01823	89.17151	1336363	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroctor	
89 01824	89,17152	1336363	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01825	89.17153	1336363	2.04	0_41	UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01826	89.17154	1336363	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroctor	
89 01827	89.17155	1336363	4.41	0.9	UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89 01828	89,17156	1336363	17.34	3.5	UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89 01829	89.17157	1336363	4.9	1.	UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89 01830	89.17158	1336363	5.82	1.2	UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01831	17159	1336363	< 1 .		UG/G	'89	Mixed-Aroclor	

. .

UG/G

11/16/89

Mixed-Aroclor

.

.

•

.

DETAILED PCB_DATA for customer samples on this report

CUSTOMER	SAMPLE					COMPLETION			
NUM	NUM	ANALYSIS	RESULT	UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	DATE	COMMENT		COMPOUND NAME
89.01811	89.17139	1336363	2.09	0.42	UG/G	11/16/89		Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01811	89.17139	53469219	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89		Aroclor 1242	
89.01811	89.17139	11097691	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89		Aroctor 1254	
89.01811	89.17139	11096825	2.09	0.42	UG/G	11/16/89		Aroclor 1260	
89.01812	89.17140	1336363	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89		Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01812	89.17140	53469219	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89		Aroclor 1242	
89.01812	89.17140	11097691	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89		Aroclor 1254	
89.01812	89.17140	11096825	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89		Aroclor 1260	
89.01813	89.17141	1336363	2.16	0.88	UG/G	11/16/89		Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01813	89.17141	53469219	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89		Aroclor 1242	
89,01813	89.17141	11097691	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89		Aroclor 1254	
89.01813	89.17141	11096825	2.16	0.88	UG/G	11/16/89		Aroclor 1260	
89.01814	89.17142	1336363	1.23	0.25	UG/G	11/16/89		Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01814	89.17142	53469219	¹ < 1.		UG/G	11/16/89		Aroclor 1242	
89.01814	89.17142	11097691	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89		Aroclor 1254	
89.01814	89.17142	11096825	1.23	0.25	UG/G	11/16/89		Aroclor 1260	
89.01815	89.17143	1336363	3.38	1.8	UG/G	11/16/89		Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01815	89.17143	53469219	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89		Aroclor 1242	
89.01815	89.17143	11097691	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89		- Aroclor 1254	
89.01815	89.17143	11096825	3.38	1.8	UG.G	11/16/89		Aroclor 1260	
89.01816	89.17144	1336363	2.23	0.44	UG/G	11/16/89		Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01816	89.17144	53469219	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89		Aroclor 1242	
89.01816	89.17144	11097691	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89		Aroclor 1254	
89.01816	89.17144	11096825	2.23	0.44	UG/G	11/16/89		Aroclor 1260	
89.01817	89.17145	1336363	1.13	0.22	UG/G	11/16/89		Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01817	89.17145	53469219	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89		Aroclor 1242	
89.01817	89.17145	11097691	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89		Aroclor 1254	
89.01817	89.17145	11096825	1.13	0.22	UG/G	11/16/89		Aroclor 1260	
89.01818	89.17146	1336363	3.2	0.64	UG/G	11/16/89		Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01818	89.17146	53469219	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89		Aroclor 1242	
89.01818	89.17146	11097691	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89		Aroctor 1254	
89.01818	89.17146	11096825	3.2	0.64	UG/G	11/16/89		Aroctor 1260	
89.01819	89.17147	1336363	3.97	0.54	UG/G	11/16/89		Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01819	89.17147	53469219	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89		Aroclor 1242	
89.01819	89.17147	11097691	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89		Aroclor 1254	
89.01819	89.17147	11096825	3.97	0.54	UG/G	11/16/89		Aroclor 1260	
89.0182	`,17148	1336363	1.39	0.27	UG/G	189		Mixed-Aroclor	

89.01820	89.17148	53469219	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01820	89.17148	11097691	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Vroclor 1254
89.01820	89.17148	11096825	1.39	0.27	UG/G	11/16/89	6: octor 1260
89.01821	89.17149	1336363	10.99	2.19	UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroctor
89.01821	89.17149	53469219	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Anoclor 1242
89.01821	89.17149	11097691	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Croclor 1254
89.01821	89.17149	11096825	10.99	2.19	UG/G	11/16/89	2: octor 1260
89.01822	89.17150	1336363	8.18	1.63	UG/G	11/16/89	tiixed-Aroclor
89.01822	89.17150	53469219	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclon 1242
89.01822	89.17150	11097691	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01822	89.17150	11096825	8.18	1.63	UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1260
89.01823	89.17151	1336363	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01823	89.17151	53469219	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01823	89.17151	11097691	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01823	89.17151	11096825	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1260
89.01824	89.17152	1336363	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01824	89.17152	53469219	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01824	89.17152	11097691	< 1.	•	UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01824	89.17152	11096825	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1260
89.01825	89.17153	1336363	2.04	0.41	UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01825	89.17153	53469219	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01825	89.17153	11097691	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01825	89.17153	11096825	2.04	0.41	UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1260
89.01826	89.17154	1336363	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01826	89.17154	53469219	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01826	89.17154	11097691	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01826	89.17154	11096825	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1260
89.01827	89.17155	1336363	4.41	0.9	UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01827	89.17155	53469219	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01827	89.17155	11097691	< 1 .		UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01827	89.17155	11096825	· 4.41	0.9	UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1260
89.01828	89.17156	1336363	17.34	3.5	UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01828	89.17156	53469219	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01828	89.17156	11097691	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01828	89.17156	11096825	17.34	3.5	UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1260
89.01829	89.17157	1336363	4.9	1.	UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01829	89.17157	53469219	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01829	89.17157	11097691	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01829	89.17157	11096825	4.9	1.	UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1260
89.01830	89.17158	1336363	5.82	1.2	UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01830	89.17158	53469219	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01830	89.17158	11097691	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Aroctor 1254
89,01830	89.17158	11096825	5.82	1.2	UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1260
89.01831	89,17159	1336363	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01831	¹⁷¹⁵⁹	53469219	< 1.		UG/G	'89	Aroclor 1242

•

.

.

0 01931	80 17150	11007401	- 1	110.40	11/14/00	A 1	
9.01031	07.17157	1109/091	< 1.	06/6	11/10/09	Aroclor 1254	
9.01831	89.17159	11096825	< 1.	UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1260	
9.01832	89.17160	1336363	< 1.	UG/G	11/16/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
9.01832	89.17160	53469219	< 1.	UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1242	
9.01832	89.17160	11097691	< 1.	UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1254	
9.01832	89.17160	11096825	< 1.	UG/G	11/16/89	Aroclor 1260	

.

. .

. .

REPORT NUMBER: 4793 (continued)

	Prepared by: ESG on 17-Nov-1989	
	POLYCHLORINATED BIPHENYLS	
REQUEST NUMBER: 8263	MATRIX: SS ANALYST: Scott Brendecke	
OWNER: Michael Alexander	GROUP: HSE-8 MAIL-STOP: K490 PHONE: 7-0453	

							CERTIFIED			
CUSTOMER NUM	SAMPLE NUM	ANALYSIS	RE SUL T	UNCERTAINTY	UNTES	CERTIFIED VALUE	VALUE	COMPLETION DATE	COMMENT	COMPOUND
00,20101	00.20101	1336363	15.75	3.9	UG/G	25.	2.	11/16/89	WARNING 2-3 SIG Mixed-Aroclor	
00.20101	00.20101	53469219	< 1.		UG/G			11/16/89	UNDER CONTROL Aroclor 1242	
00.20101	00.20101	11097691	< 1.		UG/G			11/16/89	UNDER CONTROL Aroclor 1254	
00,20101	00.20101	11096825	15.75	3.9	UG/G	25.	2.	11/16/89	WARNING 2-3 SIG Aroclor 1260	

.

.

SUMMARY OF CONTROL STATUS OF BLIND QA SAMPLES RUN WITH THIS BATCH

.

.

SAMPLE		COMPLETION											
NUM	ANALYSIS	RESULT	UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	DATE	COMMENT		COMPOUND - NAME					
89 17630	1336363	20.29	5.1	UG/G	11/16/89	UNDER CONTROL	Mixed-Aroclor						
89 17630	53469219	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1242						
89 17630	11097691	< 1.		UG/G	11/16/89	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1254						
89.17630	11096825	20.29	5.1	UG/G	11/16/89	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1260						

4 i

Aroth Brenderhe Analyst

Section Leader

Date

. !



Date 11/22/27

QA Officer

The control status of the preceeding data was evaluated using the standard statistical criteria set forth in 'Quality Assurance for Health and Environmental Chemistry: 1986,' LA-11114-MS, pp. 3-4.

HSE-9 ANALYTICAL SERVICE AGREEMENT

- _

Request No. 8278

ŧ

I. PRESAMPLING CONFERENCE	
Program Code <u>41 A 56.</u>	No. Samples Expected <u>29</u>
Submission Date 11/13/87	Completion Date
Chain of Custody? No	Special Protocol? (EPA etc.) FPA
Analyses Requested: List analyses on HSE (Indicate expected concentration range and	i-9 Analytical Chemistry Request Sheet. PCB, Soils, Soipe d required detection limits under remarks.)
Container Type <u>gles, / taslon</u> (See Memo HSE-9/88-304. Guidelines f	Preservative or Collection and Preservation of Liquid Samples.)
Storage Conditions (circle one or more):	None Refrigerate Freeze Darkness
Sample Hazards Present? (Circle one or) No hazard Toxic Radioactive: alpha	nore) beta gamma Flammable Explosive/Reactive
Sample Disposal: Return (All hazardous samples or TRU wastes w	Discard <u>1</u> ill be returned to the customer.)
Customer <u>Mall A Under</u> Customer Phone <u>5-0453</u> MS Date <u>11/13/89</u>	HSE-9 Section Leader Mile Organic <u>K-490</u> Inorganic Radioche:
II. EMERGENCY SAMPLES	
Emergency Status requires the following	signatures:
Customer Group Leader HSE-9 Group Leader Date	
III. SAMPLE RECEIPT	
Signature <u>EQ, Qeth Q. Jones</u>	Date 11/13/89 Total No. Samples Received 29+5Q(
Current Stande CO	$\frac{2.56}{2.56} = \frac{6}{2.56} \frac{6}{2.56} \frac{6}{2.56} \frac{1}{2.56} \frac{1}$
Customer Sample No. Kange D1, 018;	

REQUESTOR DATA SHEET

							rog ou	^{vk} r	aye
Sampled	by <u>Mike</u>	Herander	Collection D	ate <u>////8/</u>	Time on	Weather	W1	tness <u>//</u>	to Barten
Presampl	ing Confer	ence Complet	ed With Chuck	0	n	Send Report T	· Like	Alucarta	MS 1-1490
Phone_5	-0453	Source of	Sample: <u>Trans</u>	lorner Stadio	<u>~</u> Re	ason for Sampling	10.1	dan-	e
Group	V X	Site /	Building	150 Ro	om No.	• -		/	
Priority	Assigned:). Emergen	cv: 2. Recogniz		Iminent Dea	dilme: 4. Specia	1 Survey	: 5. Rou	tine: '
(firele	Onel Prior	ity Annroyal	• (] 61	or DGL : 2 or	3 461 • 4			, <u>,</u> , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	1
Nethed a			· (F. UL		J. NUL, 4. U	" J. JLJ			
Methoy O	F ANd 19515	Compiles NI	un:						
Backgrou	nd Informat	tion Useful	to Analyst (Con	tamination Lev	els, Hazards	, Etc.)			
A11 A11	Samples Su	ubmitted to (HSE-9 Must Be S	creened for Ra	dioactivity.	Samples Contain	ing Grea	ter Than	20 dpm Total
A11 A1pl	Samples Si na or 100 d	ubmitted to (1pm Combined	HSE-9 Must Be S Gamma/Beta Con	creened For Ra tamination Can	dioactivity. not Be Hand]	Samples Contain ed At TA-59.	Ing Grea	ter Than ctivity	20 dpm Total
All Alpi Sample	Samples Su ha or 100 d Other	ubmitted to (dpm Combined Sampling	HSE-9 Must Be S Gamma/Beta Con Analysis	creened For Ra tamination Can Sampling	dioactivity. not Be Hand] Sample	Samples Contain ed At TA-59. Preservative	Ing Grea Radioa Scan (ter Than ctivity dpm) Beta/	20 dpm Total Remarks
All Alp Sample tumber	Samples Su ba or 100 d Other 1.D.	sampling	HSE-9 Must Be S Gamma/Beta Con Analysis Reguested	creened For Ra tamination Can Sampling <u>Hethod</u>	dioactivity. not Be Hand] Sample Type	Samples Contain ed At TA-59. Preservative Utilized	Ing Grea Radioa Scan (<u>Alpha</u>	ter Than ctivity dpm) Beta/ Gamma	20 dpm Total Remarks
All Alp Sample tumber	Samples Su ha or 100 d Other 1.D.	ubmitted to (ipm Combined Sampling Location	HSE-9 Must Be S Gamma/Beta Con Analysis Reguested	creened For Ra tamination Can Sampling <u>Hethod</u>	dioactivity. not Be Hand] Sample Type	Samples Contain ed At TA-59. Preservative Utilized	Ing Grea Radioa Scan (<u>Alpha</u>	ter Than ctivity dpm) Beta/ Gamma	20 dpm Total Remarks
All Alpi Sample Humber	Samples Su ha or 100 d Other 1.D.	ubmitted to (ipm Combined Sampling Location	HSE-9 Must Be S Gamma/Beta Con Analysis Reguested	creened For Ra tamination Can Sampling <u>Method</u>	dioactivity. not Be Handl Sample Type	Samples Contain ed At TA-59. Preservative Utilized	Ing Grea Radioa Scan (<u>Alpha</u>	ter Than ctivity dpm) Beta/ Gamma	20 dpm Total Remarks
All Alp Sample Humber	Samples Su ha or 100 d Other 1.D.	ubmitted to (ipm Combined Sampling Location	HSE-9 Must Be S Gamma/Beta Con Analysis Requested Analysis	creened For Ra tamination Can Sampling Method	dioactivity. not Be Handl Sample Type	Samples Contain ed At TA-59. Preservative Utilized	Ing Grea Radioa Scan (<u>Alpha</u>	ter Than ctivity dpm) Beta/ Gamma	20 dpm Total Remarks
All Alp Sample Humber	Samples Su ha or 100 d Other 1.D. S. C.C.	ubmitted to (ipm Combined Sampling Location Adda	HSE-9 Must Be S Gamma/Beta Con Analysis Requested Amman	creened For Ra tamination Can Sampling <u>Method</u>	dioactivity. not Be Hand] Sample Type	Samples Contain ed At TA-59. Preservative Utilized	Ing Grea Radioa Scan (<u>Alpha</u>	ter Than ctivity dpm) Beta/ Gamma	20 dpm Total Remarks
All Alp Sample Humber	Samples Su ha or 100 d Other 1.D. S. C. C.	ubmitted to (apm Combined Sampling Location Adda	HSE-9 Must Be S Gamma/Beta Con Analysis Requested	creened For Ra tamination Can Sampling Method	dioactivity. not Be Handl Sample Type	Samples Contain ed At TA-59. Preservative Utilized	Ing Grea Radioa Scan (<u>Alpha</u>	ter Than ctlvity dpm) Beta/ Gamma	20 dpm Total Remarks
All Alp Sample Humber	Samples Su ha or 100 d Other 1.D.	ubmitted to (ipm Combined Sampling Location	HSE-9 Must Be S Gamma/Beta Con Analysis Reguested Am and	creened For Ra tamination Can Sampling Method	dioactivity. not Be Hand] Sample Type	Samples Contain ed At TA-59. Preservative Utilized	Ing Grea	ter Than ctivity dpm) Beta/ Gamma	20 dpm Total Remarks

Sampling Method: 24FC=24 Hour Flow-Weighted Composite; 24TC=24 Hour Time-Weighted Composite; G=Grab; B=Bail; D=Drill; C=Core: P=Pump; O=Other (Please Specify)

Sample Type: E=Effluent; SL=Sludge: SO=Soi1; SC-Soi1 Core; WW-Well Water; SW=Surface Water; O=Other Preservative: F=F11tered; NF=Non-Filtered; NA=Non Acidif1ed; A-H₂SO₄(2 ml/1); A-HNO₃(5 ml/1); A-HNO₃(5 ml/1); A H₃PO₄ & CuSO₄; A-Other; I=Iced; P-NaOH.



SUPPLEMENTAL REQUESTOR DATA SHEET

Sample Number	Sampling Location	Sampling	Sample	Benerius t
89.01834	78-16-430	910b.	Swipe	Kemarks-
01835		1	swipe	
.018.36			Soil	
01837			Snipe	
. 01838	L		Sail	
101839				
.01840				
101841	└ <u>·</u>	<u>_</u>		
<u></u>	Ļ/			
.01843	<u> </u>			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
11844	<u> </u>)
01845	<u> </u>)
.01846	<u> </u>	<i>/</i>		
,01847	<u> </u>	<i> </i>	/	
01848	<u> </u>	<u>}</u> /	/	
11849				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
01850	<u> </u>	<u>├_</u> /		
OIBSI	<u>├</u> /	┼╌┼╌╌╌╴		
MIBSZ_	<u> </u>	┟╼┟┈╾╼╼╼		
01853	<u>├/</u>	<u> </u>		
.01859	<u>├</u> /			
11855 1.0K1	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		
ALACA	<u>}</u>	·/		
JUBS 1	<u> -</u>			<u></u>
NIDEO	- \			\

* Indicate whether sample is soil, sludge, water, etc.

** Note preservation.

NP: No preservation; sample stored at room temperature.

P-Ice Sample stored in ice (not frozen).

 $P-Na_2S_2O_3$; Sample preserved in $Na_2S_2O_3$ to remove chlorine residual.

SUPPLEMENTAL REQUESTOR DATA SHEET

Sample Number	Sampling Location	Sampling Method	Sample Type*	Remarks##
89.01860	16- 430	9905	50.1	
_01861	2	7	lech (TR	
1.01862	3	}	goure BR	
			1	
			· .	
		·		
	·			
			<u> </u>	
		<u> </u>		
			· _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · · _ · · · _ ·	
			<u> </u>	·
	····· -		l – –	

Indicate whether sample is soil, sludge, water, etc.

** Note preservation.

NP: No preservation; sample stored at room temperature.

P-Ice Sample stored in ice (not frozen).

 $P-Na_2S_2O_3$; Sample preserved in $Na_2S_2O_3$ to remove chlorine residual.



Prepared by: DMS on 1-Dec-1989

POLYCHLORINATED BIPHENYLS

REQUEST NUMBER:	8278	MATRIX:	S	ANALYST:	Dee Seitz

OWNER: Michael Alexander GROUP: HSE-8 MAIL-STOP: K490 PHONE: 7-0453

.

SUMMARY of TUTAL PCB's for customer samples on this report

..

CUSTOMER	SAMPLE					COMPLETION		
NUM	NUM	ANALYSIS	RESULT	UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	DATE	COMMENT	COMPOUND NAME
89.01836	89.17637	1336363	10.1	2.2	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01838	89.17638	1336363	5.8	1.2	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01839	89.17639	1336363	0.3	0.06	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01840	89.17640	1336363	26.2	5.2	UG/G	12/01/89	Nixed-Aroclor	
89.01841	89.17641	1336363	720.	144.	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01842	89.17642	1336363	334.	67.	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01843	89.17643	1336363	12.2	2.4	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01844	89.17644	1336363	1.8	0.4	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01845	89.17645	1336363	0.4	0.08	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01846	89.17646	1336363	1.8	0.4	UG/G	12/01/89	Nixed-Aroclor	
89.01847	89.17647	1336363	2.6	0.5	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01848	89.17648	1336363	6.1	·1.2	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01849	89.17649	1336363	11.3	2.2	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01850	89.17650	1336363	3.1	6 . 25	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01851	89.17651	1336363	25.6	5.1	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01852	89.17652	1336363	662.	132.	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01853	89.17653	1336363	30.	6.	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01854	89.17654	1336363	8.5	1.7	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01855	89.17655	1336363	3.2	0.0	UG/G	12/01, 39	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01856	89.17656	1336363	5.5	1.1	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclar	,
89.01857	89.17657	1336363	1.8	0.4	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor	

111 10 100)

inter

89.018.	87. i 7658	1336363	3.1	0.6	UG/G	i. 789	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01859	89.17659	1336363	1.6	0.3	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroctor
89.01860	89.17660	1336363	3.6	0.7	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01834	89.17662	1336363	3.3	0.7	MG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01835	89.17663	1336363	4.7	- 0.9	MG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01837	89.17664	1336363	< 0.1	•	UG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01861	89.17665	1336363	< 0.1		UG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01862	89.17666	1336363	< 0.1		UG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor

DETAILED PCB_DATA for customer samples on this report

_

CUSTOMER	SAMPLE					COMPLETION			
NUM	NUM	ANALYSIS	- RESULT	UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	DATE	COMMENT		COMPOUND NAME
89.01836	89.17637	1336363	10.1	2.2	UG/G	12/01/89		Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01836	89.17637	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89		Aroclor 1242	
89.01836	89.17637	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89		Aroclor 1254	
89.01836	89.17637	11096825	10.1	2.2	UG/G	12/01/89		Aroclor 1260	
89.01838	89.17638	1336363	5.8	1.2	UG/G	12/01/89		Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01838	89.17638	1336363	< 500.		PPM	12/01/89	кіт -	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01838	89.17638	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89		Aroclor 1242	
89.01838	89.17638	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89		Aroclor 1254	
89.01838	89.17638	11096825	5.8	1.2	UG/G	12/01/89		Aroclor 1260	
89.01839	89.17639	1336363	0.3	0.06	UG/G	12/01/89		Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01839	89.17639	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89		Arocion 1242	
89.01839	89.17639	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89		Aroclor 1254	
89.01839	89.17639	11096825	0.3	0.06	UG/G	12/01/89		Aroclor 1260	
89.01840	89.17640	1336363	26.2	5.2	UG/G	12/01/89		'Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01840	89,17640	1336363	< 500.		PPM	12/01/89	кіт	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01840	89.17640	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89		Aroclor 1242	
89.01840	89.17640	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89		Aroclor 1254	
89.01840	89,17640	11096825	26.2	5.2	UG/G	12/01/89		Aroctor 1260	
89.01841	89.17641	1336363	720.	144.	UG/G	12/01/89		Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01841	89.17641	53469219	´ < 0 . 1		UG/G	12/01/89		Aroclor 1242	
89.01841	89.17641	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89		Aroclor 1254	
89.01841	89.17641	11096825	720.	144.	UG/G	12/01/89		Arocior 1260	
89.01842	89.17642	1336363	334.	67.	UG/G	12/01/89		Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01842	89.17642	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89		Aroclor 1242	
89.01842	89.17642	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89		Aroclor 1254	
89.01842	89.17642	11096825	334.	67.	UG/G	12/01/89		Aroclor 1260	
89.01843	89.17643	1336363	12.2	2.4	UG/G	12/01/89		Mixed-Aroclor	
89.01843	89.17643	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89		Aroclor 1242	
89.01843	89.17643	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89		Aroclor 1254	
89.01843	89,17643	11096825	12.2	2.4	UG/G	12/01/89		Aroclor 1260	

•

89.0184	89.17644	1336363	1.8	0.4	UG/ G	1. 89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01844	89.17644	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01844	89.17644	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01844	89,17644	11096825	1.8	0.4	UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1260
89.01845	89,17645	1336363	0.4	0.08	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01845	89,17645	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01845	89,17645	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroctor 1254
89.01845	89.17645	11096825	0.4	0.08	UG/G	12/01/89	Arocior 1260
89.01846	89, 17646	1336363	1.8	0.4	UG/G	12/01/89	Hixed-Aroclor
89.01846	89,17646	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01846	89,17646	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01846	89.17646	11096825	1.8	0.4	UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1260
89.01847	89.17647	1336363	< 500.		PPM	12/01/89 KIT	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01847	89.17647	1336363	2.6	0.5	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01847	89.17647	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01847	89.17647	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01847	89.17647	11096825	2.6	0.5	UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1260
89.01848	89, 17648	1336363	6.1	1.2	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01848	89.17648	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01848	89.17648	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01848	89, 17648	11096825	6.1	1.2	UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1260
89.01849	89,17649	1336363	11.3	2.2	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01849	89,17649	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01849	89, 17649	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01849	89.17649	11096825	11.3	2.2	UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1260
89.01850	89.17650	1336363	3.1	0.6	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01850	89.17650	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01850	89.17650	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01850	89.17650	11096825	3.1	0.6	UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1260
89.01851	89.17651	1336363	25.6	5.1	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01851	89.17651	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01851	89.17651	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01851	89.17651	11096825	25.6	5.1	UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1260
89.01852	89.17652	1336363	662.	132.	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01852	89.17652	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01852	89.17652	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01852	89.17652	11096825	662.	132.	UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1260
89.01853	89.17653	1336363	< 500.		PPM	12701789 KIT	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01853	89.17653	1336363	30.	6.	UG /G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01853	89.17653	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01853	89.17653	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01853	89.17653	11096825	30.	6.	UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1260
89.01854	89.17654	1336363	8.5	1.7	UG/G	127 0 0789	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01854	89.17654	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/09	Aroclor 1242
89.01854	89.17654	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1254
÷;							

۰,

89.0185	89.17654	11096825	8.5	1.7	UG/G	16, 1/89	Aroclar 1260
89.01855	89.17655	1336363	3.2	0.6	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclon
89.01855	89.17655	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Anoclor 1262
89.01855	89.17655	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01855	89.17655	11096825	3.2	0.6	UG/G	12/01/89	Araclar 1260
89.01856	89.17656	1336363	5.5	1.1	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01856	89.17656	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroctor 12/2
89.01856	89.17656	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Argelor 1254
89.01856	89.17656	11096825	5.5	1.1	UG/G	12/01/89	Anaclor 1260
89.01857	89.17657	1336363	1.8	0.4	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01857	89.17657	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01857	89.17657	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01857	89.17657	11096825	1.8	0.4	UG/G	12/01/89	Arector 1260
89.01858	89.17658	1336363	3.1	0.6	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01858	89.17658	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Arocion 1242
89.01858	89.17658	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01858	89.17658	11096825	3.1	0.6	UG/G	12/01/89	Arector 1260
89.01859	89.17659	1336363	< 500.		PPM	12/01/89 KIT	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01859	89.17659	1336363	1.6	0.3	UG/G	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01859	89.17659	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Angelon 1242
89.01859	89.17659	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01859	89.17659	11096825	1.6	0.3	UG/G	12/01/89	Arocler 1260
89.01860	89.17660	1336363	3.6	0.7	UG/G	12/01/89	Hixed-Aroclor
89.01860	89.17660	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01860	89.17660	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01860	89.17660	11096825	3.6	0.7	UG/G	12/01/89	Aroclor 1260
89.01834	89.17662	1336363	3.3	0.7	MG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Hixed-Aroclor
89.01834	89,17662	53469219	< 1.		MG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01834	89.17662	11097691	< 1.		MG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01834	89.17662	11096825	3.3	0.7	MG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Aroclor 1260
89.01835	89.17663	1336363	4.7	0.9	MG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01835	89.17663	53469219	< 1.		MG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01835	89.17663	11097691	< 1.		MG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01835	89,17663	11096825	4.7	0.9	MG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Aroclor 1260
89.01837	89.17664	133636 3	< 0.1		UG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01837	89.17664	53469219	< 0.1		UG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01837	89.17664	11097691	< 0.1		UG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01837	89.17664	11096825	< 0.1		UG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Aroclor 1260
89.01861	89.17665	1336363	< 0.1		UG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.01861	89.17665	53469219	< 0.1		UG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01861	89.17665	11097691	< 0.1		UG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Aroclor 1254
89.01861	89.17665	11096825	< 0.1		UG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Aroclor 1260
89.01862	89.17666	1336363	< 0.1		UG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Mixed-Aroclor
89.04862	89.17666	53469219	< 0.1		UG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Aroclor 1242
89.01862	89.17666	11097691	< 0.1		UG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	Aroclor 1254
; '							

. •

.





/89

Aroclor 1260

1

₩.

÷;

٠.

.

.

.

REPORT NUMBER: 4948 (continued)

.

Prepared by: DMS on 1-Dec-1989

.

.

POLYCHLORINATED BIPHENYLS

REQUEST	NUMBER:	8278	MATRIX:	S	ANALYST:	Dee Seitz

GROUP: HSE-8 MAIL-STOP: K490 PHONE: 7-0453 OWNER: Michael Alexander

							CERTIFIED				
CUSTOMER	SAMPLE					CERTIFIED	VALUE	COMPLETION			
NUM NI	NUM	ANALYSIS	RESULT	UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	VALUE	UNCERTAINTY	DATE	COMMENT		COMPOUND
00.20100	00.20100	1336363	21.	4.2	UG/G	22.	2.	12/01/89	UNDER CONTROL	Mixed-Aroclor	
00.20100	00.20100	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G			12/01/89	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1242	
00.20100	00.20100	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G			12/01/89	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1254	
00.20100	00.20100	11096825	21.	4.2	UG/G	22.	2.	12/01/89	UNDER CONTROL	Aroctor 1260	
00.99998	00.99998	1336363	8.	1.6	UG/SAMPLE	8.5	0.8	12/01/89	UNDER CONTROL	Mixed-Aroclor	
00.99998	00.99998	53469219	< 0.1		UG/SAMPLE			12/01/89	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1242	
00.99998	00.99998	11097691	< 0.1		UG/SAMPLE			12/01/89	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1254	
00.99998	00.99998	11096825	8.	1.6	UG/SAMPLE	8.5	0.8	12/01/89	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1260	

.

SUMMARY OF CONTROL STATUS OF BLIND GA SAMPLES RUN WITH THIS BATCH

SAMPLE					COMPLETION	ı		
NUM	ANALYSIS	RESULT	UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	DATE	COMMENT		COMPOUND - NAME
89.17636	1336363	25.8	5.2	UG/G	12/01/89	UNDER CONTROL	Mixed-Aroclor	
89.17636	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1242	
89.17636	11097691	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1254	
89.17636	11096825	25.8	5.2	UG/G	12/01/89	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1260	

• '

89.176	1336363	15.1	3.	UG/G	12/01/89	UNDER UNTROL	Mixed-Aroclor
89.17661	53469219	< 0.1		UG/G	12/01/89	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1242
89,17661	11097691	< 0.1		VG/G	12/01/89	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1254
89.17661	11096825	15.1	3.	UG/G	12/01/89	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1260
89.17667	1336363	11.6	2.3	UG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	UNDER CONTROL	Mixed-Aroclor
89.17667	53469219	< 0.1	•	UG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1242
89.17667	11097691	< 0.1		UG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1254
89.17667	11096825	11.6	2.3	UG/SAMPLE	12/01/89	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1260
6	Or Ser		JML Section Leade	r	ma. QA Offi	n/ cer	
	1 2/4/8 Date	2	12-519 Date		/2-5 Dat	5-89 e	

The control status of the preceeding data was evaluated using the standard statistical criteria set forth in 'Quality Assurance for Health and Environmental Chemistry: 1986,' LA-11114-MS, pp. 3-4.

1

 i_{1}

٠,

...

.

.

	1		And Point	_	
	10/23/89	TA-15129.	Koom 4	Equipment	Analytical 2.09 vala
.01812			17	Transformer #	21 98
·01813		1 (0	Pod = 16.563	2.16
.01815			16		3.38
.01816			22		2.23
.01818			24	· · ·	3.2
.01819		/	25		3.97
.01820		{ /	26		1.39
.01822			28		8.18.
.01823			29		41
.01829			37		2.04
.01826		/	43		41
.01827		/	H 4 H 5	ч. 	4.47 19.34 *
.01824		/	46		4.9
C .01830			47		5.82.
\$89 01832	10/23/89	71-16-430	49		
39.0183.3	11/1/89	TA.35-7	outside	Capacitor.	<10
 	1113/89	T.A. 16 . 430		Transformer	3.3 ME/Small
6 .01835	()	2	Pod 16-563	4.7 MG/sample
01836			3		10.1 09/9
.01838			6		5.8 0912
.01839			9		0.3
01840	() () () () () () () () () ()		10		720 . +
.018 42	/		12		334 \$
.01843)	13		12.2
1 .01845	(/	17		0.4
£ .01846 1 .01847		/	8 9		24
4 101848			20		6.1
18 .01849	/		2/		11.3
.01851	/		3		25.6
39 10 52			32		662
	· ·				
					<u>ا</u>

.



1

-1.

۰.

ι

DRAF

NON-REPORTABLE

CLEANUP RECORD OF HIGH-CONCENTRATION SPILLS INVOLVING NON REPORTABLE RELEASES

<u>TA- 16 - 563.</u> PCB ID # 864997

Records. The responsible party shall document the cleanup with records of decontamination. The records must be maintained for a period of 5 years. The records and certification shall consist of the following:

I. Identification of the source of the spill, e.g., type of equipment.

PCB Transformer at TA-16, Building 430, Station 9, Structure 563, PCB ID # 864997, concentration 25,000 ppm.

II. Estimated or actual date and time of the spill occurrence.

July 28,1987 a leak form a transformer was noticed and reported to HSE-3, HSE-7 and HSE-8. Leak was fixed on August 1, 1987.

III. The date and time cleanup was completed or terminated (if cleanup was delayed by emergency or adverse weather: the nature and duration of the delay).

Cleanup was initiated on July 28, 1987 at 3:00 pm and continued on July 29, 1987 at which time the cleanup was completed.

IV. A brief description of the spill location and the nature of the materials contaminated. (This information should include whether the spill occurred in an outdoor electrical substation, other restricted access location, or in a nonrestricted access area.)

The released fluid went onto the transformer pad and surrounding soil. The transformer is located in a fenced off substation. Contaminated material was nonimpervious solid surfaces; concrete pad, soil, and impervious solid surfaces, metal conduit. This location is considered as a "outdoor electrical substation".

Page 1 of 3

CLEANUP RECORD High concentration.

<u>TA- 16 - 563</u>

<u>Room PCB ID # 864997</u>

V. Pre-cleanup sampling data used to establish the spill boundaries if required because of insufficient visible traces and a brief description of the sampling methodology used to establish the spill boundaries.

Spill boundaries established visually around transformer. Grid established in 1989 to determine the extent of the original spill cleanup and release.

VI. A brief description of the solid surfaces cleaned.

Free oil and stained area was cleaned using an absorbent and drummed.

VII. Approximate depth of soil excavation and the amount of soil removed.

Soil was removed to a depth of approximately 2.5 feet and drummed. One drum of soil was removed.

VIII. Post-cleanup verification sampling data and, if not otherwise apparent from the documentation, a brief description of the sampling methodology and analytical technique used.

Post-cleanup sampling was conducted after each cleanup effort. Sampling scheme established using the MRI guidelines. Soil samples were taken at the various grid points.

Optional: 1) Estimated cost of cleanup (by man-hours, dollars, or both).

JRAFT

DOCUMENTATION CHECKLIST

CHECK APPROPRIATE BOX

- Serio Grid
- I ANALYTICAL
- □ INCIDENT REPORT
- ☑ MEMO'S
- □ NOTES
- COPY OF SJT OR WO'S
- D PHOTOGRAPHS

įi,

r,



Prepared by: LAK on 24-Aug-1992

POLYCHLORINATED BIPHENYLS

REQUEST NUMBER: 1	3363	MATRIX: SS	ANALYST:	JEFFREY RO	BERTS			PROGRAM CODE:	W21D	NOTEBOOK:	NA	PAGE:	NA
OWNER: Daniel E.	Bryant	GROUP :	EM-B	MAIL-STOP:	K490	PHONE:	7-0814	TECHNIQUE:	GCEC	ANALYTIC	AL PROCEDURE	:	

SUMMARY of TOTAL PCB's for customer'samples on this report

CUSTOMER NUM	SAMPLE NUM	ANALYSIS	ANALYTICAL RESULT	ANALYTICAL UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	COMPLETION DATE	COMMENT		COMPOUND NAME
92.0220	92.25441	1336363	170.	90.	UG/G	8/20/92		Mixed-Aroclor	

DETAILED PCB DATA for customer samples on this report

CUSTOMER	SAMPLE		ANALYTICAL	ANALYTICAL		COMPLETION			
NUM	NOM	ANALYSIS	RESULT	UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	DATE	COMMENT		COMPOUND NAME
92.0220	92.25441	1336363	170.	90.	UG/G	8/20/92		Mixed-Aroclor	
92 0220	92.25441	53469219	< 6.		UG/G	8/20/92		Aroclor 1242	
92.0220	92.25441	11097691	< 6.		UG/G	8/20/92		Aroclor 1254	
92.0220	92.25441	11096825	170.	90.	UG/G	8/20/92		Aroclor 1260	
а			4						



. I

.

.

		***** E	M-9 QUALITY ASSURANCE REPORT	******	******		
	POL	YCHLORINATED BIPHENYLS	Prepared by: LAK	on	24-Aug-1992		
REQUEST NUMBER: 13363	MATRIX: SS AN	ALYST: JEFFREY ROBERTS	PROGRAM CODE:	W210	NOTEBOOK: NA	PAGE: NA	
OWNER: Daniel E. Bryant	GROUP: EM-8	MAIL-STOP: K490	PHONE: 7-0814 TECHNIQUE:	GCEC	ANALYTICAL PROCEDUR	:E:	

SUMMARY OF CONTROL STATUS OF OPEN (NON-BLIND) OA SAMPLES RUN WITH THIS BATCH

There were no open (non-blind) Quality Control materials run with the samples reported above for one of the following reasons:

- Only qualitative data requested
- ____ Only Blind QC samples run with this batch.
- No QC samples run with this sample batch.
- No QC samples for this constituent and matrix type available within EM-9



.

· t

ii.

e

.

******************* EM-9 QUALITY ASSURANCE REPORT

•

EM-9 QUALITY ASSURANCE REPORT *************

SUMMARY OF CONTROL STATUS OF BLIND QA SAMPLES RUN WITH THIS BATCH

SAMPLE NUM	ANALYSIS	ANALYTICAL RESULT	ANALYTICAL UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	QC VALUI	QC E UNCERTAINTY	COMPLETION DATE	COMMENT		COMPOUND-NAME
92.25442	1336363	16.	8.	UG/G	11.	1.	8/20/92	UNDER CONTROL	Mixed-Aroctor	
92.25442	53469219	< 0.6		UG/G	0.1	0	8/20/92	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1242	
92.25442	11097691	< 0.6		UG/G	0.	0	8/20/92	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1254	
92.25442	11096825	16.	8.	UG/G	11.	1.	8/20/92	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1260	
					1.			2		

REPORT NUMBER: 14986

:

4101142

Date

Reviewés

_

10 Section Leader

~00 OA OIFIcer

. .

Date

No Sample Discrepancies Noted by Sample Management Section

The control status of the preceeding data was evaluated using the standard statistical criteria set forth in 'Quality Assurance for Health and Environmental Chemistry: 1986,' LA-11114-MS, pp. 3-4. **** 1

Los Alamos
Los Alamos National Laboratory Los Alamos.New Mexico 87545

memorandum

ניד :

τo	Distribution	DATE	April 20, 1992
FROM	H. Nunes	MAIL STOP TELEPHONE	M721/7-3322
SYMBOL	ENG-1/HN/92-29		
SUBJECT	(REVISED) PRECONSTRUCTION MEETING	, TA-16,	

On Thursday, April 23, a meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m. to discuss any unique needs prior to the start of work on-site. The meeting will be held at the removal site TA-16/B563. If you have any questions, please call.

: ...

7

٢

HN:pp

Distribution:
M. Valasquez, JCI, MS A199
L. Livermore, JCI, MS A199
J. Richardson, JCI, MS A199
L. Stretz, WX-3, MS C930
J. Harper, EM-7, MS J595
J. Kelly, EM-7, MS J595
R. Morales, EM-8, MS K490
R. Tolman, ENG-1, MS M721
D. Allen, ENG-3, MS M984
W. Long, ENG-5, MS M713
M. Aguilar, ENG-8, MS M718
P.I. 12506, MS M703, Doc. # 2.71
ENG-1 File
File hn29



(point: u= 4'8" (rows





.

· -

111 16 063







Replan, ABX-tran

LosA

Los Alamos National Laboratory Los Alamos, New Mexico 87545

memorandum

TO:	Carlos	Ortiz,	ENG-1,	MS M721
IOM:	Raul Mo	orales,	HSE-8	Elie

May 17, 1991 DATE:

MAIL STOP/TELEPHONE: K490/7-0814

HSE-8:91-823 SYMBOL

FROM:

HSE PROJECT QUESTIONNAIRE 90-0385: TRANSFORMER REPLACEMENT SUBJECT AT TA-16-563

I have reviewed questionnaire 90-0385 pertaining to the PCB transformer replacement at TA-16-563 and have made the following determinations:

- The existing PCB transformer leaked in the past, and 1. although the pad and surrounding soil were cleaned and excavated, it is prudent to remove the pad and excavate a 3 ft area to a depth of 6 in. on both the eastern and western sides of the pad.
- A new pad and clean backfill soil will be required. 2.
- 3. JCI and HSE-7 will need to follow standard procedures in handling, transporting, and disposing of potentially PCB-contaminated soil and concrete.
- 4. HSE-8 will sample soil and immediate surroundings after excavation.
- 5. Continue to adhere to the same procedures and protocols followed with the other successful PCB transformer replacements which have been in line with PCB regulations in 40 CFR 761.

RM:smm

S. Rae, HSE-8, MS K490 Cy: M. Alexander, HSE-8, MS K490 A. Pendergrass, HSE-8, MS K490 D. Helmer, HSE-3, MS K489 R. Gonzales, HSE-13, MS K481 L. Hupke, HSE-7, MS E518 F. Snow, ENG-1, MS M721 Circ. File
PAGE : 3 **PRINTED :** 04/26/91

E S & H PROJECT CHECK LIST REPLACE PCB TRANSFORMERS, TA-16-563 (PCB CORRECTIVE ACTIVITY)

Distribution:

J. Gutierrez, ENG-DO, MS M767
J. CARLOS ORTIZ/ENG-1, MS M721
P. Bussolini, ENG-3, MS M984
W. McCorkle, ENG-5, MS M713
G. Neely, HSE-1, MS G732
D. Helmer, HSE-3, MS K489
T. Grieggs, HSE-8, MS K490
J. Corpion, HSE-8, MS K490
A. Pendergrass, HSE-8, MS K490
M. Alexander, HSE-8, MS K490
R. Morales, HSE-8, MS K490
F. Bolton, HSE-8, MS K491
ENG-7, LJ File 11695-16, MS M703
HSE-LJ File 11695-16
NEPA, MS K490



HSE-0-90-0385

memorandum

DATE:

April 26, 1991

R. MORALES, HSE-8, MS K490 Joseph M. Ortega, HSE-3

MAIL STOP/TELEPHONE: J566/7-7782

SYMBOL:

FROM:

TO:

E S & H PROJECT CHECK LIST REPLACE PCB TRANSFORMERS, TA-16-563 (PCB CORRECTIVE ACTIVITY) LAB JOB #: 11695-16

A team of Laboratory Environmental, Safety, & Health staff has reviewed your Project Questionnaire against applicable rules, regulations, Department of Energy (DOE) orders, and Laboratory E S & H policy (Laboratory Health and Safety Manual). The purpose of this procedure is to identify potential problems that may affect the project in its early stages. The questionnaire now indicates that the procedural and documentation requirements attached will probably have to be completed for your project. As the project becomes more well-defined, other E S & H concerns may be identified.

If the checklist indicates that an item is REQUIRED, work on E S & H activities related to your project will begin only after you contact the listed representative. Early communication is important since many items must be completed (approved by the issuing agency or incorporated into the project design) prior to construction. Approvals by external agencies generally take at least 3-4 months.

If the checklist indicates that an item is IN PROCESS, action is being taken by the appropriate personnel. If you need further assistance, please direct your questions to the listed representative.

If the checklist indicates that an item is COMPLETE, you do not need to contact the listed representative.

Costs for services specific to your undertaking which exceed those normally provided by indirect funding will be charged to the project.

(pcktext)

PAGE: 1

PAGE : 2 PRINTED : 04/26/91

E S & H PROJECT CHECK LIST REPLACE PCB TRANSFORMERS, TA-16-563 (PCB CORRECTIVE ACTIVITY)

I. EXTERNAL (NON-LABORATORY) APPROVAL REQUIRED

NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT (NEPA) REVIEW REQUIRED Approval: DOE Contact : Ann Pendergrass, HSE-8, 5-0458

SOLID WASTE REGULATIONS REVIEW REQUIRED Approval: New Mexico Enviromental Department (NMED) Contact : Juan Corpion, HSE-8, 5-0455

RESOURCE CONSERVATION & RECOVERY ACT (RCRA) (HAZARDOUS WASTE) REVIEW REQUIRED Approval: Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Contact: Tony Grieggs, HSE-8, 5-0451

POLYCHLORINATED BIPHENYLS/TOXIC SUBSTANCES CONTROL ACT (PCBs/TSCA) REVIEW REQUIRED Approval: Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Contact : Raul Morales, HSE-8, 7-0814

II. LABORATORY ACTION REQUIRED

ł

FACILITIES QUALITY CONTROL (QC) REVIEW IN PROCESS Contact : Don Helmer, HSE-3, 5-5762

SPILL PREVENTION CONTROL & COUNTERMEASURE (SPCC) PLAN REVIEW REQUIRED Contact : Mike Alexander, HSE-8, 5-4752

SPECIAL WORK PERMIT REQUIRED FOR RADIATION WORK Contact : Glenn Neely, HSE-1, 5-5301

Los Alamos Los Alamos National Laboratory Los Alamos, New Mexico 87545

DISTRIBUTION

oseph M.

memorandum

DATE: April 9, 1991

MAIL STOP/TELEPHONE: J566/7-7782

SYMBOL HSE-Q-90-0385

SUBJECT:

TO:

FROM:

HSE PROJECT SUMMARY AND QUESTIONNAIRE ES&H QUESTIONNAIRE COMMITTEE REVIEW REPLACE PCB TRANSFORMERS, TA-16-563 (PCB CORRECTIVE ACTIVITY)

TA/BLDG : 16/563 LAB JOB # : 11695-16 QUEST. # : 90-0385

Please review the attached HSE project summary and questionnaire in your area of responsibility. The project will be discussed at the next ES&H Questionnaire Committee meeting on Thursday, 04/18/91, 8:30 a.m. at TA-59, OH-30, HSE conference room.

MRH/gb

Att. a/s

Distribution:

G. Neely, HSE-1, MS G732
H. Lindberg, HSE-3, MS J566
R. Kruse, HSE-3, MS E503
B. Gallimore, HSE-5, MS K486
S. Vessard, HSE-6, MS F691
G. Fritz, HSE-7, MS J593
D. Garvey, HSE-8, MS K490 (2 Copies)
M. Poling, ENG-2, MS K319
R. Yetter, ENG-6, MS D451
W. Maybee, ENG-8, MS M718
R. Gonzales, HSE-13, MS K481

Cy: J. CARLOS ORTIZ/ENG-1, MS M721 R. MORALES, HSE-8 , MS K490 HSE-PQRF

ATT.	ACHM	ENT A:	ES&H	PROJECT SUMMARY QUEST # <u>90-0385</u> LJ # <u>1/695-16</u>
Α.	Proj 1.	ject Ide Brief d	ntificat escript:	tion ion of the project:
	Restra	place 563.	exist Prov existin	ing 500 KVA PCB Substation at TA-16 ike new concrete ped w/oil containment, in concrete pad and conduct.
••	2.	Funding	Amount	\$ 200K
		Source:	121	Line Item GPP Equipment
			121	Operating [] Other Coexective ACTIVITIES
	3.	Funding	begins	: FY <u>91</u> Construction begins: <u>6 / 24/ 91</u>
		Operati	ons sta:	rt: Ongoing Duration of operations: Ongoing
в.	Pro	ject Sco	pe:	
	YES	NO	N/A	· ·
	IZI	111	121	Will this project involve any ground breaking? (Documentation mandatory per Federal Regs.)
	1]1	IZI	121	Will this project generate new or altered airborne emissions or liquid effluents?
	R	121	121	Will this project generate wastes that may be radioactive or hazardous?
	121	R	121	Will this project involve high energy sources (e.g., radiation, electromagnetic, lasers, and explosives)?
	ι×ι	121	121	Will this project require decommissioning of existing facilities? EXISTING TEANSFORMER
	ı ال	ΙΞI	<u> </u>	Could this project result in accidental releases or safety concerns involving toxic chemicals, oils, corrosives, solvents, gases, radioactivity, explosives, biological agents, carcinogens, or asbestos?
	121	IZI	121	Is this a project that may generate significant public concern?
c.	IF AT	THE ANS	WER TO	ANY OF THE ABOVE IS <u>YES</u> , PLEASE COMPLETE

-

\sim		-
SIGNED:	sta	<u></u>
DATE: 4	slai	

7-1801 C. Palmer

ATTACHMENT B: HSE QUESTIONNAIRE

QUEST # 900385

PROJECT OR REPLACE PERSTRANSPORMER IJ # 11695. LAB JOB TITLE DATE 4/3/4/ N.C. ORTIZ COMPLETED BY

Please respond to the following questions with:

- 1) relevant information,
- 2) not applicable (NA), or
- 3) not yet determined (ND).

Add a separate sheet if you need more space to adequately address a topic.

A. LOCATION

If the work is not within an existing facility, please provide clear siting information.

1. Attach map or sketch of project location if not in an existing structure. Include facility and access roads/parking if part of the project.

2. Describe location if within an existing structure (e.g. room or other identification). TA - 16 STR 563

3. Special utility requirements:

4. Security or isolation requirements: TA-14 SECURITY AREA TA-14

5. Storage tanks? Describe (contents, number, size, aboveor below-ground):

- B. DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS
- 1. Project purpose: Replace existing PCB transformer w/ Mon-PCB unit.
- 2. Principal_operations:

NA

3. Primary equipment:

500 KVA TRANSFORMER

4. Is the project similar to existing operations at LANL? 155 - OTHER PCB TRANSFORMER REPAREMENT AND

	DISPOSAL	- HSE-7	
6.	Number of employees direct $\mathcal{M}\mathcal{A}$	ctly involved in proje	ect:
7.	Increase in number of emp \mathcal{N}	ployees at site due to -	project:
c.	MATERIALS INVOLVED IN OPP	ERATIONS	
cate	Identify the major mater: egory is not relevant (NA)	ials involved; indicat	te if a given
		Types	Approximate Quantities
1.	Gases	NA	
2.	Liquids (non-water)	RIA-	
3.	Water	NA	
4.	Solids	TRANSFORMEN	<u>e</u> (
5.	Oils	PCB-	17060
6.	Solvents	RINSING AGE	ENTS (KEROSEN
7.	Biological	NA	•
8.	Corrosives	NA	—
9.	Explosives	NA	
10.	Heavy metals	NA	
11.	Radioactive substances	NA	
12.	Toxic substances	PCB oils	····
13.	Carcinogens	ACB oils	
14.	NESHAP* substances (benzene,-beryllium, inorganic arsenic, mercury, radionuclides,_		
	vinyl chloride)		

· . ¥

•

.

~.

-

D. ENERGY SOURCES INVOLVED IN OPERATIONS

Identify the major energy sources; indicate if a given category will not be used.

	•	Source	Intensity/strength
1.	Electrical	EXISTING- 13.2KU	-4801
2.	Thermal	NA	
з.	Chemical	NA	
4.	Explosives	12m	
5.	Mechanical	NA	
6.	Nuclear/ Radiation	NA	
7.	Nonionizing Radiation	NA	
8.	Electro- magnetic field	<u>NA</u>	
9.	High pressure	sN <u>A</u>	
10.	Other	NA	

E. ROUTINE WASTE GENERATION

Identify the major waste materials; indicate if a given category is not applicable (NA).

Source

Approximate Quantities

1. Liquid effluents.

NA sanitary____ a. b. chemical c. industrial_ d. radioactive PCBoils other an rinsi e. Gung -3-

			Source	Approximate Quantities
2.	Sol	id wastes		
	a.	uncontaminated trash_	NA	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	ь.	toxic or hazardous waste	PCB: Transform	45-
•	c.	radioactive waste	NA	
3.	Air	borne emissions		
	a.	non-hazardous	·NA-	
	b.	toxic or hazardous	NA	
	c.	radioactive	NA	
4.	Mođ	ifications to existing $^{\prime}\mathcal{N}\mathcal{A}$	exhaust systems:	
F.	DEC	OMMISSIONING		
1.	wi1 Mo	l currently used facili - Disposal -	ities require decom Transformer only	missioning? Identify.
2.	Is	there a possibility for	the presence of as	sbestos?
3. of	Are proj	there special decommis ect operations?	ssioning requirement	ts after completion
Ġ.	IDE	NTIFICATION OF CRITICAL	L SYSTEMS AND/OR DO	CUMENTATION
1.	Nor	mal conditions respon	sible for olda or	eration The
und	a. ler n	Engineered control and ormal operating condit:	i safety systems white ions:	ich must function
if	b. thes	Your assessment of the e engineered systems fa	e safety and enviro ail during normal o	nment consequences perations:
		None -		

-4-

÷

•

2. Abnormal or accident conditions

a. Possible abnormal or accident conditions under which the engineered control and safety systems must function.

Jone -

NA

b. Your assessment of the consequences should these engineered systems fail during abnormal or accident conditions.

3. Documentation. Identify relevant health, safety, and environment documents.

a. Standard Operating Procedures (SOP)

Existing

Indicated

Praising SOPS Lquip operating Instr. As read for work in HE area.

- b. Safety work permits (SWP)
- c. Safety Analysis Report (SAR) or Safety Assessment (SA)
- d. Failure mode and effect analysis
- e. Siting study
- f. Environmental regulations, NA permits, or registrations
- H. Any other possible health, safety and environments issues: Unknown - PCB transformer may have a leaking it. -5-

NA

NA

Attachment A: E S & H PROJECT SUMMARY

QUEST # 90-0385 (Supplement) LJ # 11695-16

- .. Project Identification
 - 1. Brief description of the project:

Removes soil, and concrete pad from transformer substation, Pad and soil contaminated with PCB's and will be cleaned to acceptable levels per 40 CFR 761.125, with HSE-8 oversight.

2. Funding Amount: \$

		Line Item		GPP		Equipment	
		Operating	x	Other_(Correcti	ve Activities FY	<u>91</u>
3.	Funding begins: Operations start	FY <u>91</u> Cons : 9/01/91	truct: Dur:	ion begin ation of	ns: <u>8/</u> operati	<u>/01/91</u>	

B. Project Scope:

Yes	No	N/A	
x			Will this project involve any ground breaking? (Documentation mandatory per Federal Regs.)
	x		Will this project generate new or altered airborne emissions or liquid effluents?
	x		Will this project generate wastes that may be radioactive or hazardous?
	x		Will this project involve high energy sources (e.g., radiation, electromagnetic, lasers, and explosives)?
	x		Will this project require decommissioning of existing facilities?
x			Could this project result in accidental releases or safety concerns involving toxic chemicals, oils, corrosives, solvents, gases, radioactivity, explosives, biological agents, carcinogens, or asbestos?
	x		13 this a project that may generate significant public concern?
TE 0115	BALONHOD	TO 31	

C. IF THE ANSWER TO ANY OF THE ABOVE IS YES, PLEASE COMPLETE ATTACHMENT'B, HSE QUESTIONNAIRE. SIGNED: MICH

DATE: June 17, 199

.TTACHMENT B: HSE QUESTIONNAIRE

QUEST # 90-0385

PROJECT OR LAB JOB TITLE<u>Replace PCB Transformer, 16-563, Supplement</u>LJ#<u>11695-16</u> COMPLETED BY<u>Michael R. Alexander</u>_____DATE<u>6/17/91</u>

Please respond to the following questions with:

- 1) relevant information,
- 2) not applicable (NA), or
- 3) not yet determined (ND).

Add a separate sheet if you need more space to adequately address a topic.

A. LOCATION

If the work is not within an existing facility, please provide clear siting information.

- 1. Attach map or sketch of project location if not in an existing structure. Include facility and access roads/parking if part of the project. Sketch attached.
- Describe location if within an existing structure (e.g. room or other identification).
- 3. Special utility requirements: N/A
- 4. Security or isolation requirements: N/A
- 5. Storage tanks? Describe (contents, number, size, above or belowground): None
- B. DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS
- 1. Project purpose:

Clean-up PCB contaminated concrete pad and soil from transformer substation.

2. Principal operations

Soil removal, concrete removal.

3. Primary equipment:

Heavy equipment.

Is the project similar to existing operations at LANL?

Will be similar to other PCB cleanups.

5.	Does this project have more than one phase? Identify phases.
	No.
6.	Number of employees directly involved in project:
	None.
7.	Increase in number of employees at site due to project:
	JCI, Laborers, operators, and environmental support.
c.	MATERIALS INVOLVED IN OPERATIONS
	Identify the major materials involved; indicate if a given category is not relevant (NA).
	Types Approximate Quantities
1.	Gases N/A
2.	Liquids (non-water)N/A
3.	WaterN/A
4.	Solids Soil and concrete contaminated with PCB's.
٠.	Oils <u>N/A</u>
6.	Solvents_N/A
7.	Biological N/A
8.	Corrosives N/A
9.	Explosives N/A
10.	Heavy metals N/A
11.	Radioactive substances N/A
12.	Toxic substances N/A
13.	Carcinogens_N/A
14.	NESHAP* substances N/A (benzene, beryllium, N/A inorganic arsenic, N/A mercury, radionuclides, N/A vinyl chloride) N/A
15.	Other PCB from a leaking Askeral transformer.

* These materials have special regulatory requirements

ŧ.

ENERGY SOURCES INVOLVED IN OPERATIONS

. .

		Source	Intensity/strength
1.	Electrical N/A		
2.	Thermal_N/A		
З.	Chemical <u>N/A</u>		
4.	Explosives <u>N/A</u>	<u></u>	
5.	Mechanical <u>N/A</u>	<u></u>	
6.	Nuclear/ Radiation <u>N/A</u>		
7.	Nonionizing Radiation <u>N/A</u>		
8.	Electro- magnetic fieldN/A		
Υ.	High Pressure <u>N/A</u>	<u></u>	
10.	Other <u>N/A</u>	·····	
E.	ROUTINE WASTE GENERATION		
	Identify the major waste not applicable (N/A).	materials; indicate	if a given cat egory is
		Source	Approximate
1.	Liquid effluents.		Quantities
	a. sanitary N/A	. <u> </u>	
	b. chemical <u>N/A</u>		
	c. industrial <u>N/A</u>		
	d. radioactive <u>N/A</u>	·····	
	e. other		
_			

:-

Ξ

2

2.	Solid Waste	Source	Approximate Quantities				
	a. uncontaminated trash_	<u>N/A</u>					
	b. toxic or hazardous waste	<u>Soil, concrete, controlete</u>	taminated with PCB's				
	c. radioactive waste	<u>N/A</u>					
3.	Airborne emissions						
	a. non-hazardous	<u>N/A</u>					
	b. toxic or hazardous	<u>N/A</u>					
	c. radioactive	N/A					
4.	Modifications to existin	g exhaust systems:					
	N/A		:				
F.	DECOMMISSIONING						
	1: Will currently used f	acilities require de	commissioning? Identify.				
	Yes, concrete foundat	ion for transformer.					
	2. Is there a possibilit	y for the presence o	of asbestos?				
	N/A						
	3. Are there special dec project operations?	ommissioning require	ments after completion of				
	Yes, clean-up of soil	to less than 10 ppm	l .				
G	IDENTIFICATION OF CRITICAL SYSTEMS AND/OR DOCUMENTATION						
	1. Normal conditions						
	a. Engineered control normal operating c	and safety systems onditions: N/A	which must function under				
	b. Your assessment of these engineered s	the safety and envi ystems fail during n	ronment consequences if normal operations: N/A				

- 2. Abnormal or accident conditions
 - a. Possible abnormal or accident conditions under which the engineered control and safety systems must function.

N/A

b. Your assessment of the consequences should these engineered systems fail during abnormal or accident conditions.

N/A

3. Documentation.

PCB clean-up report to be complete by HSE-8.

Existing Indicated

- a. Standard Operating JCI Procedures (SOP) SPI on PCB cleanup
- b. Safety work permits
 (SWP)
- c. Safety Analysis Report (SAR) or Safety Assessment (SA)
- d. Failure mode and effect analysis
- e. Siting study
- f. Environmental regulations, permits, or registrations
- H. Any other possible health, safety and environments issues:

Area has to be cleaned to acceptable level before the placement of the new non-PCB Transformer.

.....

i

7



SHREET S . WEET & DWN-DES (FD REE SUB REE AFI FACILITIES ENGINEERING DIVISION DRAWN STRUCTURE LOCATION MAP LI SK N CHECKED & FAMILY

RELEASED & LOWFR

SHELL

DAIL ***5 -71 REV

24

03-70-91

UAT

ATTROVID PAP.

ENG-8 5111



Los Alamos National Laboratory Los Alamos, New Mexico 87545

memorandum

TO: Raul Morales, HSE-8, MS K490

DATE: May 21, 1990

FROM: L. A. Stretz

MAL STOP/TELEPHONE: C930/7-6495

SYMBOL: WX-3

SUBJECT: PCB CLEANUP AT TA-16-260

It is my understanding based on our telephone conversation on May 21, 1990 that encapsulation of the floor area of the equipment room at Building 260 is acceptable for fixing the small amount of remaining PCB. We will proceed based on your recommendation.

Reasons for following this course are:

- 1. Cleaning (surface scabbling) reduced measured PCB levels to well below 100 g although levels still exceed 10 µg.
- 2. The room is isolated from the outside environment and from the operating area of Building 260.
- 3. The Building is used for essential operations and must be returned to service without delay.
- 4. Encapsulation will assure protection of the environment and employees against PCB exposure.

LAS/klm

Cy: J. L. Parkinson, WX-3, MS C930 R. Taylor, WX-12, MS C932 B. McCormick, WX-12, MS C923 R. A. Hildner, WX-3, MS C934 File

16-000386

......

LOS Alamos

SPILL REPORT

- 12 Alemos, Herr Mexico ST&42

SPILL INFOR SPILL INFOR SPILL INFOR SPILL INFOR SPILL INFOR SPILL INFOR SPILL INFOR SPILL INFOR TA-15 Bulld: Double duaterial to 2/4 callon PCB (Greater the Scientimate State of the spill Scientific of the spill PCB transformer (PCB IDF 5608) was be lectricians at the time of the spill. Dortable quantity of PCB liquid (non tes or Exposure? Types Two Were tacill traisection occur? Yes Two Were tacill the spill enter sever drains, streams, or stream beds? Yes Spill RESPO Define spill enter sever drains, streams, or stream beds? Yes Spill RESPO Define spill enter sever drains, streams, or stream beds? Yes Spill RESPO Define spill enter sever drains, streams, or stream beds? Yes Spill RESPO Define spill enter sever drains, streams, or stream beds? Were tacillater, two traisection occur? Yes Two traisection occurs and the spill the second of two traisection occurs and the spill the second of two traisection occurs and the spill the occurs of the spill the occurs of the spill the occurs of the spill the	ATION 2 260 Roo an 500 pp Recovered vo ing drain A drum RQ) was is describe.) es or equipment sotential for fire S No NSE personnel, steps	m 110 m 110 m) liquid DumeOne ed by the I overflowed. released. damaged? (i yes. give location (i yes. give location taken to contain the s	Yes I No Yes
ecf Spill Time of Spill Location /17/90 7:00 PM TA-16 Buildir point of Spilled Material Type of Spilled Material to 2/4 gallon PCB (Greater the Spill of Spilled Material sctEstimate Inventor Visual Estimate setEstimate Inventor Visual Estimate vacuation occur? Yes No vacuation occur?	2 260 Roo an 500 pp Recovered vo ing drain A drum RQ) was the describe.) es or equipment cotential for fire ST NO	m 110 m) liquid oumeOne edby_theF overflowed. released. damaged? /explosion? (If yes, give locations) taken to contain the second	Yes Inside Y
/17/90 7:00 PM TA-15 Building punt of Spilled Material Type of Spilled Material to 2/4 gallon PCB (Greater the spilled Material sct Estimate Inventor visual Estimate set Estimate International Contention PCB 1104 (non resort Exposure? Yes No Was there wacuation occur? Yes	z 260 Roo an 500 pp Recovered vo ing drain A drum RQ) was se describe.) es or equipment sotential for fire TNO	m 110 m) liquid DumeOther ed by the H overflowed. released. damaged? (if yes, give located) faken to contain the s	Yes I No Yes
built of Spilled Material Type of Spilled Material to 2/4 gallon PCB (Greater the still gallon) set Estimate Inventory visual Estimate set (Describe events leading up to the spill, dapplicable.) PCB transformer (PCB ID# 5608) was be lectricians at the time of the spill. Dortable quantity of PCE liquid (non tes or Exposure? Yes No Were facility of estimate twacuation occur? Yes No Was there twacuation occur? Yes No Was there traine spill enter sewer drains, streams, or stream beds? Yes discovered the spill? Michael Bailey, PENV SPILL RESPO SPILL RESPO Define spill response, in coronological order, include a callout of response Also cescribe spill control coursent uses. PCB transformer* (PCB ID# 5608), was	an 500 pp Recovered vo Ing drain A drum RQ) was se describe.) es or equipment potential for fire TNO	m) liquid DumeOther ed by the H overflowed. released. damaged? (hi yes, give location taken to contain the s	Yes Inside Yes I No
s ct Estimate [inventory] visual Estimate se (Describe events leading up to the spill, if applicable.) PCB transformer (PCB 1D75608) was be lectricians at the time of the spill. Dortable quantity of PCB liquid (non tes or Exposure? [Yes] No (II yes, Died vacuation occur? [Yes] No (Vacuation vacuation occur? [Yes] No (Vacuation v	Recovered vo Ing drain A drum RQ) was the describe.) es or equipment potential for fire ST NO NSE personnet, steps	ed by the I overflowed. released. damaged?	Yes Inside Yes I No
se (Describe events leading up to the spill, if applicable.) PCB transformer (PCB ID# 5608) was be lectricians at the time of the spill. DORTABLE quantity of PCE liquid (non tes or Exposure? Pres Two (II yes, pley vacuation occur? Pres Two (II yes, pley vacuation occur? Pres Two Was there he spill enter sewer drains, streams, or stream beds? Pres discovered the spill? Michael Bailey, PENV SPILL RESPO Define spill response in chronological order. Include a call-out of response Host cascrice spill control eculoment used. PCB transformer* (PCB ID# 5608), was oom 110. The Pan Am Inside Electric efore emptying the second of two tra irst transformer was drained without nd all hoses were in place for the s id not close a bypass valve on the p ransformer siphoned into the drum un ith no drain received approximately	Ing drain A drum RQ) was e describe.) es or equipment sotential for fire TNO NSE personnel, steps	ed by the F overflowed. released. damaged?	Pan Am Inside A non- Yes I No Yes I No Yes I No Yes I No n and ulumate grainage.
PCB transformer (PCB IDF 5608) was be lectricians at the time of the spill. Dortable quantity of PCE liquid (non les or Exposure? Is or Exposure? Yes Yes Yes No Wacuation occur? Yes Wacthere Wacthere Yes Wacthere Yes Wacthere Wacthere Yes Wacthere Yes Wacthere Yes Yes Second the spill? Michael Bailey, PENV SPELL RESPO Yes	Ing drain A drum -RQ) was is describe.) es or equipment potential for fire ST NO NSE 52 poersonnel, steps	ed by the I overflowed. released. damaged? /explosion? //: yes. give localio //: yes. give localio //: taken to contain the s	Yes Inside Yes Yes Yes
lectricians at the time of the spill. Dortable quantity of PCE liquid (non les or Exposure? Yes Yes No wacuation occur? Yes Yes No Ware tacill wacuation occur? Yes Yes No Ware tacill wacuation occur? Yes Yes No Ware tacill ware tacill <tr< td=""><td>A drum RQ) was se describe.) es or equipment potential for fire T NO</td><td>overflowed. released. damaged? /explosion? (If yes, give location (If yes, give location) (If yes, give location) (If yes, give location) (If yes, give location)</td><td>A non- Yes <u>I</u> No Yes <u>I</u> No Yes <u>I</u> No Yes <u>I</u> No Non and ultimate crainage.</td></tr<>	A drum RQ) was se describe.) es or equipment potential for fire T NO	overflowed. released. damaged? /explosion? (If yes, give location (If yes, give location) (If yes, give location) (If yes, give location) (If yes, give location)	A non- Yes <u>I</u> No Yes <u>I</u> No Yes <u>I</u> No Yes <u>I</u> No Non and ultimate crainage.
discovered the spill? Michael Bailey, PENV SPILL RESPO SPILL RESPO Michael Bailey, PENV SPILL RESPO De ine spill enter sewer drains, streams, or stream beds? Michael Bailey, PENV SPILL RESPO SPILL RESPO SPILL RESPO De ine spill response, in chronological order, include a call-out of response Hiso cescrice spill control equipment used. PCB transformer. (PCB ID# 5608), was oom 110. The Pan Am Inside Electric efore emptying the second of two tra irst transformer was drained without nd all hoses were in place for the s id not close a bypass valve on the p ransformer si phoned into the drum un ith no drain received approximatery	NSE	damaged?	Yes Zi No Yes Z No Yes Z No on and ulumate creinege.
And the spill of the spill? And the spill enter sever drains, streams, or stream beds? Was there the spill enter sever drains, streams, or stream beds? Yes discovered the spill? Michael Bailey, PENV SPILL RESPONDED SPILL	es or equipment sotential for fire TNO NSE personnel, steps	damaged?	Yes <u>Ti</u> No Yes <u>T</u> ico on and ulumaie crainage.
evacuation occur? Yes Two Were tacill indication occur? Yes Two Wat there he spill enter sewer drains, streams, or stream beds? Yes discovered the spill? Michael Bailey, PENV SPILL RESPONDE indecode spill response in chronological order. Include a call-out of response iso cescrice spill control educament used. PCB transformers' (PCB ID# 5608), was oom 110. The Pan Am Inside Electric efore emptying the second of two tra irst transformer was drained without nd all hoses were in place for the s id not close a bypass value on the p ransformer siphoned into the drum un ith no drain received approximatery	es or equipment potential for fire TNO NSE poerscnnet, steps	damaged?	Yes Zi No Yes Z No on and ultimate crainage.
Accuation occur? Yes Two Were facill references on occur? Yes Two Ware the spill enter sewer drains, streams, or stream beds? Yes discovered the spill? Michael Bailey, PENV SPILL RESPO SPILL RESPO So cescrice spill control eculoment used. PCB transformer: (PCB ID# 5608), was oom 110. The Pan Am Inside Electric efore emptying the second of two tra irst transformer was drained without nd all hoses were in place for the s id not close a bypass value on the p ransformer siphoned into the drum un ith no drain received approximatery	es or equipment cotential for fire No NSE personnel, sieps	damaged?	Yes Z No Yes Z No on and ultimate crainage.
Avacuation occur? Yes Two Were tacill instruction occur? Yes Two Ware there the spill enter sewer drains, streams, or stream beds? Yes discovered the spill? Michael Bailey, PENV SPILL RESPONDE SPILL RESPONDE SPIL RESPONDE SPILL RESPONDE SPIL RESPONDE SPILL RES	es or equipment cotential for fire S NO NSE bersonnel, siebs	damaged?	Yes Zi No Yes Z No on and ulumate creinege.
discovered the spill? Michael Bailey, PENV SPILL RESPO SPILL RESPONDED Michael Bailey, PENV SPILL RESPONDED SPILL RESPO	VSE	iexplosion? (II yes, give location) (II yes	
discovered the spill? Michael Bailey, PENV SPILL RESPO SPILL RESPONSE in chronological order. Include a call-out of response 430 cescrice spill control educament used. PCB transformer: (PCB ID#5608), was oom 110. The Pan Am Inside Electric efore emptying the second of two tra irst transformer was drained without nd all hoses were in place for the s id not close a bypass value on the p ransformer siphoned into the drum un ith no drain received approximatery	NSE in personnel, steps	(If yes, give locatio	on and ultimate crainage.
discovered the spill? Michael Bailey, PENV SPILL RESPO SPILL RESPO So cescrice spill response in chronological order. Include a call-out of response Also cescrice spill control eculoment used. PCB transformer. (PCB ID#5608), was oom 110. The Pan Am Inside Electric efore emptying the second of two tra irst transformer was drained without ind all hoses were in place for the s id not close a bypass value on the p ransformer siphoned into the drum un ith no drain received approximately	NSE 30	taken to contain the s	
discovered the spill? Michael Bailey, PENV SPILL RESPO De the spill response in chronological order. Include a call-out of response Hiso cescrice spill control eculoment used. PCB transformer." (PCB ID# 5608), was oom 110. The Pan Am Inside Electric efore emptying the second of two tra irst transformer was drained without nd all hoses were in place for the s id not close a bypass valve on the p ransformer siphoned into the drum un ith no drain received approximatery	NSE 22 2 Derschnei, stebs	taken to contain the s	
discovered the spill? Michael Bailey, PENV SPILL RESPO Define spill response in chronological order. Include a call-out of response Also cescrice spill control equipment used. PCB transformer- (PCB ID# 5608), was oom 110. The Pan Am Inside Electric efore emptying the second of two tra irst transformer was drained without nd all hoses were in place for the s id not close a bypass value on the p ransformer siphoned into the drum un ith no drain received approximately	NSE 32	taken to contain the s	
discovered the spill? Michael Bailey, PENV SPILL RESPONDE in chronological order. Include a call-out of respondent Also cescrice spill control equipment used. PCB transformer' (PCB ID# 5608), was oom 110. The Pan Am Inside Electric efore emptying the second of two tra irst transformer was drained without nd all hoses were in place for the s id not close a bypass value on the p ransformer siphoned into the drum un ith no drain received approximatery	NSE 30	taken to contain the s	
discovered the spill? Michael Bailey, PENV SPILL RESPONDED IN CONTROLOGICAL OF CALL AND	NSE 32 2 Derschnel, sieds	taken to contain the s	
Michael Bailey, PENV SPILL RESPO De the spill response in chronological order. Include a call-out of response Also cescrice spill control equipment used. PCB transformer* (PCB ID#5608), was oom 110. The Pan Am Inside Electric efore emptying the second of two tra irst transformer was drained without nd all hoses were in place for the s id not close a bypass value on the p ransformer siphoned into the drum un ith no drain received approximatery	NSE	taken to contain the s	soill ent erens de la stalle
SPILL RESPO Spill response in chronological order. Include a call-out of respon- tiso cescrice spill control equipment used. PCB transformer* (PCB ID# 5608), was oom 110. The Pan Am Inside Electric efore emptying the second of two tra irst transformer was drained without nd all hoses were in place for the s id not close a bypass valve on the p ransformer siphoned into the drum un ith no drain received approximatery	NSE in the steps	taken to contain the s	50//. 277 21372
De the spill response in chronological order. Include a call-out of respon- 4/30 cescrice spill control equipment used. PCB transformer' (PCB ID# 5608), was com 110. The Pan Am Inside Electric efore emptying the second of two tra irst transformer was drained without nd all hoses were in place for the s id not close a bypass valve on the p ransformer siphoned into the drum un ith no drain received approximately	e Derschnel, steds	taken to contain the s	soill and stand law also us
-130 cescrice spill control equipment used. PCB transformer (PCB ID# 5608), was com 110. The Pan Am Inside Electric efore emptying the second of two tra irst transformer was drained without nd all hoses were in place for the s id not close a bypass value on the p ransformer siphoned into the drum un ith no drain received approximately	international	<u> </u>	
PCB transformer (FCB ID#5608), was oom 110. The Pan Am Inside Electric efore emptying the second of two tra irst transformer was drained without nd all hoses were in place for the s id not close a bypass value on the p ransformer siphoned into the drum un ith no drain received approximately	at mar dans		
oom 110. The Pan Am Inside Electric efore emptying the second of two tra irst transformer was drained without nd all hoses were in place for the s id not close a bypass valve on the p ransformer siphoned into the drum un ith no drain received approximately	erux dlas	Ined at TA-	16 Building 2
efore emptying the second of two tra irst transformer was drained without nd all hoses were in place for the s id not close a bypass valve on the p ransformer siphoned into the drum un ith no drain received approximately	ans decto	led to take	a break
irst transformer was drained without nd all hoses were in place for the s id not close a bypass valve on the p ransformer siphoned into the drum un ith no drain received approximately	sformers	at this si	te. The
nd all hoses were in place for the s id not close a bypass value on the p ransformer siphoned into the drum un ith no drain received approximatery	incident.	. The pump	Was set in
id not close a bypass valve on the p ransformer siphoned into the drum un ith no drain received approximatery	cond drai	lning. The	electricians
ransformer siphoned into the drum un ith no drain received approximatery	mp before	e the break	. The
ith no drain received approximatery	11 the di	rum overflo	wed. A sump
	<u>to 3/4 p</u>	tailon of P	CB oil from
ne drum. The drum happened to be ov	r the sur	np when it	overflowed.
he spill occurred at 7:00 PM. Micha	<u>l Bailey</u>	who was o	n the scene
or the draining, was the first response	der to th	e spill.	Scrbent Sneet.
ere placed in the sump to contain the	SCILL.	The sump w	as given a
ouble wash/double rinse with "Natura.	izer" PCF	sorvent.	The spill
as completery; cleaned by 0:30 PM. 11	e creanut	Was uctay	ed white one
ransformer was drained into drums.			
			- <u>-</u>
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

Pan Am World Services, Inc.

TO: Distribution

THRU: Mike Brown, Supervisor, PENV

FROM: Michael Bailey, Environmental Engineer, PENV ______

DATE: May 14, 1990

MEMO: PENV.90-237

PAN AM HSE PROCEDURES FOR THE REMOVAL OF PCB SUBJECT: TRANSFORMERS AT TA-16 BUILDING 260, ROOM 110

Replacement of two PCB transformers at TA-16 Building 260, Room 110, is scheduled to start on May 17, 1990. Health, safety, and environmental protection procedures have been written to ensure the safe removal of these transformers. Room 110 is an equipment room located on the outside of Building 260, and is easily accessible by two large double doors.

A list of the personnel that will be involved in the removal follows:

Construction Supervisor - Robert Tarleton, CA3D Electricians - Foreman Larry Meira Linemen - Foreman Ruben Salazar Riggers - Foreman Ray Smith Operators - Foreman Ray Smith - CAlD Laborers (have been trained in PCBs) Laborers HSE-7 Personnel - Larry Hupke PENV Personnel - Michael Bailey PSFT Personnel - Tito N. Trujillo, Lorenzo Chavez

Information about the two PCB transformers follows:

Tech Area Bldg. Room No. Serial No. PCB ID No. Fluid Vol.

TA-16	260	110	57988	5607	294	gal
TA-16	260	110	59344	5608	294	gal

The two transformers will be emptied on site and transported by the Pan Am Riggers through a double door to the outside. The transformers will be loaded by a crane to a truck with a drip pan that covers the entire bed of the truck by the Riggers. A High Explosives Decontamination Permit (WX-12-1) will be optained from WX-12 personnel, and a Hazardous Materials On-Site Transfer (OTM-1) Form will be required.

TO: KenH

CC: MikeA RaulM RoyB SteveR TinaS DATE: 05-21-90 TIME: 16:34

FROM: RaulM SUBJECT: PCBS ON THE FLOOR AT TA16, BLD260, RM110 PRIORITY: ATTACHMENTS:

Ken,

1. As you already know, PCBs were found on the floor beneath a transformer at TA-16, Bldg 260, Room 110 while the transformer was in the process of being replaced. Analytical chemistry results indicate PCB concentrations in that area to be less than 100ug/100sq cm after cleanup.

2. In the process of emptying the Askarel 1260 from the transformer, World Services personnel had a couple of spills -- one of about a pint and the other 3/4 gallon. This area is to be sampled once initial cleanup procedures have been completed.

ACTIONS TAKEN TO ADDRESS THE ABOVE

Having just returned from a PCB course in Washington D.C., I had obtained information on the regulations which helped put the above items in propertive. For PCB concentrations of less than 100ug/100sq cm as described 1) above, we can encapsulate the PCBs in the floor (and place in our

as a report of what happened and how we alleviated or corrected the situation). We have already conveyed this information to the responsible parties and the encapsulation and transformer replacement is proceeding. We do not need to notify the EPA or obtain approval to encapsulate, but accordin to the regulations the EPA can disallow our encapsulation. I believe that will be unlikely since no threat to the environment is presented by this situation.

The spills described in (2) present a different situation. Under TSCA, we must report spills involving 10# of pure PCBs to the EPA. Under CERCLA, 1# or more must be reported to the National Response Center (who typically reports it to the EPA). Although we may have about 10# of PCBs spilled in this case, there is no need to report either to the EPA or NRC because the regulations address RELEASES TO THE ENVIRONMENT. In this case, we have a workplace release, i.e., a closed place with no emissions to the environment. There are no drains or similar conduits in the room.

Appropriate reports will be written and filed for the incident.

Rae wanted me to bring you up-to-date on the above. If you have questions call me at 7-0814.

8	PAN AM WORLD SERVICES,	INC.
-	FIELD AUTHORIZATION	<u> </u>

*	PAN AM WORLD SERVICES, INC. FIELD AUTHORIZATION	DATE 7/3/90 % COMP. 98
PART A DESCRIPTION AND ILISTIFICATI	ON	FA#
PART A: DESCRIPTION AND JUSTIFICATI PRIME NO. 9095-54 ASSOCIATE NO., 5-84-01-5 TO AUTHORITIC CL DUR TO SHUT D DURE TO SHUT D ONE HALF OF T 11-21-90 - INCL	ON TITLE PCBJRA TA IG TA IG CEANUP OF PCB'S LEA MERS AND COVER TIM DWN OF LOB he room was Encars whing sump.	NSFORMER REPL BLDG. 260 KED FROM E LOST 412ATED UN
REVISED TARGET DATE 7/3//2	ACTIVITY NO. (S)	01050
PART B: CAUSES PROJECT REVISION < 2K WORK DEFINITION PRODUCTIVITY WORKMANSHIP SCHEDULING ESTIMATEPLAN SUPERVISION FIELD DIRECTION MATERIALSTOOLS TRANSPEQUIP PLANS & SPECIFICATIONS CONGESTION OVERTIME SITE ACCESS FIELD CONDITIONS RATE CHANGES HSOR E WEATHER OTHER	CARPENTERS ROOFERS FLOOR CREW PAINTERS HABORERS LABORERS TEAMSTERS OPERATORS IRON WKRS TINNERS SUB-TOTAL TOTAL HRS. 3525	FITTERS INSULATORS ELECTRICIANS LINEMEN RIGGERS FAB SHOPS S & T CUSTODIAL NON-MANUAL SUB-TOTAL
PART D: COSTS LOADED LABOR MATERIAL & HANDLING EQUIPMENT SUBTOTAL G&A — GRT TOTAL ESTIMATED COST	\$ 11,000 INCLUDES \$FO \$ INCLUDES \$FO \$ INCLUDESHO \$ INCLUDESHO \$ INCLUDESHO \$ INCLUDESHO \$ INCLUDESHO \$ INCLUDES	IR NON-MANUAL URS
PART E: APPROVALS	ESTIMATORS	<u> </u>
	1 0	

Allata
FUNDING ORGANIZATION

A1-45-00.01

W.O. AUTHOR · . . -. . - . -

PAN AM WORK ORDER CONTROL

PAN AM CONST. SUPV.

··· ^

OVER FOR INSTRUCTIONS

•

- 12. Laborers dressed in personal protection equipment (PPE) will clean area where transformers were in place with Chemsearch Naturalizer non-hazardous solvent and rags in a double wash/double rinse method as determined by PENV.
- 13. A Hazardous Materials On-Site Transfer (OTM-1) Form will be completed by PENV and given to the driver of the truck for each load. Truck will be placarded with PCB labels, front, sides, and back, by PENV.
- 14. A High Explosives Decontamination Permit (WX-12-1) will be completed by Bill McCormick, WX-12, at this time and given to the driver (no high explosives are suspected to contaminate these transformers, as stated by Bill McCormick).
- 15. Drums of oil and empty transformers will be taken to TA-54 Building 39 (HSE-7 PCB Management Facility) by the truck, and the Pan Am Riggers will unload the cargo at an area specified by Larry Hupke, HSE-7.

Darles Michael Bailey

Distribution: Robert Tarleton, CA3D Steve Rae, HSE-8, K490 Raul Morales, HSE-8, K490 Larry Hupke, HSE-7, K518 Bill McCormick, WX-12, C935 M. R. Heineman, HSE-3, K489 S. J. Calanni, PMGR A. L. Da Silva, OMDO Joe J. Lopez, PHSE Stan Nalley, UMDO Tito N. Trujillo, PSFT Lorenzo Chavez, PSFT Charlie Barnett, PENV file reading file



JUN 12 1990 Curc: to: Steve Kar Roy Dohn Raul Morels Ucsep

PAN AM WORLD SERVICES, INC.

MEMORANDUM

TO: Joe Lopez, Manager, Health, Safety & Env., PHSE

THRU: Manager, Construction Department, CDDO

FROM: Construction Superintendent, CA2D

DATE: 25 May 1990

MEMO NO.: CA2D.90-212

SUBJECT: PCB TRANSFORMER REMOVAL WORK LESSONS LEARNED

The listed itcms were things that were dealt with, left out, poorly communicated, etc. on the work done at TA-16-260 and should be considered in future activities concerning PCB work:

- 1. PCB removal procedures were provided at the last moment but requests for these procedures were made at the pre-job conference two months prior with additional inquiries about the status of the procedures during that two month period.
- 2. The procedures didn't require any pre-job swiping or indexing to determine if there were existing PCBs oil residuals on the floor prior to beginning transformer and switchgear removal operations. This data would have provided a base from which to formulate a more comprehensive work plan.
- 3. There didn't seem to be a clear line of communication established between Pan Am Safety and HSE as to who was responsible for what and who was to contact whom.
- 4. The scabbling machine that was provided at the job site was grossly undersized for the work task and mechanically unsound to start with. There was no back-up machine available if the one provided would have completely failed.
- 5. The marshaling of resources to deal with this one small incident seemed too fragmented and clearly incomplete.
- 6. The mopping "double wash" activities seemed to be taken lightly. The scabbling machine was utilized perhaps prematurely. It seems like a more comprehensive "double wash" method with perhaps the appropriate solvents and scrubbing devices other then mops might have remedied the situation with substantially less cost.

DOCUMENTATION CHECKLIST

CHECK APPROPRIATE BOX

- GRID
- ☑ ANALYTICAL
- ☑ INCIDENT REPORT
- MEMO'S
- COPY OF SJT OR WO'S
- □ NOTES
- D PHOTOGRAPHS

:								•								• •					-		-		/																				,
	112				: .	i			· ·								:				•		ī				•									ì									
 	~			· · ·			· · · ·			:	•		:	•	S	3	;			5-	2	:	;		5-	1	1 1 1		•				:	:		!	1				•	N	=		
 -		2	5 7	2			-			 		:	· · · · ·		ť: ľ	k.Bj	· ·	1	i ji Ka						9.1	- 1			; ; ;	ļ	;	.]	; ,		÷		i		; .			•	:		; ; ;
	2			- - - - - -	. 									··• ,		•	•	•		• •			1	· .					÷ .	 		•		1	:				•	:	• • •	•			
			0												. ;	•								· · · ·						:					•							•	•		
		- 7- 72									. .														: • • • • •				 			; !					•								
		× + × ×										· · ·		· · ·			;					H								 															
		k, o	5						•••••			· · · i			i · ·			:																				-							
							i						: · ; :			, T		:		:			, , ,						-								1								
															· · ·																				· · ·										
					: 4+ 17, 17,				· · ·		: :										•																	 	- /						
 1 =	2			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			 					;					•				• - . •							;	; .					;	1. •	1	· ·		!.						
			• • [1				•										;	•.	:		•		}	:	·	1	, 1	•			•	;		:				1	. 1	; ;	; : : ; : ;

1

1

1. (p.)

•

111 10 LOL SUMDS

							•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	•	! : 										·																
	- 13							7	Tra	2.9	for	me	-/-	5,	10	chg	e.a							Ę	y . Lest								2		•
			70								51										7	. <u>.</u>					9		, 15			50	9. 3,5 16	<u> -6-1</u>	
			Rock	05		2	- S		c 6	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·								· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	ι									1] ; ;			5 - 260, Final Vali	
<i>D</i>	ала 5 211	6cces			C	>	5.6	0	5	7	* 	Ē.	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	15 <u>1</u>					• • •	4			g. y. 4	يبو		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			VC.S	

, . <u>.</u> a Casha - Prodess

÷ - · · · · 1



											-								· · · · ·			,										: , : : : , : :			T.				1			Π	$\prod_{i=1}^{n}$
																			*: <u>-</u> .			· · ·	:					••••															
					-111 -111																																						
																							· · · • · ·	:				2	5		.5	91	95	् (ऽ	7 7 7	4	ļ	ł			i i i i I i i i i i		
																					:.				· ·	 				: '! 		5	D										
																						 		 							· · · · ·												
												i i Fi											: 	 	 		 				· · · ·	11 		;									
····																																											
																									,,																		
					:1 <u>-</u>																							-															
(. 5'E 1 5 1	ξŊ	<u>, 1</u>			⊨≓	<u>,</u>	<u> </u>	7						4						9													۲.							E			
				 . .				 									•		Ţ.									Ŧ		1111 141 111	*			-		-1-11					5		
					-7				4		12									5 6	0	14	\$	7		æ	eg j	1	P.	4			_										
7																																											
																1					7										1471 		H		1 · ·								+++
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·																 		· •											· {												
X		· · · ·				· · ·				- <u> `</u> -	·					 		 					101 					 			۱ 1 - ۱ ا		 		 	 							
i inani i i			;	.:::							<u> </u>	<u>.</u>			<u> </u>	<u> </u> ::::				:		0	97		<u></u>		<u>.</u>]	<u>.</u>		<u>.</u>	· .	<u> </u>]									

SUUGRE 10 X 10 TO THE CENTIMETER AS-8014 10

GL GRAPH PAPER OF CHAPTIN CONTROLS CON ORALIGH

Induto New York - Production (ES A

transtormer 5/20/10	88	12 5 14 1 15 15 15	$\frac{1}{2} \frac{1}{2} \frac{1}$
-16-260, Guid under 2 21.5-260, Guid under 2	57 9C 	5-02 20-6	
1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	0.24 . 8.4 	556 p. 20 978 zo %	
	161 161 161 161 161 161 161 161 161 161		

ı

•





Prepared by: DMS on 14-Nov-1990

POLYCHLORINATED BIPHENYLS

REQUEST	NUMBER:	10963	MATRIX:	FS	ANALYST:	Dee Seit	Ľ				PROGRAM	CODE:	WH54	
	Michael 4	lexander	GR	NIP :	KSE-8	MATH - STO		¥490	PHONE	5-4752				

SUMMARY of TOTAL PCB's for customer samples on this report

CUSTOMER	SAMPLE					COMPLETION			
NUM	NUM	ANALYSIS	RESULT	UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	DATE	COMMENT		COMPOUND NAME
90.01391-MRA	90.19161	1336363	7.	1.4	UG/SAMPLE	11/14/90		Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01392-MRA	90.19162	1336363	75.5	15.1	UG/SAMPLE	11/14/90		Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01393-MRA	90.19163	1336363	8.7	1.7	UG/SAMPLE	11/14/90		Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01394-MRA	90.19164	1336363	42.8	8.6	UG/SAMPLE	11/14/90		Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01395-MRA	90,19165	1336363	13.3	2.7	UG/SAMPLE	11/14/90		Mixed-Aroclor	

DETAILED PCB DATA for customer samples on this report

CUSTOMER	SAMPLE					COMPLETION		
NUM	NUM	ANALYSIS	RESULT	UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	DATE	COMMENT	COMPOUND NAME
90.01391-MRA	90.19161	1336363	7.	1.4	UG/SAMPLE	11/14/90	Mixed-Ar	oclor
90.01391-MRA	90.19161	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SANPLE	11/14/90	Aroclor	1242
90.01391-MRA	90.19161	11097691	< 0.4		UGZ: A PPLE	11 (4 /9 0	Aroclor	1254
90.01391-MRA	90.19161	11096825	7.	1.4	UGZ: UPLE	11/ i4 / 90	Aroclor	1260
90.01392-MRA	90.19162	1336363	75.5	15.1	UG/L PLE	11/14/90	Mixed-Ar	oclor
90.01392-MRA	90.19162	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SamirLE	11/14/90	Aroclor	1242
90.01392-MRA	90.19162	11097691	< 0.4		UG/ SAMPLE	11/14/20	Aroclor	254
90.01392-MRA	90.19162	11096825	75.5	ə 1	UG7 CAMPLE	11/14/290	Aroclor	260
90.01393-MRA	90.19163	1336363	8.7	1.7	UG/SAMPLE	11/14/90	Mixed-Ar	octor
90.01393-MRA	90.19163	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLT	11/14/90	Anoctor	1242

90.01393-MRA 90.19163	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	11/14/90	Aroclor 1254
90.01393-MRA 90.19163	11096825	8.7	1.7	UG/SAMPLE	11/14/90	Aroclor 1260
90.01394-MRA 90.19164	1336363	42.8	8.6	UG/SAMPLE	11/14/90	Mixed-Aroclor
90.01394-MRA 90.19164	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	11/14/90	Aroclor 1242
90.01394-MRA 90.19164	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	11/14/90	Aroclor 1254
90.01394-MRA 90.19164	11096825	42.8	8.6	UG/SAMPLE	11/14/90	Aroclor 1260
90.01395-MRA 90.19165	1336363	13.3	2.7	UG/SAMPLE	11/14/90	Mixed-Aroclor
90.01395-MRA 90.19165	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	11/14/90	Aroclor 1242
90.01395-MRA 90.19165	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	11/14/90	Aroclor 1254
90.01395-MRA 90.19165	11096825	13.3	2.7	UG/SAMPLE	11/14/90	Aroclor 1260
				-		

.

.

•

-

ı

.

-



Prepared by: DMS on 14-Nov-1990

POLYCHLORINATED BIPHENYLS

REQUEST	NUMBER:	10963	MATRIX:	FS	ANALYST:	Dee Seitz				PROGRAM CO	DDE:	WH54
OWNER:	Michael A	lexander	GRO	DUP:	HSE-8	MAIL-STOP:	K490	PHONE :	5-4752			

SUMMARY OF CONTROL STATUS OF OPEN (NON-BLIND) QA SAMPLES RUN WITH THIS BATCH

CUSTOMER NUM	SAMPLE NUM	ANALYSIS	RESULT	UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	CERTIFIED VALUE	CERTIFIED VALUE UNCERTAINTY	COMPLETION DATE	COMMENT		COMPOUN
00.21737	00.21737	1336363	19.2	3.8	UG/SAMPLE	13.	1.	11/14/90	UNDER CONTROL	Mixed-Aroclor	
00.21737	00.21737	53469219	19.2	3.8	UG/SAMPLE	13.	1.	11/14/90	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1242	
00.21737	00.21737	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	0.0		11/14/90	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1254	
00.21737	00.21737	11096825	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	0.0		11/14/90	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1260	

SUMMARY OF CONTROL STATUS OF BLIND QA SAMPLES RUN WITH THIS BATCH

						CERTIFIED				
SAMPLE					CETAIFIED	V/ LUE	COMPLETION			
NUM	ANALYSIS	RESULT	UNCERTAINTY	tarits	VALUE	UNCERTAINTY	DATE	COMMENT		COMPOUND - NAME
90.19166	1336363	10-3	2.1	UG/ . Horal E	6.	0.6	11/14/90	UNDER CONTROL	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.19166	53469219	10.3	2.1	UG/SAMPLE	6.	0.6	11/14/90	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1242	
90.19166	11097691	< ().4		UG/SAMPLE	0.0		,11/14/90	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1254	

90.19166 11096825

< 0.4

-

ı.

_

.

REPORT NUMBER: 8823

.

Diana Arom, sila	An Leibur	Chinho June	QA Officer
Analyst	Reviewer	Section Leader	
<u>////5/9()</u>	11/15/90	11/15/90	Date
Date	Date	Date	

0.0

The control status of the preceeding data was evaluated using the standard statistical criteria set forth in 'Quality Assurance for Health and Environmental Chemistry: 1986,' LA-11114-MS, pp. 3-4.

land why " " , "

.

REPORT NUMBER: 8581

******	HSE-9 ANALYTICAL REPORT	*****
--------	-------------------------	-------

Prepared by: DLN on 29-Oct-1990

POLYCHLORINATED BIPHENYLS

REQUEST NUMBER: 10868 MATRIX: MOL ANALYST: Dee Seitz PROGRAM CODE: WH54

OWNER: Michael Alexander GROUP: HSE-8 MAIL-STOP: K490 PHONE: 5-4752 TASK-ID:

SUMMARY of TOTAL PCB's for customer samples on this report

CUSTOMER	SAMPLE					COMPLETION		
NUM	NUM	ANALYSIS	RESULT	UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	DATE	COMMENT	COMPOUND NAME
90.01366	90.18463	1336363	< 4.		UG/G	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01374	90.18464	1336363	< 4.		UG/G	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01375	90.18465	1336363	< 4.		UG/G	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90,01376	90.18466	1336363	< 4.		UG/G	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01377	90.18467	1336363	< 4.		UG/G	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01378	90.18468	1336363	< 4.		UG/G	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01379	90.18469	1336363	< 4.		UG/G	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01380	90.18470	1336363	< 4.		UG/G	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01381	90.18471	1336363	< 4.		UG/G	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01382	90.18472	1336363	< 4.		UG/G	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90 01367	90.18474	1336363	1.4	0.2	UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90 01368	90.18475	1336363	12.6	2.5	UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01369	90,18476	1336363	10.4	2.	UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01370	90.18477	1336363	2.	0.4	UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90 01371	90.18478	1336363	1.	0.2	UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90 01372	90.18479	1336363	2.6	0.5	UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01373	90.18480	1336363	0.8	0.2	UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclon	

DETAILED PCB DATA for customer samples on this report

CUSTOMER SAMPLE

COMPLETION

.





06/5/01

Sampled



NUM	NUM

RESULT

ANALYSIS

UNITS

UNCERTAINTY

COMMENT

ſF.

COMPOUND NAME

۰.

90.01366	90.18463	1336363	< 50.	PPM	10/24/90	KIT	Mixed-Aroclor
90.01366	90.18463	1336363	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Mixed-Aroclor
90.01366	90.18463	53469219	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Aroclor 1242
90.01366	90.18463	11097691	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Aroclor 1254
90.01366	90.18463	11096825	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Aroclor 1260
90.01374	90.18464	1336363	< 500.	PPM	10/24/90	KIT	Mixed-Aroclor
90.01374	90.18464	1336363	> 50.	PPM	10/24/90	KIT	Mixed-Aroclor
90.01374	90.18464	1336363	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Mixed-Aroclor
90.01374	90.18464	53469219	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Aroclor 1242
90.01374	90.18464	11097691	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Aroclor 1254
90.01374	90.18464	11096825	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Aroclor 1260
90.01375	90.18465	1336363	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Mixed-Aroclor
90.01375	90.18465	53469219	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Aroclor 1242 '
90.01375	90.18465	11097691	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Aroclor 1254
90.01375	90.18465	11096825	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Aroclor 1260
90.01376	90.18466	1336363	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Mixed-Aroclor
90.01376	90.18466	1336363	< 500.	PPM	10/24/90	KIT	Mixed-Aroclor
90.01376	90.18466	53469219	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Aroclor 1242
90.01376	90.18466	11097691	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Aroclor 1254
90.01376	90.18466	11096825	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Aroclor 1260
90.01377	90.18467	1336363	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Mixed-Aroclor
90.01377	90.18467	1336363	> 50.	PPM	10/24/90	KIŤ	Mixed-Aroclor
90.01377	90.18467	53469219	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Aroclor 1242
90.01377	90.18467	11097691	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Aroclor 1254
90.01377	90.18467	11096825	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Aroclor 1260
90.01378	90.18468	1336363	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Mixed-Aroclor
90.01378	90.18468	1336363	< 50.	PPM	10/24/90	KIT	Mixed-Aroclor
90.01378	9 0.18468	53469219	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Aroclor 1242
90.01378	90.18468	11097691	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Aroclor 1254
90.01378	90.18468	11096825	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Aroclor 1260
90.01379	90.18469	1336363	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Mixed-Aroclor
90.01379	90.18 469	1336363	< 50.	PPM	10/24/90	KIT	Mixed-Aroclor
90.01379	90.18469	53469219	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Aroclor 1242
90.01379	90.18469	11097691	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Aroclor 1254
90.01379	90.18 469	11096825	< 4.	UG/G	10/24/90		Aroclor 1260
90.01380	90.1847ú	1336363	< 50.	PPM	10/247-90	KIT	Mixed-Aroclor
90.01380	90.1847 0	1336363	< 4.	UG/G	10/240		Mixed-Aroclor
90.01380	9 0.1847 0	53469219	× 4.	UG/6	10729,50		Aroclor 1242
90.01380	90.18470	11097691	< 4.	05/6	10/24/90		Aroclor 1254
90.01380	-0.18470	11096825	< 4.	0676	10727750		Aroctor 1260
90.01381	90.18471	1336363	< 4.	0476	187.		Mixed-Aroclor
90.01381	90.18471	1336363	< 50.	P 110	107	КIТ	Mixed-Aroclor
90.01381	90.18471	53469219	< 4.	ԱՅՇԵ	10/24/90		Aroclon 1242
90.01381	90,18471	11097691	< 4.	1)6/6	10/24/90		Aroctor 1254
90.18471	11096825	< 4.		UG/G	10/24/90	Aroclor 1260	
----------	--	--	--	--	------------------------------------	------------------------------------	
90.18472	1336363	< 4.		UG/G	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.18472	53469219	< 4.		UG/G	10/24/90	Aroclor 1242	
90.18472	11097691	< 4.		UG/G	10/24/90	Aroclor 1254	
90.18472	11096825	< 4.		UG/G	10/24/90	Aroclor 1260	
90.18474	1336363	1.4	0.2	UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.18474	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Aroclor 1242	
90.18474	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Aroclor 1254	
90.18474	11096825	1.4	0.2	UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Aroclor 1260	
90.18475	1336363	12.6	2.5	UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.18475	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Aroclor 1242	
90.18475	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Aroclor 1254	
90.18475	11096825	12.6	2.5	UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Aroclor 1260	
90.18476	1336363	10.4	2.	UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.18476	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Aroclor 1242	
90.18476	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Aroclor 1254	
90.18476	11096825	10.4	2.	UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Aroclor 1260	
90.18477	1336363	2.	0.4	UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.18477	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Aroclor 1242	
90.18477	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Aroclor 1254	
90.18477	11096825	2.	0.4	UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Aroclor 1260	
90.18478	1336363	1.	0.2	UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Mîxed-Aroclor	
90.18478	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Aroclor 1242	
90.18478	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Aroclor 1254	
90.18478	11096825	1.	0.2	UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Aroclor 1260	
90.18479	1336363	2.6	0.5	UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.18479	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Aroclor 1242	
90.18479	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Aroclor 1254	
90.18479	11096825	2.6	0.5	UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Aroclor 1260	
90.18480	1336363	0.8	0.2	UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.18480	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Aroclor 1242	
90.18480	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Aroclor 1254	
90.18480	11096825	0.8	0.2	UG/SAMPLE	10/24/90	Aroclor 1260	
	90.18471 90.18472 90.18472 90.18472 90.18472 90.18474 90.18474 90.18474 90.18474 90.18475 90.18475 90.18475 90.18475 90.18475 90.18476 90.18476 90.18476 90.18476 90.18477 90.18477 90.18477 90.18477 90.18477 90.18478 90.18478 90.18478 90.18478 90.18479 90.18479 90.18480 90.18480 90.18480 90.18480	90.184711109682590.18472133636390.184725346921990.184721109769190.184721109682590.18474133636390.18474133636390.184741109769190.184741109682590.18475133636390.18475133636390.18475133636390.184751109769190.184751109769190.184751109682590.18476133636390.18476130682590.184761109769190.184761109769190.1847713636390.184771109682590.184771109682590.18478133636390.18478133636390.18478133636390.18479133636390.18479133636390.18479133636390.184791309769190.184791109769190.184791109769190.18480133636390.18480133636390.1848013663390.1848013663390.1848013663390.1848013663390.1848013663390.184801109769190.184801109769190.184801109769190.184801109769190.1848011096825	90.18471 11096825 < 4. 90.18472 1336363 < 4.	90.18471 11096825 < 4. 90.18472 1336363 < 4.	90.18471 11096825 < 4.	90.18471 11096825 < 4.	

.

i

.



Prepared by: DLN on 29-Oct-1990

POLYCHLORINATED BIPHENYLS

REQUEST	NUMBER:	10868	MATRIX: MOL	ANALYST:	Dee Seitz		PR	GRAM CODE:	WH54
OWNER:	Michael	Alexander	GROUP:	HSE-8	MAIL-STOP: K4	490 PHONE:	5-4752	TAS	K-ID:

SUMMARY OF CONTROL STATUS OF OPEN (NON-BLIND) GA SAMPLES RUN WITH THIS BATCH

							CERTIFIED				
CUSTOMER NUM	SAMPLE NUM	ANALYS1S	RESULT	UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	CERTIFIED VALUE	VALUE UNCERTAINTY	COMPLETION DATE	COMMENT		COMPOUN
00.21374	00.21374	1336363	3.4	0.7	UG/SAMPLE	5.	0.5	10/24/90	UNDER CONTROL	Mixed-Aroclor	
00.21374	00.21374	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	0.0		10/24/90	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1242	
00 21374	00.21374	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	0.0		10/24/90	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1254	
00.21374	00.21374	11096825	3.4	0.7	UG/SAMPLE	5.	0.5	10/24/90	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1260	
00.97411	00.97411	1336363	18.8	3.8	UG/G	25.	2.	10/24/90	UNDER CONTROL	Mixed-Aroclor	
00.97411	00,97411	53469219	< 4.		UG/G	0.0		10/24/90	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1242	
00.97411	00.97411	11097691	< 4.		UG/G	0.0		10/24/90	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1254	
00.97411	00.97411	11096825	18.8	3.8	UG/G	25.	2.	10/24/90	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1260	

SUMMARY OF CONTROL STATUS OF BLIND OA SAMPLES RUN WITH THIS BATCH

.

							ConciF1ED		
SAMPLE						CERTIFIED	VALUE	COMPLETION	
NÚM	÷	ANALYSIS	RE SUL 1	UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	VALUE	UNCERTAINTY	DATE	COMMENT

COMPOUND - NAME



The control status of the preceeding data was evaluated using the standard statistical criteria set forth in 'Quality Assurance for Health and Environmental Chemistry: 1986,' LA-11114-MS, pp. 3-4.

· · ·

.

-

Bullato Develope - Fenderlas o S.A.

					-							;		• • • •	••			•				•		:	···					ľ.					· · ·									Ţ	;]	•••	 		1													
			i 		/ 				:	1			 	 	 				. : 							-					 . .					:	• •			;					÷															į		
1 1 1 1 1					i 	.		 		• 1 -	. . , .		;;;;	·			-	 .	 	 	. 				<i></i>	; ; ;;		•••••) 	••• ••	•	-		••• •			•¦					 	סייס			r		 	P		-	77							
	,		, , ,	į.				;		-;-	.			: 				· · · ·	 				-	•				. . .		 		 			-		• •		:		•	ia 	5 5	9 -	ەر	، ورج	7	ד פי דד		(S) 	4							4			
			 		; ; ;	, . 				 		;+-	{				:-		 - 			• • •					. - .			 		•		 	. .	: ; ;		 			-		 - 			د •				· · · ·			ļ									
		; .		 : :	-	: 																	. -		• :•		. , 	.:				: .	 	{ ```	-		••••	 				 	.: .			•••••		 	··•				_	1								
		 	 		 										: 																			1			· · · · ·	. 	 			; .			, , ,		. 	· · 						Ť								
		9 /			•		-+-		1				-	-1				A 7								 		7- 7-	۰. د 							7	• • •	- <u>-</u>	- - - - -	- 	• • • •	 			7			· · · · ·					or									
													1												· : : :			+				:	11:1: :+-+ !					,	·	• 	:۰۰ شنب			 ++ -		· · ·					· · ·											
					- -							• , 										į						.: 			. 			. 	-						• • -	. .			. 					_				1								
د) ح	Å	47	1 15 1								 		1	8			:					11			::: : :rif	 						3 .			1 1			<u>!</u> • • • •	•	5		 			- 		1 1 1		F 		: 						E					
			• •, - •, -							¦ ⊣ .'				· . ::			24	-01							111) - 11 - 11								<u></u>					111 	- -			†1 1 			<u>-</u>	<u>.</u>					•				न। .11				\$			
•	 	7														4	е,			+++		- .	+-						••••• :		-	đ	977	1	4		Ż				e j	5	urz	7	Z	.	- <u>-</u>				·				•••							
	•	• • • • • •	 								- • - - - • -		 		<u>مورن</u> 	ן: ' יין			ن ا ا								 1114	<u></u>	 	ł		;= 	 		1				: -	∷†:- -		 1 1 1 1 1 1	; :=				-				 		4		-11							
1444 e 4444	·	: : :	 	ļ-		-+ 		 †		+		•		<u>. 19 1</u>	 ; 										:;; ;								, q	4								 	1	1				1	 		• •											
) 	2	 	 : :	•					 	-	·-						-		-†:-					··			•••				 	·•	· 			- ••	 -	· } 			1			••••; 		:	 !														
: -		 	,		Ì				•	г ·		!-		• •••	· -	Ì	 		[• <i>••</i>	1.			;			•••	; ; ;	· +- ·			· ! !				· ··	:	•		· ·	1.	•					:			1					- - - 				Ī	

General Action of the end of the terms of the Action of the

•

					,7 # 1
			••• - •••• • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		× ••
		n - S			
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
					10 - C
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		Ser
· : :			· · · · · ·		
				0	40
	1-5	۲-۶ ٤-۶			
		-	: •		Ň
		: :			24





Prepared by: DMS on 14-Sep-1990

POLYCHLORINATED BIPHENYLS

REQUEST	NUMBER :	10731	MATRIX:	FS	ANALYST:	Dee Seitz				PROGRAM CODE:	WA56
OWNER :	Michael /	Alexander	GR	OUP:	HSE-8	MAIL-STOP:	к490	PHONE:	5-4752	TASK-ID:	

SUMMARY of TOTAL PCB's for customer samples on this report

CUSTOMER	SAMPLE					COMPLETION		
NUM	NUM	ANALYSIS	RESULT	UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	DATE	COMMENT	COMPOUND NAME
90.01304-MRA	90.17071	1336363	107.	43.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01305-MRA	90,17072	1336363	14.1	2.8	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01306-MRA	90.17073	1336363	9.6	1.9	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01307-MRA	90.17074	1336363	20.	4.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Mixed-Aroctor	
90.01308-MRA	90.17075	1336363	56.	22.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01309-MRA	90.17076	1336363	610.	240.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01310-MRA	90.17077	1336363	260.	100.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01311-MRA	90.17078	1336363	866.	350.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01312-MRA	90.17079	1336363	17.7	3.5	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01313-MRA	90.17080	1336363	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01314-MRA	90.17081	1336363	85.	34.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01315-MRA	90.17082	1336363	24.	4.7	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Mixed-Aroclor	•
90.01316-MRA	90.17083	1336363	8.5	1.7	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01317-MRA	90.17 084	1336363	131.	52.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14790	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01318-MRA	90.17085	1336363	129.	52.	UG ISAMPLE	9/14/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01319-MRA	90.17086	1336363	183.	. 5.	UGZ VERILE	9/14/90	Mixed-Aroctor	
90.01320-MRA	90.17087	1336363	271.	108.	UG/ LE	S/14790	Mixed-Aroclor	
90,01321-MRA	90.17028	1336363	276.	150.	UG/SAMPLE	9 54790	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01322-MRA	90.17089	1336363	290.	i J.	UG/SAMPLE	9/ in/Su	Mixed-Aroclor	

1

.

CUSTOMER	SAMPLE					COMPLETION			
NUM	NUM	ANALYSIS	RESULT	UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	DATE	COMMENT		COMPOUND NAME
90.01304-MRA	90.17071	1336363	107.	43.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01304-MRA	90.17071	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1242	
90.01304-MRA	90.17071	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1254	
90.01304-MRA	90.17071	11096825	107.	43.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1260	
90.01305-MRA	90.17072	1336363	14.1	2.8	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01305-MRA	90.17072	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1242	
90.01305-MRA	90.17072	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1254	
90.01305-MRA	90.17072	11096825	14.1	2.8	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1260	
90.01306-MRA	90.17073	1336363	9.6	1.9	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01306-MRA	90.17073	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1242	
90.01306-MRA	90.17073	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1254	
90.01306-MRA	90.17073	11096825	9.6	1.9	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1260	
90.01307-MRA	90.17074	1336363	20.	4.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01307-MRA	90.17074	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1242	
90.01307-MRA	90.17074	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Arocior 1254	
90.01307-MRA	90.17074	11096825	20,	4.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1260	
90.01308-MRA	90.17075	1336363	56.	22.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01308-MRA	90.17075	53469219	< 0.4		UC/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1242	
90.01308-MRA	90.17075	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1254	
90.01308-MRA	90.17075	11096825	56.	22.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1260	
90.01309-MRA	90.17076	133636 3	610.	240.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01309-MRA	90.17076	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1242	
90.01309-MRA	90.17076	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1254	
90.01309-MRA	90.17076	11096825	610.	240.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1260	
90.01310-MRA	90.17077	1336363	260.	100.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01310-MRA	90.17077	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1242	
90.01310-MRA	90.17077	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1254	
90.01310-MRA	90.17077	11096825	260.	100.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1260	
90.01311-MRA	90.17078	1336363	866.	350.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01311-MRA	90.17078	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1242	
90.01311-MRA	90.17078	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1254	
90,01311-MRA	90.17078	11096825	866.	350.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1260	
90.01312-MRA	90.17079	1336363	17.7	3.5	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01312-MRA	90.17079	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1242	
90.01312-MRA	90.17079	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1254	
90.01312-MRA	90.17079	11096825	17.7	3.5	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1260	
90.01313-MRA	90.17080	1336363	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01313-MRA	90.17080	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1242	
90.01313-MRA	90.17080	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1254	
90.01313-MRA	90.17080	11096825	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1260	
90.01314-MRA	90.17081	1336363	85.	34.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Mixed-Aroclor	
90.01314-ÅRA	90.17081	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90		Aroclor 1242	

•

90.01314-MRA 90.	.17081	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	97-14/90	Aroclor 1254
90.01314-MRA 90	.17081	11096825	85.	34.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1260
90.01315-MRA 90.	.17082	1336363	24.	4.7	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Mixed-Aroclor
90.01315-MRA 90.	.17082	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1242
90.01315-MRA 90	17082	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1254
90.01315-MRA 90.	.17082	11096825	24.	4.7	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1260
90.01316-MRA 90.	.17083	1336363	8.5	1.7	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Mixed-Aroclor
90.01316-MRA 90.	.17083	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1242
90.01316-MRA 90.	.17083	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1254
90.01316-MRA 90.	.17083	11096825	8.5	1.7	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1260
90.01317-MRA 90.	.17084	1336363	131.	52.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Mixed-Aroclor
90.01317-MRA 90.	.17084	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1242
90.01317-MRA 90.	.17084	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1254
90.01317-MRA 90.	.17084	11096825	131.	52.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1260
90.01318-MRA 90.	.17085	1336363	129.	52.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Mixed-Aroclor
90.01318-MRA 90.	.17085	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1242
90.01318-MRA 90.	.17085	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1254
90.01318-MRA 90.	.17085	11096825	129.	52.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1260
90.01319-MRA 90.	.17086	1336363	183.	73.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Mixed-Aroclor
90.01319-MRA 90.	.17086	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1242
90.01319-MRA 90.	.17086	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1254
90.01319-MRA 90.	17086	11096825	183.	73.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1260
90.01320-MRA 90.	.17087	1336363	271.	108.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Mixed-Aroclor
90.01320-MRA 90.	.17087	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1242
90.01320-MRA 90.	.17087	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1254
90.01320-MRA 90.	.17087	11096825	271.	108.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1260
90.01321-MRA 90.	.17088	1336363	276.	110.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Mixed-Aroclor
90.01321-MRA 90.	.17088	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1242
90.01321-MRA 90.	.17088	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1254
90.01321-MRA 90.	.17088	11096825	276.	110.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1260
90.01322-MRA 90	.17089	1336363	290.	116.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Mixed-Aroclor
90.01322-MRA 90.	.17089	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1242
90.01322-MRA 90.	17089	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1254
90.01322-MRA 90.	.17089	11096825	290.	116.	UG/SAMPLE	9/14/90	Aroclor 1260

.

.

;

.

	Prepared by: DMS on 14-Sep-1990
	POLYCHLORINATED BIPHENYLS
REQUEST NUMBER: 10731	MATRIX: FS ANALYST: Dee Seitz PROGRAM CODE: WA56
OWNER: Michael Alexander	GROUP: HSE-8 MAIL-STOP: K490 PHONE: 5-4752 TASK-ID:
CUSTOMER SAMPLE	CERTIFIED CERTIFIED COMPLETION

.....

CUSTOMER NUM	SAMPLE NUM	ANALYSIS	RESULT	UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	VALUE	UNCERTAINTY	DATE	COMMENT		COMPOUN
00.99952	00.99952	1336363	13.2	2.6	UG/SAMPLE	12.5	1.	9/14/90	UNDER CONTROL	Mixed-Aroclor	
00.99952	00,99952	53469219	13.2	2.6	UG/SAMPLE	12.5	1.	9/14/90	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1242	
00.99952	00.99952	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE			9/14/90	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1254	
00.99952	00,99952	11096825	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE			9/14/90	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1260	
							-				

SUMMARY OF CONTROL STATUS OF BLIND QA SAMPLES RUN WITH THIS BATCH

SAMPLE NUM	ANALYSIS	RESULT	UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	CERTIFIED VALUE	CERTIFIED VALUE UNCERTAINTY	COMPLETION DATE	COMMENT		COMPOUND - NAME
90.17090	1336363	11.2	2.2	UG/SAMPLE	10.	1.	9/14/90	UNDER CONTROL	Mixed-Aroclor	
90.17090	53469219	11.2	2.2	UG/SAMPLE	10.	1.	9/14/90	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1242	
90,17090	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE			9/14/90	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1254	
90,17090	11096825	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE			9/14/90	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1260	
Der,	lit	Mariana	Chrin fe	han		•	L			
7/1	90	11149.0	9/07	(90	(

REPORT NUMBER: 8167 (continued)

4	Iru:n	d-c.d	915	190

******	******	*****	*****
HSE-9 ANALYTICAL SERVICE AGREEMENT	r	REQUEST-NUMBER:	10731
********	*****************************	******	*****
1. PRESAMPLING CONFERENCE: Organic Section			
Program code: WA56 Task ID #:	No. Samples Expected: 001	9	
Request date: 30-Aug-1990	Completion date: 27-Sep-1990		
Chain of Custody: N	Special protocol: NONE		
Container Type: GLASS	Preservative: NONE	Storage Conditions:	NONE
(See Memo HSE-9/88-304. Guidelines for Col	lection and Preservation of Liquid	Samples)	
Sample Hazards Present: NONE			
Sample Disposal: DISCARD (All hazardous	s samples or TRU wa <mark>stes will be re</mark>	turned to the Customer) -
Customer: Michael Alexander	HSE_9 SECTION LEADER: CPR		
Customer initials: MRA Customer phone:	5-4752 MS: K490 Date:	5-Sep-1990	
II. EMERGENCY SAMPLES: Emergency status RE	EQUIRES the following approvals:		
Customer Group Leader	HSE-9 Group Leader		Date
		===============================	
III. SAMPLE RECEIPT		-	
signature Clin UNA Concerts:	10 betel -31-Aug-1990 Tota	l No. received:)り	+20(5
Matrix Initial SN Final SN # Received	3		
FS 00.99952 to 00.99952 1 FS 90.17071 to 90.17090 20			

Translation table of HSE-9/Customer numbers will be provided by Sample-Receiving and appear on each final data report

.

******	********	****	********	****	********	*******	********	*******	******
******	H	SE-9	ANALYTICAL C	HEMISTRY R	EQUEST		REQUEST	-NUMBER: 10731	
Program	code: WA56		Task ID	number:		Req	uest date:	30-Aug-1990	
Customer	r initials:	MRA	Customer	phone: 5	-4752	MS:	K490		
MATRIX	Initial		Final						
FS FS	00.99952 90.17071	to to	00.99952 90.17090						
Section	Analysis	_	Technique	Analyst	Due-date				
0	1336363		GCEC	DMS	9/27/90				

,

.

REMARKS:

ı.

.

PCB/SWIPES

,

	TA-16-2.60		
	The as Broner / Santage		
	19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 1	8	36 78 5000
		2.04% v 3	
7.5.4 T	(1, B 	2 4 .9	33
			N N
			Î Î Î Î Î Î Î Î Î Î Î Î Î Î Î Î Î Î Î
			2
			2/2

1 ID X IO X IO THE CENTIMETER AS 400 K II

A 2 that to training a ware work of all indi

ı

иоцаноз стоятиоз зилало ф. Изала Накяо 19

•

مراجعة . مراجعة ٠





.

.

A-16-200

Sampled

113/90

Prepared by: DMS on 19-Jul-1990

POLYCHLORINATED BIPHENYLS

REQUEST	NUMBER:	10597	MATRIX:	FS	ANALYST:	Dee Seitz				PROGRAM CODE:	WA56
OWNER:	Michael	Alexander	GRI	OUP:	HSE-8	MAIL-STOP:	K490	PHONE:	7-0453	TASK-ID;	

SUMMARY of TOTAL PCB's for customer samples on this report

CUSTOMER	SAMPLE					COMPLETION		
NUM	NUM	ANALYSIS	RESULT	UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	DATE	COMMENT	COMPOUND NAME
90-00575-MRA	90.15862	1336363	87.	17.4	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00576-MRA	90.15863	1336363	58.	11.6	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00577-MRA	90.15864	1336363	2.04	0.41	MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00578-MRA	90.15865	1336363	480.	96.	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00579-MRA	90.15866	1336363	3.6	0.72	MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00580-MRA	90.15867	1336363	15.4	3.1	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00581-MRA	90.15868	1336363	14.8	2.9	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00582-MRA	90.15869	1336363	206.	41.2	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00583-MRA	90.15870	1336363	14.9	3.	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00584-MRA	90.15872	1336363	24.9	5.	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00585-MRA	90.15873	1336363	313.	62.6	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00586-MRA	90.15874	1336363	1.16	0.23	MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00587-MRA	90.15875	1336363	24.8	4 94	MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00588-MRA	90.15876	1336363	163.	3. ó	UG/SAMELE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00589-MRA	90.15877	1336363	180.	30.	UG/SATURI E	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00590-MRA	90.15878	1336363	280.	56.	UG/SAN E	7/18/20	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00591-MRA	90.15879	1336363	1.2	0.2	MG/Second E	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00592-MRA	90.15880	1336363	< 0.4		UG/SANI-LE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroctor	

ı.

÷

CUSTOMER	SAMPLE					COMPLETION		
NUM	NUM	ANALYSIS	RESULT	UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	DATE	COMMENT	
						D C		COMPOUND NAME
90-00575-MRA	90.15862	1336363	87.	17.4	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00575-MRA	90.15862	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1242	
90-00575-MRA	90.15862	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1254	
90-00575-MRA	90.15862	11096825	87.	17.4	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1260	
90-00576-MRA	90.15863	1336363	58.	11.6	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00576-MRA	90,15863	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Arocior 1242	
90-00576-MRA	90.15863	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1254	
90-00576-MRA	90.15863	11096825	58.	11.6	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1260	
90-00577-MRA	90.15864	1336363	2.04	0.41	MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00577-MRA	90.15864	53469219	< 0.04		MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1242	
90-00577-MRA	90.15864	11097691	< 0.04		MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1254	
90-00577-MRA	90.15864	11096825	2.04	0.41	MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1260	
90-00578-MRA	90.15865	1336363	480.	96.	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00578-MRA	90.15865	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1242	
90-00578-MRA	90.15865	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1254	
90-00578-MRA	90.15865	11096825	480.	96.	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1260	
90-00579-MRA	90.15866	1336363	3.6	0.72	MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00579-MRA	90.15866	53469219	< 0.04		MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1242	
90-00579-MRA	90.15866	11097691	< 0.04		MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1254	
90-00579-MRA	90.15866	11096825	3.6	0.72	MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1260	
90-00580-MRA	90.15867	1336363	15.4	3.1	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00580-MRA	90.15867	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1242	
90-00580-MRA	90.15867	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1254	
90-00580-MRA	90.15867	11096825	15.4	3.1	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1260	
90-00581-MRA	90.15868	1336363	14.8	2.9	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00581-MRA	90.15868	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1242	
90-00581-MRA	90.15868	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1254	
90-00581-MRA	90.15868	11096825	14.8	2.9	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1260	
90-00582-MRA	90.15869	1336363	206.	41.2	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	,
90-00582-MRA	90.15869	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1242	
90-00582-MRA	90.15869	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1254	
90-00582-MRA	90,15869	11096825	206.	41.2	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1260	
90-00583-MRA	90.15870	1336363	14.9	3.	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00583-MRA	90.15870	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1242	
90-00583-MRA	90.15870	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1254	
90-00583-MRA	90.15870	11096825	14.9	3.	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1260	
90-00584-MRA	90.15872	1336363	24.9	5.	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
90-00584-MRA	90.15872	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1242	
90-00584-MRA	90.15872	11097691	< 0.4	_	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1254	
90-00584-MRA	90.15872	11096825	24.9	5.	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1260	
90-00585-MRA	90.15873	1556563	513.	62.6	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor	
YU-00585-MRA	90.15873	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1242	
90-00585-MRA	90.15873	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	 Anoclor 1254 	

90-00585-MRA 90.15873	11096825	313.	62.6	UG/SAMPLE	7/16/90	Aroclor 1260
90-00586-MRA 90.15874	1336363	1.16	0.23	MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor
90-00586-MRA 90.15874	53469219	< 0.04		MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1242
90-00586-MRA 90.15874	11097691	< 0.04		MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1254
90-00586-MRA 90.15874	11096825	1.16	0.23	MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1260
90-00587-MRA 90.15875	1336363	24.8	4.94	MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor
90-00587-MRA 90.15875	53469219	< 0.04		MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1242
90-00587-MRA 90.15875	11097691	< 0.04		MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1254
90-00587-MRA 90.15875	11096825	24.8	4.94	MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1260
90-00588-MRA 90.15876	1336363	163.	32.6	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor
90-00588-MRA 90.15876	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1242
90-00588-MRA 90.15876	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1254
90-00588-MRA 90.15876	11096825	163.	32.6	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1260
90-00589-MRA 90.15877	1336363	180.	36.	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor
90-00589-MRA 90.15877	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1242
90-00589-MRA 90.15877	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1254
90-00589-MRA 90.15877	11096825	180.	36.	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1260
90-00590-MRA 90.15878	1336363	280.	56.	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor
90-00590-MRA 90.15878	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1242
90-00590-MRA 90.15878	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1254
90-00590-MRA 90.15878	11096825	280.	56.	UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1260
90-00591-MRA 90.15879	1336363	1.2	0.2	MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor
90-00591-MRA 90.15879	53469219	< 0.04		MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1242
90-00591-MRA 90.15879	11097691	< 0.04		MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1254
90-00591-MRA 90.15879	11096825	1.2	0.2	MG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1260
90-00592-MRA 90.15880	1336363	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Mixed-Aroclor
90-00592-MRA 90.15880	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1242
90-00592-MRA 90.15880	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1254
90-00592-MRA 90.15880	11096825	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE	7/18/90	Aroclor 1260

.

.

i

•

.

REPORT NUMBER: 7364 (continued)

	Prepared by:	r: DMS on 19-Jul-1990									
	POLYCHLORINATED BIPHENYLS										
REQUEST NUMBER: 10597	MATRIX: FS ANALYST: Dee	ee Seitz	PROGRAM CODE: WA56								
OWNER: Michael Alexander	GROUP: HSE-8 M/	MAIL-STOP: K490 PHONE: 7-0453	TASK-ID:								

						CERTIFIED				
SAMPLE					CERTIFIED	VALUE	COMPLETION			
NUM	ANALYSIS	RESULT	UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	VALUE	UNCERTAINTY	DATE	COMMENT		COMPOUND
00.99802	1336363	13.5	2.7	UG/SAMPLE	19.	2.	7/18/90	UNDER CONTROL	Mixed-Aroclor	
00.99802	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE			7/18/90	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1242	
00.99802	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE			7/18/90	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1254	
00.99802	11096825	13.5	2.7	UG/SAMPLE	19.	2.	7/18/90	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1260	
	SAMPLE NUM 00.99802 00.99802 00.99802 00.99802	SAMPLE NUM ANALYSIS 00.99802 1336363 00.99802 53469219 00.99802 11097691 00.99802 11096825	SAMPLE RESULT NUM ANALYSIS RESULT 00.99802 1336363 13.5 00.99802 53469219 < 0.4	SAMPLE NUM ANALYSIS RESULT UNCERTAINTY 00.99802 1336363 13.5 2.7 00.99802 53469219 < 0.4	SAMPLE NUM ANALYSIS RESULT UNCERTAINTY UNITS 00.99802 1336363 13.5 2.7 UG/SAMPLE 00.99802 53469219 < 0.4	SAMPLE CERTIFIED NUM ANALYSIS RESULT UNCERTAINTY UNITS VALUE 00.99802 1336363 13.5 2.7 UG/SAMPLE 19. 00.99802 53469219 < 0.4	SAMPLE CERTIFIED VALUE NUM ANALYSIS RESULT UNCERTAINTY UNITS VALUE UNCERTAINTY 00.99802 1336363 13.5 2.7 UG/SAMPLE 19. 2. 00.99802 53469219 < 0.4	CERTIFIED SAMPLE CERTIFIED VALUE COMPLETION NUM ANALYSIS RESULT UNCERTAINTY UNITS VALUE UNCERTAINTY DATE 00.99802 1336363 13.5 2.7 UG/SAMPLE 19. 2. 7/18/90 00.99802 53469219 < 0.4	CERTIFIED SAMPLE CERTIFIED VALUE COMPLETION NUM ANALYSIS RESULT UNCERTAINTY UNITS VALUE UNCERTAINTY DATE COMMENT 00.99802 1336363 13.5 2.7 UG/SAMPLE 19. 2. 7/18/90 UNDER CONTROL 00.99802 53469219 < 0.4	CERTIFIEDSAMPLECERTIFIEDVALUECOMPLETIONNUMANALYSISRESULTUNCERTAINTYUNITSVALUEUNCERTAINTYDATECOMMENT00.99802133636313.52.7UG/SAMPLE19.2.7/18/90UNDER CONTROLMixed-Aroclor00.9980253469219< 0.4

SUMMARY OF CONTROL STATUS OF BLIND QA SAMPLES RUN WITH THIS BATCH

SAMPLE NUM	ANALYSIS	RESULT	UNCERTAINTY	UNITS	CERTIFIED VALUE	CERTIFIED VALUE UNCERTAINTY	COMPLETION DATE	COMMENT		COMPOUND - NAME
90,15871	1336363	6.4	1.3	UG/SAMPLE	8.5	0.8	7/18/90	UNDER CONTROL	Mixed-Aroclor	
90, 15871	53469219	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE			7/18/90	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1242	
90.15871	11097691	< 0.4		UG/SAMPLE			7/18/90	UNDER CONTROL	Aroclor 1254	
90.15871	11096825	6.4	1.3	UG/SAMPLE	8.5	0.8	7/18/90	UNDER CONTROL	Aroctor 1260	
\cap	()		Λ		Λ	N1				

Ner Seit 19/92

Chierbelman 7/21000

*****	*******	******	*****
HSE-9 ANALYTICAL SERVICE AGREEMENT		REQUEST-NUMBER:	10597
******	*****	*****	*****
1. PRESAMPLING CONFERENCE: Organic Section			
Program code: WA56 Task ID #:	No. Samples Expected: 0018		
Request date: 16-Jul-1990	Completion date: 13-Aug-1990		
Chain of Custody: N	Special protocol: NONE		-
Container Type: GLASS	Preservative: NONE	Storage Conditions:	REFRIGERATE
(See Memo HSE-9/88-304. Guidelines for Coll	ection and Preservation of Liquid S	Samples)	
Sample Hazards Present: NONE			
Sample Disposal: DISCARD (All hazardous	samples or TRU wastes will be ret	urned to the Customer	.)
Customer: Michael Alexander	HSE_9 SECTION LEADER: LAT		
Customer initials: MRA Customer phone:	7-0453 MS: K490 Date: 16	- Jul - 1990	

II. EMERGENCY SAMPLES: Emergency status RE	QUIRES the following approvals:		- ·····
Customer Group Leader	HSE-9 Group Leader		Date
III. SAMPLE RECEIPT		·. · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Signature <u>Eliphy</u>)- <u>A</u> (<u>A</u>)- <u>A</u> Matrix Initial SN Final SN # Received	⊇_n Date: 16-Jul-1990 Total	No. received: (8	-200
FS 00.99802 to 00.99802 1 FS 90.15862 to 90.15880 19			

Translation table of HSE-9/Customer numbers will be provided by Sample-Receiving and appear on each final data report



...

*******		***********	********	******	******	******	*****	******
	HSE-9	ANALYTICAL CH	EMISTRY RE	QUEST	*****	REQUEST	-NUMBER: 10597	*****
Program Customer	code: WA56 initials: MRA	Task ID nu Customer	umber: phone: 7-	0453	Rec MS:	uest date: K490	16-Jul-1990	·
MATRIX FS FS	Initial 00.99802 to 90.15862°°to	Final 00.99802 90:15880	÷					
Section 	Analysis 1336363	Technique GCEC	Analyst DMS	Due-date 				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

REMARKS:

MIKE WOULD LIKE PRELIMINARY RESULTS BY THE MIDDLE OF NEXT WEEK

• •

.

.

1	6-	0	Ō	0	0	7	6
---	----	---	---	---	---	---	---

Los Alamos

Los Alamos National Laboratory Los Alamos, New Mexico 87545

memorandum

τo	A. John Ahlquist, HSE-8, MS K490	
FROM	Charles D. Blackwell, HSE-1	MAIL STO
SYMBOL	HSE 8-83-794	

DATE: November 17, 1983

٩,

AIL STOP/TELEPHONE: K490

SYMBOL. HSE8-83-794

SUBJECT STRUCTURES REMOVED FROM TA-16

This report covers only those structures removed from TA-16. Listed below are structure numbers, building nomenclature, removal date, structure use and/or hazardous materials used in each area, if known.

<i>c</i> , ,		. .	Structure Use
Structure	Structure	Removal	and/or Hazardous
Number	Nomenclature	Date	Material Use
TA-16-1	Admin. Bldg.	1956	None
TA=16-2	Office	1956	None
TA-16-3	ZIA Elect. 81dg.	1956	None
TA-16-4	Inflam. Stk. Storage	1956	Var. chem.
TA-16-5	Instrument Shop	1956	None
TA-16-6	ZIA Repair Shop	1956	None
TA-16-8	ZIA Cabinet Shop	1956	None
TA-16-9	Motor Pool Dispatch Off.	1956	None
TA-16-11	Storage	1956	None
TA-16-12	Warehouse	1956	None
TA-16-14	Guard House	1956	None
TA-16-15	Laundry & Locker Room	1956	HE
TA-16-17	Plumbing Shop	1956	HE
TA-16-18*	Steam Washing House	1960	HE
TA-16-19	Pump House	1956	HE
TA-16-20	Water Pump Pit	1953	HE.
TA-16-22	Office	1961	None
TA-16-23	Storage	1951	None
TA-16-24	Analytical Lab	1968	HE
TA-16-25*	Process Bldg.	1960	HE
TA-16-26	Process Bldg.	1968	HE
TA-16-28	Water Cooling Tower	1968	None
TA-16-29	Fuel oil tank	1956	None
TA-16-30*	Magazine	1960	HE
TA-16-31*	Mach. Bldg.	1960	HE
TA-16-32*	Mach. Bldg.	1960	HE -
TA-16-33*	Mach. Bldg.	1960	HE
TA-16-34*	Magazine	1960	HE
TA-16-35*	Equipment Room	1960	HE
TA-16-36*	Steam Cleaning	1960	HE
TA-16-37*	Explosive Testing	1960	HE
TA-16-38*	Experimental casting	1960	HE

	Cont2		Structure Use
Structure	Structure	Removal	and/or Hazardous
Number	Nomenclature	Date	Material Use
TA-16-39*	Radiographic Bldg.	1960	²³⁸ U, ⁶⁰ Co, ²²⁶ Ra
TA=16-40*	Radiographic Bldg.	1960	²³⁸ U, ⁶⁰ Co, ²²⁶ Ra
TA-16-41*	Process Lab	1960	HE
TA-16-42*	Process Bldg.	1960	HE
TA-16-43*	Process Bldg.	1950	HE
TA-16-44*	Process Bldg.	1060	HE
TA-16-45*	Process Bldg.	1960	KE
TA-16-46*	Process Bldg.	1960	²³⁸ U, HE
TA-16-47*	Equipment Bldg.	1950	HE
TA-16-48*	Smoking Room	1960	2 3 8 _ل
TA-16-49*	Analytical Lab	1960	HE
TA-16-50*	Experimental Casting	1960	HE
TA-16-51*	Steam Cleaning	1960	HE
TA-16-52*	Explosive Material	1960	HΕ
TA-16-53*	Optical Equip. Storage	1960	HE
TA-16-55*	Grinding Bldg.	1960	HE
TA-16-56*	TestingLab	1960	HE
TA-16-57*	Magazine	1960	HΕ
TA-16-60	Magazine	1950	KE
TA-16-62	Magazine	1968	HE
TA-16-64	Magazine	1951	HE
TA-16-65	Magazine	1951	HE
TA-16-66*	Magazine	1960	HE
TA-16-67*	Magazine	1960	HE
TA-16-68*	Magazine	1960	HE
TA-16-69*	Magazine	1960	HE
TA-16-70*	Magazine	1960	HE
TA-16-71*	Magazine	1960	HE
TA-16-72*	Magazine	1960	HE
TA-16-74*	Magazine	1960	HE
TA-16-81*	Process Bldg. & Fan Room	1960	НE
TA-16-82	Storage	1968	HE
TA-16 83*	Laboratory	1960	HE
TA-16-84*	Magazine	1960	HE
TA-16-85	Warehouse	1947	None
TA-16-86*	Laboratory	1960	HE
TA-16-87*	Machine Shop Trailer	1960	None
TA-16-94*	Equipment & Control	1960	HE
TA-16-95*	Mach. Bldg.	1960	HE
TA-16-96*	Mach. Bldg.	1960	HE
TA-16-97*	Mach. Bldg.	1960	HE
TA-16-98*	Mach. Bldg.	1960	HE
TA-16-100*	Process Bldg.	1960	HE

\$

1

٢.

	Contd	3	Structure Use
Structure	Structure	Removal	and/or Hazardous
Number	Nomenclature	Date	Material Use
TA-16-102*.	Passageway	1960	None
TA=16-103*	Passageway	1960	None
TA-16-104*	Passaneway	1960	None
TA-16-105	Passaneway	1968	None 4
TA-16-106	Storage	1949	HF
TA-16-107	Storage	1950	
TA-16-108	Storage	1950	HE
TA-16-109	Storage	1950	HF
TA-16-110	Barricade	1968	None
TA-16-113*	Barricade	1960	None
TA-16-114*	Barricade	1960	None
TA-16-115*	Barricade	1960	None
TA-16-116*	Barricade	1960	None
TA-16-117	Barricade	1951	None
TA-16-118	Barricade	1950	- No ne
TA-16-119	Barricade	1948	None
TA-16-120*	Barricade	1960	None
TA-16-121	Barricade	1968	None
TA-16-122	Barricade	1962	None
TA-16-123	Barricade	1949	None
TA-16-124	Barricade	1949	None
TA-16-125*	Barricade	1960	None
TA-16-126*	Barricade	1960	None
TA-16-127*	Barricade	1960	None
TA-16-128*	Barricade	1960	None
TA-16-129*	Barricade	1960	None
TA-16-130	Guard House	1956	None
TA-16-131*	Guard House	1960	None
TA-16-132	Paint Shop Shed	1955	None
TA-16-133	Lumber Storage	1955	None
TA-16-134	Mess Hall	1955	None
TA-16-135	Storage Bldg.	1953	None
TA-16 136	Implement Shed	1955	None
TA-16-137	Plb. & Elect. Shop	1955	HE
TA-16-138	Blacksmith Shop	1955	None
TA-16-139	Storage Bldg.	1955	HE
TA-16-140	Storage Bldg.	1955	HE
TA-16-141	Storage Bldg.	1955	HE
TA-16-142	Fire House	1955	None
TA-16-143	Hose House	1955	None
TA-16-144	Equipment Room	1955	None
TA-16-145	Latrine	1955	None
TA-16-146	Storage	1955	HE = "

	Co	ontd4		Struct	ure Use
Structure	Structure	•	Removal	and/or Ha	azardous
Number	Nomenclature		<u>Date</u>	Material	Use
TA-16-147	Road Block		1954	None	
TA-16-148	Equip Bldg.		1968	None	
TA-16-149	Guard House		1950	None	
TA-16-150	Hose House		1958	None	
TA-16-151	Hose House		1958	None	
TA-16-152	Hose House		1958	None	
TA-16-158*	Barricade		1960	None	
TA-16-159*	Barricade		1960	None	
TA-16-160	Road Block		1956	None	
TA-16-161	Septic tank		-	None	
TA-16-162	Latrine		1971	None	
TA-16-165	Guard House		1956	None	
TA-16-166*	Passageway		1960	None	
TA-16-167	Hose House		1958	None	
TA-16-168	Manhole		1952	None	
TA-16-172	Water Storage Tank	Relocated	to TA-49-6	6 None	
TA-16-174	Septic Tank Sanitary		-	None	
TA-16-176	Sentic Tank, Sanitary		-	None	
TA - 16 - 177	Sentic Tank, Sanitary		1968	None	
TA - 16 - 179	Sentic Tank, Sanitary		-	None	
TA - 16 - 181	Tank Housing		1956	None	
TA = 16 = 182	Diesel Unit Bldg.		1956	None	
TA-16-183	Drum Storage		1968	Var.	Chem.
TA-16-184	Brum Storage		-	Var.	Chem.
TA-16-185	Drum Storage		- *	Var.	Chem.
TA-16-186	Drum Storage		-	Var.	Chem.
TA+16-187	Drum Storage		-	Var.	Chem.
TA-16-199	Drum Storage		1956	Var.	Chem.
TA-10-100 TA-16-190	Cooling Tower		1960	None	onem
TA-10-109	Drum Storage		1955	Var.	Chem.
TA-10-190	Noco Houso		-	None	onem
TA-16-100	Rose nouse Bosenvo		-	None	
TA-16 211	Reserve	Palacate	d to TA-6-5	0 None	
1A-10 ZII TA-16-212	Road Block	Pelocate	d to TA-15-	215 None	
TA-10-212	Cooling Towon	Refucate	1957	None	
TA-10-202	Cooling lower Septio Tark		-	None	
TA-10-2/2	Septic lank		-	HF	
TA-16-2/3	Dosing Chamber		·	None	
IA-10-2/4	DISTRIDUTION BOX		1062	None	
IA-16-346	KOAG BIOCK		1060	NUNE	
1A-16-347	KOAD BIOCK		1060	None	
IA-16-348	ROAD BLOCK		1070	None	
TA-16-384	Keserve		19/0	None	
TA-16-393	Filter Bed		1964	HE	

	Contd5		Itructure Use
Structure	Structure	Removal	as i or Hazardous
Number	Nomenclature	Date	Caterial Use
TA-16-396	Latrine	1968	Cone
TA-16-397	Road Block	1960	lione
TA-16-403	Reserve	1968	`.one
TA-16-464	Magazine	1966	Ξ
TA-16-475	Office & Shop Bldg.	1951	ione
TA-16-479	Storage Bldg.	1951	- <u> </u>
TA-16-480	Experimental Chamber	1950	≟≄ðU, HE
TA-16-481	Magazine	1951	÷E.
TA-16-482	Storage Bldg.	1951	lone
.TA-16-483	Barricade	1951	tione
TA-16-485	Road Block	1951	lione
TA-16-486	Septic Tank	1951	None
TA-16-487	Transformer Sta.	1951	lione
TA-16-488	Magazine	1951	ήE
TA-16-490*	Laboratory Bldg.	1960	2 3 ^ع ل
TA-16-491*	Hutment	1960	2.3.50
TA-16-492*	Hutment	1960	233 <u>0</u>
TA-16-493*	Magazine	1960	HE
TA-16-494*	Magazine	1960	
TA-16-495*	Hutment	1960	2380
TA-16-496*	Hutment	1960	2380
TA-16-497*	Magazine	1960	$ \mathbf{F} = 1 + \mathbf{S} ^{12}$
TA-16-498*	Hutment	1960	2339
TA-16-499*	Hutment	1960	233 j
TA-16-500*	Hutment	1960	238 ₁₁
TA-16-501	Guard House	1950	tione
TA - 16 - 502	Steam Plant	1960	llone
TA-16-503	Radiation Barricade	1960	None
TA-16-504	Sentic Tank Sanitary	1960	tione
TA-16-505*	Passanoway	1960	tione
TA-16-506	Manholo Steam	1968	llone
TA = 16 = 500	Sump nit Chem	1960	Var Chem
TA-16 508	Manholo Wator	1968	Hone
TA-16-500	Manholo Steam	1968	tione
TA-16-510*	Switch Boy	1960	None
TA-10-510*	Switch DOX Manholo Stoam	1969	Hono
TA-10-511 TA-16-512	Hannole, Sleam	1069	lione
1A-10-012 TA-16-510	Dand Block	1051	Nono
TA-16.501	RUAU DIOCK Tark Stand	1040	aune Mono
1A-10-521	lank Stand	1045	HONE
1A-10-522	blag. No. 3	1945	500 115 D -
IA-10-523		1945	HL, BC
1A-16-524	Pit, élect.	1945	None
IA-16-556	Road Block	1951	None

1

z/5**4)**

·~._

۰,

		Contd6		Structure Use
Structure	Structure		Removal	and/or Hazardous
Number	Nomenclature		Date	Material Use
				<u></u>
TA-16-557	Road Block		1956	None
TA-16-566	Transformer Sta		1959	None
TA-16-567	Transformer Sta		1966	None
TA-16-574	Transformer Sta		1966	None
TA-16-575	Transformer Sta		1966	None
TA-16-576	Transformer Sta	Relocated	to TA-15-20)6 None
TA-16-577	Transformer Sta		1960	None
TA-16-578	Transformer Sta		1960	None
TA-16-570	Transformer Sta		1960	None
TA-16-580	Transformer Sta		1966	None
TA-16-581	Transformer Sta		1966	None
TA-10-501 TA-16-582	Transformer Sta		1960	None
TA-10-502	Transformer Sta		1960	None
TA-10-505	Transformer Sta		1966	None
TA-10-004	Manholo Industrial	Waste	-	HE
TA-10-000	Manhole, Industrial Manhole, Brainage	habee	-	HE
TA 16 000	Mahholo Elect		1972	None
TA 16.000	Manhole Flect		1972	None
TA-10-009	Guard House	Relocated	to TA-18-11	2 None
TA-10-1000	Guard House	Relocated	to TA-1-288	None
TA 16-1070	Manhole Steam		-	None
TA 16-1093	Manhole Steam		1951	None
TA 16 1000	Manhole Steam			None
TA 16-1084	Poserve		1970	None
TA 16 1097	Reserve		1970	None
TA 16 1000	Reserve		1970	None
TA-10-1090	Oil Switch		1966	None
TA-10-1101	Oil Switch		1966	None
TA 16 1102	Oil Switch		1966	None
TA-10-1103	Doum Stopage		-	Var Chem.
TA 16 1104	Drum Storage		-	Var. Chem
TA 16 1105	Drum Storage		-	Var. Chem.
TA-10-1100	Drum Storage		_	Var. Chem.
IA-10 1107	Drum Storage		-	Var. Chem.
TA-10-1100	Drum Storage		1956	Var. Chem.
TA-10-1109	Drum Storage		1958	Var. Chem.
TA 16 1111	Drum Storage		1968	Var. Chem.
1A-10-1111 TA 16 1120	Ustan Tank		1949	None
TA-10-1130	Water Tank		1949	None
IA-10-1131	Waler lank Sophia Tool		1956	None
IA-10-1132	Septic Lank	Polocated +	0 TA-21-169	None
IA-10-1133	Though (Packat Mac	hing Fac 1	- IN-CI-100	HF
IA-10-1130	Marbala (Crasse Was	inny (ac.)	_	HF
14-10-113/	mannore (Grease in	ah)	-	

,

.

۱,

Structure Number	Structure Nomenclature	Contd7 Removal Date	Structure Use and/or Hazardous Material Use
TA-16-1138	Fuel Tank	-	None
TA-16-1139	Fuel Tank	· –	None
TA-16-1140	Fuel Tank	1956	None
TA-16-1141	Guard Tower	1946	None

* The structures marked this way were burned in place in January or February of 1960. The remaining debris was disposed of in some unknown method.

CDB:mlk

16-000114

S. E. Russo, Group Loader, Mag-3

March 15, 1960

Charles D. Blackwell, Alt. Leader General Monitoring Section, N-1

CONTAMINATION MUNYEY, 24-16

X-1

In regard to your request of Marsh 14, 1960, to furnish radioactive contamination elearance of the below listed structures, we have checked into the past history of these structures and find they have never been used in conjunction with radioactive material. Therefore, they may be considered as free from all types of radioactive materials and subject to approval of Groups I-3 and H-5, may be released for further assignment.

Structure Number	Description
TA-16-174	Septic tank (sanitary)
TA-16-508	Manhole (water)
24-16-509	Manhole (steam)
74-16-511	Manhole (steam)
TA-16-518	Underground tank (oil)
TA-16-108 4	Manhole (steam)

Charles & Blackmell

Charles D. Blackwell

008/el

ce: Dean Meyer, N-1 Roy Neider, N-3 Esrry Schulte, N-5 File-Correct OFFICE MENON

S. E. Russo, Group Leader, ENG-3

THRU : Dean D. Meyer, Group Leader, H-1

FROM : Carl Buckland, Leader, General Monitoring Section, H-1

SUBJECT: RADIOACTIVE CONTAMINATION SURVEY: S-SITE STRUCTURES, TA-16

SYMBOL : H-1

16-000131

As requested in your memo of July 5, 1967, the following structures, including exposed and accessible outside utility lines, have been monitored by members of this Section and found to be free of any detectable radioactive contamination.

Structure	Description
Number	and and a start of the start of
TA-11-16	Tank, storage
TA-11-17	Tank, storage
TA-11-18	Latrine
TA-16-174	Tank, septic
TA-16-177	Tank, septic
TA-16-183	Drum storage
TA-16-198	Hose house
TA-16-272	Tank, septic
TA-16-273	Dosing chamber
TA-16-274	Distribution box
TA-16-396	Latrine
TA-16-431	Tank, septic
TA-16-521	Platform
TA-16-575	Transformer station (concrete pad onl
TA-16-1111	Drum storage
TA-16-1138	Tank, fuel
TA-16-1139	Tank, fuel

*Has been removed, but area was monitored and found clean.

Also monitored were the following items which have no structure numbers including miscellaneous debris:

1) Six concrete piers, which formerly supported escape ramps, located around Building 16-27, TA-16.

2) Two underground gasoline tanks, fuel lines and pump bases, located northwest of Building 16-10, TA-16. 3) Underground gasoline tank located 6 feet south of Building

Carl Buckland Radin + Conton Survey

SATE JULY 10.

1967

CB/el cc: File Roy Reider, H-3 H. F. Schulte, H-5 W. R. Kennedy, H-6

16-200, TA-16.

LININITY - Jac.

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

Date: 02-May-1995 05:55am MST From: Postmaster@vega.jci.lanl.gov Postmaster@vega.jci.lanl.gov@S Dept: Tel No:

TO: COOK PAULA T

معجبي

(COOK_PAULA T@A1)

Subject: Undeliverable Mail

Bad address -- <carmechial_j@lanl.gov> Error -- Address refused by receiver: <carmechial_j@lanl.gov> (550 <carmechial_j Bad address -- <Martin_b@lanl.gov> Error -- Address refused by receiver: <Martin_b@lanl.gov> (550 <Martin_b@lanl.go Bad address -- <Buksa_m@lanl.gov> Error -- Address refused by receiver: <Buksa_m@lanl.gov> (550 <Buksa_m@lanl.gov>

Start of returned message

Received: with SMTP-MR; Tue, 2 May 1995 06:52:13 MST MR-Received: by mta VEGA; Relayed; Tue, 02 May 1995 06:52:13 -0700 (MST) Alternate-recipient: prohibited Date: Tue, 2 May 1995 06:50:39 MST From: PAULA COOK 7-7098 <COOK PAULA T@A1.JCI.LANL.GOV> Subject: FWD: TA-16 Drilling To: carmechial_j@lanl.gov, Martin_b@lanl.gov, Buksa_m@lanl.gov Message-id: <E142VSY9T9DC*/R=VEGA/R=A1/U=COOK PAULA T/@MHS> MIME-version: 1.0 Content-type: MULTIPART/MIXED; BOUNDARY-"Boundary (ID Pja6pUnWxmTlZG2JDy6C9Q)" Posting-date: Tue, 2 May 1995 06:52:00 MST Importance: normal Priority: normal UA-content-id: E14ZVSY9T9DC-X400-MTS-identifier: [;31256020505991/58393@VEGA] Al-type: MAIL Hop-count: 0

--Boundary (ID Pja6pUnWxmTlZG2JDy6C9Q) Content-type: TEXT/PLAIN

For your information

--Boundary (ID Pja6pUnWxmTlZG2JDy6C9Q) Content-type: MESSAGE/RFC822

Date: Sun, 30 Apr 1995 12:25:05 MST Subject: TA-16 Drilling Sender: PAULA COOK 7-7098 <COOK_PAULA_T@A1.JCI.LANL.GOV> To: ROBERT GEORGIEFF <GEORGIEFF ROBERT_K@A1.JCI.LANL.GOV> Cc: WILBERT HOBBS <HOBBS_WILBERT@A1.JCI.LANL.GOV>, DON MCCOY <MCCOY_DON_S@A1.JCI.LANL.GOV>, Jeff Carmechical <"PAPER MAIL"@A1.JCI.LANL.GOV>, Brad Martin <"PAPER MAIL"@A1.JCI.LANL.GOV>, Margo Buksa <"PAPER MAIL"@A1.JCI.LANL.GOV> Message-id: <E952VSWIAFQV*/R=VEGA/R=A1/U=COOK_PAULA_T/@MHS> Content-type: TEXT/PLAIN Delivery-date: Sun, 30 Apr 1995 12:48:00 MST

16-LODDOC

\$2\$DIA4:[108492.A1.OA\$TEMP]CO0001061.LIS;1

2-MAY-1995 08:09 Page 2

Posting-date: Sun, 30 Apr 1995 12:48:00 MST Importance: normal Al-type: MAIL

Robert,

On Friday, April 28, 1995, we moved to the other boring after losing core bit in the first boring on Wednesday. We drilled using 7-1/2 inch auger 30 feet and then begin air coring. I never got any LEL readings from the TMX 410 at any point in drilling. We started our PID sampling at 55 feet. The following is readings recieved with the MSA Gas Dectector (Photon).

55 feet 2300 PID reading 60 feet 2068 PID reading 65 feet 1908 PID reading

The samples at 65 feet still smelled of fuel and as can see by the readings. It looked as though we may need to go deeper than the 75 feet at th time and so Carolyn Cooper from Geotest gave me a field estimate of \$1537.50 t go 100 foot depth. She contacted Pat Byer and recieved an ok of this price wi him. I then contacted Margo and told her the situation and asked if they woul go the additional cost for 100 foot depth. After she consulted with Brad, he gave the go ahead for the additional 100 feet. I also contacteed the LANL Buy and explained the situation to Alice Travis. She said to write a justificatio and then to go ahead. However, they had difficultly getting the sampler to release on the next run of 5 feet. They then pulled the core stem up to see what the problem was and lost the core drill along with 10 feet of stem. We h to abondon this hole after they tried to retrieve it twice. The field crew called Pat and explained the situation. Pat talked to me and said that it wou be a while before they could get another piece. We come off site at 6:30 p.m. Tuesday I will contact Pat and get some firm information.

I will be out of the office on Monday, however, if you need to contact me my home phone is 662-2510. If not, I will contact you on Tuesday. Would y please forward this information to Jeff, Brad, and Margo. Margo's fax is 5-4632, her number is 7-3189. Thanks and see you Tuesday.

Paula

--Boundary (ID Pja6pUnWxmTl2G2JDy6C9Q)--

End of returned message

Margo, Sue attempted to sende E-mail	Post-ite Fax Note 7671 Date 72/95 #2065 2 To Margo Buksa From Paula Cook Co./Dept. Co. Phone # 5-4632 Phone # Fax # 2-3189 Fax #
j none of them work-	sill Call you later today or
 Topefully on any	formorrow with uppelar Ocula

16-000603

Additional Subsurface Exploration and Laboratory Analysis Service Station Building #195 S-Site, TA-16 Los Alamos National Laboratory Los Alamos, New Mexico

Geo-Test Job No. 1-50203

Prepared For: Johnson Controls Inc. P.O. Box 50 Los Alamos, New Mexico 87544

Prepared by: Geo-Test, Inc. 8904 Washington Street NE Albuquerque, New Mexico 87113

O-IEST

Copyright • 1995, GEO-TEST, INC

DEO-IEST	March 13, 1995
ļ	Ms. Paula T. Cook EMCM Johnson Controls Inc.
	P.O. Box 50 Los Alamos, New Mexico 87544
	Re: Additional Subsurface Exploration and Laboratory Analysis, Service Station Building # 195, S-Site, TA-16, Los Alamos National Laboratory, Los Alamos, New Mexico, Geo-Test Job No. 1-50203.
	Dear Ms. Cook:
	Geo-Test, Inc. is pleased to provide the enclosed data summary report. The report presents the procedures and findings of the additional subsurface exploration and laboratory analysis of soil samples from the referenced site.
	The report includes data from our subsurface exploration, soil sampling, field screening of soil samples, and laboratory analysis. This report completes the tasks described in the Los Alamos National Laboratory purchase order
•	#AP40/SMLS-J8 dated January 18, 1995 prepared by Ms. Terry Cde Baca.
	#AP46/SMLS-J8 dated January 18, 1995 prepared by Ms. Terry Cde Baca. The following report has been prepared by the undersigned. It has been a pleasure to serve you on this project and we look forward to providing services to you in the future. Should there be any questions concerning this report, please feel free to call me at (505) 857-0933.
	 #AP46/SMLS-J8 dated January 18, 1995 prepared by Ms. Terry Cde Baca. The following report has been prepared by the undersigned. It has been a pleasure to serve you on this project and we look forward to providing services to you in the future. Should there be any questions concerning this report, please feel free to call me at (505) 857-0933. Sincerely, GEO-TEST, INC.
GEO-TEST, INKC. 1220 PARKWAY DRIVE SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87505 (505) 11 Juni	#AP40/SMLS-J8 dated January 18, 1995 prepared by Ms. Terry Cde Baca. The following report has been prepared by the undersigned. It has been a pleasure to serve you on this project and we look forward to providing services to you in the future. Should there be any questions concerning this report, please feel free to call me at (505) 857-0933. Sincerely, GEO-TEST, INC. John R. Dickey, E.I. Environmental Services Manager
GEO-TEST, INC. 1220 PARKWAY DRIVE SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87505 (505) 471-1101 FAX (506) 471-2245 8004 WASHINGTON, NE	#AP40/SMLS-J8 dated January 18, 1995 prepared by Ms. Terry Cde Baca. The following report has been prepared by the undersigned. It has been a pleasure to serve you on this project and we look forward to providing services to you in the future. Should there be any questions concerning this report, please feel free to call me at (505) 857-0933. Sincerely, GEO-TEST, INC. John R. Dickey, E.I. Environmental Services Manager attachment
GEO-TEST, INC. 1220 PARKWAY DRIVE SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87505 (505) 471-1101 FAX (506) 471-2245 8904 WASHINGTON, NE ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO 87113 (505) 857-0933 FAX (505) 857-0803	#AP46/SMLS-J8 dated January 18, 1995 prepared by Ms. Terry Cde Baca. The following report has been prepared by the undersigned. It has been a pleasure to serve you on this project and we look forward to providing services to you in the future. Should there be any questions concerning this report, please feel free to call me at (505) 857-0933. Sincerely, GEO-TEST, INC. John R. Dickey, E.I. Environmental Services Manager attachment copies to: Addressee (3)

CONTENTS

ŕ ,

		TABLE OF CC	DIATEN12	PAGE
	1.0	INTRODUCTION		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	2.0	SUBSURFACE EXPLORATION FIELD SCREENING	I, SOIL SAMPLIN	G, AND 1
	3.0	LABORATORY ANALYSIS		4
	APP	ENDICES		
	Boriu Chai	ng Logs	Reports	APPENDIX A APPENDIX B
		. .		
	{			
			, ?	
а 2 19 - 2				
			Copyright # 195	95, GEO-TEST, INC.
·				
Deo-Iest				-
	t		دی د منه برمین منابعین د	ا مى مىلىدى

ŧ

٠١ **.** .

---- · · · : :------

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Geo-Test has conducted additional subsurface exploration and laboratory analysis of soil samples from Service Station Building #195, S-Site, TA-16 at Los Alamos National Laboratory. The work was conducted to obtain additional data to evaluate the presence of gasoline in subsurface soils and volcanic tuff at the gasoline service station.

Geo-Test's scope of services for the contract included the following:

- Additional subsurface exploration to obtain soil samples for field screening and laboratory analysis,
- Field screening of soil samples,
- Laboratory analysis of soil samples, and
- Preparation of a data summary report.

2.0 SUBSURFACE EXPLORATION, SOIL SAMPLING, AND FIELD SCREENING

To develop additional data to evaluate the presence of gasoline compounds in the volcanic tuff, one boring (Boring 1-A) was advanced on February 6, 1995. This boring was offset from Boring 1, originally drilled on September 28, 1994. Original and subsequent boring locations were selected by personnel from Johnson Controls Inc. (JCI). Boring 1-A was advanced with a truck-mounted CME Modified 55 drill rig using 7¼ inch diameter, continuous flight, hollow-stem auger. As Boring 1 was originally sampled to a depth of 35 feet, soil samples were to be obtained from Boring 1-A beginning at a depth of 35 feet and every 5 feet thereafter until the boring was to be terminated at a depth of 50 feet.

Boring 1-A encountered refusal to auger drilling on a subterranean structure at a depth of 33 feet. Soil samples for field screening were obtained from drill cuttings from the boring. No soil samples were obtained for laboratory analysis. Boring 1-A was subsequently abandoned.

Copyright • 1995, GEO-TEST, INC.

JEO-IEST

Johnson Controls Inc.	March 13, 1995
Geo-Test Job No. 1-50203	Page 2

On February 13, 1995 original Boring 1 was re-entered and deepened (Boring 1-B). Boring 1-B was advanced with a truck-mounted CME Modified 55 drill rig using 5¼ inch diameter, continuous flight, hollow-stem auger. Initially, this boring was to be sampled with a 5 feet long, continuous sample barrel inserted into the hollow-stem auger. However, due to the hardness of the volcanic tuff and poor sample recovery with the continuous sampler, two inch diameter split spoon samplers were used instead to obtain discrete soil samples. Soil samples were to be obtained from Boring 1-B beginning at a depth of 35 feet and every 5 feet thereafter until the boring was to be terminated at a depth of 50 feet. When the appropriate depth was reached, the split spoon sampler was passed down the hollow-stem and the sampler was driven into the underlying volcanic tuff to obtain a relatively undisturbed sample. However, adequate discrete samples could not be obtained due to the hardness of the tuff. Consequently, to obtain a sufficient sample, sample intervals were over-drilled, drill cuttings were allowed to accumulate in the bottom of the boring, and the split-spoon sampler was used to obtain a composite sample of the volcanic tuff within each sample interval. Composite soil samples were obtained from 35 to 40 feet and 40 to 44 feet. The composite sample from 40 to 44 feet was submitted for laboratory analysis. Refusal to auger drilling was encountered in hard volcanic tuff at a depth of 44 feet in Boring 1-B.

To avoid possibly introducing any outside contamination, the drilling and sampling tools were cleaned prior to the drilling operations. The drilling tools were cleaned with a high pressure hot water washer, while the sampling tools were washed by hand with a detergent solution, rinsed with water, and finally rinsed with distilled water. The sampling tools were cleaned between samples to control cross contamination. Clean auger was used for each boring.

Color, texture, and odor of volcanic tuff were observed and noted by the field geologist. Samples along with drill cuttings were visually classified to maintain a geologic/lithologic log of borings. Boring logs are presented in Appendix A.

JEO-JEST

Copyright @ 1995, GEO-TEST, INC.

Johnson Controls Inc.	March 13, 1995
Geo-Test Job No. 1-50203	Page 3

The borings generally encountered sandy clay, clayey sand, and welded ash flow tuff. The clay and sand contained variable amounts of tuff. The clay has a low to medium plasticity and is medium stiff to hard, moist to wet, and brown. The sand is loose, moist and dark brown. Beneath the clay, the borings encountered tuff. The tuff was found to be hard/competent, non-plastic, and gray/purple.

"Highly contaminated" soils (i.e. soils saturated with gasoline as defined by the NMED USTB regulations) or "oil sheens" were not observed in samples or cuttings from the borings. Petroleum odors were noted in samples from the borings.

Samples to be submitted for laboratory analysis were placed immediately after opening the split spoon sampler into pre-cleaned 4 ounce glass jars, sealed with a teflon lined lid, custody sealed, labeled, placed in a cooler with an ice pack, and transported to the laboratory. A chain-of-custody record was maintained and accompanied the transfer of the samples from the environmental technician to the laboratory. A copy of the chain-of-custody record is presented in Appendix B.

Head space tests for aromatic hydrocarbons and volatile organic compounds (VOCs) from gasoline were conducted on cuttings from the borings and the volcanic tuff samples obtained. The head space tests were conducted with a MSA Photon photoionization detector (PID). The instrument was calibrated using an isobutylene standard to be sensitive to VOCs from petroleum fuels. The PID determines the presence of vapors in soils from VOCs and provides relative readings of the concentrations. This evaluation was meant to be an infield indicator and not an absolute measure of the VOC concentration present.

Head space tests were conducted by placing a portion a split spoon sample in a clean 1 pint glass jar, leaving approximately 2 inches of air space in the top of the jar, and then sealing the jar with aluminum foil and a lid. The sample was then warmed. After approximately 5 minutes of warming, the sample was shaken and the foil was pierced with the PID probe to immediately screen the contents.

Copyright • 1995, GEO-TEST, INC.
Johnson Controls Inc. Geo-Test Job No. 1-50203 March 13, 1995

Page 4

Head space tests found vapor concentrations in samples of auger cuttings from Boring 1-A ranging from no instrument response (0.0 ppm) to 2,249 ppm (parts per million). Vapor concentrations in samples of auger cuttings from Boring 1-B ranged from no instrument response to 515 ppm. Composite samples from depths of 35 to 40 feet in Boring 1-B had vapor concentrations of 2,689 ppm and 1,485 ppm. The composite sample from 40 to 44 feet had a vapor concentration of 2,101 ppm. Results of field screening are also presented on the boring logs (Appendix A).

3.0 LABORATORY ANALYSIS

The soil sample from Boring 1-B at 40 to 44 feet was analyzed for benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene, and total xylenes (BTEX) according to EPA Method 8020 by Hall Environmental Analysis Laboratory in Albuquerque. The analysis found the following:

> Benzene - 1.5 ppm Toluene - 47 ppm Ethylbenzene - 33 ppm, Total Xylenes - 260 ppm

> > Copyright • 1995, GEO-TEST, INC.

(50	5) (57-09	3		·	· · ·							Chkd. By:	JRD
ori	ng (. .	GE0-1	EST, INC.		1	<u>c</u>	asing	<u>Sampler</u>		Ground	water	Readings	
or,		- 34-	7			Тур	•		<u>\$\$</u>	Date	Time	Depth	Casing	Stab. Ti
11	Rep.	÷	/	RT		I.D	./o.D		1.4/2.0	ļ	↓		· · ·	ļ
te	Sta	rt 42	16195	End	2/6/95	Harr	mer Wt		140					ļ
×	tion			offset of	#1	Hara	mer Fall				└───┤			<u> </u>
. E	lev.			Datum		Othe	er	7.25*	AZH DO	<u></u>	<u> </u>		, <u> </u>	ļ
	1		Sa	mple Info	rmation	·	1	Sar	mple .		Unifica Soil	I R	Equipmen	t Install
	ŏ		TYPE	Depth	Blows/	PID (DOD)	Desc	ription &	Classificatio	n	Class	K		
-	77	XU.	III/E	1 (11.)		(Ppul)	SAND, CL	5* Aspi avey, moi:	halt — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —	city,	sc	-+-	1	
ļ	\mathcal{N}		┟───	╂╌─╌╴			ргома				·····			
			{	<u>{ </u>			1			1				
	\mathscr{D}		╂═╍═┈╌	┼───	·		1				•			• •
				 		·	1	•		•		1	·	
5		1	AC	0-5		0.0	CLAY, Wet	t, plastic	e, dark broun		CL			
				<u> </u>				•	- ·-				1	
				<u> </u>			1							
Į				┢────	∽									
		2	10	5.10	<u> </u>	27 8	{						Į	
2										1				
					<u>}</u> }		MAY EI	ltv elink	utiv moist [ou		ĊI.			
		38	Ar:	10-13	<u>├</u> ───┤	136.0	plasticit	ty, dark b	n norse, co. Srown	-				
		2.3									•	- {		
		-	- C.											
þ													ł	
K	7	-149 <u>18</u> 5					1							
þ	1	4 %	AC	13-18		1981	GRAVEL S	sandv cla	VAV		60		[
Ľ	1	<u>اللہ</u> ہے۔			┝╶╌╺┤			,,,,					1	
ł	7				<u> </u>									
ľ	1					· · ·				1				
Ķ	4			6. S.		~~~~~							ļ	
C	\$	5至	AC 🕅	18-23	}	2249	CLAY, san plasticit	ndy, sligh Ty, brown	tly moist, low	•]	sc]	
ĥ	4		.	Ani ²		{			·					
b	li l			ta ri t i	{								ļ	
	K[6	د: عد:	23-26		1295							1	
H	 [NHAR:	_		~	TUFF, cem	wnted, de	nse, non plast	tic,]	
	μE	37	1				purple wi	th staine	d spots	-				•
1	įΕ									· [Į	ł	
1	AI I			1200					•					
ALTERNAL AND	IDEED		tit sp distur oer cu ntinuo	oon sampl bed ring ttings US sample	er r		No Gi	roundwater	r Encountered				: :	
	AX45	1001 (Dec	5. A.									<u>. </u>	.	۱
êci din	fic	tion	lines	represent	approxim	ate bound	aries betwee	en soft to	pes, transiti	ons may b	e gradual	. Vate	er level	

ŧ

1

ł

NGTON NE E, NEV ME 0933 	XICO 871	13					
0933 Sa				LOS ALAMOS, NEW MEXIC	20	_	File No. 1-50203
\$a	and the second se		<u>. </u>				Chkd. By: JRD
L Sample Information			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Sample	Unified Soil	R	Equipment Install
O. TYPE	Depth (Ft.)	Blows/	PID (pomu)	Description & Classification	Llass	S	
AC	26-33	[1295				
		· .				ł	
		Į				-	
	<u> </u>	ļ		AUGER REFUSAL AT 33 FEET SAMPLER REFUSAL AT 33 FEET			
	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	├ ───┤	•			
		╉╾╌╌╌					}
_ 		┼╾╌╼┅	┟╍╌──┤		1		
	┼	<u>†∽</u>	┟────┤				
	1	<u>†</u>			ļ		
-	1	1		•		}	
				· ••			
			·			Į	ł
							ļ
		<u> </u>]			{	ł
·		<u> </u>				ł	
	}	<u> </u>	┝━━━━━┼				}
	<u> </u>	 	<u>├</u> ─────┤				
	 -	┨╼╌╼╴╷	<u>├</u>				ł
	<u> </u>	†		,			1
		†					1
	ļ					1	{
_	<u> </u>					1	
2	<u>.</u>	<u> </u>					1
	<u> </u>	<u> </u>					
997) 2021	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	┝┯╼╾┛				1
NASE Note in Alexandre	╉╍╍╍╼╍	<u> </u>	┝╼╼╼┥			ł	
	 -	<u> </u>					}
	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u>├-</u>				
*	t	1					ł
	<u> </u>	1					ļ ·
at the second							
		AC 26-33 Image: Strate Stra	AC 26-33 Image: Strategy of the strategy of th	AC 26-33 1479 Image: Second Secon	AC 26-33 1279 AUGER REFUSAL AT 33 /EET SAPLER REFUSAL AT 33 /EET SAPLER REFUSAL AT 33 /EET	AC 22-33 1272 AUGER REFUSAL AT 33 FEET SAMPLER REFUSAL AT 33 FEET	AC 25-33 1472 Auder REFUSAL AT 33 /FET SAMPLER REFUSAL AT 33 /FET

- - -

ļ .

İ 1

ł ; :

> ÷ I.

.

7-0933 c_ c	RT RT End -entry of Datum	2/13/95	Туре [.]. Хапто Напто	<u>Casing</u> /0.D	Sampler 55 1.4/2.0	Date	Ground	water R Depth	Chkd. By: leadings Casing	JRD Stab. Ti
. <u>GEO-</u> 	RI End -entry of Datum	2/13/95	Туре [.]. Хапо Напо	<u>Casing</u> /0.D	Sampler ss 1.4/2.0	Dete	Ground	water R Depth	Leadings Casing	Stab. Ti
t 2/13/92 Re	RI i End -entry of Datum	2/13/95 #1	Туре Г.D., Хамо Напо	/0.D	<u>ss</u> <u>1.4/2.0</u>	Dete	Time	Depth	Casing	Stab. Ti
t 2/13/95 Re	RI End entry of Datum	2/13/95 #1	I .D ., Xanto Hamo	/0.D. er Vt.	1.4/2.0		┽╧╧╋		Leasing	jacalūs ti
t 2/13/95 Re	End entry of Datum	2/13/95 #1		er Vt.	1.9/2.0	T				
Re	entry of Datum	کر/دا /ع #1	namo Hamo				┽╾╼╉			<u> </u>
Ke	Datum	# I	18110	or fall	TO	}	╉╾╼╼╉			<u>}</u>
	nai mu		 	еі Гаці <u> </u>			╉╼╼╌╂		+	}
. S						<u> </u>	<u></u>	-1-1		<u> </u>
<u> </u>	ample into			Si Danalasta	афія Населення		Soil	Ĭ.	cquipmen	L Install
No. TYPE	(Ft.)	BLOWS/	(ppn)		E CLASSITICATIO	"	LIASS	Ś		
1 AC	0-2	1	0.0	Approxit	mately 3⁼ Aspha	<u>к</u> Т				
	-1	1				1				
								1		
	+	1				ľ			l	
		1				·				
2 AC	5-7	<u>}</u>								
	+	<u> </u>	0.0			}			1	
		;							•	
		╏────┤								
<u></u>		┟╾╍╼╼┥					·			
3 40	10-12	<u>†</u>				1				
	+	┼╍╴╌╼┥	0_0			1			}	
	- 	┼╌╌┤				1			}	
		 		SAND, clayey, moi dark brown	st, non plastic	c, :	SC			
		1				.				
4 AC	15-17	<u> </u>				1				•
	+	<u>† −−− †</u>	0.0			1			1	
	+	<u></u> †────-{				{			ł	
	+	†	{			(· ·	
	+	╀───┤	{			··· ·]			Į	
5 AC	20-22	<u>├</u> ──┤	<u> </u>			.]				
		<u> </u>	5.0)	
	1	<u>├</u>								
ales.	+	<u>├──</u> ┤				· [
	1	tł				[l	
6 AC	25-27	<u>├</u>		······································						
	1	<u>├</u> ───┤	20.0	TUFF, clayey sand	ly mix, wet.					
Network 1	1	1		gray-purple'					1	
5 4.			1							
sense i Elia					·					
	1 AC 2 AC 3 AC 3 AC 5 AC 5 AC	1 AC 0-2 2 AC 5-7 2 AC 5-7 3 AC 10-12 3 AC 10-12 4 AC 15-17 5 AC 20-22 5 AC 20-22 5 AC 20-22	1 AC 0-2 2 AC 5-7 2 AC 5-7 3 AC 10-12 3 AC 10-12 4 AC 15-17 5 AC 20-22 4 AC 15-17 5 AC 20-22 4 AC 15-17	1 AC 0-2 0.0 2 AC 5-7 1 2 AC 5-7 0.0 3 AC 10-12 0.0 3 AC 10-12 0.0 4 AC 15-17 0.0 5 AC 20-22 5.0 6 AC 25-27 0.0	1 AC 0-2 0.0 2 AC 5-7 - 2 AC 5-7 - 3 AC 10-12 - - - 0.0 - - 0.0 - - 0.0 - - 0.0 - - 0.0 - - 0.0 - - 0.0 - - 0.0 - - - - - - - - 0.0 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	1 AC 0-2 0.0 2 AC 5-7 1 2 AC 5-7 1 3 AC 10-12 0.0 3 AC 10-12 0.0 4 AC 15-17 0.0 5 AC 20-22 5.0 5 AC 20-22 5.0	1 AC 0-2 0.0 2 AC 5-7 i 2 AC 5-7 i 3 AC 10-12	1 AC 0-2 0.0 2 AC 5-7 i 2 AC 5-7 i 3 AC 10-12 - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 - - - 0.0 - - - 0.0 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - <td>1 AC 0-2 0.0 1 AC 0-2 0.0 2 AC 5-7 1 2 AC 5-7 1 3 AC 10-12 0.0 3 AC 10-12 0.0 4 AC 15-17 0.0 5 AC 20-22 5.0 4 AC 25-27 5.0</td> <td>1 AC 0-2 0.0 2 AC 5-7 i 2 AC 5-7 i 3 AC 10-12 </td>	1 AC 0-2 0.0 1 AC 0-2 0.0 2 AC 5-7 1 2 AC 5-7 1 3 AC 10-12 0.0 3 AC 10-12 0.0 4 AC 15-17 0.0 5 AC 20-22 5.0 4 AC 25-27 5.0	1 AC 0-2 0.0 2 AC 5-7 i 2 AC 5-7 i 3 AC 10-12

D-TES	iT,	NC.					SERVICE ST	ATION BUILDIN	ig #195		Boring No.	. 1-8
.	eut	ICTON NE								-	Page 2	of
RUOU ISN J	289U	NEW M	XICO 871	13	·		LOS ALAMOS	, NEW MEXICO			File No.	1-50203
									Unified	1.	Chkd. By:	JRD
			mple Info	mation	T	•	sample		Soil	×.	coutoment	: Install
Ō	N	S. TYPE	Depth (Ft.)	BLOWS/	(ppm)	Descri			(1833	ŝ		
tπ		AC	30-32									
	F				406.0						[·	•
Hj	Γ											
	F				515						.	
.											ľ	
'III		55	35-36		2689							
			<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>						1	
	L		1	<u> </u>	ļ	}					1	
			ļ	 		TUFF, ceme	nted, dry, Yefy	dense	(·			
,	5	AC	43-55	 	1485			•	· .	.		
		0 <u>ss</u>	40-44	<u> </u>						1]	
lili	Ļ			<u> </u>	<u> </u>					1.	1	
					2101							
יייין	-		- <u>+</u>		2.01	AUCER REFU	AL AT 44 FEET			-		
5	\vdash	<u> </u>	- 	┨────								
12	·		·	<u> </u>					ĺ		ł	
1	-		+		{				ł			
			+	†	<u> </u>				1			
			1	1	1							
			1	1							{	
	Ē							• •				
	E											
			<u> </u>						ł		ļ	
				<u> </u>	i							
	L		<u> </u>	1								
		the second	<u>-</u>	ļ	ļ	ļ ·			l.	ł	Į	
		al Sala	<u> </u>	 	i						·	
		18 1993. 18 1993.	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	}				1	}	• •	
		ntes references		 	<u> </u>				l		· ·	
		an a		┼────	<u> </u>							
												
		· ·	and the	<u>†</u>	<u> </u>					}		•
	Į.			<u> </u>	<u> </u>	· ·						
	С.¢			1 <u></u>	L	L			I		L	
	53	undist.	poon samp rbed ring	ler	1 =	composite sam	ple					•
戀	ä	contin	ACCINGS IOUS Sampli Marcelon	:r	•							
4										۰.		
					·	<u> </u>					:	<u> </u>
ting	cat i hr	on lines re been s	Hoe at th	t approx ¹	imate bound under condi	aries between itions stated.	soil types, tr Fluctuations	ansitions may of groundwate	/ be gradual. er may occur (Vat	er level o factors	۲
		nose pre	sent at ti	e time i	neasurement	s were made.	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		, , ,	<u>ן</u>	Boring No.	. 1-8
in the second	in in	N.C. Barrison of the state										

.

• : .

			UN TEKECOKD				nee refer		* 5444 0		-	₩ 1 24	AIL É 03 S	NVIR m Me	OAM nteo I	ENTA IE, Su	CAN Ite P-	ALYSIS •13	51	RAT	ORY	
Clent:	Geo-	EST 5	C C B	Project Nome:								A	beque	rqua,	New	Mex	ico 87	/110				•
流道	時間期			Los ALAN	nos	5.	-5±	ΓE				50	5.88	0 .18 ()3							
Address	8904	WASH	INCTON N.E.	Project #:										Ă	ALYS	IS RE	QUES	1				
A	BUQUSI	QUE /	1m 87/13	1-:	502	203	3	<i>,</i>	·									·				
				Project Manager	;	·····		<u></u>	1		Diesel	(Yin0	Sel)							.		Ŷ
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	J.DK	:KE'	Y .		•	6	6	(Gos/	oline	+ Die									(Y or
Phone #	: .505	-857-0	09.33	Sampler: R	1~117	Y B	2. 7	FL	/802	/802	DOM	E (603	H (605			=			ļ			spoce
Fax # :	505.	-857-0	<u>7803</u>	Samples Cold?			Yes		d 602	(602	8015	+ MTB		418	olatiles	504.		PAH)	ŀ			r Heod
Dote	Time	Matrix	Sample I.D. No.	Number/Volume	Pre	eserval	live	HEAL No.	EX (Metho	EX + MTBI	H Method	EX + TPH	EX + MTBI	H (Method	1/602 VG	B (Method	ب	O (PNA or		14 1		Bubbles o
					HgCl ₂	HCI	Other			<u> </u>	<u> </u>	80	8	₽=	<u>×</u>			5		<u> </u>		N N
-1115	//:55	Barr	*18 0 40-44	1-402.	M	716	£	9502052 - 1	arepsilon	<u>-</u>		 -						┟╌╼┼				TN_
		·				ļ			ļ	<u> </u>					 	ļ						
	 	·	·		 				<u> </u>			 	 			 						
	. 			· 	 			 	<u> </u>				ļ			 	 					ļ
	 			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	 				[ļ
	 	 				 	-			<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>				<u> </u>	<u> </u>					
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	 												ļ	. 					<u> </u>
												<u> </u>										
]								
]. 			,		
		1				·	1		1					<u> </u>	Γ					· [
le:	Time:	Relinquist	hed By: (Signature)	Received	By: (S	ignatu	ne)	7	Re	norks:	4		مر بال ر	A		<u> </u>						
95	16:31	Rand	K.Tal -	2/20	F.A	all	\mathcal{M}	/														
le:	Time:	Relinquis	hed By: (Signature)	Received	By: (S	Signatu	ne)		1								,					
14/4	+ 11:26				9 ~	2	(1													•

Hall Environmental Analysis Laboratory

Hall Environmental Analysis Laboratory 2403 San Mateo NE, Suite P-13 Albuquerque, NM 87110 (505) 880-1803 2/17/95

Geo-Test, Inc. 8904 Washington St. NE Albuquerque, NM 87113

Dear Mr. John Dickey,

高なる

Enclosed are the results for the analyses that were requested. These were done according to EPA procedures or the equivalent.

Detection limits are determined by EPA methodology. No determination of compounds below these levels (denoted by the < sign) has been made.

Please don't hesitate to contact me for any additional information or clarifications.

Sincerely,

2/17/95-

Scott Hallenbeck, Lab Manager

Project: Los Alamos S-Site

2403 San Mateo N.E. Suite P-13 Albuquerque, NM 87110

Results for sample: #1B @ 40-44'

Date collected: 2/13/95	Date received: 2/14/95
Date extracted: 2/14/95	Date analyzed: 2/15/95
Client: Geo-Test, Inc.	· ·
Project Name: Los Alamos S-Site	Heal #: 9502052-1
Project Manager: John Dickey	Sampled by: R. Teel
Matrix: Non-Aqueous	

Test: EPA 8020

Compound	Amount	Units
Benzene	1.5	PPM (MG/KG)
Toluene	47	PPM (MG/KG)
Ethylbenzene	33	PPM (MG/KG)
Total Xylenes	260	PPM (MG/KG)

BFB (Surrogate) Recovery = ** %

Dilution Factor = 20

**Surrogate not recoverable due to dilution.

Results for QC: Reagent Blank

Date extracted: 2/14/95 Client: Geo-Test, Inc. Project Name: Los Alamos S-Site Project Manager: John Dickey Matrix: Non-Aqueous

Date analyzed: 2/14/95

Heal #: RB 2/14

Test: EPA 8020

Compound	<u>Amount</u>	<u>Units</u>
Benzene	<0.05	PPM (MG/KG)
Toluene	<0.05	PPM (MG/KG)
Ethylbenzene	<0.05	PPM (MG/KG)
Total Xylenes	<0.05	PPM (MG/KG)

3

BFB (Surrogate) Recovery = 94 %

Dilution Factor = 1

Results for QC: Blank Spike / Blank Spike Dup

Date extracted: 2/14/95	Date analyzed: 2/15/95	
Project Name: Los Alamos S-Site	HEAL#: BS/BSD 2/14	
Project Manager: John Dickey Matrix: Non-Aqueous	Units: PPM (MG/KG)	
		•

Test: EPA 8020

<u>Compound</u>	Sample <u>Result</u>	Amount <u>Added</u>	Matrix <u>Spike</u>	<u>MS %</u>	MS <u>Dup</u>	<u>MSD %</u>	<u>RPD</u>
Benzene	<0.05	1.00	0.98	98	0.98	98	0
Toluene	<0.05	1.00	0.99	 99	1.00	100	1
Ethylbenzene	e<0.05	1.00	0.98	98	0.99	99	1
Total Xylenes	s<0.05	3.00	2.93	98	2.97	99	1



Los Alamos

Los Alamos National Laboratory Los Alamos, New Mexico 87545

memorandum

TO:	Henry	Nunes,	FSS-6,	MS	D462
-----	-------	--------	--------	----	------

Jeff Carmichael, ESH-19 AC

DATE:

November 2, 1994

MAIL STOP/TELEPHONE:

K498/5-2505

symbol ESH-19/HSWS-94-0399

FROM:

SUBJECT: GASOLINE SPILL WASTE DRUMS AT TA-16

Ninety-four (94) drums of soil potentially contaminated with gasoline reside at the TA-16-195 gasoline station. After reviewing the Industrial Hygiene and Safety Group's (ESH-5) monitoring results, I am recommending that eighty-nine (89) drums out of the 94 drums of soil be sent to Sigma Mesa so the soil can be reused.

On October 12, 1994, ESH-5 evaluated the soil in the 94 drums to determine levels of gasoline contamination. On October 24, 1994, ESH-5 evaluated the soil in 13 drums for benzene contamination. On October 13, and 25, 1994, ESH-5 authored two memoranda on their monitoring results. Copies of the memoranda are enclosed. The October 13, 1994, memorandum discusses the monitoring results, which indicated that the soil in eighty-one (81) out of the 94 drums of soil did not contain any measurable amount of gasoline. The soil in the remaining thirteen (13) drums contained measurable amounts of gasoline.

It is my understanding that the Laboratory desires to reuse this soil. The soil will be placed on the land at Sigma Mesa prior to reuse. Placement of petroleum contaminated soil on the land is regulated by the New Mexico Solid Waste Management Regulations (SWMR-4), and to some extent, under the New Mexico Underground Storage Tank Regulations (USTR). To keep the soil from being regulated by both the SWMR-4 and the USTR, the soil to be placed on Sigma Mesa must meet the following criteria, the sum of the benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene, and xylene isomer (BTEX) concentrations must be less than 100 mg/kg, with benzene individually less than 10 mg/kg.

The sampling that occurred on October 24, 1994, was specifically designed to detect benzene concentrations in the soil contained in the 13 drums. Using a HNU photoionization detector, ESH-5's results indicate that out of the 13 drums sampled, five (5) of the drums have benzene concentrations over 10 mg/kg. Detector tubes used to detect benzene, detected a trace amount of benzene (0.5 ppm) in one drum.

Based on ESH-5's soil sampling results, I am recommending that 89 drums of soil be sent to Sigma Mesa for reuse. The other five drums, with drum numbers 21, 25, 30, 35, and 36 should be shipped to the Chemical and Mixed Waste Science Group (CST-5) to be managed as a special waste under SWMR-4. The soil should not be managed as a hazardous waste.

If you have questions, please give me a call at 665-2505.

JAC:es

٢

Enclosures

Cy: B. Hargis, ESH-5, MS K486, w/enc. B. Martin, EES-1999521-w/enc. R. Georgieff, JCI-JENV, MS A199, w/enc. HSWS Circ File



memorandum

Environment, Safety and Health Division Industrial Hygiene and Safety Group (ESH-5)

From/MS: Charles P. Richards, ESH-5 (K494) Phone/FAX: 7-3133/7-1945 Symbol: ESH-5:94-15397 Date: October 13, 1994

To/MS: Henry Nunes, FSS- (M721)

SUBJECT: GASOLINE SPILL WASTE DRUM MONITORING RESULTS AT TA-16

On October 12, 1994, ESH-5 met with JCI at TA-16 to determine the levels of gasoline contamination in the barreled soils from the gasoline station spill. Each of the barrels was opened and monitored with two different H-NU's and the drums with positive results were rechecked with indicator tubes.

Of the ninety four (94) drums tested, eleven (11) were positive for gasoline contamination and marked with orange paint on the sides and tops of the drums. Each of the drums is numbered in black indelible marker. Contamination in parts per million was written on the drum lids. The contamination measurement is for the air above the soil and not a measurement of soil contamination. Uncontaminated drums were marked ND (none detected). Below is a list of contaminated drums by number and the test results.

<u>Drum No.</u>	<u>H-NU 10.2</u>	H-NU 11.7	Detector Tube
15	10 ppm [*]	5 ppm	5 ppm
16	5 ppm [*]	1 ppm	Not detected
21	25 ppm [*]	12 ppm	15 ppm
22	18 ppm [*]	20 ppm	20 ppm
25	34 ppm	12 ppm	20 ppm
26	12 ppm	6 ppm	Not detected
30	25 ppm	15 ppm	20 ppm
35	30 ppm	17 ppm	30 ppm
36 39 44 51 54	175 ppm 35 ppm 1 ppm Not detected Not detected	44 ppm 20 ppm 7 ppm 2 ppm 2 ppm 2 ppm	50 ppm 30 ppm Not detected Not detected Not detected

¹Test were conducted at different times with each instrument. Denotes Initial Reading when drum first opened.

A complete list of all drums tested is available upon request if you need the data. The drums listed above are the only ones indicating gasoline contamination. Please let us know if you need any further assistance.

CPR:mll

Cy: Field Support Files, ESH-5 (K494) (2)

FNCPR/CPR94013.MSW

Los Alamos NATIONAL LABORATORY

memorandum

Environment, Safety and Health Division Industrial Hygiene and Safety Group (ESH-5)

SUBJECT: **TA-16 GASOLINE WASTE BARREL MONITORING RESULTS FOR** BENZENE

To/MS: Jeff Carmichael, ESH-19 (K498)

From/MS: Charles P. Richards, ESH-5 (K494

Phone/FAX: 7-3133/7-1945 Symbol: ESH-5:94-15658

Date: October 28, 1994

At your request, the thirteen (13) barrels of suspected gasoline contaminated soils were "Head Space" tested for Benzene content. The drums were tested using detector tubes having a detection range from 0.5 to 10 ppm. Each of the drums was also retested with an HNU photoionization detector for total volatile organic compounds.

The results are as follows:

Drum No.	HNU 11.7 ¹ (total VOC's)	Detector Tube ² (Benzene Specific)
15 16 21 22	0.3 0.2 14.0 8.5	ND (NOT DETECTED >.05) ND ND ND
25	12.0	ND
30	6.0 15.0	ND
35 36	22.0 23.0	ND 0.5
39 40+	6.0 ND	ND ND+ (ADDED RECHECK)
44	5.0	ND
51	3.5	ND
54	ND	ND

- 1 ESH-5 Instrument #250. This was the same 11.7 unit used for the testing performed on 10/12/94.
- 2 Drager Tube 67 28 561 Pump #37
- Notes: Temperature at 1330 to 1430 hours, 65°F +1. None of the drums showed any evidence of pressure build up, as was the case with drum number 36, on October 12, 1994, when the original survey was conducted.

CPR:eam

Field Support Files, ESH-5 (K494) (2) Cy:

F:\CPR\CPR94014.MSW

 $\| (-X) \rangle$



Date: January 31, 1995 To/MS: Karen Schultz Paige, CST-7, MS E525 From/MS: Dave McInroy, EM-ER, MS M992 Phone: 667-0819 Symbol: EM/ER:95-003

SUBJECT: INFORMATION PERTAINING TO REMOVAL OF UST ASSOCIATED WITH BUILDING TA-16-16

In response to your request, I am supplying you with information pertaining to an underground storage tank (UST) in which I oversaw the removal. The UST was located in TA-16, east of the old cafeteria building (TA-16-16).

In 1987 the Laboratory received funding to remove all abandoned USTs which historically stored petroleum products. These tanks were identified as a result of the Department of Energy's (DOE) Environmental Survey which was conducted during the same year. During this identification process the Environmental Surveillance Group (HSE-8) added UST 16-16 to the list of tanks to be removed.

The following information was recorded during the removal of the tank and was retrieved from my logbook number S11536, page 3.

- The tank contained diesel oil.
- The contents of the tank were analyzed for gross alpha, beta, gamma and tritium prior to removal. There was no detectable activity (NDA) associated with the contents of the tank. (sample number 87.00367)
- The tank was removed in August of 1987
- Prior to the removal of the vessel it was thought to measure 24 in. x 30.5 in. x 44 in.. Upon excavation it was discovered that this rectangular tank was attached to larger cylindrical tank with a volume of approximately 1000 gallons.
- The tank was found to be leaking from around the welds attaching the rectangular portion of the tank to the cylinder..
- Visually contaminated soil was removed (approx. 15 yd³) and taken to TA-54 to be land farmed.
- Clean backfill was brought in to fill the void created by the excavation of the tank and contaminated soils.

It was standard practice that the liquid from these "petroleum" tanks was picked up by recycling companies. The contents of this tank were bulked with contents of other tanks and recycled. The UST itself was cut-up and the steel was salvaged by Johnson Controls (Pan Am at the time).

KAREN SCHULTZ PAIGE JANUARY 31, 1994 EM/ER:95-M003 PAGE 2

I currently maintain photo documentation of this removal. If you should have any questions or feel that you would like or need pictures for this event, please feel free to contact me at 667-0819.

DM:lyv

Cy: Brad Martin, CST-18, MS E525 Jeff Carmichael, ESH-19, MS K498 RPF, MS M707

16-000596



Date: January 31. 1995 To/WS: Karen Schutz Paige, CST-7, MS E525 From/WS: IDave McInrcy, EM/ER, MS M992 Phone: 667-0819 Symbol: EM/ER:95-1/1004

SUBJECT: INFORMATION PERTAINING TO THE REMOVAL OF UST STRUCTURE NUMBER TA-16-196

Within this memo I hope to provide to you new or additional information pertaining to the removal of an underground storage tank (UST) located at the gas station within TA-16.

In 1987 the Laboratory received funding to remove all abandoned USTs which historically stored petroleum products. One of two leaded gasoline tanks located at the TA-16 gas station fell into this category. This tank was identified as TA-16-196.

The following information was recorded during the removal of the tank and was retrieved from my logbook, number S11536, page 3.

- At the time of removal, the UST was 35 years old.
- -The tank had estimated volume of 4,000 gallons.
- -It appeared that the tank was filled with water upon abandonment.
- -The tank was badly rusted and appeared to be leaking (the tank was still 3/4 full of water).
- -The tank was removed on September 2, 1987.
- -The contents of the tank were analyzed for gross, alpha, beta, gamma and tritium, prior to the removal. There was no detectable activity (NDA) associated with the contents of the tank. (Sample number 87.00368)
- -The contents of the tank as well as the soil adjacent to the tank were sampled for Pb using the EP tox extraction procedure. No Pb was detected associated with this sampling campaign. (Sample numbers 87.00374-87.00378)
- -Contaminated soil was removed from the site until it was no longer possible without impeding the structural integrity of the adjacent tank (197) and associated pipeline. It was decided at that time that the remaining contaminated soil would be left in place and addressed when UST 197 was removed. The contaminated soil removed from this site was taken to TA-54 to be land farmed.



KAREN SCHULTZ PAIGE JANUARY 31, 1995 EM/ER:95-M004 PAGE 2

-The contents of the UST were disposed of by the Waste Management Group (HSE-7).

-The tank was cut up, crushed and trucked to the Pan Am salvage yard and sold for scrap.

I currently maintain photo documentation of this removal. If you would like or need pictures of this event, please feel free to contact me at 667-0819.

DM/lyv

Cy:

Brad Martin, CST-18, MS E525 Jeff Carmichael, ESH-19, MS K498 RPF, MS M707



OU 1082 - Addendum Chapter 5 PRSs

LEGEND

Boundary, OU Boundary, TA Contours, 10 foot \sim Contours, 100 foot \sim PRS outline Roads, unimproved Roads, paved Roads, trail \sum Former structure Permanent structure Temporary structure PRS, point location





OU 1082 - Addendum 2 PRSs Proposed for NF

LEGEND

	Boundary, OU
and and a second and a second se	Boundary, TA
	Contours, 10 foot
\frown	Contours, 100 foot
	Roads, unimproved
\frown	Roads, paved
	Roads, trail
	Former structure
	Permanent structure
	Temporary structure

UNLOCATED PRSs PROPOSED FOR NFA: 16-037 C-16-072 C-16-046



Grid provides NM State Plane coordinates in feet. Grid interval, in feet: 2000 Feet per inch on map = 300 \Leftrightarrow SCALE 1:3600 FEET FEET NOTICE: The information on this map is provisional. Feature locations are dependent on scale and symbology and their accuracy may not have been confirmed. Los Alarnos National Laborato boundary is based on legal description established in 1995. Other boundary, structure, and utility data are from Los Alarnos National Laboratory Engineering Division and Los Alarnos County Utility and Engineering Departments. Contour data are from Los Alarnos National Laboratory Environmental Restoration Project aerial survey, September 1991. University of California Los Alamos National Laboratory Earth and Environmental Sciences Division FIMAD Facility for Information Management, Analysis, and Displa FIMAD is the electronic data repository for the Environme Restoration Project at Los Alamos National Laboratory. Produced by: Doug Walther Date: June 26, 1995

FIMAD Plot ID: G103525